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PART |
Item 1. BUSINESS

GENERAL

Olin Corporation is a Virginia corporation, incorpted in 1892, having its principal executive a#dn Norwalk, Connecticut. We ar¢
manufacturer concentrated in three business segntehior Alkali Products, Metals and WinchesterChlor Alkali Products manufactures
chlorine and caustic soda, sodium hydrosulfite rogdloric acid and bleach products, which repre28ft of 2002 sales. Metals products,
which represent 53% of 2002 sales, include coppeércapper alloy sheet, strip, foil, rod, weldedeutabricated parts, metal packages and
stainless steel and aluminum strip. Winchester yetsj which represent 22% of 2002 sales, includetisiy ammunition, canister powder,
reloading components, small caliber military amntioniand industrial cartridges.

We maintain an Internet website at http://www.aom. Our reports on Form 10-K, Form 10-Q, and Forig, &s well as amendments
those reports, are available free of charge om@insite, as soon as reasonably practicable aftéiterthe reports with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

PRODUCTS, SERVICES AND STRATEGIES

Chlor Alkali Products

Products and Service:

We have been involved in the U.S. chlor alkali isitiy for more than 100 years and are a major ppatit in the U.S. chlor alkali marke
Chlorine and caustic soda are co-produced comnilgrpiamarily by the electrolysis of salt. These-pmoducts are produced simultaneously,
and in a fixed ratio of 1.0 ton of chlorine to 1chs of caustic soda. The industry refers to thiarmElectrochemical Unit or ECU. With a
demonstrated capacity as of the end of 2002 of hilllon ECUs per year, including 50% of the protian from our partnership with PolyOne
Corporation, which we refer to as our Sunbelt joienture, we are the fourth largest chlor alkatidurcer in the United States, according to
from Chemical Market Associates, Inc. (CMAI). CM&la global petrochemical, plastics and fibers atimg) firm established in 1979.
According to CMAI data, we are the largest produneasured by production volume of chlorine and tiassda in the eastern United States,
with facilities located in Mcintosh, Alabama, Cheston, Tennessee, Augusta, Georgia, and Niagasa Ralv York. Since transportation costs
can be a significant part of the final cost of pineduct to the customer, our close proximity to caustic customers is an advantage.
Approximately two-thirds of our caustic soda protilure is high purity membrane and rayon grade, whictording to CMAI data, normally
commands a premium selling price in the market.

Our manufacturing facilities in Augusta, Mcinto€harleston, and a portion of our facility in Niagdaralls are 1ISO 9002 certified. ISO
9000 (which includes 1ISO 9001 and ISO 9002) and 18000 (which includes ISO 14001) are sets of edlaternational standards on quality
assurance and environmental management developi iyternational Organization for Standardizatiomelp companies effectively
document the guality and environmental managemeés elements to be implemented to maintain éffecjuality and environmental
management systems. All four of these manufactdnijties have also achieved Star status in theiktary Protection Program (VPP) of the
Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHASHA'’s VPP is a program in which companies vtdwity participate that recognizes
facilities for their exemplary safety and healtiogmams.

Chlorine is used as a raw material in the produatibthousands of products, but a significant portof U.S. chlorine production is
consumed in the manufacture of ethylene dichlotdé&;DC, a precursor for polyvinyl chloride, or PMEVC is a plastic used in applications
such as vinyl siding, plumbing and automotive padiher U.S. end-uses for chlorine include chldedantermediates, isocyanates and water
treatment. While much of the chlorine producechia ).S. is consumed by the producing company tcendakvnstream products, we sell most
of the chlorine we produce to third parties in therchant market.

Caustic soda has a wide variety of end use apgitatthe largest of which is in the pulp and papdustry. Caustic soda is also used in
the production of detergents and soaps, aluminaaratiety of other inorganic and organic chemicals

2



The chlor alkali industry is cyclical, both as auk of changes in demand for each of the co-przdared as a result of the large
increments in which new capacity is added. Becah&®ine and caustic are produced in a fixed rakie,supply of one product can be
constrained both by the physical capacity of trapction facilities and/or by the ability to seiktco-product. Prices for both products respond
rapidly to changes in supply and demand. Priceimgd out in the second quarter of 2002 at appratéin $200 and then increased through
the end of 2002. In the period 1991-2002, averdg¥ Brices as reported by CMAI have been in excéspproximately $425 and as low as
approximately $150.

Electricity and salt are the major purchased raweneds for our Chlor Alkali Products segment. Ranaterials represent approximately
50% of the total cost of producing an ECU. Eledtyits the single largest raw material componerthim production of chlor alkali products.
Our electricity costs have been stable over thetdaisyears because we are supplied by utilitiasghimarily utilize coal, hydroelectric and
nuclear power and have relatively minor exposunestoiral gas. We have contracts which are basédgrga non-seasonal usage. The majority
of the salt used in our Chlor Alkali Products seghis produced from internal resources but we delpase salt on the merchant market. We
have contracts for our purchased salt, which ae lahsed on large non-peak demand usage. The cdtymatlire of this industry places an
added emphasis on cost management and we bel@wedrhave managed our manufacturing costs in amendhat makes us one of the low
cost producers in the industry. In addition, askeademand grows in the future, the design of tineb®lt joint venture plant will enable us to
expand capacity cost-effectively.

We also manufacture a small volume of chlor alkalated products and we recently invested in céyacid product upgrades in these
areas. These products include chemically procesagchydrochloric acid, sodium hypochlorite andliogen. We also sell sodium hydrosul
to paper, textile and clay bleaching customers.

The following table lists products of our Chlor AlkProducts business, with principal productstontiasis of annual sales highlighted in
bold face.

Major Raw
Materials
& Components for
Products & Services Products/Services

Major End Uses Plants & Facilities

Chlorine/caustic soda Pulp & paper processing, chemical Augusta, GA salt, electricit
manufacturing, water purification, manufacture wiw Charleston, TN
chloride, bleach, swimming pool chemicals & urethar  Mclntosh, AL
chemicals Niagara Falls, NY
Sodium hydrosulfite Paper, textile & clay bleachir Augusta, GA caustic sode
Charleston, TN sulfur dioxide
Salto, Brazil
Sodium hypochlorit: Household cleaners, laundry bleaching, swimming Augusta, GA chlorine,
sanitizers, semiconductors, water treatment, &xtipulp  Charleston, TN caustic soda
& paper and food processing Mcintosh, AL
Niagara Falls, NY
Hydrochloric acid Steel, oil & gas, plastics, organic chemical Augusta, GA chlorine,
synthesis, water and wastewater treatment, brine Charleston, TN hydrogen

Strategies

Continued Role as a Preferred Supplier to Merchdatket Customers

treatment, artificial sweeteners, pharmaceutidatsj
processing and ore and mineral proces

Niagara Falls, NY

Based on our market research, we believe olor@ttkali

Products business is viewed as a preferred supplieur merchant market customers. We will contittufocus on providing quality customer
service support and developing relationships withwalued customers.

Pursue Incremental Expansion OpportunitiesWe have invested in capacity and product wpggan our chemically processed salt,
hydrochloric acid, sodium hypochlorite and hydropeisinesses. These expansions increase our capgwvef chlorine while increasing the

sales of these co-products. These niche businpssésle opportunities to upgrade chlorine and dausthigher value-added applications. We
also have the opportunity, when business condifp@mmit, to pursue incremental expansion throughSunbelt joint venture.
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Metals

Products and Services

We have been in the Metals business for approxign8tyears. Based on Copper Development Assoaidtio. (CDA) data, we are a
leading manufacturer of copper and copper allogststrip, plate, foil and brass rod in the Unigtdtes. CDA acts as the central authoritative
source of data and information pertaining to th8.l¢opper and brass industry. While primarily pssieg copper alloys, we also reroll and
form other metals, such as aluminum and staintess. 8Ve believe we hold leading positions for pitempriced, high performance alloys in
the United States. We supply high performance altoynon-U.S. customers through exports, techndiegysing, joint ventures and local
distribution. Participants in the copper sheet stnigh industry include integrated mills, reroll teiknd distributors, with many participants
engaging in multiple roles. We believe that wetheelargest U.S. participant in each of these categ. We believe that our status as the
largest U.S. participant affords us a favorableusid position. We also believe we are one of tivgelst cost producers, a quality and service
leader and a specialty product innovator.

All of our copper sheet and strip mills are both @80 and 1SO 9000 certified. QS 9000 is an intiiwnal automotive standard that was
developed by General Motors, Ford Motor Company@hdysler to harmonize the fundamental supplietiugystems as an assessment tool,
and is based upon 1SO 9000 standards. All sheestaipdocations are ISO certified. On September28D2, we completed our acquisition of
Chase Industries Inc., which we refer to as Ch@kase, with 2002 sales of $232 million, is a legdimanufacturer and supplier of free-
machining brass rod in the U.S. and Canada ar8ids9002 certified.

We maintain many advantages over our competitiooutih our patent-protected technologies. We belowenigh performance alloys
provide superior strength, conductivity and forntighto customers in the automotive, electricagatonic and telecommunications industries.
We currently hold 31 U.S. patents associated wigh performance alloys and 61 other U.S. pateriéda@ to various proprietary processing
and technical capabilities, many of which are aésgistered in foreign jurisdictions. To further @lobal presence, we have established a joint
venture with Yamaha Corporation in Japan to prodighk performance alloys, formed a technical alfmwith Wieland-Werke A.G. of
Germany under which we jointly develop new highfpenance alloys and participate in an alloy licegsarrangement and have formed a j
venture with Luoyang Copper (Group) Ltd. in Chingdintly construct and operate a metals distrimuttenter to service the growing Chinese
demand. These relationships provide us with grefitdral reach and enable us to provide high perfmice alloys in Asia and Europe.

In addition, through sales of our clad metal, pratlby a proprietary cladding process, we belieeeawe a major supplier of coinage
metal to the U.S. Mint. We also supply coinage mietather world governments. Our Metals segmeatipces ammunition cartridge cups for
use captively in the manufacture of our Winchesparting ammunition, which constitutes a small jporof our total Metals segment output.
We also sell cartridge brass to other ammunitiokera This relationship with Winchester, along wotlr growing fabrication business for
select customers, provides us with a significaptica customer base.

Brass and other copper alloys are manufacturedddfing copper together with various combinationziot, lead or other metals. The
resulting product goes through a series of prosgsseluding casting, hot rolling, milling, coldlliog, annealing, cleaning and slitting to
produce sheet and strip and a similar proces$éoptoduction of rod. The principal end-uses faetland strip products include: automotive
(connectors and radiators); electronics (lead fiaroennectors, wiring and telecommunications appbas); ammunition; coinage; and other
applications such as builder’s hardware, plumbingpties and welded tube for utility condensers iadistrial heat exchangers. Brass rod is
used to produce a variety of products, such asfauplumbing fittings, heating and air conditianicomponents, industrial valves, automotive
parts and numerous hardware components.

The major raw materials used in our metals busiaesgopper, zinc, other ndarous metals and brass scrap, purchased fromhais
dealers and customers at market prices.

Historically, demand for copper sheet and strip mtihas exhibited growth consistent with the gtoimtthe U.S. gross domestic prod
In the late 1990's and in 2000, demand expandedapid pace principally due to the strength ofh®. economy. From 1997 to 2000, sheet
and strip demand grew at an annualized growthafaég@proximately 8%. In 2001 and into 2002, demhas been lower because of the
economic downturn.



The following table lists products and service®of Metals business, with principal products onlibsis of annual sales highlighted in

bold face.

Products and Services

Copper & copper alloy
sheet & strip (standard & high
performance)

Network of metals service cente

Posit-bond® clad metal

Rolled copper foil, Copperbond
®foil, stainless steel strip

Copper alloy welded tube

Fabricated products

Shaped brass roc

High performance, high
reliability, hermetic metal
packages for microelectronics
industry

Major End Uses

Plants & Facilities*

Major Raw Materials &
Components for
Products/Services

Electronic connectors, lead frames, elect
components, communications, automotive,
builders’ hardware, coinage, ammunition

Electronic connectors, electric
components, communications,
automotive, builders’ hardware,
household products

Coinage strip & blanks

Printed circuit boards, electrical
electronic, automotive

Utility condensers, industrial heat
exchangers, refrigeration & air conditioni
builder¢ hardware, automotiv

Builders’ hardware, plumbing, automotive
and ammunition components

Plumbing, consumer durable goods,
industrial machinery and equipment, and
electrical and electronic pal

Computer, telecommunications, medic
aerospace and military

Bryan, OH

East Alton, IL
Indianapolis, IN (closing
announced)

Seymour, CT
Waterbury, CT (two locations)
Iwata, Japan
(Yamaha-Olin

Metal Corporation
Allentown, PA

Alliance, OH

Caguas, PR

Carol Stream, IL
Suwanee, GA
Warwick, RI
Watertown, CT

Yorba Linda, CA
Queretaro, Mexict

East Alton, IL

Waterbury, C1

Cuba, MO

East Alton, IL

Montpelier, OH

Los Angeles, CA (distribution
center)

New Bedford, MA

copper, zinc &
other nonferrous
metals

copper & coppe
alloy sheet, strip,
tube & steel &
aluminum strip

cupronickel, coppe
& aluminum
copper & coppe
alloy sheet, strip
and foil and
stainless steel stri
copper alloy strip

copper and copper
alloy, and stainless
steel strig

brass scrap

metal alloys, mete

matrix composites,
glasses and ceran
component:

* If site is not operated by Olin or a majo-owned, direct or indirect subsidiary, name of joianture, affiliate or operator is indicatt

Strategies

Continue Profitable Growth Globally. Our goal is to be a leading worldwide supptispecialty copper-based products and related
engineered materials. We intend to achieve this lgpauilding our high performance alloys busineasa global basis. In 2002, we took a

number of actions to further develop our globakpree, including the acquisition of Chase, a lgadianufacturer and supplier of brass rod in

the United States and Canada. We entered intoraemgnt with Luoyang Copper (Group) Ltd. to joirntlynstruct and operate a metals ser
center in Guangzhou, China, which we expect togeational in the second half of 2003.

Maintain Premier Specialty Product Innovator Paziti  We believe that we manufacture more high perforce alloys than any other
competitor, and we are investing to expand our pecotine. Our specialty products include proprigthigh performance alloys and materials
that meet strength, gauge, formability and conditgtrequirements for applications in our customeérdustries.
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Increase Cost Efficiencies. We will continue to focus on achieving econosnié scale, improved manufacturing processes and
innovation in pursuit of cost reductions. We strdwgeprofit improvements primarily through yield provements, increased equipment
utilization and capacity enhancements.

Continue Our Quality Leadership. We will maintain ISO 9000, QS 9000, and ISOH4a@ertifications. For example, our East Alton,
lllinois mill carries the distinctive certificatienof ISO 9001, due to its extensive design work, @O 14001, a prominent environmental
standard. We believe that these certifications destrate a quality advantage not possessed by gudl& competitors. We also continue to
maintain preferred supplier positions with soméhef largest or most respected companies in segmérgie quality is essential, such as
automotive and electronics.

Leverage Our Service and Distribution LeadershipGoowth. We believe that we are a service and distrimutiéader in the copper-
based metals industry. Our A.J. Oster distributigstem extends throughout the United States andratkides facilities in Puerto Rico and
Mexico. We sell directly from the mill to large wohe customers, and to small and medium size cussotim®ugh A.J. Oster and other licen
distributors. We intend to leverage our serviceléahip and our distribution network to improve fust-in-time delivery services and our
customized order capabilities.

Winchester
Products and Service:

Winchester is in its 136th year of operation asd’/2nd year as part of Olin. Winchester is a prenéeeloper and manufacturer of sn
caliber ammunition for sale to domestic and intéomal retailers, law enforcement agencies and ddimand international militaries. We
believe we are a leading U.S. producer of ammumfiio recreational shooters, hunters, law enforggragencies and the U.S. Armed Forces.
Our legendary Winchester product line includesradjor gauges and calibers of shotgun shells, ringird centerfire ammunition for pistols
and rifles, canister powder, reloading componentkiadustrial cartridges. We believe we are theketdeader in both shotshell and centerfire
pistol ammunitions. We expect the sporting ammanitndustry to show a relatively flat growth prefiior 2003 and 2004, after increasing
slightly in 2002.

Winchester has strong relationships throughous#ies and distribution chain and strong ties witienal dealers and distributors.
Winchester has built its business with key highumod mass merchants and specialty sporting gooaiterst We have consistently developed
industry-leading ammunition, and in eight of thetleen years, including each of the past five y@atiachester was recognized with the
“Ammunition of the Year” award from the Shootingilrstry Academy of Excellence for its technologi@adl design leadership. In 2002, we
were recognized as “Manufacturer of the Year” im #immunition category by the National AssociatibSporting Goods Wholesalers and as
Wal-Mart Canada’s “2002 Vendor Partner of the Year.

Winchester purchases raw materials such as leadiandrom merchants, dealers and customers ateharices as posted on exchanges
such as the Commaodity Metals Exchange, or COMEX,laandon Metals Exchange, or LME. Winchester algicpases copper-based strip
and cups from our Metals segment. Winchester’'sratian raw material is propellant, which is puradsgredominately from one of the
United States’ largest propellant suppliers.

The following table lists products and serviceswoif Winchester business, with principal productshenbasis of annual sales highlighted
in bold face.

Major Raw Materials &

Components for

Products & Services Major End Uses Plants & Facilities Products/Services
Winchester ® sporting Hunters & recreational shooters, East Alton, IL brass, lead, steel, plas
ammunition (shot-shells, small law enforcement agencies Geelong, Australia propellant, explosives
caliber centerfire & rimfire
ammunition)
Small caliber military Infantry and mounted weapons East Alton, IL brass, lead,
ammunition propellant, explosive
Governmer-owned arsenz Maintenance of U.S. Army la- Baraboo,WI subcontracted ¢
operation away production plant government-supplied

component:
Industrial products (8 gauge loé  Maintenance applications in power & East Alton, IL brass, lead, plastic,
& powder-actuated tool loads)  concrete industries, powder-actuated tools Geelong, Australia propellant, explosives

in construction industr



Strategies

Leverage Existing Strengths. Winchester will focus on seeking new opportiesito leverage the legendary Winchester brand rearde
will continue to offer a full line of ammunition pducts to the markets we serve, with specific famuimvestments that lower our costs and
make Winchester ammunition the retail brand of cloi

Focus on Product Line Growth. With a long record of pioneering new produdedhgs, Winchester has built a strong reputatioam
industry innovator. This includes the introductimfireduced-lead and non-lead products, which aseigig in popularity for use in indoor
shooting ranges and for outdoor hunting.

2002 DEVELOPMENTS

On September 27, 2002, we completed our acquisifi@hase and issued approximately 9.8 million ebaf our common stock for all
of the outstanding stock of Chase. In connectiah e acquisition of Chase, we entered into angpfigreement with Court Square Capital
Limited, or Court Square, dated as of May 7, 200&suant to the Voting Agreement, we were requiodile a registration statement for the
4,665,564 shares of Olin common stock issued tatCguare in the merger. This registration statémes declared effective by the Secur
and Exchange Commission on December 20, 2002 .v@llineceive none of the proceeds from the salarof of these shares.

In November 2002, we announced that our Metals @Ghad entered into an agreement with Luoyang Cofapeintly construct and
operate a metals service center in Guangzhou, GoaggProvince, China. The joint venture named Qlintong Metals (GZ) Ltd., Co., will
process and distribute both our and Luoyang’s copld@y products to the growing Chinese marketplddes joint venture will allow us to
supply our high performance alloys, or HPAs, taededt the electronics, automotive and telecommtinitgindustries, at competitive costs.
This joint venture is expected to be operationdhasecond half of 2003, subject to Chinese gawernt approval.

INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS

We have sales offices and subsidiaries in variousities which support the worldwide export of prot from the United States as w
as overseas production facilities. In addition,menufacture and distribute sodium hydrosulfite razsl.

Yamaha-Olin Metal Corporation, manufactures highfgrenance copper alloys in Japan for sale to teetednics industry throughout the
Far East. Our subsidiary, Olin Australia Limitedadls and packs sporting and industrial ammunitiofsustralia. We entered into an agreement
with Luoyang Copper (Group) Ltd. to jointly consttiand operate a metals service center in Guang£tuna, which we expect to be
operational in the second half of 2003. See theN®&egment Information” of the Notes to Consolidafénancial Statements in Item 8, for
geographic segment data. We are incorporatingegment information from that Note into this sectafrour Form 10-K.

CUSTOMERS AND DISTRIBUTION

During 2002, no single customer accounted for niloae 6% of consolidated sales. Sales to all U.8egonent agencies and sales ur
U.S. government contracting activities in total@aoated for approximately 7% of consolidated sabe®d02. Products we sell to industrial or
commercial users or distributors for use in thedpition of other products constitute a major p&dw total sales. We sell some of our
products, such as sporting ammunition and brass)dcge number of users or distributors, whilesek others, such as chlorine and caustic
soda, in substantial quantities to a relatively lsmamber of industrial users. We discuss the austis for each of our three businesses in more
detail above under “Products and Services.”

We market most of our products and services prigndriough our sales force and sell directly toieas industrial customers, the U.S.
Government and its prime contractors, to wholesaded other distributors.

Because we engage in some government contractiivifias and make sales to the U.S. Governmentargesubject to extensive and
complex U.S. Government procurement laws and réiga& These laws and regulations provide for omggovernment audits and reviews of
contract procurement, performance and administrakailure to comply, even inadvertently, with #ésws and regulations and with laws
governing the export of munitions and other cotgbproducts and commodities could subject us erarmore of our businesses to civil and
criminal penalties, and under certain circumstansespension and debarment from future governnaaritacts and the exporting of products
for a specified period of time.



COMPETITION

We are in active competition with businesses produthe same or similar products, as well as, mesmstances, with businesses
producing different products designed for the sag®s. We are among the largest manufacturerstoibdisrs in the United States of
ammunition, copper and copper alloys and certalior@ikali products based on data provided by therfihg Arms and Ammunition
Manufacturers’ Institute (SAAMI), CDA and CMAI, rpsctively. Founded in 1926, SAAMI is an associatidthe nation’s leading
manufacturers of sporting firearms, ammunition eachponents. Many factors influence our ability teonpete successfully, including price,
delivery, service, performance, product innovatoil product recognition and quality, dependinghengroduct involved.

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2002, we had approximately 6gt@floyees (excluding approximately 60 employedsmternment-owned,
contractor-operated facilities), with approximaté|g00 working in the United States and approxigat80 working in foreign countries.
Various labor unions represent a majority of owhepaid employees for collective bargaining puses. Although some labor contracts
extend for as long as six years, others are fottshperiods. A labor contract for approximatel0Zinployees at the Chlor Alkali Products
Division’s Mclntosh, Alabama facility expires in Ap2004. While we believe our relations with oungloyees and their various
representatives are generally satisfactory, weaasssure you that we can conclude these laboramistor any other labor agreements witt
work stoppages.

RESEARCH ACTIVITIES; PATENTS

Our research activities are conducted on a progiaip basis at a number of facilities. Company-spoed research expenditures were
approximately $5 million during each of 2002, 2GG1M 2000.

We own or license a number of patents, patent egpdins and trade secrets covering our productpesabsses, particularly for use in
our Metals segment. We believe that, in the agdgesglae rights under our patents and licensesngperitant to our operations, but we do not
consider any individual patent or license or grofipatents and licenses related to a specific goe product to be of material importance to
our total business.

RAW MATERIALS AND ENERGY

We purchase the major portion of our raw mategguirements. The principal basic raw materialofarproduction of chlor alka
products are salt, electricity, sulfur dioxide,atime and hydrogen. Copper, zinc, various otheferonus metals and brass scrap are required
for the Metals business. Lead, brass and propedi@nthe principal raw materials used in the Wistdiebusiness. We typically purchase our
principal basic raw materials pursuant to multiyeamtracts. In the manufacture of ammunition, we aisubstantial percentage of our own
output of cartridge brass. We provide addition&imation with respect to specific raw materialdhe tables above under “Products and
Services.”

Electricity is the predominant energy source for manufacturing facilities. Most of our facilitiese served by utilities which generate
electricity principally from coal, hydroelectric dmuclear power.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND TOXIC SUBSTANCES CONTROLS

The establishment and implementation of federatesand local standards to regulate air, watelamal quality have affected and will
continue to affect substantially all of our manufaing locations. Federal legislation providing fegulation of the manufacture, transportat
use and disposal of hazardous and toxic substdraseisnposed additional regulatory requirementsadnstry, particularly the chemicals
industry. In addition, implementation of environnedriaws, such as the Resource Conservation anovegcAct and the Clean Air Act, has
required and will continue to require new capitgpenditures and will increase operating costs. Yipley waste minimization and pollution
prevention programs at our manufacturing sitesvea@re a party to various governmental and prigatéronmental actions associated with
waste disposal sites and manufacturing facilit@sarges to income for investigatory and remedi@lref were material to operating results in
the past three years and may be material to netriadn future years.

See our discussion of our environmental mattetgem 3, “Legal Proceedings” below, the Note “Envingental” of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Beand Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Arialgs Financial Condition and Results
of Operations.”



ADDITIONAL FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

In addition to the other information in this For®-K, the following factors should be considere@imluating Olin and our business. All
of our forwardlooking statements should be considered in lighhe§e factors. Additional risks and uncertaintied we are unaware of or tl
we currently deem immaterial also may become ingmdriactors that affect us.

Sensitivity to Global Economic Conditions and Cychality —Our operating results could be negatively affectedng economic
downturns.

The business of most of our customers, particulaulyautomotive, coinage, electrical connectotectammunications and housing
customers, are, to varying degrees, cyclical ane historically experienced periodic downturns. §dhheconomic and industry downturns have
been characterized by diminished product demarggssxmanufacturing capacity and, in some casesy laverage selling prices. Therefore,
any significant downturn in our customers’ busimsssr in global economic conditions could resubt ireduction in demand for our products
and could adversely affect our results of operationfinancial condition. As a result of the degegseconomic conditions beginning in the
fourth quarter of 2000 and continuing through tingt half of 2002, our vinyls, urethanes and puid @aper customers have had lower demand
for our chlor alkali products. Our coinage, elentooand telecommunications customers had lower ddnfar our Metals products beginning
the fourth quarter of 2000 and continuing throu@b2 Lower demand in our Metals and Chlor Alkalbéucts segments has adversely affe
our business and results of operations in 2001280@, compared to 2000. Specifically, the continsiedvdown in the coinage and
telecommunications industries has adversely affecte results of operations in our Metals segment.

Although we do not generally sell a large perceataigour products directly to customers abroadygd part of our financial performar
is dependent upon a healthy economy beyond thetlSitates. Our customers sell their products abad result, our business is affectec
general economic conditions and other factors istéte Europe and most of East Asia, particularlin€and Japan, including fluctuations in
interest rates, customer demand, labor costs dmd ftctors beyond our control. The demand foromstomers’ products, and therefore, our
products, is directly affected by such fluctuatio@sir joint venture, Yamaha-Olin Metal Corporatitotated in Japan, is particularly
susceptible to these fluctuations. We cannot aggurghat events having an adverse effect on tthasimies in which we operate will not occur
or continue, such as a further downturn in the \&tasEuropean, Asian or world economies, increas@gérest rates, unfavorable currency
fluctuations or a prolonged slowdown in the coinagectronic or telecommunications industries.

The terrorist attacks of September 11th createdyreaonomic and political uncertainties and have daaégative impact on the global
economy. The long-term effects of these attackswifuture operating results and financial conditése unknown. The national and
international responses to terrorist attacks aactitential for additional terrorist attacks or g@mevents could have further material adverse
effects on the economy in general, on our industiy on our operations. For example, war with onmare countries, including a United
States attack on Iraq, which is under public dismusby the country’s leaders, could have numeoonsequences for us and our customers,
one of which may be sustained high energy prices.

Cyclical Pricing Pressure—Our profitability could be reduced by declinesaverage selling prices of our products, particylddclines
in the ECU netback (gross price less freight asdalints).

Our historical operating results reflect the cyaliand sometimes volatile nature of the chemicakats and ammunition industries. We
experience cycles of fluctuating supply and demarehch of our business segments, particularliiiénGhlor Alkali Products division, which
results in changes in selling prices. Periods g lidemand, tight supply and increasing operatingyimsa tend to result in increased capacity
and production until supply exceeds demand, gelgddlowed by periods of oversupply and declinimgices. The industry build cycle, and its
impact on industry pricing, has been most pronodrieeur Chlor Alkali Products segment. For exampiel995 and 1996, the chlor alkali
industry was very profitable due to a tight supgémand balance, which resulted in both higher dimgraates and higher ECU prices. Higher
profits led to reinvestment to expand capacity sTew capacity became operational in 1998 and 1@38lting in industry over-capacity. This
imbalance was exacerbated by falling demand asudt ref the Asian financial crisis. The supply/demdambalance resulted in both lower
operating rates and lower ECU prices, and in 1888y chlor alkali producers had operating lossés. Supply/demand balance improved due
to improved economic conditions in 2000 comparetia®9, and ECU prices increased in 2000 compar&838. As the U.S. and world
economies have deteriorated in 2001 and througfirgiénalf of 2002, the chlor alkali industry agaxperienced a period of oversupply
because of lower industry demand for both chloane caustic.



Price in the chlor alkali industry is a major stuppkelection criterion. We have little or no alyilio influence prices in this large
commodity market. Decreases in the average seiliings of our products could have a material advefect on our profitability. For
example, assuming all other costs remain consta$t0 change in our ECU netback causes a corresgpi&l 1 million increase or decreast
our annual revenues and pre-tax profits, when weperating at full capacity. While we strive toinmtain or increase our profitability by
reducing costs through improving production effiwig, emphasizing higher margin products, and byrotimg selling and administration
expenses, we cannot assure you that these effirtseveufficient to offset fully the effect of chges in pricing on operating results.

Because of the cyclical nature of our businesses;amnot assure you that pricing or profitabilitythe future will be comparable to any
particular historical period, including the mosteat period shown in our operating results. We oaiassure you that the chlor alkali industry
will not experience adverse trends in the futurehat our operating results and/or financial c@indiwill not be adversely affected by them.

Our Metals and Winchester segments are also subjetianges in operating results as a result dfaa@ricing pressures, but to a lesser
extent than the Chlor Alkali Products segment. \Wieggally pass changes in prices for copper and atkéals along to our customers as pa
the negotiated price of the finished product in tradour Metals segment product lines. However, Metals segment experiences
manufacturing or pricing pressure with respects@onversion charges, and we cannot assure ybadkarse trends in pricing and margins
will not affect operating results in the futurenfiiarly, selling prices of ammunition are affecteglchanges in raw material costs and customer
demand, and declines in average selling pricesiofdinchester segment could adversely affect oofitability.

Indebtedness—Our indebtedness could adversely affect our firmondition, limit our ability to grow and comgeand prevent us
from fulfilling our obligation under our indebtedsse

As of December 31, 2002, we had approximately $88on of indebtedness outstanding, excluding guarantee of $91.4 million of
indebtedness of our Sunbelt joint venture. Thissduoat include our $140 million senior credit fagilon which we had $119 million available
on that date. As of December 31, 2002, our indetetssl represented 58.8% of our total capitalizatmJanuary 3, 2002, we entered into a
new $140 million three-year revolving senior crdditility, which we refer to as our senior creditility.

Our indebtedness could adversely affect our fir@randition, limit our ability to grow and competad prevent us from fulfilling our
obligations under our indebtedness. Despite owal lef/indebtedness, our senior credit facility aod existing indentures permit us to borrow
additional money. If we borrow more money, the sis&lated to our indebtedness could be increagadisantly.

Debt Service—We may not be able to generate sufficient cagteteice our debt, which may require us to refinamaeindebtedness or
default on our scheduled debt payments.

Our ability to generate sufficient cash flow fromevations to make scheduled payments on our deleinde on a range of economic,
competitive and business factors, many of whichoatside our control. We cannot assure you thabasiness will generate sufficient cash
flow from operations. If we are unable to meet exppenses and debt obligations, we may need tcarefsall or a portion of our indebtedness
on or before maturity, sell assets or raise eqliitg.cannot assure you that we would be able toarfie any of our indebtedness, sell assets or
raise equity on commercially reasonable terms aflatvhich could cause us to default on our oltliges and impair our liquidity. Our inabilit
to generate sufficient cash flow to satisfy ourtdedigations, or to refinance our obligations @menercially reasonable terms, would have an
adverse effect on our business, financial conditiod results of operations, as well as on ourtghidi satisfy our debt obligations. See
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations.”

After taking into consideration our interest-rateaps which convert our fixed rate debt to a vagaile, at December 31, 2002,
approximately 43% of our indebtedness bears intatesriable rates that are linked to short-temterest rates. If interest rates rise, our costs
relative to those obligations would also rise.

Imbalance in Demand for Our Chlor Alkali Products —A loss of a substantial customer for our chlomne&austic soda could cause an
imbalance in demand for these products, which chalge an adverse effect on our results of operstion
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Chlorine and caustic soda are produced simultamgaus in a fixed ratio of 1.0 ton of chlorine tdltons of caustic soda. The loss of a
substantial chlorine or caustic soda customer coaltse an imbalance in demand for our chlorinecanigtic soda products. An imbalance in
demand may require us to reduce production of bbltrine and caustic soda or take other stepsnecithe imbalance. Since we cannot s
chlorine, we may not be able to respond to an iarizd in demand for these products as quickly dciefitly as some of our competitors. If a
substantial imbalance occurred, we would needdaae prices or take other actions that could havegative impact on our results of
operations and financial condition.

Competition —We face competition from other chemical, metald ammunition companies, which could adversely &ffec revenues
and financial condition.

We are in active competition with companies prodgdhe same or similar products, as well as, inesorstances, with companies
producing different products designed for the sages. With respect to certain product groups, sscmmmunition, copper alloys and brass
rod, and with respect to certain chlor alkali protdywe are among the largest manufacturers aitdigdrs in the United States. We encounter
competition in price, delivery, service, securimgl anaintaining customers, performance, technolpgyduct innovation, and product
recognition and quality, depending on the prodoebdived. With respect to certain products, someusfcompetitors are larger, have greater
financial resources and have less debt than wAsla.result, these competitors may be better abhdthstand a change in conditions within
the industries in which we operate and throughleeitdfconomy as a whole. If we do not compete suftdgsour business, financial condition
and results of operations could be adversely aftect

Environmental Costs—We have ongoing environmental costs, which coldd have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition.

The nature of our operations and products, inclylre raw materials we handle, exposes us to skefiliabilities or claims with respe
to environmental matters. We have incurred, antasittinue to incur, significant costs and capégbenditures in complying with these
environmental laws and regulations.

The ultimate costs and timing of environmentalilitibs are difficult to predict. Liability underrerironmental laws relating to
contaminated sites can be imposed retroactivelyoana joint and several basis. One liable partydcba held responsible for all costs at a site,
regardless of fault, percentage of contributioth®site or the legality of the original dispod#fe could incur significant costs, including
cleanup costs, natural resources damages, cigiiroinal fines and sanctions and third-party lawsulaiming, for example, personal injury
and/or property damage, as a result of past ordutinlations of, or liabilities under, environmahor other laws. In addition, future events,
such as changes to or more rigorous enforcemeasmwifonmental laws, could require us to make agddéi expenditures, modify or curtail our
operations and/or install pollution control equipthesee “Management’s Discussion and Analysis n&fcial Condition and Results of
Operations—Environmental Matters.”

Cost Control —Our profitability could be reduced if we experierftigher-than-expected raw material, utility, ty@orsation or logistics
costs, or if we fail to achieve our targeted cesluctions.

Our operating results and profitability are deperidgon our continued ability to control, and inrsocases further reduce, our costs. If
we are unable to do so, or if costs outside ofamtrol, particularly our costs of raw materialslities, transportation and similar costs incre
beyond anticipated levels, our profitability wikdine.

Production Hazards—Our facilities are subject to operating hazardsictv may disrupt our business.

We are dependent upon the continued safe opermattioar production facilities. Our production fatidis are subject to hazards associated
with the manufacture, handling, storage and trariapon of chemical materials and products and anitimn, including leaks and ruptures,
explosions, fires, inclement weather and natursdstiers, unexpected utility disruptions or outagescheduled downtime and environmental
hazards. From time to time in the past, we haveim@dents that have temporarily shut down or oth®e disrupted our manufacturing, caus
production delays and resulting in liability for vkplace injuries and fatalities. Some of our pradunvolve the manufacture and/or handlin
a variety of explosive and flammable materials. bthese products by our customers could alsdtrigsliability if an explosion, fire, spill or
other accident were to occur. We cannot assurdghgttuve will not experience these types of incidentthe future or that these incidents will
not result in production delays or otherwise haveagerial adverse effect on our business, finaragiatlition or results of operations.
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Tax Audits —We are currently subject to ongoing tax auditsiciwimay result in additional tax payments.

We are currently subject to ongoing audits by titerhal Revenue Service in connection with our Fadex returns for the years from
1992 to 2000; however, we have closed all tax ygamigh 1991. Depending on the outcome of thedésawe may be required to pay
additional taxes, and any additional taxes andedlaterest could be substantial. We have reseamsalints which we believe will be sufficil
for any adverse outcome, but the actual amounhy&ach additional taxes and the timing of any queyments is uncertain.

Pension Plans—The decline in equity markets and low interestsdtave resulted in our pension plan liabilitieseexiing the fair value
of the plan’s assets as of December 31, 2002.cchild result in higher pension costs and the neddrtd the pension plan in future years.

Due to the significant decline in the equity masketiring 2002 and declining lorigem interest rates, which had the effect of longidul
discount rate and increasing the accumulated kestdfgation, the market value of our pension pantfolio as of December 31, 2002 was
below the accumulated benefit obligation. UndeteSteent of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) 8lowe recorded a $220 million after
tax charge to Shareholders’ Equity to reflect tifference. This is a non-cash charge and doeaffextt our ability to borrow under our
revolving credit agreement. Based on our assumgtmidl estimates, we may be required to make catigits to the pension fund, but those
contributions would not be required until 2005 geehsion costs may be higher over the next few y®desestimate that the higher pension
costs could be in the $10 million per year range.

Security and Chemicals Transportation—New regulations on the transportation of hazardiesnicals and/or the security of chemical
manufacturing facilities in response to the incegbterrorist threat post September 11th could té@shligher operating costs.

The chemical industry, including the chlor alkaliluistry, has proactively responded to the issueswwuding the events of September 11,
2001 by starting new initiatives relating to thewwgty of chemicals industry facilities and thertsportation of hazardous chemicals in the
United States. Simultaneously, government at thal]state and federal levels has begun the regylptocess which could lead to new
regulations that would impact the security of cheahplant locations and the transportation of hdaas chemicals. Our Chlor Alkali business
could be adversely impacted because of eithercdent or the cost of complying with new regulatioffhe extent of the impact would depend
on the consequences of an incident and the natareigection of future regulations, which are unkmaat this time

Litigation and Claims —We are subject to litigation and other claims, ebhtould cause us to incur significant expenses.

We are a defendant in a number of pending legalgaings relating to our present and former opmratiThese include proceedings
alleging injurious exposure of plaintiffs to varbahemicals and other substances (including pracgedased on alleged exposures to
asbestos, perchlorate and vinyl chloride). Freduestich proceedings involve claims made by numeplaintiffs against many defendants.
We believe we have valid defenses to these prosgedind are defending them vigorously. Howeveggdiion is subject to uncertainties and
we are unable to predict the outcome of these paings.

Item 2. PROPERTIES

We have manufacturing sites at 22 separate loctioh3 states and Puerto Rico and two manufagiites and a distribution facility
three foreign countries. In addition, a metals mereenter in China is expected to be operatian#ié second half of 2003. Most manufactu
sites are owned although a number of small site¢eased. We listed the locations at or from wisichproducts and services are manufact
distributed or marketed in the tables set fortheurttle caption “Products and Services.”

We lease warehouses, terminals and distributidnesffand space for executive and branch saleesféind service departments
throughout the world.
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Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

(a) We continue to work with the United States Eomimental Protection Agency, or USEPA, with resgecemediation of mercury
contamination at the site of our former mercury €&llor Alkali Products plant in Saltville, Virgiai

Additional work is required including the coverin§certain former waste ponds and additional ingesibn and monitoring. We
began work to cover the ponds in 2001 and expecivitrk to be completed in 2003.

We have met with the site’s Natural Resources Erssat the Trustees’ request regarding past raléase the Saltville site and the
nearby North Fork of the Holston River. We do nebw whether the Trustees will claim any naturabtese damages associated with releases
from the site. We believe that any liability inoedrin this matter will not be materially adverseto financial condition or liquidity. See
“Environmental Matters” contained in Item 7—"Managent’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Comuditand Results of Operations.”

(b) As part of the continuing environmental invgation by federal, state and local governmentsadterdisposal sites, we have
entered into a number of settlement agreementsriegjus to contribute to the cost of the invedtigia and cleanup of a number of sites. We
expect this process of investigation and cleanugtdinue. See “Environmental Matters” containedtiem 7—"Managemens’ Discussion ar
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Cgiems.”

(c) As a result of an internal audit of our EastoAltlllinois facility, we questioned whether receipigrades to certain operations w
completed in full compliance with certain USEPA amissions regulations. Although our facility reesl a modification to its air emissions
permit from the lllinois Environmental Protectiorgéncy, or IEPA, for the upgrades, the permit madiibn may not have addressed or
completely addressed all applicable regulationsFéruary 15, 2002, we disclosed to USEPA and IBRAthe upgrades may not have been
in compliance with all aspects of USEPA regulatiddgon further review, we submitted a report to AR June 2002, discussing our analysis
of the regulations applicable to the upgrades. Aetoffered to work with USEPA and IEPA to deterenihe nature and extent of the issues
and to correct them, if necessary. As part of #s®lution of this issue, we may need to enhandetpwi control equipment at our East Alton
facility and pay some penalty. While we do not estgkat the ultimate resolution of this matter wiilve a material impact on our financial
position, we cannot, at this time, determine tharicial impact, if any, on our results of operagioma particular year.

(d) We and our subsidiaries are defendants in waragher legal actions (including proceedings basedlleged exposures to
asbestos, perchlorate and vinyl chloride) incidetataur past and current business activities, mfnghich management believes to be
material.

Item 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
We did not submit any matter to a vote of securitiders during the three months ended Decembe2(.

Executive Officers as of February 28, 2003

Served as an

Olin Officer
Name and Age Office Since
Joseph D. Rupp (5: President and Chief Executive Offic 1996
Anthony W. Ruggiero (61 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi 1995
Thomas M. Gura (57 Executive Vice President, Metals Gra 1997
Peter C. Kosche (6( Senior Vice President, Corporate Affa 1993
George B. Erensen (5 Vice President and General Tax Cour 1990
Mary E. Gallagher (37 Vice President and Controll 1999
John L. Mclntosh (48 Vice President and President, Chlor Alkali ProduRitsision 1999
George H. Pain (52 Vice President, General Counsel and Secre 2002
Janet M. Pierpont (5t Vice President and Treasul 1990

No family relationship exists between any of thexabnamed executive officers or between any of taethany of our Directors. Such
officers were elected to serve, subject to thedysl, until their respective successors are chosen.
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Each of the above-named executive officers, exigei. Gallagher, J. L. Mcintosh and G. H. Pain baved as an executive officer for
not less than the past five years.

Mary E. Gallagher was elected a Corporate Viceiéeas on April 27, 2000. She was elected ContraleApril 29, 1999. Prior to th:
time, and since she joined Olin in May 1996, sheextas Director, Accounting and Financial Repartidrior to joining Olin, she served as a
Senior Manager with KPMG LLP.

John L. McIntosh was elected a Corporate Vice Beggion February 1, 1999 and also serves as Pngsiildor Alkali Product:
Division. Prior to that time, since 1997, he serasdVice President, Operations for Odigpecialty chemicals operations. He also servatce
President, Manufacturing and Engineering for Cilliali and was Director of Manufacturing, Enginegyiand Purchasing for that division
from 1991 through 1997.

George H. Pain joined Olin on April 15, 2002 ase/Rresident, General Counsel and Secretary. Pribiettime, since 2001, he servec
Vice President and General Counsel of General Dyesa@rdnance and Tactical Systems, Inc., an operaitiit of General Dynamics
Corporation. From 1997-2001, he served as Viceidras General Counsel and Secretary of Primex A@ogies, Inc.
PART Il
Item 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
As of January 31, 2003, we had approximately 7y&868rd holders of our common sto
Our common stock is traded on the New York StockHaxge, Chicago Stock Exchange and Pacific Exchange

The high and low sales prices of our common stagind each quarterly period in 2002 and 2001 ated below. A dividend of $0.20
per common share was paid during each of the foartgrs in 2002 and 2001.

First Second Third Fourth

2002 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Market price of common stock per New York Stock Exege composite transactic

High $18.8( 22.2¢ 22.6( 17.0¢

Low 13.8¢ 16.9¢ 15.5¢ 13.9(
2001
Market price of common stock per New York Stock Eaacge composite transactic

High $22.7¢ 22.5:% 18.0(C 17.2¢

Low 17.7¢ 14.9( 13.3( 12.0¢

This table summarizes share and exercise pricenmation about our equity compensation plans asemfenber 31, 2002. The table di
not include:

» 500,000 shares available under a deferral plamass$in connection with the acquisition of Monaratag& & Copper Corp. (Monarc
under which certain former employees of that conypaith deferred compensation may periodically tfanthe deferred amount into
shares of Olin common stock on the basis of the-therent fair market value, although no such tiemsshad been made as of
December 31, 2002, |

» 47,636 shares remaining available as of Decemhe2®I2 under Olin’s Employee Deferral Plan, whiehnrpits employees to defer
certain elements of compensation in shares of €@linmon stock, on the basis of the fair market valuthe shares at the time of the

deferral.
Equity Compensation Plan Information
@) (b) (©)
Number of securities
Number of securitiesto remaining available for
be issued upon Weighted-average future issuance under
exercise of outstanding exercise price of equity compensation
options, warrants outstanding options, plans (excluding securities
Plan Category and rights (1) warrants and rights reflected in column (a) (1))
Equity compensation plans approved by security érsi@) 4,316,414(3 $19.98(3) 1,342,633
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechadtgers (4)(5 118,875(4 N/A(4) 96,163(4
Total 4,435,289 $19.98(3,4. 1,438,796
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(1) Number of shares is subject to adjustment for chaiiy capitalization for stock splits and stockidinds and similar event

(2) Does not include information about equity compeinsgplans that have expired. No additional awardy e granted under those
expired plans. As of December 31, 20

Number of Securities | ssuable Weighted Average Remaining
Plan Name Expiration Date Under Outstanding Awards Exercise Price Term
1988 Stock Option Plan 4/30/98 534,532 $19.30 2.19 years
for Key Employees of
Olin Corporation and
Subsidiaries
Olin 1991 Long Tern 4/30/01 753,060 (options $18.97 7.08 year:
Incentive Plar
42,900 (restricted stocl N/A N/A — weighted averag
remaining vesting peric
of 0.62 year:
5,850 (performance share N/A N/A — 1.0 years
remaining in
performance

measurement peric

(3) Consists of the 1996 Stock Option Plan for Key Eogpes of Olin Corporation and Subsidiaries and20@0 Long Term Incentive Pla
Includes:

» 4,040,847 shares issuable upon exercise of optithsa weighted average exercise price of $19.88,aweighted average remaining
term of 6.44 years

» 22,175 shares issuable under restricted stoclkguenitts, with a weighted average remaining term@fy2ars, ani

» 253,392 shares issuable in connection with outgtgruerformance share awards, with a weighted geeterm of 1.54 years
remaining in the performance measurement pe

The shares issuable upon exercise of options ircd2d,000 shares subject to performance acceleragtithg options, that vest on the
earlier of December 27, 2009, or the tenth daynyn20 calendar day period upon which the averagbeohigh and low per share sales

prices of Olin’'s common stock as reported on thesotidated transaction system for New York Stocktl&anges issues is at or above
$28.00.

(4) Consists of the 1997 Stock Plan for I-employee Directors. All awards under that plansdoek grants for retainers, other board
committee fees, and dividends on deferred stocleutiet plan. Column (c) does not include the 508@re increase in total shares
available for issuance under the amended and eestéein being submitted for shareholder approviie@tnnual meetin

(5) Does not include information about the proposed320éhg Term Incentive Plan being submitted for shatder approval at the annt
meeting. No awards have been made under that

Does not include information about equity compeinsgblans assumed in connection with the acquisibbChase Industries Inc. by
merger. No additional awards may be granted urdeset assumed plans. As of December 31, 2002, gftora total of 916,664 shares,
with a weighted average exercise price of $15.9%pare, and a weighted average remaining terml@fyaars, were outstanding under
the various plans assumed in connection with tbquiaition.

Does not include a total of 644,714 shares issugide the exercise of outstanding options undeAtice Chemicals, Inc. 1999 Long
Term Incentive Plan, with a weighted average egerprice of $24.77, and a weighted average rentateim of 3.90 years. No
additional options or other awards may be issuettuthat plan.
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Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

TEN-YEAR SUMMARY

($ and shares in millions, except per share ¢

Operations

Sales

Cost of Goods Sol
Selling and Administratiol
Research and Developme

Gain (Loss) on Sales and Restructuring of

Businesses and Sj-off Costs
Interest Expens
Interest and Other Income (Expen

Income (Loss) from Continuing
Operations before Tax
Income Tax Provision (Benefi

Income (Loss) from Continuing Operatic

Discontinued Operatior
Net Income (Loss

Financial Position

Working Capital

Property, Plant and Equipment, I
Total Asset:

Capitalization:

Shor-Term Debi

Long-Term Debi
Shareholdel Equity

Total Capitalizatior

Per Share Data
Net Income (Loss
Basic:

Continuing Operationéz)
Discontinued Operatior

Net Income (Loss

Diluted:

Continuing Operation@)
Discontinued Operatior

Net Income (Loss

Cash Dividends

Common (historical

Common (continuing operation
ESOP Preferred (annual ra
Series A Preferred (annual ra

Shareholders’ Equitﬂf’)
Market Price of Common Stoc
High
Low
Year End
Other
Capital Expenditure
Depreciatior
Common Dividends Pai
Purchases of Common Sta
Current Ratic

Total Debt to Total Capitalizatioﬁ)
Effective Tax Rat¢

Average Common Shares Outstanc

Shareholder
Employeed®

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993
$1,301 $1,271 $1,54¢ $1,39¢ $1,50¢ $ 1,572 $ 1,813 $ 1,88  $1,68  $ 1,507
1,181 1.12; 1,271 1.21¢ 1,23¢ 1,27¢ 1,45¢ 1,541 1,42t 1.447
115 11€ 127 122 127 132 156 157 13¢ 13E
5 5 5 7 10 8 20 17 18 21
— (39) — — (63) — 17¢ — — (26)
26 17 16 16 17 24 27 33 27 29
@ 15 7 ®) 7 15 13 (5) — —
7 1 131 7 5 147 52 137 77 151
@7 13 3 2 9 352 3 (151)
4 (4 50 1c 21 50 128 47 26 (60)
(31 ©) 81 17 38 97 227 90 51 1)
— — — 4 40 56 53 50 40 &
(31 ©) 81 21 78 58 28C 14¢ 91 (92)
381 2811 2551 25:1) 22¢) 27:0) 3ge® 24 88 (15)
552 477 487 46¢ 47¢ 517 40C 58C 54¢ 534
1,42¢ 1,21¢ 1,12 1,06¢ 1,58¢ 1,707 2,11¢ 1,96¢ 1,74¢ 1,68¢
20 10z 1@ 1® 1@ g 137® 122 29 112
326 32¢® 2261 22¢® 23¢® 2621 2710 40€ 41¢ 44¢
231 271 32¢ 30¢ 79C 87¢ 94¢ 841 74¢ 596
561 70z 55¢ 53¢ 1,021 1,14¢ 1,35¢ 1,36¢ 1,19¢ 1,15¢
| L | L | | | | | |
(0.6 (0.29) 1.8¢ 0.3¢ 0.7¢ 1.01 4.3C 171 0.87 (2.82)
_ _ _ 0.0¢ 0.8t 1.11 1.0¢ 1.0¢ 0.9€ (0.0
(0.69) (0.22) 1.8 0.4¢ 1.64 3.0z 5.3¢ 2.7t 1.8¢ (2.85)
(0.69) (0.2 1.8 0.3¢ 0.7¢ 1.9¢ 4.2 1.7¢ 0.87 (2.82)
— — — 0.0¢ 0.84 1.1¢ 1.01 0.97 0.9¢ (0.0
(0.6 (0.2 1.8¢ 0.4t 167 3.0¢ 5.2 2.6 187 (2.85)
0.8 0.8 0.8C 0.9¢C 1.2 1.2 1.2¢ 1.2¢ 1.1¢ 1.1¢
0.8C 0.8¢ 0.8C 0.8¢ 0.8C 0.8C 0.8¢ 0.8¢ 0.7z 0.7z
— — — — — — 5.97 5.97 5.97 5.97
— — — — — — — 3.6¢ 3.64 3.64
4.01 6.2¢ 7.4¢ 6.87 17.2¢ 17.9¢ 18.1¢ 17.0¢ 15.4 13.6
22.6( 22.7¢ 23.1¢ 19.8¢ 49.31 51.3¢ 48.0C 38.6: 30.1¢ 25.0¢
13.8¢ 12.0¢ 14.1¢ 9.5 23.8¢ 35.3¢ 34.8¢ 24.0¢ 23.0( 20.0(
15.5¢ 16.1¢ 22.1: 19.81 28.31 46.8¢ 37.6 37.1 25.7¢ 24.7¢
4 65 95 73 78 76 74 11€ 80 80
87 85 79 78 76 76 84 77 78 74
39 35 36 41 58 61 60 57 44 42
3 14 20 11 112 167 — — — —
25 18 1.8 2. 1.8 18 1€ 1.C 1.2 1.0
58.5% 61.4% 41.0% 42.7% 22.6% 23.5% 30.1% 37.% 36.5% 46.6%
n/e 30.8% 38.2% 37.0% 35.6% 34.0% 35.59% 34.5% 33.2% 40.0%
49.4 43¢ 44.¢ 45. 47.¢ 50.¢ 50.C 476 41.C 382
7,20 7,50 8,00 8,60( 9,20( 10,60( 11,30( 12,00( 12,10( 13,00(
6,20( 5,90( 6,70( 6,70 6,40( 6,60( 6,20( 7,20 7,50( 7,10¢

In December 1996, we sold our isocyanates busioe$565 in cash. 1996 and prior include the opegatesults of the isocyanates

business.

(1) Working Capital includes $111 ($165 in 2001, $52@00, $21 in 1999, $50 in 1998, $157 in 1997, $H1B96) of Cash and Ca

Equivalents and $25 ($37 in 2001, $25 in 2000, 1@99$1998, $28 in 1997, $87 in 1996) of S-Term Investments in 200
(2) Includes gain of $2.20 on sale of the isocyanatsiess in 199¢
(3) In 1994 and 1993, calculation is based on commareshand Series A Conversion Preferred Stock aatistg.



(4) Excluding reduction to equity for the Employee $t@owvnership Plan from 1993 through 19
(5) Employee data exclude employees who work at goven-owned/contract-operated facilities
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

BUSINESS BACKGROUND

Our operations are concentrated in three segm@hter Alkali Products, Metals and Winchester. Alide are capital intensi
manufacturing businesses with growth rates cloeti/to the general economy. While each segmenattasnmodity element to it, our ability
to influence pricing is quite limited and the portiof the business that is strictly commodity vautig segment. Our Chlor Alkali Products
business is a commodity business where all suppl@tucts are similar and price is the major s@pelection criterion. We have little or no
ability to influence prices in this large, glob@nemodity market. Cyclical price swings, driven haages in supply/demand, can be abrupt and
significant and, given capacity in our Chlor AlkBlioducts business, can lead to very significaahgks in our overall profitability. While a
majority of Metals sales are of a commodity nattines business has a significant volume of spaceigineered products targeted for specific
end-uses. In these applications, technical capghitid performance differentiate the product ary al significant role in product selection and
thus price is not the only selection criterion. \8liester also has a commodity element to its busibesa majority of Winchester ammunition
is sold as a branded consumer product where therepportunities to differentiate certain offerirtgsough innovative new product
development and enhanced product performance. \Wiitgpetitive pricing versus other branded ammumigicoducts is important, it is not the
only factor in product selection.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS AND HIGHLIGHTS
2002 Year

On September 27, 2002, we completed our acquisifi@@hase with the issuance of approximately 9.anishares of our commc
stock for 100% of the outstanding stock of Chaag. ZD02 Metals segment’s operating results incthdesales and profits from Chase for the
fourth quarter of 2002.

Due to the significant decline in the equity masketiring 2002 the market value of our pension planfolio as of December 31, 2002
was below the accumulated benefit obligation. UrgleAS No. 87 we recorded a $220 million after taarge to Shareholders’ Equity to
reflect this difference. This is a non-cash changeé does not affect our ability to borrow under @wolving credit agreement. Based on our
assumptions and estimates we continue to beliatarth may be required to make contributions topiresion fund, but those contributions
would not be required until 2005 and pension cosg be higher over the next few years. We estittigtethe annual pretax increase in
pension costs could be in the $10 million per yaage.

In March 2002, we issued and sold 3,302,914 staresmmon stock at a public offering price of $1¥.%he net proceeds from the sale
were approximately $56 million.

In June 2002, we repaid the $100 million 8% notemfthe proceeds from the sale of $200 million 8%2otes in December 2001. In
March 2002, we refinanced our variable rate taxgxtedebt issues, totaling $35 million.

In November 2002, we announced that our Metals segimd entered into an agreement with Luoyang @ofapjointly construct and
operate a metals service center in Guangzhou, GoaggProvince, China. The joint venture named Qlintong Metals (GZ) Ltd., Co., will
process and distribute both our and Luoyang’s coplbey products to the growing Chinese marketplddes joint venture will allow us to
supply HPAs targeted at the electronics, automatiet telecommunications industries, at competjpivees. This joint venture is expected to
be operational in the second half of 2003, sulifg@hinese government approval.

On December 17, 2002 we announced that we areiprtitess of finalizing negotiations with the InrRevenue Service (IRS) relative
to our company-owned life insurance (COLI) progrdie settlement contemplates a tax payment by apmioximately $40 million to the
IRS, which has been recorded as a liability inpyears. As a result, there is no financial accimgntharge to earnings associated with this
payment. We expect approximately $20 million otpayment to be made in 2003 and the balancedunefyears. Concurrent with the
settlement, we intend to surrender the life inscegoolicies purchased by the company under ther@amogwvhich will result in the return of
approximately $30 million in cash from the insuramompanies. The surrender of the policies resuitedax charge of $10 million in 2002.

17



2001 Year

In June 2001, we acquired the stock of Monarctafiproximately $48 million. Monarch was a privatbebld, specialty copper alloy
manufacturer headquartered in Waterbury, CT. ltpees and distributes an array of high performa@opper alloys and other materials used
for applications in electronics, telecommunicaticaastomotive products and building products.

In the third quarter of 2001, we recorded a pretaarge for restructuring and unusual items of $8Bom primarily for costs associated
with a salaried workforce reduction through anyeegtirement incentive program. Cost of Goods %uld Other Income included $2 million
and $1 million, respectively, of unusual items. GufsGoods Sold included the writgf of inventory associated with cancelled custowrelers
Other Income included the write-off of an investmienan E-commerce company because the compangréddbankruptcy and was dissolved
and therefore had no future value. The third-quagstructuring charge of $26 million related te tt90 employees retiring in connection with
the retirement program and represented primarihsjp®m and postretirement benefit curtailment lossesseverance.

In the fourth quarter of 2001, we recorded a res$timing charge of $13 million pretax primarily foosts associated with idling our
Indianapolis brass mill, consolidating distributioperations of the recently acquired Monarch wligh A.J. Oster metals service center busii
and reducing staffing levels in Chlor Alkali ProdsicA significant portion of the charge relatinghe idling of the Indianapolis facility
represented pension and postretirement curtailioeses and severance for 200 employees. Anothgopaf the charge related to 38 Chlor
Alkali employees who accepted our offer of a voluptspecial separation program whereby employesspaa voluntary lay off and receive
full separation benefits and also receive theiraed pension benefits at the same time. The balafnites restructuring charge related to costs
associated with the consolidation of certain Mohdecilities in order to optimize distribution op¢ions.

In 2001, we were notified that we would receiversBaf Prudential Insurance Company as a resiti diecision to demutualize from a
mutual company to a stock company. We recordedraaj@®11 million in other income in 2001. We regsil the shares and immediately sold
them in January 2002.

2000 Year

At midnight on December 3, 2000, a work stoppaggaheat the Metals and Winchester manufacturinditiesi at East Alton, IL, after tt
union and we were unable to agree on a new laburamd. After several weeks of negotiations, theigs entered into a new labor contract and
the union workers returned to work on January BB®12 The work stoppage had an adverse impact i 888 2001 on the profitability of the
Metals and Winchester operations, including produléfiment issues, additional expenses and cartsattlement costs.

In June 2000, we signed a letter of intent with i@estal Petroleum Corporation to combine the congsrchlor alkali and related
businesses in a partnership. In October 2000, welwarced that the letter of intent had expired. paknership negotiations were discontinued
primarily due to regulatory issues and certain othatters on which the parties could not agree.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

2002 2001 2000

($ in millions, except per share dai

Sales $ 1,301 $ 1,271 $ 1,54¢
Gross Margir 12C 14¢ 272
Selling and Administratiol 11& 11€ 127
Restructuring Charg — 39 —

Interest Expense, n 23 16 14
Other Income 3 22 3
Income (Loss) before Tax: 27) (13 131
Net Income (Loss (32) 9 81
Diluted Net Income (Loss) Per Common Sh $ (0.69) $ (022 $ 18C
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2002 Compared to 2001

Sales increased 2% primarily due to sales assdordgth our acquisition of both Chase and Monarch)@nd increased volumes (2%),
offset in part by lower selling prices (5%) and alesales (1%). Chase was acquired in late Septe2lt, while Monarch was acquired in
early June 2001. The increase in sales volumesverass all segments, in particular strip shipmenthe ammunition, automotive and
electronics segments. The price decreases weraisimelated to lower ECU netbacks in the Chloka@ll Products segment.

Gross margin percentage decreased from 11% in @08% in 2002 primarily due to lower ECU prices.

Selling and administration as a percentage of sedge 9% in 2002 and 2001. Selling and adminigtna¢ixpenses were comparable to
2001. Reduced salaries resulting from the earlyereent incentive program and the voluntary sepawgirogram implemented in late 2001
and lower consumer promotional expenses offsetd@&asion income and higher legal expenses.

The decrease in operating losses from the non-tidased affiliates was due primarily to improvedeogting results from the Sunbelt
joint venture (200—$8 million loss; 2001—$9 million loss) due to hegrECU pricing.

Interest expense, net of interest income, increfitsed 2001 due to higher average outstanding difbnillion) relating primarily to the
$200 million that we borrowed in December 2001 higther interest rates on our debt ($4 million) tiadly offset by higher interest income (
million) in 2002.

Other income decreased from 2001 primarily dudéogains on the demutualization of Prudential lasoe ($11 million) and the sale of
excess real estate ($6 million) and a non-recuffiéegpayment ($2 million), all of which were receddin 2001.

The effective tax rate decreased in 2002 to a hegab.6% from 30.8% in 2001. The tax benefit relear on the loss in 2002 was less
than the statutory rate because we recorded a¢aisipn of $10 million in connection with the sender of life insurance policies purchased
by us under the COLI program and are accruingéstasn taxes which may be payable in the future.

2001 Compared to 2000

Sales decreased 18% due to lower volumes (17%batidower metal values and selling prices (1%)eSaolumes were lower across
all segments with the biggest impact coming from Metals segment, which was heavily impacted byflaezonomy, particularly in the
automotive, electronics and telecommunicationssiries and to a lesser extent by the strike aEtst Alton, IL facility in the first quarter of
2001. The price decrease was primarily relatedueet prices in the Metals and Winchester segments.

Gross margin percentage decreased from 18% in @008% in 2001 primarily due to lower sales volumes

Selling and administration as a percentage of s@ss9% in 2001 up from 8% in 2000 due to the losades base in 2001 as a result of
the factors noted above. Selling and administratias $11 million lower than in 2000 primarily dwelbwer incentive compensation costs (
million) and fees incurred in 2000 associated \lith discontinued chlor alkali partnership negatiadi ($3 million), partially offset by lower
2001 pension income ($2 million) and selling anthamistration expense ($2 million) of Monarch, aaqdiin 2001.

The decrease in operating results from the nonedinieded affiliates was due primarily to the lovegrerating results from the Sunbelt
joint venture ($9 million loss in 2001; breakevar2000), which was adversely impacted by lower héopricing.

In 2001, other income included the gains on thewealization of Prudential Insurance of $11 milliamd on the sale of excess real e:
of $6 million and a non-recurring fee payment ofr§@lion.
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The effective tax rate decreased to 30.8% from%8&1Re to operating losses, carryover of foreignréae differential and an increase in
the valuation allowance.
SEGMENT OPERATING RESULTS

We define segment operating income as earningsdefterest expense, interest income, other incoestructuring charge and unus
items and income taxes, and include the operagisglts of non-consolidated affiliates. Segment atrey income includes an allocation of
corporate operating expenses. Segment operatiojs@s 2001 exclude the restructuring charge amgsual items ($42 million, pretax).

Chlor Alkali Products

2002 2001 2000
($ in millions)

Sales $ 321 $ 384 $ 39z

Operating Income (Los! (35) 8 27

2002 Compared to 2001

Sales decreased 16% from 2001 primarily due to l@s#ing prices (18%), but offset in part by highelumes (2%). Average ECU
netbacks in 2002 were approximately $235, compar&315 in 2001. The chlor alkali industry suffetbdbugh a difficult first half of 2002
and some high cost manufacturers decided to shut dapacity. During the third quarter of 2002, dacdhatarted to pick up and the industry
was able to pass through several price increasgsolled demand and less overall capacity continaedpport price increases through the
of the year. Our operating rates improved unt#é latthe year when seasonal slow downs and a sluggionomy forced us and other
manufacturers to reduce production. Our operatiesrfor the full year 2002 were approximately 8pared with 84% in 2001. Chlorine
and caustic volumes were both higher in 2002 coethty 2001. Operating results were significantlydoin 2002 primarily due to lower
prices ($69 million), offset in part by higher vates ($8 million) and improved results from our Seihfpint venture ($1 million) and lower
costs ($13 million). Lower losses from the Sunptit venture (2002—$8 million loss; 2001—3$9 milidoss) were favorably impacted by
higher ECU pricing. The losses from the Sunbefitjgenture include interest expense of $7 millior2002 and 2001 on the Sunbelt Notes.
Profit improvement activities, lower steam coster@ll cost management and the voluntary separptiogram implemented at the end of 2001
contributed to these cost reductions. Also in #eosd quarter of 2002 we recorded a non-recurniatpp gain of $4 million on an insurance
settlement.

2001 Compared to 2000

Sales decreased 2% from 2000 primarily due to lowwkrmes (5%) offset in part by higher ECU netba(@%). Our average ECU
netbacks in 2001 were approximately $315, compar&300 in 2000. The chlor alkali industry partetigs in markets, such as vinyls,
urethanes and pulp and paper, which have beeninelgampacted by poor economic conditions. Thesekats have faced declining demand
for their products, which in turn, negatively impgour products. Soft demand for chlorine in thasekets, caused primarily by the slowdown
in the general economy, has led to reduced chkaliadperating rates across the industry. This waskand forced operating rates to declin
approximately mid to low 80% from 88% in 2000 ardised an erosion of chlorine’s pricing structuf@sontributed to the decline in sales
and operating income in 2001. Also, operating ineamas lower in 2001 primarily due to lower salekites ($14 million), higher
manufacturing costs ($5 million) and losses from $unbelt joint venture ($9 million loss in 200tedkeven in 2000) due to lower chlorine
prices but offset in part by higher ECU netbacki(shillion). The increased manufacturing costsudeld higher salt costs and higher fixed
cost absorption due to lower production volumes

Metals
2002 2001 2000
($ in millions)
Sales $ 697 $ 61E $ 88(
Operating Incom 14 7 95
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2002 Compared to 2001

Sales increased 13% mainly as a result of the tgaisitions over the past two years. Sales from &oim increased sales by 4% while
Chase increased sales by 8% in 2002. Overall siifpment volume increased by 5% from 2001 duedceased demand in the automotive,
ammunition and electronic segments, offset in panteduced demand from coinage. However, overbdssacreased only 1%. The difference
was the result of a shift in the mix of sales twdéo metal value alloys, lower average metal seltiriges and reduced conversion prices chargec
to customers. The decrease in the average meliabsgelice was mainly due to a 1.5% decrease iratterage COMEX price for copper in
2002 from 2001.

Shipments to the automotive and ammunition segmeatk increased by 21% compared to last year. Smsmo the automotive
segment increased in 2002 as we increased ourrpgaetinto this end-use category and an increaseiiomotive production in 2002.
Shipments to the ammunition segment increasedesudt of increased domestic military demand. Sleipis to the
electronics/telecommunications segment increasetBby in 2002 compared with 2001 but were still daout 50% from the 1997 to 2000
average demand. Coinage shipments were down 39%0l&st year due to reduced demand from the U.St ptimarily related to decreased
demand for the state quarter program, the laclubfip acceptance of the $1 Sacagawea coin andithitenaed general softness in the overall
economy. In summary, although strip shipments wera the automotive and electronics segmentsythsoffset by lower coinage shipme
and by sales to the electronics segment that agmtim be well below their historical norms.

Metals operating income was $7 million higher i®2@ompared with 2001. Operating income benefitethb 5% increase over the
previous year in strip volumes, as mentioned abbgejever, this benefit was partially offset by lowait margins. Operating income was also
favorably impacted by the inclusion of $2 millioh®@hase profits and various cost reduction inii@di including the early retirement program
and the consolidation of Monarch’s distribution @g®mns with A.J. Oster which, on a combined bamispunted to about $12 million in cost
savings year over year. Partially offsetting thetgeduction initiatives and higher volumes in 20@#e increased pension and medical costs of
about $7 million. Finally, the 2001 results incldde $4 million LIFO inventory liquidation benefiffeet by the negative impact of the East
Alton work stoppage in 2001.

2001 Compared to 2000

Sales decreased 30% due to a significant declimelimes (30%) associated with the weak economyl@mdr metal values (2%) ar
selling prices (1%), offset in part by the salesoatated with the Monarch acquisition (3%). Metalsérating results were significantly lower
primarily due to the economic slowdown, which résdlin substantially lower shipment levels. A weakbnomy prevailed all year resulting in
a significant reduction of strip shipments to kegrket segments of our industry. Automotive, coinadectrical connectors,
telecommunications (segments served by Olin Aegispusiness that supplies customized and semitistd metal packaging for hybrid
integrated circuits and thick ceramic substratestfe electronics segment) and distributor (segmesetved by Oster, a network of metal sel
centers), customers had much lower demand fomthesiry’s products. In 2001, strip shipments toab®motive and the coinage segments
were lower than in 2000 by 24% and 41%, respegtivighe lack of acceptance by the general publihef$1l Sacagewea coin accounted for
35% of the decline in strip shipments to the comaggment in 2001. Future demand is not expecteshtth 2000 levels because of the current
lack of $1 coin requirements established by theiddhStates Treasury. The decrease in strip shignterthe coinage segment was also caused
by the decrease in demand for the state quartgrammoas the economy softened and coinage in geneeened, both of which are consistent
with historical patterns. In addition, 2001 shiprgeto the electronics/telecommunications segmeatwiole were lower than in 2000 by 53%.
Sales from Oster were down 27% in 2001 from therpréar. In addition, the mill products operatiom&ast Alton, IL took a two-week
maintenance shutdown in 2001, with no similar sbwtd in 2000. Also, the strike at our East Altoniligcin the first quarter of 2001 had a
moderately adverse impact on Metals’ profits, wilile reductions of LIFO inventory quantities in 20Acreased operating income by
approximately $4 million pretax.

Winchester
2002 2001 2000
($ in millions)
Sales $ 28z % 26 % 271
Operating Incomu 14 7 2C
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2002 Compared to 2001

Sales in 2002 were 5% higher than 2001 primariky uhigher volumes (4%) and prices (1%) in thatam} and domestic commercial
ammunition businesses. Winchester posted operatdogne of $14 million in 2002 compared with $7 tioifl in 2001. The increase in sales
accounted for most of the increase in operatingrime. The cost benefit realized in 2002 associaiddthhe 2001 early retirement incentive
program and the absence of the effect of the 20iKesvere offset by the absence of the 2001 neotreng income from the settlement of a
claim.

2001 Compared to 2000

Sales in 2001 were slightly lower than 2000 prifyadie to lower international sales. Internatiosakes were $8 million below lasty’s
levels due to decreased foreign military businessumfavorable translation of Australian sales. Bstit commercial sales were comparabl
last year despite overall lower selling prices #releffects of the strike at our East Alton fagilit the first quarter. Our operating income
decreased from $20 million in 2000 to $7 million2@01. The loss of the Lake City government contfagproximately $4 million), the impact
of both the lower domestic commercial prices amdhigher personnel-related costs as a result aid¢helabor agreement at the East Alton
facility ($8 million) and the impact of the strik1 million) were the main contributors to thisrsificant decrease in operating income.

2003 OUTLOOK

In the Chlor Akali segment we are expecting botloighe and caustic soda prices to increase fronidbeh quarter of 2002 to the fir
guarter of 2003 as our contracts reflect previoasigounced price increases. We expect furthengalliice improvement in the second quarter
of 2003. We expect operating rates to be in the gige in the first quarter of 2003 as demand lidwrine from the vinyl industry seasonally
increases. By year end 2003, we expect operatieg ta be in the 95% range. For the full year 2088are expecting a dramatic turnaround in
our Chlor Alkali segment operating results compare®002, due to higher selling prices, increasaldmes and continued cost reduction
initiatives. Natural gas prices, which are a siigaifit cost factor for some other chlor alkali proels, are not projected to be as significant a
cost factor for us, because we buy our electricdyn utilities that derive their power primarilyoim coal, nuclear and hydroelectric sources.
Also, we expect to report improved operating resfriltm our Sunbelt joint venture as the 2003 yeagpesses, due to rising selling prices.

In the Metals segment, 2003 will include a full ye&earnings from Chase while Chase was just dediin the fourth quarter in 2002.
We expect that overall demand for our strip andpratiucts in 2003 will be increasing from fourthagier 2002 levels, which were negatively
impacted by our customers’ desires to reduce iroregg at the end of 2002. For the full year 2008 b&lieve the strip and rod volumes will
improve only marginally over 2002.

In the first quarter 2003, we made a decision éselour manufacturing plant in Indianapolis, Indiafhe plant manufactures copper and
copper alloy sheet and strip products and emplppsoximately 200 people. Production at the Indiaigpstrip mill will be consolidated
within our East Alton, lllinois facility. While théndianapolis strip mill has been an important péithe Metals segment since its acquisition in
1988, reduced domestic consumption of strip praxlasmbined with capacity additions at East Altomehkessened the need to maintain the
Indianapolis production base. As a result of thisgre and certain other actions, we expect torceaagestructuring charge in the $50 million
pretax range in the first quarter of 2003. We expae-time cash costs to be in the $10 million earkpr the full year 2003, we expect to
achieve pretax savings associated with this chiargee $10 million range. The 2003 savings depeamthe precise timing of the shutdown. At
this time, we do not expect to see the full besefftthe savings until the second quarter of 26@8.2004 we expect to have a full year’'s
benefit from this $50 million charge of approxingt®20 million pretax.

The closure of the Indianapolis facility, a mardiyatronger brass strip market, continuing effadseduce costs across the Metals
segment and the inclusion of the Chase earningddhesult in significantly improved Metals segmeperating results in 2003 compared to
2002.

For the full year 2003, we project that Winchestér have a solid year.

As a result of the foregoing, we expect to be pabfe in 2003 because of higher selling priceh@Ehlor Alkali segment and a lower
cost base in the Metals segment.

22



For 2003 we expect that capital spending will bthen$60 million range and depreciation and amatitn will be in the $85 million
range. The capital spending estimate for 2003 dedwabout $5 million in the Chase rod businessatodit $3 million for the joint venture in
China.

In 2003, we expect to continue to accrue interagbges that may become payable in the future wihilresult in an effective tax rate
the 45% range.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

2002 2001 2000

($ in millions)

Cash Outlays

Remedial and Investigatory Spending (Charged teRe$ $ 25 % 26 3% 30
Capital Spendin 3 3 3
Plant Operations (Charged to Cost of Goods S 16 17 17
Total Cash Outlay $ 4 % 46 % 50

Reserve for Environmental Liabilitie

Beginning Balanc: $ 10 $ 11C $ 12t
Charges to Incom 15 14 15
Businesses Acquire 8 2 —
Remedial and Investigatory Spend (25) (26) (30)
Ending Balanct $ 98 $ 10C $ 11c

The establishment and implementation of federatesind local standards to regulate air, watetamtiquality has affected and will
continue to affect substantially all of our manufaing locations. Federal legislation providing fegulation of the manufacture, transportat
use and disposal of hazardous and toxic substaasdsemediation of contaminated sites, has impadddional regulatory requirements on
industry, particularly the chemicals industry. bid#@ion, implementation of environmental laws, sashthe Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act and the Clean Air Act, has required a1l continue to require new capital expendituags! will increase operating costs. We
employ waste minimization and pollution preventgograms at our manufacturing sites.

We are party to various governmental and privatérenmental actions associated with waste dispsisas and manufacturing facilities.
Associated costs of investigatory and remedialaies are provided for in accordance with gengraticepted accounting principles governing
probability and the ability to reasonably estinfaiteire costs. Charges to income for investigatony eemedial efforts were material to
operating results in 2002, 2001, and 2000 and reayp#terial to net income in future years. Suchgdmito income were $15 million, $14
million and $15 million in 2002, 2001, and 2000pestively.

Cash outlays for remedial and investigatory agésitissociated with former waste sites and pasatipes were not charged to income
but instead were charged to reserves establismexift costs identified and expensed to incomeiar gears. Cash outlays for normal plant
operations for the disposal of waste and the ojperaind maintenance of pollution control equipmemd facilities to ensure compliance with
mandated and voluntarily imposed environmentaligustandards were charged to income. Total enwiremtal-related cash outlays for 2003
are estimated to be $50 million, of which $28 roitlis expected to be spent on investigatory anedéhefforts, $5 million on capital projects
and $17 million on normal plant operations. Histally, we have funded our environmental capitalesditures through cash flow from
operations and expect to do so in the future.

Our estimated environmental liability at the end®002 was attributable to 65 sites, 16 of whicheMdSEPA National Priority List
(NPL) sites. Ten sites accounted for approximai&6 of such liability and, of the remaining sites,one site accounted for more than 2% of
our environmental liability. Four of these ten sitere in the investigatory stage of the remedigtimtess. In this stage, remedial investigation
and feasibility studies are being
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conducted by us or other potentially responsibkéigg(PRPs) and a Record of Decision (ROD) oedfsivalent has not been issued. At one of
the ten sites, a ROD or its equivalent has beer@by either the USEPA or responsible state agandywe either alone, or as a member of a
PRP group, are engaged in performing the remediaknires required by that ROD. At three of the iies,spart of the site is subject to a ROD
and another part is in the long-term Operation,M&aiance and Monitoring (OM&M) stage. The two remray sites are in long-term OM&M.
All ten sites are either former manufacturing fitieis or waste sites containing contamination geteet by those facilities.

Our consolidated balance sheets included liakslitie future environmental expenditures to investgand remediate known sites
amounting to $98 million at December 31, 2002, $hd0 million at December 31, 2001, of which $70liorl and $73 million were classified
as other noncurrent liabilities, respectively. P®2 environmental liabilities included $8 millifnom the Chase acquisition. Those amounts
did not take into account any discounting of futex@enditures or any consideration of insuranceveries or advances in technology. Those
liabilities are reassessed periodically to deteenifirenvironmental circumstances have changed anelfioediation efforts and our estimate of
related costs have changed. As a result of thessessments, future charges to income may be maddditional liabilities.

Annual environmental-related cash outlays for isitestigation and remediation, capital projects] aarmal plant operations are
expected to range between approximately $40 mittio$50 million over the next several years, $28iom to $30 million of which is expected
to be charged against reserves recorded on ourdeatheet. While we do not anticipate a materkiase in the projected annual level of our
environmental-related costs, there is always thesipdity that such increases may occur in theriin view of the uncertainties associated
with environmental exposures. Environmental expesare difficult to assess for numerous reasonkjding the identification of new sites,
developments at sites resulting from investigatingies, advances in technology, changes in enviental laws and regulations and their
application, the scarcity of reliable data pertainio identified sites, the difficulty in assessthg involvement and financial capability of other
PRPs and our ability to obtain contributions frothes parties and the lengthy time periods over Wwisite remediation occurs. It is possible
some of these matters (the outcomes of which desiuto various uncertainties) may be resolveduorfably against us, which could have a
material adverse effect on our operating resultsfarancial condition. At December 31, 2002, wereate we may have additional contingent
environmental liabilities of $40 million in additico the amounts for which we have already takessarve.

LIQUIDITY, INVESTMENT ACTIVITY AND OTHER FINANCIAL DATA

Cash Flow Data
Provided By (Used For) 2002 2001 2000

($ in millions)
Net Operating Activitie: $ 31 $ 76 $ 181
Capital Expenditure 4y (65) (95)
Net Investing Activities (13 (111 (89)
Net Financing Activitie: (72 148 (57

In 2002, income exclusive of non-cash charges,g&ds from the refinancing of the tax-exempt déig,issuance of common stock and
cash equivalents on hand were used to finance otkimg capital requirements, capital and investnpenjects, dividends and long-term debt
repayments (including tax-exempt debt).

Operating Activities

In 2002, the decrease in cash provided by operatitigities was primarily attributable to lower opgéng results and a higher investm
in working capital. The higher investment in woricapital was attributable to the Metals segmergr@hve are now selling more on a metal-
price pass through basis rather than on a tolklasil therefore have to inventory more metal. B12¢he reduced accounts receivable and
inventory levels offset the impact of the liquidetiof higher 2000 year-end accounts payable andi@ddiability balances. The accounts
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receivable and inventory levels were lower at the @ 2001 compared to the end of 2000 primarilg tluthe lower volume of Metals busin
as compared to 2000 and the declining prices ahdnes in our Chlor Alkali business.

Capital Expenditures

Capital spending in 2002 of $41 million was 37% émthan 2001. The capital spending decrease wamply due to completion ¢
projects that were begun in 2000, primarily to exparoduction capacity in Metals higher value-adgestiuct categories, in particular high
performance alloys. These products are patentedjadty copper alloys that provide value-added bento global customers in the computer,
telecommunications and automotive industries. Ekjgansion was completed in the second half of 2@@1ithe majority of the spending
occurring in 2000. In addition, all non-essenti@pital spending was curtailed in 2002 in respondbé weak operating results. Capital
spending in 2002 was approximately 47% of depriegiatompared to 76% in 2001.

In 2003, we plan to manage our capital spendirglatvel approximating 70% of depreciation, or al#&@ million, an increase of
approximately 46% over the 2002 amount. In 2003plae to spend approximately $3 million in conneativith our joint venture, a metals
service center, in China.

Investing Activities

On September 27, 2002, we acquired 100% of th& stb€hase with the issuance of approximately Sil8an shares of our commc
stock. The total consideration was approximately8illion, which represented the fair value ofrOdommon stock issued. Chase, with 2002
full-year sales of $232 million, is a leading maamttirer and supplier of brass rod in the U.S. aada@a. The purchase price exceeded the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired by $lion. The acquisition has been accounted &ng the purchase method of accounting.
Our 2002 operating results include the sales aafitpffor the fourth quarter of 2002 from Chase.

In January 2002, we received $11.9 million for shée of the stock of Prudential Insurance Comp¥s were awarded these shares of
stock in 2001 as a result of Prudential’s converéiom a mutual company to a stock company.

In our efforts to dispose of non-strategic, unpiithe assets during a period of a soft economyveeak operating results, we sold the
companyewned airplane. The disposition of property, piamd equipment in 2002 represents primarily the sbtbe airplane at approximate
book value.

The increase in 2002 for investments and advamcafiliated companies, at equity represents pritnaur share of Sunbelt’s repayment
of its Series O Notes and related interest expénsaldition, we funded a portion of Sunbelt’s agirg losses in 2002.

In June 2001, we acquired the stock of Monarctafiproximately $48 million. Monarch was a privatbbld, specialty copper alloy
manufacturer headquartered in Waterbury, CT, vattenues of approximately $95 million in 2000. lbguces and distributes an array of high
performance copper alloys and other materials t@eapplications in electronics, telecommunicaticenstomotive products and building
products. As part of this acquisition, we acquired.S. patents. We financed the purchase pricaeitiirour credit facilities. The purchase price
exceeded the fair value of the identifiable neetsacquired by $19 million. The acquisition hasrbaccounted for using the purchase method
of accounting. The operating results of Monarchicliinave been included in the accompanying findrstéements since the date of
acquisition, were not material.

Financing Activities

On January 3, 2002, we entered into a new -year senior revolving credit facility of $140 mdh, including a sublimit for letters «
credit. The new facility replaced our existing dtddcilities and will expire on January 3, 2005. Becember 31, 2002, we had $119 million
available under this senior revolving credit fagilWe issued $21 million of letters of credit undesubfacility for the purpose of supporting
certain long-term debt and self- insurance oblayeti We may select various floating rate borrowdptions. The senior credit facility includes
various customary restrictive covenants, includiesgrictions related to the ratio of debt to eagsibefore interest expense, taxes, depreciation
and amortization (leverage ratio) and the ratiearhings before interest expense, taxes, depm@tiatid amortization to interest expense
(coverage ratio). In the event that the leveragie emuals or
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exceeds 3.75, we are required to grant a secutiyast in all of our U.S. inventory and accouetseivables. No assets of our subsidiaries will
secure our obligation under our senior credit figcil

In December 2001, we sold $200 million of 9.125%i8eNotes with a maturity date of December 15,20/e used $100 million from
the proceeds of the offering to repay the $100iomilB% notes in June 2002.

In March 2002, we also refinanced $35 million of-exempt debt to create additional capacity underevolving credit facility by
eliminating the need for an equivalent amount tiés of credit.

In January 2003, we renegotiated our $11 milliotertlue 2005. The maturity date was extended to a6#l3he interest rate was reduced
from 7.75% to 6.5%, effective January 1, 2003.

During 2002, 2001 and 2000, we used $3 million, §iMion and $20 million to repurchase 0.1 milliahy million and 1.2 million shares
of our stock, respectively. In 1996, we sold olueéne diisocyanate and aliphatic diisocyanate lmssies to ARCO Chemical Company for a
sale price of $565 million. Our board of directdecided to use a portion of the proceeds for tharmhase of shares of the Corporation’s
common stock in order to enhance shareholder v&lnedctober 9, 1996 and April 30, 1998, our bodrdiectors approved two share
repurchase programs to repurchase a total of Ilbmdhares of our outstanding common stock, ofciwlapproximately 154,000 shares
remained to be repurchased as of December 31, 2002.

In March 2002, we issued and sold 3,302,914 stlaresmmon stock at a public offering price of $X¥.Blet proceeds from this sale
were approximately $56 million and provide liquidénd financial flexibility, and strengthen ourdimcial position. The net proceeds are
available for general corporate purposes.

During 2002, we issued 1,039,259 shares of comrtomk svith a total value of $18 million to the Cabtiting Employee Ownership
Plan. These shares were issued to satisfy thetmees in our common stock resulting from employeetdbutions, our matching contributio
and re-invested dividends.

The percent of total debt to total capitalizati@titased to 59% at December 31, 2002, from 61%eaatgnd 2001 and was 41% at year-
end 2000. The decrease in 2002 from 2001 was dile teepayment of the $100 million 8% notes offegiart by the effect of the lower
shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2002. Theeas® in 2001 from year-end 2000 was due to thedn®26% Senior Note borrowings and
lower shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2001.

Dividends per common share were $0.80 in 2002, 20@12000. Total dividends paid on common stockuarted to $39 million in
2002, $35 million in 2001 and $36 million in 2000.

The payment of cash dividends is subject to thereti|on of our board of directors and will be detared in light of then-current
conditions, including our earnings, our operatiang, financial conditions, our capital requiremesutsl other factors deemed relevant by our
board of directors. In the future, our board oédiors may change our dividend policy, including firequency or amount of any dividend, in
light of then-existing conditions.

LIQUIDITY AND OTHER FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

Our principal sources of liquidity are from casldaash equivalents, sh-term investments, cash flow from operations andt-term
borrowings under our senior revolving credit fagil\We also have access to the debt and equityeteark

Cash flow from operations is subject to change i@salt of the cyclical nature of our operatingutess which have been affected recently
by economic cycles and resulting downturn in mafhe industries we serve, such as automotivetreleics and the telecommunications
sectors. In addition, cash flow from operationaffected by considerable changes in ECU pricesezhbg the changes in the supply/demand
balance of chlorine and caustic, resulting in thieicalkali business having tremendous leveragewrearnings. A $10 per ECU price change
equates to an $11 million pretax profit change wiverare operating at full capacity.
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Our current debt structure is used to fund ourrirss operations and commitments from banks undeaewalving credit facility are a
source of liquidity. As of December 31, 2002, we lang-term borrowings, including the current ifist&nt, of $330 million of which $1
million was at variable rates. We have entered iintterest rate swaps on approximately $140 milébour underlying debt obligations
whereby we agree to pay variable rates to a copatigrwho, in turn, pays us fixed rates. Annualuméies of long-term debt are $2 million in
2003; $27 million in 2004; $52 million in 2005, #illion in 2006; $2 million in 2007 and $246 millichereafter.

We use operating leases for certain propertie$ aacailroad cars, distribution, warehousing dffidespace, data processing and office
equipment. Leases covering these properties génemitain escalation clauses (except for railroas) based on increased costs of the lessor
for primarily property taxes, maintenance and iasge and have renewal or purchase options. Futinienom rent payments under operating
leases having initial or remaining non-cancelabsé terms in excess of one year at December 82,418 as follows: $22 million in 2003;
$21 million in 2004; $19 million in 2005; $17 mdin in 2006; $15 million in 2007 and a total of $Wdlion thereafter. Assets under capital
leases are not significant.

On December 31, 1997, we entered into a long-tsutfiyr dioxide supply agreement with Alliance Sptyi Chemicals, Inc. (Alliance),
formerly known as RFC SQ, Inc. Alliance has the obligation to deliver anifiyi86,000 tons of sulfur dioxide. Alliance ownsetbulfur dioxidt

plant, which is located at our Charleston, TN facénd is operated by us. The price for the sulfioxide is fixed over the life of the contract
and, under the terms of the contract, we are otelitjg make a monthly payment of approximatelyriition regardless of the amount of
sulfur dioxide purchased. Commitments related i®dlgreement are approximately $2 million per yeaeach year of 2003 through 2006 and
a total of $10 million thereafter.

We utilize a credit facility, standby letters o&dit and guarantees. In January 2002, we enteted inew senior revolving credit facility
with a group of banks. This credit facility is deébed above under the caption, “Financing ActiatieAs of December 31, 2002, we did not
have any outstanding borrowings under this credilify.

At December 31, 2002, we had outstanding standbsréeof credit of $21 million. These letters oédit were used to support certain
long-term debt and self-insurance obligations.

In December 2002, we registered $400 million olsigies with the Securities and Exchange Commisgibareby from time to time, we
may issue debt securities, preferred stock andiomeon stock and associated warrants. At Decemhe2(8R, the entire $400 million was
available for issuance.

We and our partner, PolyOne Corporation (PolyOma) equally the Sunbelt Chlor Alkali Partnership ii8alt joint venture). We market
all of the caustic soda production for the ventwrgile 250 thousand tons of the chlorine productrequired to be purchased by Oxy Vinyls
(a joint venture between OxyChem and PolyOne) baseglformula related to the market price of chmeriThe construction of this plant and
equipment was financed by the issuance of $195amitf Guaranteed Senior Secured Notes due 20% Stinbelt joint venture sold $97.5
million of Guaranteed Senior Secured Notes due 28&fies O, and $97.5 million of Guaranteed Se®amured Notes due 2017, Series G. We
refer to these notes as the Sunbelt Notes. Thee®tuxbtes bear interest at a rate of 7.23% per mnpayable semiannually in arrears on each
June 22 and December 22.

We have guaranteed the Series O Notes, and Poly@nguaranteed the Series G Notes, in both casssami to customary guaranty
agreements. Our guarantee and PolyOne’s guaramee\eeral, rather than joint. Therefore, we ate@guired to make any payments to
satisfy the indebtedness of PolyOne. An insolvesrdyankruptcy of PolyOne will not automaticallyggier acceleration of the Sunbelt Notes or
cause us to be required to make payments undgyuauantee, even if PolyOne is required to make gaysnunder its guarantee. However, if
the Sunbelt joint venture does not make timely paiyt® on the Sunbelt Notes, whether as a resulfaifuae to pay on a guarantee or
otherwise, the holders of the Sunbelt Notes magg®d against the assets of the Sunbelt joint verfiturepayment.

Beginning on December 22, 2002 and each year thtereentil maturity of the Sunbelt Notes in 20110y Gunbelt joint venture is requir
to repay approximately $12 million of the Noteswgfich approximately $6 million is attributablettee Series O Notes. After the payment of
$6.1 million on the Series O Notes in December 2002 guarantee of these notes was $91.4 millidbegember 31, 2002. In the event our
Sunbelt joint venture cannot make
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any of these payments, we would be required to wrchalf of such payment. In certain other circtanses, we may also be required to repay
the Sunbelt Notes prior to their maturity. We amdyPne have agreed that, if we or PolyOne intenaonsfer our respective interests in the
Sunbelt joint venture and the transferring partyriable to obtain consent from holders of 80% efabgregate principal amount of the
indebtedness related to the guarantee being traedfafter good faith negotiations, then we and/®©ak will be required to repay our
respective portions of the Sunbelt Notes. In su@ng any make whole or similar penalties or caslishe paid by the transferring party.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Our discussion and analysis of our financial caadifind results of operations are based upon mgdialated financial statemen
which have been prepared in accordance with acomuptinciples generally accepted in the UnitedéxaThe preparation of these financial
statements requires us to make estimates and judgiet affect the reported amounts of assetsilitias, sales and expenses, and related
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiegnBicant estimates in our consolidated financtatements include environmental, restructuring
and other unusual items, litigation, income taxeress including deferred tax asset valuation altosa pension, postretirement and other
benefits and allowance for doubtful accounts. Weelaur estimates on prior experience, facts aedrmistances and other assumptions that we
believe to be reasonable. Actual results may dfffan these estimates.

We believe the determination of our environmentait@ccruals is a critical accounting policy. A@asufor environmental matters are
recorded when it is probable that a liability hagt incurred and the amount of the liability camdmsonably estimated, based upon curren
and existing technologies. These amounts, whicmareiscounted and are exclusive of claims agaimist parties, are adjusted periodically as
assessments and remediation efforts progress draadd technical or legal information becomes tafale.

Environmental exposures are difficult to assessifonerous reasons, including the identification®iv sites, developments at sites
resulting from investigatory studies, advance®ahhology, changes in environmental laws and réignksand their application, the scarcity
reliable data pertaining to identified sites, tlifficllty in assessing the involvement and finahciapability of other potentially responsible
parties and our ability to obtain contributionsnfrether parties and the lengthy time periods ov@cksite remediation occurs. It is possible
that some of these matters (the outcomes of whiglszbject to various uncertainties) may be resblwdgavorably against us, which could
have a material adverse effect on our operatingteeand financial condition.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

As of January 1, 2001, we adopted Statement ofeéinbAccounting Standards, (SFAS), No. 1“Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amende®BAS No. 137 and No. 138. See our description efagve Financial Instruments below
for additional information.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@¢FASB) issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Comhamati’ SFAS No. 141 requires
that the purchase method of accounting be useallfbusiness combinations initiated after JuneZB®1. SFAS No. 141 also specifies certain
criteria that must be met in order for intangibdsets acquired in a purchase method business catiairto be recognized and reported apart
from goodwill. We adopted the provisions of SFAS. 41 on July 1, 2001.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142, “Gothénd Other Intangible Assets,” which became dffecand was adopted by us on
January 1, 2002. SFAS No. 142 requires that gobawd intangible assets with indefinite useful §ve longer be amortized, but instead te
for impairment at least annually in accordance whih provisions of this statement. SFAS No. 142 adgjuires that intangible assets with
estimable useful lives be amortized over their eefipe estimated useful lives to their estimatesidal values, and reviewed for impairmen
accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for Inmpant or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” Accordipglve ceased amortizing goodwill
totaling $42 million as of January 1, 2002. We ctetgd an initial impairment review of our goodvblilance during the second quarter of -
and determined an impairment charge was not redjuire
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If SFAS No. 142 had been in effect for the yeadeghDecember 31, 2001 and 2000, net income (I6$EPP million and $81 million
would have been $(8) million and $82 million redpesly, representing the elimination of goodwill artization. For the years ended Decen
31, 2001 and 2000 reported basic and diluted menire (loss) per share of $(0.22) and $1.80 wouwe leen $(0.19) and $1.82 respectively.

In June 2000, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Actiagrfor Asset Retirement Obligations.” SFAS No3Iéquires that the fair value
of a liability for an asset retirement be recogdiiethe period in which it is incurred if a reaabte estimate of fair value can be made. The
associated asset retirement costs are capitalizpdraof the carrying amount of the long-livededs$his statement is effective for fiscal years
beginning after June 30, 2002; accordingly, we adbpt this standard in the first quarter of 2083this time, it is not practical to reasonably
estimate the impact of adopting this statementworfinancial statements.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Agtng for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived A&ss.” SFAS No. 144
addresses the financial accounting and reportinthiBsimpairment or disposal of long-lived ass@&tsis statement requires that one accounting
model be used for long-lived assets to be dispofég sale whether previously held and used or pewtuired. In addition, it broadened the
presentation of discontinued operations to includee disposal transactions. This statement is @ffeor fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2001, and interim periods within tHgszal years. At the time of adoption on Januarg@02, this statement did not have a
material impact on our financial statements.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Actiogrfor Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal iittes.” SFAS No. 146
addresses the accounting and reporting for costeded with restructuring activities. This nearstard changes the timing of the recognition
of restructuring charges. Liabilities for restruatg costs will be required to be recognized wHenltability is incurred rather than when we
commit to the plan. SFAS No. 146 is effective festructuring activity initiated after December 2002; accordingly, we will adopt this
standard in the first quarter of 2003.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In 1998, the FASB issued Statement No. “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedginctigities” It requires an entity t
recognize all derivatives as either assets orliiegs in the statement of financial position andasure those instruments at fair value. The
implementation date of this statement is effectoreall fiscal quarters of fiscal years beginnirfteaJune 15, 2000. We adopted FASB No. 133
on January 1, 2001, and use hedge accounting teeafor substantially all of our business transattiwhose risks are covered using
derivative instruments. SFAS No. 133 requires #tladerivative instruments be recorded on the lidaheet at their fair value. The accoun
treatment of changes in fair value is dependenhuwpitether or not a derivative instrument is desigias a hedge and, if so, the type of he
For derivatives designated as a fair value hedigecthanges in the fair value of both the derivating the hedged item are recognized in
earnings. For derivatives designated as a cashifemge, the change in fair value of the derivawecognized in other comprehensive inct
until the hedged item is recognized in earningsfféttive portions are recognized currently in @aga. Unrealized gains and losses on
derivatives not qualifying for hedge accounting @eognized currently in earnings. Upon adoptiothif statement, we recorded on Janual
2001, assets totaling $1 million and liabilitietaling $2 million with an offsetting entry to Accudated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss).
The new standard does not allow for the hedge adtitgutreatment on the portion of any hedge thabiseffective. The ineffectiveness, which
was recorded at January 1, 2001, was a loss ofdags$1 million.

We account for forward contracts to buy and setiffn currencies under SFAS No. 52, “Foreign Cwyefranslation” and futures
contracts to reduce the impact of metal price flatibns under SFAS No. 80, “Accounting for FutuGesitracts.” We enter into forward sales
and purchase contracts to manage currency riskiresfrom purchase and sale commitments denomihiatéoreign currencies (principally
Australian dollar and Canadian dollar). All of therrency derivatives expire within one year andfardJnited States dollar equivalents. At
December 31, 2002 we had a forward contract toebfoyeign currency with a face value of $4 millimnd no forward contracts to sell foreign
currencies. At December 31, 2001, we had no forwardracts to buy or sell foreign currencies. Tdie fharket value of the forward contract
to buy at December 31, 2002 approximated the cagryalue. The counterparty to the forward contimet major financial institution. The risk
of loss to us in the event of nonperformance bgunterparty would not be significant to our finaagiosition or results of operations. Foreign
currency exchange
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gains (losses), net of taxes, were less than $i{lipmin 2002 and 2001 and less than $1 millior2B00. At December 31, 2002, we had open
positions in futures contracts totaling $33 milli@901—$47 million). If the futures contracts haekh settled on December 31, 2002, we
would have recognized a loss of $2 million. Gainsges) on futures contracts, net of taxes, wemi$ibn in 2002, $(6) million in 2001 and
less than $1 million in 2000.

We use cash flow hedges of commodities such asetppinc, nickel and lead to provide a measurdadfilty in managing our exposure
to price fluctuations. We use interest rate swaps means of managing interest rates on our odistadebt obligations. These interest rate
swaps are treated as fair value hedges.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, Accumulated Othen@ehensive Income (Loss) included a pretax dedfiriair value of $2 million
and $3 million, respectively. In addition, the wdaable ineffective portion of changes in fair vahesulted in a $1 million charge to earnings
for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 200%efiiffg the above, there were assets totaling $li8m(2001—3$1 million) and liabilities
of $21 million (2001—3$5 million).

Our foreign currency forward contracts and cert@mmodity derivatives did not meet the criteriégS6AS No. 133 to qualify for hedge
accounting. The cumulative effect of items not gyilg for hedge accounting for 2002 was not matleio earnings.

ltem 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

We are exposed to market risk in the normal coafsrir business operations due to our operatiodffierent foreign currencies, our
purchases of certain commaodities, and our ongaiagsting and financing activities. The risk of lasé be assessed from the perspective of
adverse changes in fair values, cash flows anddgarnings. We have established policies and gtwes governing our management of
market risks and the use of financial instrumeatsaitnage exposure to such risks.

Certain raw materials, namely copper, lead, and aged primarily in our Metals and Winchester segfisigoroducts are subject to price
volatility. Depending on market conditions, we neter into futures contracts and put and call optiontracts in order to reduce the impact of
metal price fluctuations. As of December 31, 2002 maintained open positions on futures contradtding $33 million ($47 million at
December 31, 2001). Assuming a hypothetical 10%eamse in commodity prices, which are currently leedgve would experience a $3
million ($5 million at December 31, 2001) increas®ur cost of inventory purchased, which wouldofifset by a corresponding increase in the
value of related hedging instruments.

We are exposed to changes in interest rates phnaaria result of our investing and financing atitg. Investing activity is not material
to our consolidated financial position, result©pérations, or cash flow. Our current debt striectsused to fund business operations and
commitments from banks under our revolving crealilfty are a source of liquidity. As of Decembdr, 2002, we had lonterm borrowings ¢
$330 million ($431 million at December 31, 2001 wdfich $1 million ($36 million at December 31, 20Q@ias issued at variable rates. As a
result of our recent fixed rate financings, we egdento floating interest rate swaps in order #nage interest expense and floating interes
exposure to optimal levels. We have entered inpy@pmately $140 million of such swaps, wherebyageee to pay variable rates to a
counterparty who, in turn, pays us fixed ratesllrtases the underlying index for the variablesas six-month London InterBank Offered
Rate (LIBOR). Accordingly, payments are settledrg\ax months and the term of the swap is the sasnie underlying debt instrument.

In December 2001, we swapped interest payment$0milion principal amount of our 9.125% SeniortB®to a floating rate (4.888%
at December 31, 2002). In February and March 2@@2swapped interest payments on $30 million andri#n principal amount,
respectively, of our 9.125% Senior Notes to flogtiates. Terms of these swaps set the floatingatatee end of each six-month reset period.
Therefore, the interest rates for the current glendl be set on June 16, 2003. We estimate thatakes will be between 4% and 5%.
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In March 2002, we refinanced four variable-rate¢aempt debt issues totalling $35 million. The map of the refinancings was to
eliminate the need for letter of credit support tised our liquidity. In order to manage interegiense and floating interest rate exposure to
optimal levels, we swapped the fixed rate debhefriewly refinanced bonds back to variable raté tfebugh interest rate swaps. The interest
rate on the swap of $8 million will be set on Afrjl2003 and is expected to be between 1.0% afd, While at December 31, 2002 interest
rates on the swaps of $21 million and $6 milliorreve.01% and 2.15%, respectively.

These interest rate swaps reduced interest experssdting in a decrease in pretax loss of $5 arilind $1 million in 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

If the actual change in interest or commoditiesipg is substantially different than expected,ieeimpact of interest rate risk or
commodity risk on our cash flow may be materialfjedtlent than that disclosed above.

We do not enter into any derivative financial instients for speculative purposes.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMEN  TS:

This report includes forwa-looking statements within the meaning of the Pev@&écurities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The
statements relate to analyses and other informé#tmtirare based on management’s beliefs, certaimggions made by management, forecasts
of future results, and current expectations, esésand projections about the markets and economwich we and our various segments
operate. The statements contained in this repattaie not statements of historical fact may inelf@ward-looking statements that involve a
number of risks and uncertainties.

We have used the words “anticipate,” “intend,” “nidexpect,” “believe,” “should,” “plan,” “will,” “estimate,” and variations of such
words and similar expressions in this report tanidg such forward-looking statements. These sta@isiare not guarantees of future
performance and involve certain risks, uncertasnéied assumptions, which are difficult to prediad anany of which are beyond our control.
Therefore, actual outcomes and results may difienmally from those matters expressed or impliestich forward-looking statements. We
undertake no obligation to update publicly any farg:looking statements, whether as a result oféutwents, new information or otherwise.

The risks, uncertainties and assumptions involwealir forward-looking statements include thoseulsed under the captioAdditional
Factors That May Affect Future Results.” You shoctahsider all of our forward-looking statementdigit of these factors. In addition, other
risks and uncertainties not presently known torubhat we consider immaterial could affect the aacy of our forward-looking statements.
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Item 8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
MANAGEMENT REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation ategjiity of the accompanying consolidated finanstatements. These financial
statements have been prepared in conformity witteigdly accepted accounting principles and, whexressary, involve amounts based on
management’s best judgments and estimates. Managatse prepared the other information in this aimeport and is responsible for its
accuracy and consistency with the financial stateme

The Company’s system of internal controls is desibto provide reasonable assurance as to theiigtagd reliability of the financial
statements, the protection of assets from unawbdise or disposition, and the prevention andctieteof fraudulent financial reporting. This
system, which is reviewed regularly, consists dftem policies and procedures, an organizatiomaktire providing delegation of authority
and segregation of responsibility and is monitdrgdn internal audit department. The Comparigdependent auditors also review and tes
internal control system along with tests of accogprocedures and records to the extent thatd¢bagider necessary in order to issue their
opinion on the financial statements. Managemernébes that the system of internal accounting cdsitreeets the objectives noted above.

Management also recognizes its responsibility dstdring a strong ethical climate so that the Comjsaaffairs are conducted according
to the highest standards of personal and corpomatduct. These expectations are summarized in @nteat entitled “Our Values and
Standards of Business Conduct.” The Standards sskeseamong other things, honest and ethical coidal business transactions;
compliance with company policies and proceduresveitidall government laws and regulations; the daaice of conflicts of interest; full, fair,
accurate, timely and understandable disclosuré regorts and communications; and the prompt répgiof violations of Olin’s Standards.
Every employee is expected to comply with the stadsland annually selected employees, including €dhior management, certify their
adherence to these Standards. The Standards @dipaty reinforced through training sessions.@&lthe Company maintains a systematic
program to assess compliance with these standadisas established various outlets, including didential telephone help-line for
employees to ask questions and share concernsyranosly, if desired.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, cased solely of outside directors, meets periodioaith the independent auditors,
management and the Compamiriternal auditors to review the work of each smdvaluate accounting, auditing, internal contesid financia
reporting matters. The Audit Committee annuallyoramends to the Board of Directors the appointméintdependent auditors, subject to
shareholder approval. The independent auditordtm@€ompany’s internal audit department have indéeet and free access to the Audit
Committee.

gt . Ll

Josep D. Rupp
Presider and Chief Executive Office

e

Anthony W. Ruggiero
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Glimporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of Olin Corporation and subsidiariesf &eoember 31, 2002 and 2001
and the related consolidated statements of incehseholders’ equity and cash flows for each ofygreg's in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2002. These consolidated financitdrsients are the responsibility of the Company’sagament. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated finastiéments based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with audgiagdards generally accepted in the United StdtAsnerica. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbteasonable assurance about whether the consdlifiatincial statements are free of mat
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on alasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the consolidated financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing ttewating principles used and significant estimatesle by management, as well as evaluz
the overall financial statement presentation. Weetbe that our audits provide a reasonable basisdo opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaepferred to above, present fairly, in all materéspects, the financial position of Olin
Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 312 20@ 2001, and the results of their operationstlaeid cash flows for each of the years in
the three-year period ended December 31, 2002nfooaity with accounting principles generally actapin the United States of America.

KPte LLP

Stamford, Connecticut
January 30, 2003
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31
($ in millions, except per share data)

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalel
Shor-Term Investment
Receivables, Ne

Trade

Other
Inventories, Ne
Income Taxes Receivak
Other Current Asse

Total Current Asset
Property, Plant and Equipment, I
Prepaid Pension Cos
Other Asset:

Goodwill

Total Assets

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Current Liabilities:
Current Installments of Lor-Term Debi
Accounts Payabl
Accrued Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities
Long-Term Debt
Deferred Income Taxe
Accrued Pension Liabilit
Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Commitments and Contingenci
Shareholder Equity:
Common Stock, Par Value $1 Per Shi
Authorized, 120,000,000 Shares
Issued and Outstanding 57,622,675 Shares (43,4312201)
Additional Paic«-In Capital
Accumulated Other Comprehensive L
Retained Earnings (Accumulated Defic

Total Shareholde’ Equity

Total Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

2002 2001
$ 111  $ 16F
25 37
152 12¢
15 11
25¢ 222
9 7
70 44
63¢ 61€
552 477
10€ 61
46 23
82 42
$1,42¢  $1,21¢
$ 2 $ 10z
11¢ 97
14E 13€
257 33t
32¢ 32¢
— 72
445 45
162 167
1,19¢ 94¢
57 43
442 208
(239) (18)
(29) 41
231 271
$1,42¢  $1,21¢

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancetkeStents are an integral part of the consolidatedh€ial statements.
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Sales
Operating Expense
Cost of Goods Sol
Selling and Administratiol
Research and Developme
Restructuring Charg
Earnings (Loss) of Nc-consolidated Affiliate:
Interest Expens
Interest Incomt
Other Income

Income (Loss) before Taxe
Income Tax Provision (Benefi

Net Income (Loss)

Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share
Basic

Diluted

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financitke®tents are an integral part of the consolidatedh€ial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years ended December 31
(% in millions, except per share data)

35

2002 2001 2000
$1,301  $1,271  $1,54¢
1,181 1,127 1,277
11F 11€ 127

5 5 5

_ 39 —
(7) (8) 2

26 17 16

3 1 2

3 22 3

@27 (13) 131

4 (4) 50
$(3) $ 9 $ 81
$(0.69 $(0.22 $ 1.8C
$(0.69 $(0.22 $ 1.8C




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
(% in millions, except per share data)

Common Stock Accumulated Retained
Additional Other Earnings Total
Shares Par Paid-In Comprehensiv (Accumulatec Shareholders’
Issued Value Capital (Loss) Deficit) Equity

Balance at January 1, 200( 45,061,89 $45 $ 234 % 10 $ 40 $ 30¢
Comprehensive Income (Los:!

Net Income — — — — 81 81

Translation Adjustmer — — — 3 — 3

Minimum Pension Liability Adjustment, n: — — — (©)] — (©)]

Comprehensive Incon — — — — — 75
Dividends Paid

Common Stock ($0.80 per sha — — — — (36) (36)
Stock Options Exercise 67,11! — 1 — — 1
Stock Repurchas (1,162,29) (D) (19 — — (20)
Other Transaction 13,73! — — — — —
Balance at December 31, 20C 43,980,44 44 21€ (16) 85 32¢
Comprehensive Los

Net Loss — — — — 9 9

Translation Adjustmer — — — (D) — (D)

Net Unrealized Losse — — — (@D} — (@D}

Comprehensive Los — — — — — (17)
Dividends Paid

Common Stock ($0.80 per sha — — — — (35) (35)
Stock Options Exercise 161,09: — 2 — — 2
Stock Repurchas (694,87() (D) (13 — — (14)
Other Transaction (6,447) — — — — —
Balance at December 31, 20C 43,440,22 43 20t (18) 41 271
Comprehensive Los

Net Loss — — — — (31 (32)

Translation Adjustmer — — — (D) — (D)

Minimum Pension Liability Adjustment, n: — — — (220) — (220)

Comprehensive Los — — — — — (252)
Dividends Paid

Common Stock ($0.80 per sha — — — — (39 (39
Common Stock Issued fc

Stock Options Exercise 174,06¢ — 3 — — 3

Cash 3,302,91. 3 53 — — 56

Acquisition 9,815,28 10 16¢€ — — 17¢

Employee Benefit Plar 1,039,25! 1 17 — — 18
Stock Repurchas (144,15) — (©)] — — 3
Other Transaction (4,920 — D — — D
Balance at December 31, 20C 57,622,67 $57 $ 44z 3 (239 % 29 ¢ 231

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financitke8tents are an integral part of the consolidatedh€ial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years ended December 31
($ in millions)

Operating Activities
Net Income (Loss
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income (Loss) to NasiCand Cas
Equivalents Provided by Operating Activitit
Loss (Earnings) of Nc-consolidated Affiliate:
Depreciatior
Amortization of Intangible:
Deferred Taxe
Qualified Pension Plan (Incom
Common Stock Issued under Employee Benefit F
Other (Income-Demutualizatior
Change in Assets and Liabilities Net of PurchaseksZales of Businesse
Receivable:
Inventories
Other Current Asse!
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabiliti
Income Taxes Payab
Other Noncurrent Liabilitie
Other Asset:
Other Operating Activitie

Net Operating Activitie

Investing Activities

Capital Expenditure

Business Acquired in Purchase Transac

Cash Acquired through Business Acquisit

Proceeds from Sale of Sh-Term Investment

Disposition of Property, Plant and Equipm

Investments and Advanc—Affiliated Companies at Equit
Other Investing Activitie:

Net Investing Activities

Financing Activities
Long-Term Debt:

Borrowings

Repayment:
Shor-Term Debt Repaymen
Issuance of Common Sto
Purchases of Olin Common Stc
Stock Options Exercise
Dividends Paic
Other Financing Activitie!

Net Financing Activitie:

Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equis:
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Y

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Y
Cash Paid (Received) for Interest and Income Te

Interest
Income Taxes, Net of Refun

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancetkeStents are an integral part of the consolidatedh€ial statements.
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2002 2001 2000
$(3) $ (9 $81
7 8 @)
87 85 79
1 2 2
20 (9) 17
9) 4) (30
5 — —
o) 69  —
(17) 15 (8)
(16) (3) 1
9) (54) 25
) (8 30
(11) (2 (14)
9 (2 (1)
1) 1) 1
31 76 181
(41) 65 (95
— (48) —
13 — —
12 — —
15 3 1
(11) — 10
1) 1) 4
(13  @111) (89
35 200  —
(13¢€) (8) (1)
— ) —
69 — —
©) (14) (20
3 2 1
(39 (39 (36)
(1) — (1)
(72) 142 (57)
(54) 10¢ 36
16 57 21
$111 $165 $ 57
$ 26 $ 18 $16
$(15 $ 11 $ 2



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(% in millions, except share data)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of the consolidated financial stegets requires estimates and assumptions that affemunts reported and disclosed in
the financial statements and related notes. Actsllts could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include tle®ants of Olin Corporation and all majority-owrsdbsidiaries. Investments in 20-
50% owned affiliates are accounted for on the gquitthod. Accordingly, we include only our sharesafnings or losses of these affiliates in
consolidated net income.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are recognized on sales of product dintleethe goods are shipped and the risks of owigetstve passed to the custorn
Shipping and handling fees billed to customersrasieided in Sales and the costs incurred for shigppind handling are included in Cost of
Goods Sold. A portion of the sales in the Metatmsent are made on a “tolling” basis where the austoconsigns noferrous metals to us a
is only charged a fee for processing the non-fexraetals into finished product. For tolling sakbg metal value is not included in Sales or
Cost of Goods Sold.

Foreign Currency Translation

Foreign affiliate’ balance sheet amounts are translated at the exehates in effect at ye-end, and income statement amounts
translated at the average rates of exchange praydiliring the year. Translation adjustments actugfed in Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income (Loss). Where foreign aféabperate in highly inflationary economies, nometary amounts are translated at
historical exchange rates while monetary assetdiabitities are translated at the current ratehwtite related adjustments reflected in the
Consolidated Statements of Income.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
All highly liquid investments, with a maturity ofitee months or less at the date of purchase, astdayed to be cash equivaler

Short-Term Investments

Marketable securities are accounted for in accarelavith Statement of Financial Accounting Stand48fsAS) No. 115, Accounting fol
Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securiti®¥e’ have classified our marketable equity secgriig available-for-sale which are reported
at fair market value with unrealized gains andéssscluded in Shareholders’ Equity net of appliedaxes. The fair value of marketable
securities is determined by quoted market priceseblized gains and losses in 2002 were insigmifiaanrealized gains in 2001 were $1.
Realized gains and losses on sales of investmentietermined on the specific identification method declines in value of securities judged
to be other-than-temporary are included in Otheoine in the Consolidated Statements of Incomerdateand dividends on all securities are
included in Interest Income and Other Income, retpely.

All investments which have maturities between thaeé twelve months at purchase, are considered-trar investments and consist of
debt securities such as commercial paper, timesiepaertificates of deposit, bankers acceptamegsirchase agreements, and marketable
direct obligations of the United States Treasuny i agencies.
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Inventories

Inventories are valued principally by the dollatuelast-in, first-out (LIFO) method of inventorg@unting; such valuations are not in
excess of market. Cost for other inventories has laiketermined principally by the average-cost @stHih, first-out (FIFO) methods. Elements
of costs in inventories include raw materials, clilabor and manufacturing overhead.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at Bagireciation is computed on a stra-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
related assets. Leasehold improvements are ambdizr the term of the lease or the estimated Ub&fwf the improvement, whichever is
shorter. Start-up costs are expensed as incurntadp@icy with respect to our assessment of themt@l impairment of long-lived assets is
included in the Goodwill section below.

Comprehensive Income

We calculated comprehensive income in accordantteS#AS No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Incomdetumulated Other
Comprehensive Income (Loss) at December 31, 208@das cumulative translation losses of $13 ($1Detember 31, 2001), minimum
pension liability of $225 ($5 at December 31, 20849l other unrealized losses of $1 ($1 at Dece®ibe2001). We do not provide for U.S.
income taxes on foreign currency translation adjestts since we do not provide for such taxes onstniftited earnings of foreign
subsidiaries.

Goodwill

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 142 (describeld goodwill, the excess of the purchase pricéhefacquired businesses over the
fair value of the respective net assets, was apsattprincipally over 30 years on a straight-lingibaWe periodically review the value of our
goodwill to determine if any impairment has occdrré/e assess the potential impairment of recordedwill and other long-lived assets by
comparing the undiscounted value of expected futperating cash flows in relation to the book vaifighe goodwill and related long-lived
assets. An impairment would be recorded basedeedtimated fair value.

During the third quarter of 2001, Financial AccdngtStandards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 142 otf®dll and Other Intangible
Assets.” SFAS No. 142 requires that goodwill artdrigible assets with indefinite useful lives nogenbe amortized, but instead tested for
impairment at least annually in accordance withptwvisions of this statement. Goodwill amortizatior the year ended December 31, 2001
was approximately $2. SFAS No. 142 also requirasititangible assets with estimable useful livesulpertized over their respective estime
useful lives to their estimated residual valuesl, mviewed for impairment in accordance with SFAS BR21, “Accounting for the Impairment
of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets te Bisposed Of.” Commencing January 1, 2002, weongdr amortize goodwill and
adopted the provision of SFAS No. 142.

Environmental Liabilities and Expenditures

Accruals for environmental matters are recordednihis probable that a liability has been incureed the amount of the liability can be
reasonably estimated, based upon current law astirextechnologies. These amounts, which are isocbdnted and are exclusive of claims
against third parties, are adjusted periodicallpssessment and remediation efforts progress diaadd technical or legal information
becomes available. Environmental remediation cagicharged to expense as incurred. Environmeosts @are capitalized if the costs incre
the value of the property and/or mitigate or prévaamtamination from future operations.

Income Taxes

Deferred taxes are provided for differences betwherfinancial statement and tax bases of assdtBadilities using enacted tax rates in
effect for the year in which the differences arpested to reverse.
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Derivative Financial Instruments

SFAS No. 133 “Accounting for Derivative Instrumeatsd Hedging Activities” requires an entity to rgoize all derivatives as either
assets or liabilities in the statement of finanpiaition and measure those instruments at fairevalhe implementation date of this stateme
effective for all fiscal quarters of fiscal yeamginning after June 15, 2000. We adopted SFAS B®.ch January 1, 2001, and use hedge
accounting treatment for substantially all of ousimess transactions whose risks are covered dsirigative instruments. The hedge
accounting treatment provides for the deferralaihg or losses on derivative instruments until sirde as the related transactions occur. Upon
adoption of this statement, we recorded on JanLa?P01, assets totaling $1 and liabilities tog$2 with an offsetting entry to Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss). The new stardized not allow for hedge accounting treatmenterpbrtion of any hedge that is not
effective. The ineffectiveness, which was recordedanuary 1, 2001 was a loss of less than $1.

We account for forward contracts to buy and setifyn currencies under SFAS No. 52, “Foreign Cwyefranslation” and futures
contracts to reduce the impact of metal price flatibns under SFAS No. 80, “Accounting for FutuGeamtracts.” We enter into forward sales
and purchase contracts to manage currency riskiresfrom purchase and sale commitments denomihiatéoreign currencies (principally
Australian dollar and Canadian dollar). All of therrency derivatives expire within one year andfardJnited States dollar equivalents. At
December 31, 2002 we had a forward contract toebfoyeign currency with a face value of $4 andaravhrd contract to sell foreign
currencies. At December 31, 2001 we had no foredgriracts to buy or sell foreign currencies. Therfearket value of the forward contract to
buy at December 31, 2002 approximated the caryahge. The counterparty to the forward contraet mmajor financial institution. The risk of
loss to us in the event of nonperformance by thetayparty would not be significant to our finarigasition or results of operations. Foreign
currency exchange gains (losses), net of taxe® l@ss than $(1) in 2002 and 2001 and less tham $200. At December 31, 2002, we had
open positions in futures contracts totaling $3B0@@$47). If the futures contracts had been setiteBecember 31, 2002, we would have
recognized a loss of $2. Gains (losses) on futtwagracts, net of taxes, were $1 in 2002, $(6)0012and less than $1 in 2000.

We use cash flow hedges of commodities such asetppinc, nickel and lead to provide a measurdadfilty in managing our exposure
to price fluctuations. We use interest rate swapa means of managing interest rates on our odisgudebt obligations. These interest rate
swaps are treated as fair value hedges.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, Accumulated Othenf@ehensive Income (Loss) included a pretax dedfiriair value of $2 and $3
respectively. In addition, the unfavorable ineffeetportion of changes in fair value resulted idlacharge to earnings for the years ended
December 31, 2002 and 2001. Offsetting the abinesetwere assets totaling $18 (2001-$1) and ltagsilpf $21 (2001-$5).

Our foreign currency forward contracts and cert@mmodity derivatives did not meet the criteriégS6AS No. 133 to qualify for hedge
accounting. The cumulative effect of items not duelg for hedge accounting for the years 2002 2661 was not material to earnings.

Financial Instruments

The carrying values of cash and cash equivaleatsumts receivable and accounts payable approxihfiaitevalues due to the short-term
maturities of these instruments. The fair valuewflong-term debt was determined based on cumenket rates for debt of the same risk and
maturities. At December 31, 2002, the estimatedviaiue of debt was $348 (2001-$432). The fair galaf currency forward contracts were
estimated based on quoted market prices for cdstveth similar terms.

Retirement-Related Benefits

We account for our defined benefit pension plarsran-pension postretirement benefit plans usingaai@l models required by SFAS
No. 87,“"Employers’ Accounting for Pensions,” and SFAS M06, “Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement B&éiseOther Than Pensions,”
respectively. These models use an attribution agmrehat generally spreads the financial impachaiges to the plan and actuarial
assumptions over the service lives of the emplojredise plan. Changes in liability due to changeadtuarial assumptions such as discount
rate, rate of
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compensation increases and mortality, as well agardeviations between what was assumed and wdmenperienced by the plan are treated
as a gain or loss. Gains and losses are amortimxdioe groups service lifetime, to the extent they fall outside corridor designed to damg
annual volatility. See the next paragraph for infation on the expected long-term rate of returplan assets. The principle underlying the
required attribution approach is that employeesl@eservice over their service lives on a relayivahooth basis and, therefore, the income
statement effects of pensions or non-pension pgostment benefit plans are earned in, and shouldvipthe same pattern.

One of the key components of the net periodic menesalculation is the expected loterm rate of return on plan assets, used to dete
the “market-related value of assets”. (The “maned#ited value of assets” recognizes differencesdrt the plan’s actual return and expected
return over a five year period.) The required usamoexpected long-term rate of return on the marlated value of plan assets may result
recognized pension income that is greater or lems the actual returns of those plan assets irgey year. Over time, however, the expected
long-term returns are designed to approximate theahlong-term returns and, therefore, result patiern of income and expense recognition
that more closely matches the pattern of the sesvitovided by the employees. As differences betvaetual and expected returns are
recognized over five years, they generate gaindasses that are subject to amortization over éneice life of the group, as described in the
preceding paragraph.

We use long-term historical actual return inforraatithe mix of investments that comprise plan assetd future estimates of long-term
investment returns by reference to external souesvelop the expected return on plan assets.

The discount rate assumptions used for pensiomangpension postretirement benefit plan accourréfigcts the rates available on high-
quality fixedincome debt instruments on December 31 of each Jéarrate of compensation increase is anotheifigignt assumption used
the actuarial model for pension accounting anceteminined by us based upon our long-term plansuoh increases. For retiree medical plan
accounting, we review external data and our owtohial trends for health care costs to determireehtealth care cost trend rates.

Stock-Based Compensation

We account for stock-based compensation under A3 23, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensatigksallowed under SFAS
No. 123, we have chosen to continue to accourgtfmt-based compensation cost in accordance with Acaogiftrinciples Board Opinion N
25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employeddrider this option, compensation cost is recordednithe fair market value of our stock at
date of grant for fixed options exceeds the exerprice of the stock option. Our policy is to gratuck options at the fair market value of our
common stock on the date of the grant. Compensatishfor restricted stock awards is accrued dwelife of the award based on the quoted
market price of our stock at the date of the award.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings (loss) per share are computed ligidg/net income (loss) by the weighted averagelemof common shares
outstanding. Diluted earnings per share reflectihdive effect of stock options (refer to footeatalled “Stock Options”). The effect of stock
options of 0.2 million in 2002 and 0.1 million i®@1 have not been included in the 2002 and the A00tkd loss per share as their effect
would have been anti-dilutive.
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Computation of Earnings (Loss) per Share 2002 2001 2000

Basic earnings (loss) per shi

Net income (loss $ B $ 9 3 81
Basic share 49.4 43.€ 44.¢
Basic earnings (loss) per shi $ 069 $ 022 $ 1.8«

Diluted earnings (loss) per sha
Net income (loss $ B % 9 $ 81

Diluted shares
Basic share 49.4 43.€ 44 ¢
Stock options — — 1

49.4 43.€ 45.C
Diluted earnings (loss) per she $ 069 $ 022 $ 1.8«

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

Short-term investments, which approximate fair ealere $25 and $37 at December 31, 2002 and 28§dectively, and represented
the equity value of the comparmyvned life insurance program and in 2001 includgity shares resulting from the Prudential demigagbn.
TRADE RECEIVABLES

Allowance for doubtful items were $8 and $7 at Dmber 31, 2002 and 2001 respectively. Provisionsgdthto operations were $2 in
2002, 2001 and 2000. Bad debt write-offs, net obveries, were $1 in 2002 and 2000 and $2 in 2001.

INVENTORIES
2002 2001

Raw materials and suppli $ 12C $ 11¢

Work in proces! 11F 98

Finished good 74 64

30¢ 281

LIFO reserve: (54) (58)

Inventory, ne $ 25¢ $ 228

Inventories valued using the LIFO method compri82% and 79% of the total inventories at Decembe2802 and 2001, respectively.
During 2001, LIFO inventory quantities were reducesulting in an increase in pretax income of $4.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Useful Lives 2002 2001
Land and improvements to la 1C-20 Years $ 61 $ 60
Buildings and building equipme 1C-25 Years 231 19¢
Machinery and equipmel 3-12 Years 1,52z 1,411
Leasehold improvemen 3 3
Construction in progres 43 48
Property, plant and equipme 1,86( 1,71¢
Less accumulated depreciati 1,30¢ 1,241
Property, plant and equipment, | $ 552 $ 477

Leased assets capitalized and included above asgmificant. Maintenance and repairs chargedprations amounted to $105, $106
and $118 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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INVESTMENTS—AFFILIATED COMPANIES

We have a 50% ownership interest in Sunbelt ChlkalhPartnership and Yamaha-Olin Metal Corporatiooth of which are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting. Combifiedncial positions and results of operationshefse two equity-basis affiliates in their
entirety were as follows:

100% Basis

2002 2001 2000
Condensed Balance Sheet D:
Current assel $ 36 $ 27
Noncurrent asse 137 14¢
Current liabilities 26 21
Noncurrent liabilities 171 183
Condensed Income Statement D:
Net sales 117 98 $ 14¢
Gross profil 19 17 38
Net income (loss (9) (20 11

Pursuant to a note purchase agreement dated Dec2&997, the Sunbelt joint venture sold $97.%afranteed Senior Secured Notes
Due 2017, Series O, and $97.5 of Guaranteed S8eured Notes Due 2017, Series G. We refer to thess as the Sunbelt Notes. The
Sunbelt Notes bear interest at a rate of 7.23%peum, payable semiannually in arrears on eachZRiaed December 22.

We have guaranteed the Series O Notes, and Polgormration (PolyOne), our partner in this ventinas guaranteed the Series G
Notes, in both cases pursuant to customary guaagieeements. Our guarantee and Pol’s guarantee are several, rather than joint.
Therefore, we are not required to make any payniergatisfy the indebtedness of PolyOne. An ingadyeor bankruptcy of PolyOne will not
automatically trigger acceleration of the Sunbedtéé or cause us to be required to make paymedts onr guarantee, even if PolyOne is
required to make payments under its guarantee. kenwd the Sunbelt joint venture does not makeetinpayments on the Sunbelt Notes,
whether as a result of failure to pay on a guamaotetherwise, the holders of the Sunbelt Noteg pnaceed against the assets of the Sunbelt
joint venture for repaymen

Beginning on December 22, 2002 and each year titeregntil maturity of the Sunbelt Notes in 2012y Gunbelt joint venture is requir
to repay approximately $12 of the Notes, of whippraximately $6 is attributable to the Series Odd$oifter the payment of $6.1 on the
Series O Notes in December 2002, our guarantdeesétnotes was $91.4 at December 31, 2002. Invére eur Sunbelt joint venture cannot
make any of these payments, we would be requiréahih our half of such payment. In certain othecwinstances, we may also be required to
repay the Sunbelt Notes prior to their maturity. el PolyOne have agreed that, if we or PolyOrenihto transfer our respective interests in
the Sunbelt joint venture and the transferringyperunable to obtain consent from holders of 8G%e aggregate principal amount of the
indebtedness related to the guarantee being traedfafter good faith negotiations, then we and/®ak will be required to repay our
respective portions of the Sunbelt Notes. In su@ng any make whole or similar penalties or caslishe paid by the transferring party.

SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

On January 3, 2002, we entered into a new threesgraor revolving credit facility of $140, includj a sublimit for letters of credit. The
new facility replaced our existing credit facilgiand will expire on January 3, 2005. At Decemlier2B02, we had $119 available under this
senior revolving credit facility. We issued $21letters of credit under a subfacility for the puspaf supporting certain long-term debt and
self-insurance obligations. We may select varidoating rate borrowing options. The senior creddility includes various customary
restrictive covenants including restrictions retate the ratio of debt to earnings before inteeagtense, taxes, depreciation and amortization
(leverage ratio) and the ratio of earnings befoterest expense, taxes, depreciation and amoatizttiinterest expense (coverage ratio). In the
event that the leverage ratio equals or exceeds @& are required under this senior credit facttitgrant a security interest in all of our U.S.
inventory and accounts receivables. No assetsrofusidiaries will secure our obligation under senior credit facility.
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LONG-TERM DEBT

2002 2001
Notes payable
7.75%, due 200 $ 11 % 11
7.11%, due 200 5C 5C
7.30%, due 200 2 2
8%, due 200: — 10C
9.125%, due 201 20C 20C
Industrial development and environmental improvenodtigations:
Payable at variable interest rates of 0.85% to 5@% 200-2017 1 36
Payable at fixed interest rates of 4.50% to 6.883¢,200-2017 66 32
Total senior dek 33C 431
Amounts due within one ye 2 10z
Total lon¢-term debt $ 326 $ 32¢

In December 2001, we sold $200 of 9.125% Senioeslatith a maturity date of December 15, 2011. Wesl esportion of the net
proceeds of this offering to repay our short-tenatebtedness in 2001 and to repay $100 of the 8&smhte in June 2002. The remaining
proceeds are available for general corporate pegpos

As of December 31, 2002, we had long-term borrowioig$330 ($431 at December 31, 2001) of which$gb (at December 31, 2001)
was issued at variable rates. In March 2002, wiearted four variable-rate tax-exempt debt issoting $35. The purpose of the
refinancings was to eliminate the need for letfezredit support that used our liquidity.

As a result of our recent fixed-rate financings,emtered into floating interest rate swaps in otdenanage interest expense and floating
interest rate exposure to optimal levels. We hantered into approximately $140 of such swaps, sslaed below, whereby we agree to pay
variable rates to a counterparty who, in turn, payfixed rates. In all cases the underlying infi@wariable rates is the six-month London
InterBank Offered Rate (LIBOR). Accordingly, paymeare settled every six months and the termseo$ttaps are the same as the underlying
debt instruments.

The following table reflected the swap activityateld to certain debt obligations as of DecembeB02:

Swap December 31, 2002
Underlying Debt | nstrument Amount Date of Swap Floating Rate
9.125%, due 201 $ 50 December 200 4.88%
9.125%, due 2011 $ 30 February 200: 4.0% — 5.09%6
9.125%, due 201 $ 25 March 2002 4.0% — 5.0%
Industrial development and environmental improven
obligations, at fixed rates of 4.5(-6.88% due 20(-2017 $ 8 March 200z 1.0% — 1.59%
$ 21 March 200z 2.01%
$ 6 March 2002 2.15%

(a) Actual rate is set in arrears. We project It fall within the range shown.

These interest rate swaps reduced interest experssating in a decrease in pretax loss of $5 dnoh®002 and 2001, respectively. The
difference between interest paid and interest veckis included as an adjustment to interest expehsettiement of the fair market value of
the interest rate swaps as of December 31, 200&wesult in a gain of $18. The counterparty tosthnterest rate swap contracts is a major
financial institution. Our loss in the event of panformance by the counterparty would not be sigaift to our financial position or results of
operations.

In January 2003, we renegotiated our $11 7.75% aote2005. The maturity date was extended to 28di3tse interest rate was reduced
from 7.75% to 6.5%, effective January 1, 2003.

Annual maturities of lorn-term debt are $2 in 2003, $27 in 2004, $52 in 2@05n 2006, $2 in 2007 and $246 therea!
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Interest expense incurred on short-term borrowargslong-term debt totaled $26 in 2002, $18 in 280d $17 in 2000; of which $1 was
capitalized in 2001 and 2000.
PENSION PLANS AND RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Essentially all of our domestic pension plans ame-contributory fina-averag-pay or fla-benefit plans and all domestic employees
covered. Our funding policy is consistent with thquirements of federal laws and regulations. Wide certain postretirement health care
and life insurance benefits for eligible active aatired domestic employees.

Other Postretirement

Pension Benefits Benefits
Change in Benefit Obligation 2002 2001 2002 2001
Benefit obligation at beginning of ye $ 126C $ 113% $ 75 $ 70
Service cos 14 14 1 1
Interest cos 91 88 6 5
Amendment: — 24 — 2
Actuarial loss 112 66 15 4
Business combinatic 15 — — —
Benefits paic (99 (92 (15 23
Curtailment — 25 — 6
Benefit obligation at end of ye $ 139 $ 126 $ 82 $ 75
Pension Benefits
Changein Plan Assets 2002 2001
Fair value of plar’ assets at beginning of ye $ 1,16¢ $ 1,29i
Actual return on plar’ asset: (115) 47
Employer contributior 6 6
Business combinatic 11 —
Benefits paic (99 (99
Fair value of plar’ assets at end of ye $ 967 $ 1,16¢

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the benefit obligadtif the qualified pension plans was $1,342 and(, respectively; and the fair
value of the assets of the qualified pension pleas $967 and $1,164, respectively. At Decembe302 and 2001, the benefit obligation of
the non-qualified pension plans was $51.

Other Postretirement

Pension Benefits Benefits
2002 2001 2002 2001
Funded statu $(42€) $(96) $ (B2 $ (75
Unrecognized actuarial (gain) lo 422 82 36 23
Unrecognized prior service cc 33 37 — D
Net amount recognize $ 29 $23 $ (46) $ (53
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balancetstoesist of
Prepaid benefit co: $ 70 $61 $ — $ —
Intangible asset in prepaid pension ct 36 — — —
Accrued benefit liability in other liabilitie (44%) (45) (46) (53
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 36¢€ 7 — —
Net amount recognize $ 29 $28 $ (46 $ (53
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Principal Assumptions for Pension and Postretirement Benefits as of December 31 2002 2001

Weighted average discount r: 6.75% 7.5%
Weighted average rate of compensation incr 4.5% 4.5%
Long-term rate of return on asst 9.C% 9.5%
Other Postretirement
Pension Benefits Benefits
Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost (Income) 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
Service cos $ 14 $ 14 $ 21 $ 1 $ 1 $ 2
Interest cos 91 88 83 6 5 5
Expected return on pla’ asset: (115) (120 (119 — — —
Amortization of prior service co: 6 6 4 — — (1)
Recognized actuarial loss (ga 1 (%) (12 1 1 1
Curtailment — 17 — — 6 —
Net periodic benefit cost (incom $ (3 % 3 $ (18 $ 8 $ 13 $ 7

Our common stock represented approximately 1%eptans’ assets at December 31, 2002 and 2001.
Our foreign subsidiaries maintain pension and obieerefit plans, which are consistent with statufmgctices and are not significant.

Our pension plan provides that if, within three ngef@llowing a change of control of Olin, any corpte action is taken or filing made in
contemplation of, among other things, a plan teatiam or merger or other transfer of assets oilifegs of the plan, and such termination,
merger or transfer thereafter takes place, plaefitsrwould automatically be increased for affegbaticipants (and retired participants) to
absorb any plan surplus.

The accumulated postretirement benefit obligatias wetermined using the projected unit credit mebtivad an assumed discount rate of
6.75% in 2002 and 7.5% in 2001. The assumed heatthcost trend rate used for pre-65 retirees WE3®in 2002, 5.75% in 2001 and 6.5%
in 2000. An average increase of 8.75% in the cbesbeered retiree medical benefits is assumed @032 This average increase is then
projected to decline gradually at the rate of tHmeths of one percent per annum to 4.5% in 26@9.post-65 retirees, we provide a fixed
dollar benefit, which is not subject to escalation.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a signifeffect on the amounts reported for the pdsgreent health care plan. A one-
percentage-point increase (decrease) in assumét beee cost trend rates would have a less thand$gase (decrease) in total service and
interest cost components and a $2 increase (degrimathe postretirement benefit obligation.

INCOME TAXES
Components of Pretax Income (L0ss) 2002 2001 2000
Domestic $ B) $ (20 3 12¢€
Foreign 3 7 5
Pretax income (los $ 27 $ @13 s 131

Components of I ncome Tax Expense (Benefit)

Currently payable

Federal $ a8 $ 5 $ 26
State — 2 5
Foreign 2 2 2
(16) 5 33

Deferred 2C 9 17
Income tax expense (benei $ 4 $ 4 % 5C
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The following table accounts for the differenceviestn the actual tax provision and the amounts éthby applying the statutory U.S.
federal income tax rate of 35% to the income (Ibegdre taxes.

Effective Tax Rate Reconciliation (Percent) 2002 2001 2000
Statutory federal tax ra 35.C 35.C 35.C
Foreign rate differentic (2.0 1.3 0.3
Export tax incentive 5 5.3 (0.9
Compan-owned life insurance prograr (37.¢) (2.0 0.2
Dividends paid to ESO 7.4 — —
Provision for prior year taxe (26.7) — —
State income taxes, n 5.8 4.7 6.C
Change in valuation allowan (2.3 (9.5 (2.2
Equity income of foreign affiliate 1.2 3.3 (0.5
Other, ne 1kt (7.3 (0.2
Effective tax rate (15.6) 30.¢ 38.2
Components of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities 2002 2001

Deferred tax asset

Pension and postretirement bene $ 148 $ 12
Environmental reserve 38 39
Accrued liabilities 34 26
Minimum tax credits 19 23
Federal and state net operating los 39 29
Other miscellaneous iten 2 14
Total deferred tax asse 28C 14z
Valuation allowanct 4 (5)
Net deferred tax asse 27¢€ 13€
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipme 73 66
Capital loss 87 80
Other miscellaneous iten 51 29
Total deferred tax liabilitie 211 17&
Net deferred tax (asset) liabili $ 65 $ 37

Included in Other Current Assets at December 302200d 2001 are $44 and $35, respectively, of umeent deferred assets. The
remainder of the net deferred tax asset/liabilaiahce is recorded in Other Assets in 2002 andeifie@ed Income Taxes in 2001. The deferred
tax provision for 2002 and 2001 does not refleetttix effect of $18 resulting from the 2002 acdigiriof Chase and in 2001, $1 resulting fi
hedging activity under SFAS No. 133 and $4 resgliiom the acquisition of Monarch. For the year82@nd 2000, the deferred tax provision
does not reflect $140 and $2, respectively, remylfiiom additional minimum pension liability adjosnt required by SFAS No. 87,
“Employers Accounting for Pensions.”

Realization of the net deferred tax assets is digrgron future reversals of existing taxable terapodifferences and adequate future
taxable income, exclusive of reversing temporaffetinces and carryforwards. Although realizat®naot assured, we believe that it is more
likely than not that the net deferred tax asselishgirealized.

We have state net operating loss carryforwardppfaimately $196, which are available to offsetife state taxable income, if any,
through 2015. We also have minimum tax credit darvyards of approximately $19, which are availableeduce future federal regular
income taxes, if any, over an indefinite period.
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At December 31, 2002, our share of the cumulatiaisiributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries wggraximately $7. No provision has
been made for U.S. or additional foreign taxeshenundistributed earnings of foreign subsidiariaseswe intend to continue to reinvest
indefinitely these earnings. Foreign tax creditaildde available to substantially reduce or elitéreny amount of additional U.S. tax that
might be payable on these foreign earnings in Weateof distributions or sale.

We are currently subject to ongoing audits by f8 In connection with our Federal tax returns far years from 1992 to 2000; howey
we have closed all tax years through 1991. Depenaiinthe outcome of these audits, we may be redjtirpay additional taxes, and any
additional taxes and related interest could betankial. We have reserved amounts which we beléllde sufficient for any adverse
outcome, but the actual amount of any additionadaand the timing of such payments is uncertain.

In connection with a current audit, we are in thecpss of finalizing negotiations with the IRS tela to our COLI under which we
purchased life insurance policies on many bangaining employees. This settlement with the tB&templates a tax payment of approxime
$40 which had been recorded as a liability in pyears. We could pay approximately $20 of this paytin 2003, with the remainder to be
paid in future years. Concurrent with this settletneve intend to surrender the life insurance pedipurchased by us under this program. The
surrender of these policies resulted in a tax @dhafg@pproximately $10 in 2002. This tax charge reasrded in the fourth quarter of 2002 and
is expected to be paid in 2003.

In 1999, we entered into tax sharing agreements Aith Chemicals effectively providing that we wik responsible for the tax liability
of Arch Chemicals for the years that Arch Chemieeds included in our consolidated income tax return

ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Included in accrued liabilities are the followingms:

2002 2001
Accrued compensation and employee ben $ 23 $ 22
Environmenta 28 27
Derivatives 21 5
Accrued insuranc 15 11
Workers compensatic 14 12
Accrued cost for restructurir — 12
Other 44 47

$ 14t $ 13¢

CONTRIBUTING EMPLOYEE OWNERSHIP PLAN

The Contributing Employee Ownership Plan is a dafinontribution plan available to essentially ahtstic employees. We mat
eligible employee contributions in the form of Oiammon stock. Our matching contributions amoutwe®b in 2002 and 2000 and $6 in
2001. Effective January 1, 2003, we suspended #ielnon all salaried employees’ contributions.

Employees become vested in the value of the carinibs we make to the CEOP according to a schdthgded on service. After two
years of service, participants are 25% vested. Teayin increments of 25% for each additional yeat after five years of service, they
100% vested in the value of the contributions athave made to their accounts.

Employees may transfer any or all of the valuehefihvestments purchased with their own contrimstjancluding Olin Common Stock,
to any one or combination of investments availablihe Plan. Such transfers may be made withoditdiion, at any time and as often as
employees choose. The Olin common stock purchagdwr contributions may not be transferred uatiiployees terminate employment v
the company. However, employees who are age 5@ler may withdraw any or all of the value of thérGdommon stock purchased with our
contributions without the usual suspension of gbation penalty. Provided the amount of the withvahis rolled over to an Individual
Retirement Account, tax payments would be defeurgd the employee takes a distribution from thdividual Retirement Account.

48



STOCK OPTIONS

Under the stock option plans, options may be grhtdgurchase shares of our common stock at nettesn
fair market value at the date of grant, and areasable for a period not exceeding ten years ftloat date. Options granted under the 1996
Stock Option Plan and the 2000 and the 1991 LommTecentive Plans vest over three years. In 2@0%) term incentive awards were given
with stock options representing one-half of theraggte value of the long term incentive award opity, and performance share awards
making up the other half. The option price wasasehe fair market value of common stock on the adithe grant, and the options have a ten-
year term. The other half of the individual longntencentive award takes the form of performan@ass At the end of a thi-year
performance cycle, participants receive a perfooeatare award denominated in shares of our gpadtk,half in shares of our stock and half
in cash, based on Olin’s average annual returrapital in relation to the average annual returrcapital among the S&P MidCap 400
companies. In 2000, a one-time grant of Performa&wmelerated Vesting Stock Options was granted atlexercise price of $18.97, which
represented fair value. Options for 924,000 sharge outstanding at December 31, 2002. These apliane a term of 120 months and vest in
119 months, and can vest early, but only if thelsfwrice increases to $28 per share or more fated@ in any 30 calendar day period.

In accordance with the merger agreement, each sigtddn of Chase under the Chase 1994 Long Terentinee Plan, the Chase 1997
Executive Deferred Compensation Stock Option Prahthe Chase 1997 Non-Employee Director Stock @ilan was converted into a stock
option to acquire a number of shares of our comstook equal to the number of shares of Chase constegk subject to the Chase stock
option multiplied by 0.6400. The exercise priceeath Chase stock option that was converted inlianstock option was equal to the
exercise price of the applicable Chase stock omtivided by 0.6400. The terms and conditions of@ie options will otherwise be the same
as were applicable under the stock option of Cheséhe case may be, but taking into account aaggds, including acceleration, provided
in the applicable stock plan of Chase. In Septer2bé@, approximately 918,000 stock options weregddo Chase employees and directors
who owned options under the Chase stock optiorsplan

As a result of the spin-off of Arch Chemicals thestanding Olin options as of February 8, 1999 veareverted into both an option to
purchase Olin common stock and an option to puciAaish Chemicals common stock with an adjustmenhefexercise price designed to
preserve the “intrinsic value” at the time of thensoff. Olin will be responsible for delivering afes of Olin common stock upon exercise, and
Arch Chemicals will be responsible for deliveringases of Arch Chemicals stock upon exercise. Thi@g maintain the original vesting
schedule. Stock option transactions are as follows:

Weighted Average
Option Price Option Price

Shares Per Share Per Share

Outstanding at January 1, 2C 3,679,25! $12.72- $27.17 $21.46
Grantec 1,943,801 18.97 18.97
Exercisec (67,117 13.69-17.1¢ 16.09
Cancelec (142,999 15.85-27.1i 20.22
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 5,412,94. 12.72-27.1i 20.67
Grantec 451,30( 15.66- 20.67 18.59
Exercisec (161,099 13.34-17.1¢ 14.53
Cancelec (66,879 15.85-27.1i 20.62
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 5,636,27. 12.72-27.17 20.68
Grantec 706,70( 16.10- 18.3¢ 16.17
Chase Acquisitiol 917,69: 6.25- 33.8¢ 15.99
Exercisec (174,069 10.42-18.9i 15.76
Cancelec (196,77°) 11.72—- 28.0¢ 19.99
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 6,889,81 $6.25-$33.8¢ $19.73

Of the outstanding options at December 31, 200209 covering 4,857,457 shares are currently ésabte at a weighted average
exercise price of $20.47 and options covering 644t shares are held by Arch Chemicals employeeBegember 31, 2002 and 2001, the
average exercise period for all outstanding optigas 66 months and 75 months, respectively.
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At December 31, 2002, common shares reserveddoaige and available for grant or purchase unédiotlowing plans consisted of:
Number of Shares

Reserved for Available for
Stock Option Plans Issuance Grant or Purchase
1996 Stock Option Pla 3,419,04 136,36
2000 Long Term Incentive Pl 2,240,001 1,206,26!
5,659,04 1,342,630
1988 Stock Option Plan (plan expire 534,53: —
1991 Long Term Incentive Plan (plan expir 801,81( —
Chase Benefit Plans (assumed in acquisit 916,66¢ —
Options Available for only Arch Chemicals Employs 644,71 —
2,897,72 —
Total Stock Option Plar 8,556,76 1,342,63.
Stock Purchase Plans
1997 Stock Plan for N-employee Director 215,03 96,16:
Employee Deferral Pla 67,66 47,63¢
Monarch Brass & Copper Corp. Deferral P 500,00( 500,00(
Total Stock Purchase Pla 782,70: 643,79¢

(1) consists of stock options of 1,168,200 shared stock awards of 174,433 sh.

Under the stock purchase plans, our employeesmemployee directors may defer certain elementhaf compensation, and former
employees of Monarch may periodically transfer anmiswf their compensation deferred at the time eguied Monarch, into shares of our
common stock based on fair market value of theeshat the time of deferral. Non-employee directomsually receive stock grants as a portion
of their director compensation. Of the shares rexbunder the stock purchase plans at Decemb@0B2, approximately 139,000 shares were
committed.

In 1996, we adopted SFAS No. 123, “Accounting ftwrcR-Based Compensation” and as permitted by SFASIR3, we continue to
account for the costs of stock compensation in@earae with Accounting Principles Board Opinion @®) No. 25. Pro forma net income
(loss) and earnings (loss) per share were calcltzsed on the following assumptions as if we leadnded compensation expense for the
stock options granted during the year. The faiugaf each option granted during 2002, 2001 an® 204 estimated on the date of grant,
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model whike following weighted-average assumptions useddend yield of 4.97% in 2002, 5.69%
in 2001 and 4.21% in 2000, risk-free interest dté.27% in 2002, 4.92% in 2001 and 5.18% in 2@Xpected volatility of 31% in 2002 and
29% in 2001 and 2000 and an expected life of 7syelre fair value of options granted during 2002, and 2000 was $5.16, $5.34 and
$5.59, respectively. The following table shows diféerence between reported and pro forma net irc@oss) and earnings (loss) per share as
if we had recorded compensation expense for trek stptions granted during the year.

($in millions, except per share data) 2002 2001 2000

Net Income (Loss

As reportec $ 3 $ 9 $ 81
Pro forma (39 (12 77
Per Share Dat:
Basic
As reportec (0.6%) (0.22) 1.8C
Pro forma (0.6¢) (0.27) 1.71
Diluted
As reportec (0.69) (0.22) 1.8C
Pro forma (0.6¢) (0.27) 1.71

50



SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

In March 2002, we issued and sold 3,302,914 steresmmon stock at a public offering price of $X¥.Blet proceeds from this sale
were approximately $56 and provide liquidity amaficial flexibility, and strengthen our financiasition. The net proceeds are available for
general corporate purposes.

During 2002, we issued 1,039,259 shares of comrioak svith a total value of $18 to the ContributiBmployee Ownership Plan. These
shares were issued to satisfy the investment irtommon stock resulting from employee contributjang contribution and dividends that
were to be invested in our common stock.

During 2002, 2001 and 2000, we used $3, $14 and&2&purchase 0.1 million, 0.7 million and 1.2lioit shares of our common stock,
respectively. In 1996, we sold our toluene diisoata and aliphatic diisocyanate businesses to AR@€&nical Company for a sale price of
$565. Our board of directors decided to use aqouti the proceeds for the repurchase of sharesrofommon stock in order to enhance
shareholder value. On October 9, 1996 and Apritl®98, our board of directors approved two shgpenehase programs to repurchase a total
of 10 million shares of our outstanding common Ista@¢ which approximately 154,000 shares remaieoet repurchased as of December 31,
2002.

In December 2002, we registered $400 of secunitifsthe Securities and Exchange Commission whefedog time to time, we may
issue debt securities, preferred stock and/or comstack and associated warrants. At December 3I2,28e entire $400 was available for
issuance.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS PLAN

Effective February 1996, our board of directorsmedd a new Shareholder Rights Plan to replaceribe an which had been adoptec
1986. This plan is designed to prevent an acqérioen gaining control of us without offering a fairice to all shareholders. Each right entitl
shareholder (other than the acquirer) to buy foareehundredth share of Series A Participating Clative Preferred Stock at an exercise pric
one hundred twenty dollars. The rights are exebbésanly if a person acquires more than 15% ofcaummon stock or if our board of directors
so determines following the commencement of a teadexchange offer to acquire more than 15% ofamummon stock. If any person
acquires more than 15% of our common stock anddretent of a subsequent merger or combinatiot, igglat will entitle the holder (other
than the acquirer) to purchase stock or other ptppé the acquirer having a value of twice thereise price. We can redeem the rights at
$.005 per right for a certain period of time. Thghts will expire on February 27, 2006, unless exded earlier by us.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

We define segment operating income as earningsdefterest expense, interest income, other incoestructuring charge and unusual
items and income taxes, and include the operaéisglts of non-consolidated affiliates. Segment afireg results in 2001 exclude the
restructuring charge and unusual items ($42 pretax)
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2002 2001 2000

Sales:

Chlor Alkali Products $ 321 $ 384 $ 392

Metals 697 61€ 88C

Winchestel 283 26¢ 2717
Total Sales $1,301 $1,271 $1,54¢
Operating Income (Loss) before Restructuring Charge and Unusual Items:

Chlor Alkali Products $ 35 $ 8 $ 27

Metals 14 7 95

Winchestel 14 7 20

Total Operating Income (Loss) before Restructufigrges and
Unusual Item: @) 22 142

Interest Expens 26 17 16

Interest Incom 3 1 2

Other Income 3 22 3

Restructuring Charg — (39 —

Unusual Items (Recorded in Cost of Goods S — 2 —
Income (Loss) before Taxe $ 27 $ (13 $ 131
Equity Income (Loss) in Affiliated Companies, Included in Operating Income

Chlor Alkali Products $ ® $ 9O % —

Metals 1 1 2
Total Equity Income (Loss) in Affiliated Companies $ 0 $ B $ 2
Depreciation Expense

Chlor Alkali Products $ 38 $ 39 $ 37

Metals 38 33 29

Winchestel 11 13 13
Depreciation Expense $ 87 $ 85 $ 79
Amortization Expense:

Metals $ 1 $ 2 $ 2
Capital Spending:

Chlor Alkali Products $ 20 $ 22 $ 31

Metals 17 36 51

Winchestel 4 6 12

Other — 1 1
Total Capital Spending $ 41 $ 65 $ 95
Assets:

Chlor Alkali Products $ 19t $ 217 $ 25C

Metals 734 502 50C

Winchestel 13t 14z 15€

Other 36C 357 217
Total Consolidated Asset: $1,42¢ $1,21¢ $1,12¢
Investments & Advances to (from) Affiliated Companes at Equity:

Chlor Alkali Products $ (19 $ (22 $ (13

Metals 8 7 7

Total Investments & Advance—Affiliated Companies $ 1) $ (15 $ (6




Segment operating income includes an allocatiacogforate charges based on various allocation rdetbgies. Segment assets include
only those assets which are directly identifiablatsegment and do not include such items as dafdrred taxes and other assets. Sales by
segment substantially represent sales for our threduct lines.

52



Geographic Data: 2002 2001 2000

Sales
United State: $1,24¢ $1,21¢ $1,48¢
Foreign 55 57 61
Transfers between are
United State:! 9 14 14
Foreign 1 — —
Eliminations (10 (14) (14)
Total Sales $1,301 $1,271 $1,54¢
Assets
United State: $1,37(C $1,171 $1,06¢
Foreign 50 45 47
Investment: 8 7 7
Eliminations 4 4 —
Total Assets $1,42¢ $1,21¢ $1,12¢

Transfers between geographic areas are pricedanat prevailing market prices. Export sales fribra United States to unaffiliated
customers were $57, $61, and $93 in 2002, 20012666, respectively.

ACQUISITIONS

In June 2001, we acquired the stock of Monarctafiproximately $48. Monarch was a privately helé&csglty copper alloy manufactui
headquartered in Waterbury, CT with annual revefiepproximately $95 in 2000. We financed the pase through our credit lines. The
purchase price exceeded the fair value of the iiiiglle net assets acquired by $19. The acquishiasbeen accounted for using the purchase
method of accounting and for segment purposes nchsded in Metals. The operating results of Monawehich have been included in the
accompanying financial statements since the daséeaiisition, were not material.

On September 27, 2002, we completed our acquisifié@@hase with the issuance of approximately 9 anishares of our common
stock for 100% of the outstanding stock of Cha$e dggregate purchase price was approximately $&@Bsenting an average price of
$18.11 per share. The acquisition has been acabtmteising the purchase method of accounting anddgment reporting purposes, was
included in Metals. The operating results of Chagach have been included in the accompanying firrstatements since the date of the
acquisition, were approximately $2.

The following table includes the estimated fairueabf the assets acquired and the liabilities assluaih the dates of acquisitions. We have
obtained third party valuations of Chase’s fixededs and certain intangible assets (trademarkddas these valuations, $40 was assigned to
goodwill and $10 was assigned to trademark, botlita€h are not subject to amortization.

Supplemental cash flow information on the businessejuired is as follows:

2002 2001
Cash $ 13 $—

Working capital 9 20
Property, plant and equipme 13t 16
Goodwill 40 19
Intangible asset (trademat 10 —

Debt — (11)
Other, ne (29) 4
Net assets acquire $17¢ $ 48
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The following unaudited pro forma condensed resafligperations for the years ended December 312,28001 and 2000, reflect the
Chase acquisition as if it had occurred on Jania®000, the beginning of the fiscal period presdnt

2002 2001 2000
Sales $1,48: $1,50:¢ $1,83¢
Net income (loss (25) 2 99
Net income (loss) per common she
Basic $(0.49) $(0.09) $ 1.8
Diluted $(0.49 $(0.09 $ 1.8

RESTRUCTURINGS AND UNUSUAL ITEMS
For the full year 2001, we recorded restructuringrges totaling $39 pretax and unusual items qfr$8x for a total of $42.

In the third quarter, we recorded a pretax chapgedstructuring and unusual items of $29 primdilycosts associated with a salaried
workforce reduction through an early retirementimive program. Cost of Goods Sold and Other Incmmlede $2 and $1, respectively, of
unusual items. Cost of Goods Sold included theeaoft of inventory associated with cancelled custowrders. Other Income included the
write-off of an investment in an E-commerce comparte third-quarter restructuring charge of $2ated to the 190 employees retiring in
connection with the retirement program and represkprimarily pension and postretirement benefitailment losses and severance.

In the fourth quarter we recorded a restructurirgfgx charge of $13 pretax, primarily for costwagged with idling our Indianapolis
brass mill, consolidating distribution operatiorisMonarch with the A.J. Oster metals service cehtesiness, and reducing staffing levels in
Chlor Alkali Products. A significant portion of ttoharge relating to the idling of the Indianapdisility represented primarily pension and
postretirement curtailment losses and severanc20i@employees. Another portion of the charge eeléd 38 Chlor Alkali employees who
accepted our offer of a voluntary special sepangtimgram whereby employees accept a voluntarpfiagnd receive full separation benefits
and also receive their accrued pension benefiteeadame time. The balance of the restructuringgeheelated to costs associated with the
consolidation of certain Monarch facilities in orde optimize distribution operations.

The following table summarizes the major componehftie 2001 charges and the remaining balancesBscember 31, 2002:

Accrued
Original Amounts Restructuring
Charge Utilized Costs
Employee early retirement programs and sever $ 30 $ B0 $ —
Optimization of Metals facilitie 9 (9) —
Write-off Assets 3 (©)] —

$ 42 $ 42 $ —

ENVIRONMENTAL

We are party to various governmental and privatérenmental actions associated with waste dispsisad and manufacturing facilities.
Charges to income for investigatory and remedialresf were $15 in 2002 and 2000 and $14 in 200&. ddnsolidated balance sheets include
reserves for future environmental expendituresivestigate and remediate known sites amountin@&oa$ December 31, 2002, and $100 at
December 31, 2001, of which $70 and $73 are cladsifs other noncurrent liabilities, respectivalije 2002 environmental liabilities included
$8 from the Chase acquisition.

Environmental exposures are difficult to assessifonerous reasons, including the identification®iv sites, developments at sites
resulting from investigatory studies, advance®ehnhology, changes in environmental laws and
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regulations and their application, the scarcityaedfable data pertaining to identified sites, tlificulty in assessing the involvement and
financial capability of other potentially responisilparties and our ability to obtain contributidrem other parties and the lengthy time periods
over which site remediation occurs. It is possthit some of these matters (the outcomes of whielsibject to various uncertainties) may be
resolved unfavorably against us, which could haweaterial adverse effect on our operating resultsfanancial condition. At December 31,
2002, we estimate we may have additional contingemironmental liabilities of $40 in addition teethmounts for which we have already
taken a reserve.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

We lease certain properties, such as railroad datibution, warehousing and office space, date@ssing and office equipment. Leases
covering these properties generally contain edoalatauses (except for railroad cars) based oreased costs of the lessor, for primarily
property taxes, maintenance and insurance andreaegval or purchase options. Total rent expensegedao operations amounted to $32 in
2002 and 2001 and $33 in 2000, (sublease incomet isignificant). Future minimum rent payments urgjgerating leases having initial or
remaining non-cancelable lease terms in exceseef/ear at December 31, 2002 are as follows: $20@3; $21 in 2004; $19 in 2005; $17 in
2006; $15 in 2007; and a total of $70 thereafter.

On December 31, 1997, we entered into a long-teutfur dioxide supply agreement with Alliance Spédtgi Chemicals, Inc. (Alliance),
formerly known as RFC SQ, Inc. Alliance has the obligation to deliver aniiyi86,000 tons of sulfur dioxide. Alliance ownsetbulfur dioxidt

plant, which is located at our Charleston, TN facénd is operated by us. The price for the sulfioxide is fixed over the life of the contract,
and under the terms of the contract, we are olditd make a monthly payment of approximately &dardless of the sulfur dioxide
purchased. Commitments related to this agreemeragproximately $2 per year for each year of 206@8ugh 2006 and a total of $10
thereafter.

There are a variety of non-environmental legal peatings pending or threatened against us. Probzgses related to those matters have
been accrued in the accompanying financial statesn&ny contingent amounts in excess of amountsuadcare not expected to have a
material adverse effect on our results of operatifinancial position or liquidity.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

In the first quarter 2003, we made a decision ése&lour manufacturing plant in Indianapolis, Indiafhe plant manufactures copper and
copper alloy sheet and strip products and emplppsoximately 200 people. Production at the Indiariapstrip mill will be consolidated
within our East Alton, lllinois facility. While théndianapolis strip mill has been an important pédrthe Metals segment since its acquisition in
1988, reduced domestic consumption of strip pradactnbined with capacity additions at East Altomehkessened the need to maintain the
Indianapolis production base.
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OTHER FINANCIAL DATA
Quarterly Data (Unaudited)

First Second Third Fourth

2002 Quarter Quarter Quarter(2) Quarter(1)(3) Year(1)(2)(3)
Sales $ 29t $ 314 $ 341 $ 351 $ 1,301
Cost of goods sol 27C 28t 30¢ 31¢ 1,182
Net loss (11) (7) @ 12 (32)
Net loss per common sha

Basic (0.26) (0.15) (0.02) (0.27) (0.63)

Diluted (0.26) (0.15 (0.02) (0.2)) (0.69)
Common dividends per she 0.2C 0.2C 0.2C 0.2C 0.8C
Market price of common stock(:

High 18.8( 22.2¢ 22.6( 17.0¢€ 22.6(C

Low 13.8¢ 16.9¢ 15.5¢ 13.9(C 13.8¢
2001
Sales $ 334 $ 32t $ 334 $ 27¢ $ 1,271
Cost of goods sol 29t 282 303 242 1,122
Net income (loss 2 7 (19 1 9
Net income (loss) per common she

Basic 0.0¢ 0.1t (0.45) 0.0z (0.2

Diluted 0.0¢ 0.1t (0.45) 0.0z (0.29)
Common dividends per she 0.2C 0.2C 0.2C 0.2C 0.8C
Market price of common stock(:

High 22.7¢ 22.5: 18.0( 17.2¢ 22.7¢

Low 17.7¢ 14.9(C 13.3( 12.0¢ 12.0¢

(1) Operating results for the 2002 fourth quarter aearynclude a tax provision of $10 in connectiothvihe surrender of life insuran
policies purchased by us under the Company Ownfedihsurance progran

(2) Operating results in 2001 include a Restructurihgr@e and Unusual Items of $29 pretax, primaritycfosts associated with a salaried
workforce reduction through an early retiremengimive program

(3) Operating results in 2001 include an additionaltResuring Charge of $13 pretax, primarily for coassociated with the consolidatior
certain Metals facilities in order to optimize distition operations and a voluntary retirement paog

(4) New York Stock Exchange composite transacti

Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE
Not applicable
PART IlI
Item 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

We incorporate the biographical information relgtto our Directors under the heading “Item 1—Elketf Directors” in our Proxy
Statement relating to our 2003 Annual Meeting odrgholders (the “Proxy Statement”) by referencthis Report. See also the list of
executive officers following Item 4 of this RepdWe incorporate the information regarding complamgth Section 16 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, contained ipdhagraph entitled “Section 16(a) Beneficial Owhgr&keporting Compliance” under the
heading “Security Ownership of Directors and Off&feén our Proxy Statement by reference in this &ep
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Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information under the heading “Executive Congagion” in the Proxy Statement (but excluding tlep&t of the Compensation
Committee on Executive Compensation and the Pedoce Graph) is incorporated by reference in thigdRe The information under the
heading “Additional Information Regarding the BoafdDirectors—How are the Directors compensated?he Proxy Statement is
incorporated by reference in this Report.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

We incorporate the information concerning holdin§sur common stock by certain beneficial ownenstamed under the heading
“Certain Beneficial Owners” in our Proxy Statemantl the information concerning beneficial ownersifipur common stock by our directors
and officers under the heading “Security Ownersliipirectors and Officers” in our Proxy Statememgtrbference in this Report.

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
Not applicable.

ltem 14. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(@) of disclosure controls and procedures.
Evaluation
Our chief executive officer and chief financialioéfr have evaluated the effectiveness of*disclosure controls and procedl” (as
defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rdlga-14(c) and 15d-14(c)) as of a date within &gsdefore the filing of this report, (the
“Evaluation Date”). Based on this review, they havacluded that, as of the Evaluation Date, ouwldgire controls and procedures were
effective to ensure that material information rieigitto Olin Corporation and its consolidated sulasids would be disclosed on a timely bas
this report.

(b) in internal controls.
Change:

We maintain a system of internal accounting costtiot are designed to provide reasonable assutaatceur books and records
accurately reflect our transactions and that otaldished policies and procedures are followedc&the Evaluation Date, there were no
significant changes to our internal controls oofher factors that could significantly affect ontarnal controls.
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Item 15.

PART IV

EXHIBITS, CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE S, AND REPORTS ON FORM &K

@ 1. Consolidated Financial Statement
Included in Item 8 above.

2. Consolidated Financial Statement Schedule

Schedules not included herein are omitted becédnesedre inapplicable or not required or becausedtuaired information is give
in the consolidated financial statements and nibie®to.

Separate consolidated financial statements of 50Rése owned subsidiaries accounted for by thetgguethod are not summariz
herein and have been omitted because, in the agfgredbey would not constitute a significant suiasid

3. Exhibits

Management contracts and compensatory plans aadgements are listed as Exhibits 10(a) through) li¥low.

3 (@)
(b)
4 (a)

(b)

(€)

(d)
()

10 @)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(9)
(i)
0
(k)
(0

Olin’s Restated Avrticles of Incorporation as ameahd#ective May 8, 1997—Exhibit 3 to Olin’s Form-T@for the
Quarter ended March 31, 199°

By-laws of Olin as amended effective February 18, 2

Articles of Amendment designating Series A Parttipg Cumulative Preferred Stock, par value $1gbare—Exhibit 2
to Olin’'s Form 8-A dated February 21, 1996, covgr8eries A Participating Cumulative Preferred StBakchase
Rights.*

Rights Agreement dated as of February 27, 1996dmtvOlin and Chemical Mellon Shareholder Service®, Rights
Agent—Exhibit 1 to Olin’s Form 8-A dated February, 2996, covering Series A Participating Cumulaiveferred
Stock Purchase Rights

Form of Senior Debt Indenture between Olin and dbahBanl—Exhibit 4(a) to Form -K dated June 15, 199
Supplemental Indenture dated as of March 18, 1@94den Olin and Chemical Bank—Exhibit 4(c) to Ré&giton
Statement No. 33-52771 and Second Supplementattimdedated as of December 11, 2001 between OtirdBMorgan
Chase Bank, formerly known as Chemical E—Exhibit 4 to Form -K dated December 20, 2001

Credit Agreement dated as of January 3, 2002 ar@dingand the banks named therein—Exhibit 4 to GliRbrm 8-K
dated January 10, 200z

9.125% Senior Note Due p2(—Exhibit 4(f) to Olir's Form 1-K for 2001.*

We are party to a number of other instruments defithe rights of holders of long-term debt. Nolsutstrument
authorizes an amount of securities in excess of @Dfhe total assets of Olin and its subsidiariea@onsolidated basis.
Olin agrees to furnish a copy of each instrumerh&oCommission upon request.

1988 Stock Option Plan for Key Employees of Olir@wation and Subsidiaries as amended through 3aB80a2003
Employee Deferral Plan as amended and restatectigéfeas of January 30, 20(

Olin Senior Executive Pension Plan amended aslpf2ly 200—Exhibit 10(d) to Olirs Form 1-Q for the quarte
ended September 30, 200!

Olin Supplemental Contributing Employee OwnersHgnRas amended through March 1, 2—Exhibit 10(d) to Olir's
Form 1(-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20C

Olin Corporation Key Executive Life Insurance Pramr

Form of executive agreement between Olin and ceesecutive officers dated November 1, 2C

Olin 1991 Long Term Incentive Plan, as amendedutdinaJanuary 30, 200

Amended and Restated 1997 Stock Plan for-Employee Directors as amended effective Januar2308.

Olin Senior Management Incentive Compensation Rlargmended through December 9, —Exhibit A to Olin's 200C
Proxy Statement dated March 14, 20C

Description of Restricted Stock Unit Awards grantedier the Olin 1991 Long Term Incentive Plan—EiHilB(bb) to
Olin’s Form 1i-K for 1995.*

Description of Restricted Stock Unit Awards grantedier the 2000 Long Term Incentive Plan—Exhibiimi)0to Olin’s
Form 1(-K for 2001.*

1996 Stock Option Plan for Key Employees of Olirr@wation and Subsidiaries as amended as of JaB0aB003
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(m) Olin Supplementary and Deferral Benefit Pen$itan restated as of February 8, 1999—Exhibit 1@(€)lin’s Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 199¢

(n) Olin Corporation 2000 Long Term Incentive Plan aeeaded through January 30, 20

(o) Olin Corporation 2003 Long Term Incentive Pl

(p) 2001 Performance Share Progr— Exhibit 10(w) to Olir's Form 1-Q for quarter ended March 31, 200

(g) Chase Industries Inc. 1994 Long-Term Incenfian, as amended as of May 14, 1997 and First Amenteffective as of
November 19, 19¢—Exhibit 10.5 to Chase Industries Inc. Form 10-K¥898 and Exhibit 10.7 to Chase Industries Inento
10-K for 1999, respective—SEC file No. -13394.*

() Chase Industries Inc. 1997 Non-Employee DireSttock Option Plan, as amended May 26, 1998 arstt Amendment effective
as of November 19, 1999—Exhibit 10.6 to Chase Itvtessinc. Form 10-K for 1998 and Exhibit 10.9 thaSe Industries Inc.
Form 1(-K for 1999, respective—SEC file No. -13394.*

(s) Chase Industries Inc. 1997 Executive Deferreth@ensation Stock Option Plan and First Amendmiattive as of November
19, 1999—Exhibit 10.7 to Chase Industries Inc. Faf¥K for 1998 and Exhibit 10.11 to Chase Industiiec. Form 10-K for
1999, respective—SEC file No. -13394.*

(t) D.W. Griffin Letter Agreement dated January 3102(

(u) J. L. MclIntosh Letter dated April 12, 2002 and RetaCommitment Letter dated April 11, 2002 (port@nitted pursuant t
request for confidential treatmen

(v) Distribution Agreement between Olin Corporatimd Arch Chemicals, Inc., dated as of Februaf999—Exhibit 2.1 to Olin’s
Form &K filed February 23, 1999.

(w) Partnership Agreement between Olin Sunbelt, &mcl 1997 Chloralkali Venture Inc. dated AugustZB6—Exhibit 99.1 to
Olin’s Form -K dated December 3, 2001

(x) Amendment to Partnership Agreement between Olirb&8lyninc. and 1997 Chloralkali Venture Inc. dal@ecember 23, 19—
Exhibit 99.2 to Olirs Form K dated December 3, 2001

(y) Amendment to Partnership Agreement between Olirb8ltninc. and 1997 Chloralkali Venture Inc. daBecember 23, 19—
Exhibit 99.3 to Olirs Form K dated December 3, 2001

(z) Amendment to Partnership Agreement between 8linbelt, Inc. and 1997 Chloralkali Venture IndediaApril 30, 1998—
Exhibit 99.4 to Olirs Form K dated December 3, 2001

(aa)Amendment to Partnership Agreement between Olirb&ltininc. and 1997 Chloralkali Venture Inc. dafediuary 1, 200:

(bb)Note Purchase Agreement dated December 22, 199g2&ethe Sunbelt Chlor Alkali Partnership and thecRasers name
thereir—Exhibit 99.5 to Olir's Form K dated December 3, 2001

(cc)Guarantee Agreement dated December 22, 1997 betwlgeand the Purchasers named therein—Exhibit 89®lin’s Form 8-
K dated December 3, 2001

(dd)Subordination Agreement dated December 22, 199¥dget Olin and the Subordinated Parties named ti—Exhibit 99.7 tc
Olin’s Form -K dated December 3, 2001

(ee)Voting Agreement between Olin and Court Square @apimited dated as of May 7, 2002 and Amendmextéd November &
2002—Exhibit 2.2 to Olin’s Form 8-K dated May 9,00and Exhibit 99(b) to Olin’s Amendment No. 1 torfs S3 Registratior
Statement No. 3:-101029 filed on December 20, 2002, respective

11 Computation of Per Share Earnings (included inNb&—"Earnings Per She” to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemer
Item 8.)

12 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Chargesm(dited)

21 List of Subsidiaries

23 Consent of KPMG LLP

99.1 Certification Statement of Chief Executive Offic
99.2 Certification Statement of Chief Financial Offic

*  Previously filed as indicated and incorporatedelie by reference. Exhibits incorporated by refeeeare located in SEC file No.
1-1070 unless otherwise indicate

Any of the foregoing exhibits are available frone Bompany by writing to: Mr. Richard E. Koch, ViBeesident, Investor Relations and
Public Affairs, Olin Corporation, 501 Merritt 7,®.. Box 4500, Norwalk, CT 06856-4500.
(b) Reports on Form &K

Form &K furnished under Item 9 on December 17, 2002,iglning a press release dated December 17, 2008uacing a possibl
restructuring charge and a charge in connectioh svdettlement with the Internal Revenue Servitaed to company-owned life insurance,
and reaffirming Olin’s fourth quarter earnings cande.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, therednlp authorized.

Date: March 6, 2003

O LIN C ORPORATION

By /s/ JosepHD. RupP

Joseph D. Rupp
President and
Chief Executive Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ite indicated.

Signature Title Date

/sl JosepHD. Rupp President and Chief Executive Officer and Dires March 6, 200:
(Principal Executive Officer)

Joseph D. Rupp

/'s/  DoNALD W. GRIFFIN Director and Chairman of the Boz March 6, 200:

Donald W. Griffin

/sl JAMES G. HASCALL Director March 6, 200:

James G. Hascall

/sl WiLLiam W. HIGGINS Director March 6, 2003

William W. Higgins

/s/ RANDALL W. L ARRIMORE Director March 6, 2003

Randall W. Larrimore

/' s/ STEPHENF. PAGE Director March 6, 200:

Stephen F. Page

/s/ G. JACKSONR ATCLIFFE, JR. Director March 6, 200:

G. Jackson Ratcliffe, Jr.

/'s/  RICHARD M. R OMPALA Director March 6, 2003

Richard M. Rompala

/sl ANTHONY W. R UGGIERO Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office March 6, 2003
and Director (Principal Financial Officer)

Anthony W. Ruggiero

/sl MARY E. GALLAGHER Vice President and Controller (Principal Accounting March 6, 2003
Officer)

Mary E. Gallagher
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CERTIFICATIONS
[, Joseph D. Rupp, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16f0lin Corporation (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report deésontain any untrue statement of a materialdactimit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts other financial information included in thisnual report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this annual
report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers drare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14)He registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedarensure that material information relatingh® tegistrant, including its consolida
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withase entities, particularly during the period ihigh this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures as of a daténa0 days prior to the filing date of
this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusairaut the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures based on our evalu:
as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers drtthve disclosed, based on our most recent evahydt the registrant’s auditors and the
audit committee of registrant’s board of direct@@mspersons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design peaation of internal controls which could adversaffect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial data and tuntified for the registrant’s auditors any er&l weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that ineslymanagement or other employees who have a siniifiole in the registrant’s internal
controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers drtthve indicated in this annual report whetheratrthere were significant changes in
internal controls or in other factors that coulgingiicantly affect internal controls subsequenttte date of our most recent evaluation, inclu
any corrective actions with regard to significaefidencies and material weaknesses.

Date: March 6, 200 [ s/ JosepHD. Rupp
Joseph D. Rupp
President and Chief Executive Officer
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[, Anthony W. Ruggiero, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fi0lin Corporation (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report do¢gontain any untrue statement of a materialdacmit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts other financial information included in thisnual report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this annual
report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers drare responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14)He registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedarensure that material information relatinghe tegistrant, including its consolida
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withase entities, particularly during the period ihigh this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures as of a daténn0 days prior to the filing date of
this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusairaut the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures based on our evalu:
as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers drtthve disclosed, based on our most recent evatlyab the registrant’s auditors and the
audit committee of registrant’s board of direct@@mspersons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design pecation of internal controls which could adversaffigct the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial data and tuntified for the registrant’s auditors any er&l weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that ineeslymanagement or other employees who have a siniifiole in the registrant’s internal
controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers drtthve indicated in this annual report whetheratrthere were significant changes in
internal controls or in other factors that coulgingiicantly affect internal controls subsequenttte date of our most recent evaluation, inclu
any corrective actions with regard to significaeficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: March 6, 2003 [s/ ANTHONY W. RUGGIERO
Anthony W. Ruggiero
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Office

62



Exhibit 3(b)

BYLAWS
OF
OLIN CORPORATION

As Amended
Effective
February 18, 2003




BYLAWS
of
OLIN CORPORATION

ARTICLE I.
MEETINGS OF SHAREHOLDERS.

SECTION 1. Place of MeetingsAll meetings of the shareholders of Olin Corporat{bereinafter called the “Corporation”) shall kech
at such place, either within or without the Commeaith of Virginia, as may from time to time be fikby the Board of Directors of the
Corporation (hereinafter called the “Board”).

SECTION 2. Annual Meetings.The annual meeting of the shareholders of the Catjom for the election of directors and for the
transaction of such other business as may properhe before the meeting shall be held on the lastsday in April in each year (or, if that
day shall be a legal holiday, then on the nexteseding business day), or on such other day angd&wdh other month as may be fixed by the
Board, at such hour as may be specified in theadtiereof.

SECTION 3. Special MeetingsA special meeting of the shareholders for any psepar purposes, unless otherwise provided by law or
in the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporatias from time to time amended (hereinafter caltedArticles”), may be held at any time
upon the call of the Board, the Chairman of therBipthe President or the holders of a majorityhef shares of the issued and outstanding !
of the Corporation entitled to vote at the meeting.

SECTION 4. Notice of MeetingsExcept as otherwise provided by law or the Artichest less than ten nor more than sixty days’ motic
in writing of the place, day, hour and purpose utppses of each meeting of the shareholders, whattmeial or special, shall be given to each
shareholder of record of the Corporation entitleddte at such meeting, either by the deliveryeb&to such shareholder personally or by the
mailing thereof to such shareholder in a postageaid envelope addressed to such shareholder adlidhisss as it appears on the stock transfer
books of the Corporation; provided, however, thahie case of a special meeting of shareholdelesdchy the shareholders, such notice shall
be given at least fifty days before the date ofrtfeeting. Notice of any meeting of shareholderdl sioé be required to be given to any
shareholder who shall attend the meeting in peesday proxy, unless attendance is for the expresggse of objecting to the transaction of
any business because the meeting was not lawfallgdcor convened, or who shall waive notice themeaevriting signed by the shareholder
before, at or after such meeting. Notice of anpadjed meeting need not be given, except when ssigreequired by law.

SECTION 5. Quorum. Shares representing a majority of the votes edtttiebe cast on a matter by all classes or sefgswvare entitled
to vote thereon and be counted
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together collectively, represented in person opimxy at any meeting of the shareholders, shalstitute a quorum for the transaction of
business thereat with respect to such matter, siolerwise provided by law or the Articles. In #iesence of a quorum at any such meeting or
any adjournment or adjournments thereof, sharegsepting a majority of the votes cast on the maftadjournment, either in person or by
proxy, may adjourn such meeting from time to tirnéilia quorum is obtained. At any such adjournecting at which a quorum has been
obtained, any business may be transacted whichtrhayte been transacted at the meeting as originallgd.

SECTION 6. Voting. Unless otherwise provided by law or the Articleseach meeting of the shareholders each sharehehtitied to
vote at such meeting shall be entitled to one fateach share of stock standing in his name omdivds of the Corporation upon any date
fixed as hereinafter provided, and may vote eithgrerson or by proxy. Unless demanded by a shidehpresent in person or represented by
proxy at any meeting of the shareholders and edttth vote thereon or so directed by the chairnfdheomeeting, the vote on any matter need
not be by ballot. On a vote by ballot, each bailwll be signed by the shareholder voting or hiscyprand it shall show the number of shares
voted.

A shareholder or a shareholder’s duly authorizéatay-in-fact may execute a writing authorizingotirer person or persons to act for
such shareholder as proxy. Execution may be acéshagl by the shareholder or such shareholder’s alutlyorized attorney-in-fact or
authorized officer, director, employee or agenhsig such writing or causing such shareholder'satgre to be affixed to such writing by any
reasonable means including, but not limited tofamgimile signature.

The President, any Vice President or the Secrefftye Corporation may approve procedures to erebBleareholder or a shareholder’s
duly authorized attorney-in-fact to authorize aeotberson or persons to act for such shareholdamay by transmitting or authorizing the
transmission of a telegram, cablegram, internesstrassion, telephone transmission or other meae&ofronic transmission to the person v
will be the holder of the proxy or to a proxy sahtion firm, proxy support service organizationlige agent duly authorized by the person \
will be the holder of the proxy to receive sucmtmaission, provided that any such transmission wmitis¢r set forth or be submitted with
information from which the judges or inspectorslaction can determine that the transmission wésoaiged by the shareholder or the
shareholder’s duly authorized attorney-in-facit 1§ determined that such transmissions are viiel judges or inspectors of election shall
specify the information upon which they relied. Acgpy, facsimile telecommunication or other releal#production of the writing or
transmission created pursuant to this Section 6 eagubstituted or used in lieu of the originalting or transmission for any and all purposes
for which the original writing or transmission cdle used, provided that such copy, facsimile tetenunication or other reproduction shall
be a complete reproduction of the entire originatimg or transmission.

SECTION 7. Judges.One or more judges or inspectors of election fgrraeeting of shareholders may be appointed by théman of
such meeting, for the purpose of
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receiving and taking charge of proxies and babotd deciding all questions as to the qualificabbroters, the validity of proxies and ballots
and the number of votes properly cast.

SECTION 8. Conduct of Meeting.The chairman of the meeting at each meeting ofettrdalers shall have all the powers and authority
vested in presiding officers by law or practicethoit restriction, as well as the authority to cectdan orderly meeting and to impose
reasonable limits on the amount of time taken ugmarks by any one shareholder.

SECTION 9. Business Proposed by a Shareholdefo be properly brought before a meeting of shamdrsl business must be (i)
specified in the notice of meeting (or any suppletitbereto) given by or at the direction of the Rbaf Directors, (ii) otherwise properly
brought before the meeting by or at the directibthe Board of Directors or (iii) in the case of amual meeting of shareholders or a special
meeting called at the request of shareholdersdordance with these Bylaws, properly brought betbeemeeting by a shareholder. In addition
to any other applicable requirements, for businedse properly brought before a meeting by a shwdei, the shareholder must have given
timely notice thereof in writing to the Secretafftloe Corporation. To be timely, a shareholder'sagomust be given, either by personal
delivery or by United States registered or ceudifieail, postage prepaid, to the Secretary of thg@ation in the case of an annual meeting,
not later than 90 days before the anniversary efrtimediately preceding annual meeting and in &#se ©f a special meeting called at the
request of shareholders, in accordance with thegohares set forth in Section 10 of Article | ofgheBylaws. A shareholder’s notice to the
Secretary shall set forth as to each matter thesbbider proposes to bring before the meeting ijief description of the business desired t
brought before the meeting, including the compleket of any resolutions to be presented at the imgetith respect to such business, and the
reasons for conducting such business at the mediintne name and address of record of the slwdden proposing such business, (iii) the
class and number of shares of the Corporationateabeneficially owned by the shareholder and dahgrgperson on whose behalf the proposal
is made, and (iv) any material interest of the shalder and any other person on whose behalf thygogal is made, in such business. In the
event that a shareholder attempts to bring businefesse a meeting without complying with the foregpprocedure, the chairman of the
meeting may declare to the meeting that the busiwes not properly brought before the meeting #rek shall so declare, such business shall
not be transacted.

SECTION 10. Special Meeting at Request of Sharehadds.
(a) Any holder or holders of record of a majorifytloe outstanding shares of Common Stock requegtiagorporation to call a special mee
of shareholders pursuant to Section 2 of Articighi of the Restated Articles of Incorporation [edlively, the “Initiating Shareholder”) shall
give written notice of such request to the Secyetéthe Corporation at its principal executiveiodk (the “Notice”).The Notice shall be sent
the manner and contain all the information that Mdae required in a notice to the Secretary giverspant to Section 9 of this Article I.
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(b) If the Initiating Shareholder owns of recorchajority of the outstanding Common Stock as deteeaiiby the Secretary of the Corporation,
the Corporation shall be required to call the sgauieeting of shareholders requested by the lmgehareholder.

(c) The record date for determining the sharehsldérecord entitled to vote at a special meetated pursuant to this Section 10 shall be
fixed by the Board of Directors which record daté tae within 60 days of the date the Secretaryhef Corporation determines the Corporation
is required to call such special meeting. Writtetige of the meeting shall be mailed by the Corfionato shareholders of record on such
record date within 10 days after the record datsch longer period as may be necessary for tipdCation to file its proxy materials with,
and receive and respond to the comments of, therfies and Exchange Commission), and the meetitidgoevheld within 50 days after the
date of mailing of the notice, as determined byBbard of Directors.

(d) The business to be conducted at a special ngeedilled pursuant to this Section 10 shall betéchio the business set forth in the Notice
such other business or proposals as the Boardre€is shall determine and shall be set forthénotice of meeting. The Board of Directors
or the Chairman of the Board of Directors may datee other rules and procedures for the condutti@fmeeting.

ARTICLE II.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

SECTION 1. Number, Classification, Term, Election.The property, business and affairs of the Corpomnaghall be managed under the
direction of the Board as from time to time congétl. The Board shall consist of nine directors,tbe number of directors may be increase
any number, not more than eighteen directors, oredsed to any number, not less than three dissdigramendment of these Bylaws. No
director need be a shareholder. The Board shallMiged into three classes, Class I, Class Il aled<lIl, as nearly equal in number as
possible, with the members of each class to senvthé respective terms of office provided in th#éidkes, and until their respective successors
shall have been duly elected or until death ogrestion or until removal in the manner hereinaftervided. In case the number of directors
shall be increased, the additional directors tdti# vacancies caused by such increase shalkltedlin accordance with the provisions of
Section 4 of Article VI of these Bylaws. Any inceegaor decrease in the number of directors shadblegpportioned among the classes by the
Board as to make all classes as nearly equal irbauas possible.

Subiject to the rights of holders of any Preferrtmtls outstanding, nominations for the election iéctors may be made by the Board
committee appointed by the
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Board or by any shareholder entitled to vote indleetion of directors generally. However, any shalder entitled to vote in the election of
directors generally may nominate one or more per$onelection as directors at a meeting only i ian annual meeting and written notice of
such shareholder’s intent to make such nominatiarominations has been given, either by persoralatyg or by United States registered or
certified mail, postage prepaid, to the Secretduth® Corporation not later than 90 days beforeattvgiversary of the immediately preceding
annual meeting. Each such notice shall set foaththe name and address of the shareholder whadisite make the nomination and of the
person or persons to be nominated; (b) a repragamthat the shareholder is a holder of recordhafres of the Corporation entitled to vote at
such meeting (stating the class and number theaaalfjntends to appear in person or by proxy atrt@eting to nominate the person or pers
specified in the notice; (c) a description of atbagements or understandings between the shaetanld each nominee and any other person
or persons (naming such person or persons) purtuaiiich the nomination or nominations are to kEdmby the shareholder; and (d) such
other information regarding each nominee proposeslich shareholder as would be required to be dieclun a proxy statement filed pursuant
to the proxy rules of the Securities and Exchangem@ission had the nominee been nominated or intetadbe nominated by the Board of
Directors, and shall include a consent signed lay sach nominee to serve as a director of the Catipo if so elected. The chairman of the
meeting may refuse to acknowledge the nominatioa blgareholder of any person that is not madermptiance with the foregoing procedure.

SECTION 2. Compensation.Each director, in consideration of his servingashs shall be entitled to receive from the Corgorasuch
amount per annum or such fees for attendance atiBoal Committee meetings, or both, in cash orrgthaperty, including securities of the
Corporation, as the Board shall from time to tine¢edimine, together with reimbursements for thearakle expenses incurred by him in
connection with the performance of his duties. Najtcontained herein shall preclude any directomfiserving the Corporation, or any
subsidiary or affiliated corporation, in any otlvapacity and receiving proper compensation theréftiie Board adopts a resolution to that
effect, any director may elect to defer all or aayt of the annual and other fees hereinaboverezfé¢o for such period and on such terms and
conditions as shall be permitted by such resolution

SECTION 3. Place of MeetingsThe Board may hold its meetings at such placeargs within or without the Commonwealth of
Virginia as it may from time to time by resolutidetermine or as shall be specified or fixed inrdspective notices or waivers of notice
thereof.

SECTION 4. Organization Meeting.After each annual election of directors, as soocomyeniently may be, the newly constituted
Board shall meet for the purposes of organizatidrsuch organization meeting, the newly constituBedrd shall elect officers of the
Corporation and transact such other business #icshae before the meeting. Notice of organizatioeetings of the Board need not be given.
Any organization meeting may be held at any otimee tor place which shall be specified in a noticeng
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as hereinafter provided for special meetings oBbard, or in a waiver of notice thereof signecdaliythe directors.

SECTION 5. Regular Meetings.Regular meetings of the Board may be held at suoh and place as may from time to time be spec
in a resolution adopted by the Board then in effact, unless otherwise required by such resolutioby law, notice of any such regular
meeting need not be given.

SECTION 6. Special MeetingsSpecial meetings of the Board shall be held wheneaied by the Chief Executive Officer, or by the
Secretary at the request of any three directorticlof a special meeting shall be mailed to eaddctbr, addressed to him at his residence or
usual place of business, not later than the sedapdefore the day on which such meeting is toddé, lor shall be sent addressed to him at
such place by telegraph, cable or wireless, ordiigeted personally or by telephone, not later ttienday before the day on which such
meeting is to be held. Neither the business todestcted at, nor the purpose of, any regulareciapmeeting of the Board need be specified
in the notice of such meeting, unless requiredhieyArticles.

SECTION 7. Quorum. At each meeting of the Board the presence of aniajf the number of directors fixed by these Bytashall be
necessary to constitute a quorum. The act of anibajf the directors present at a meeting at whiaquorum shall be present shall be the a
the Board, except as may be otherwise providediwor by these Bylaws. Any meeting of the Board eydjourned by a majority vote of
the directors present at such meeting. Notice pfaatjourned meeting need not be given.

SECTION 8. Waivers of Notice of MeetingsAnything in these Bylaws or in any resolution agabby the Board to the contrary
notwithstanding, notice of any meeting of the Boaegd not be given to any director if such notltalise waived in writing signed by such
director before, at or after the meeting, or iflsdarector shall be present at the meeting. Anytmgef the Board shall be a legal meeting
without any notice having been given or regardédgbe giving of any notice or the adoption of aegolution in reference thereto, if every
member of the Board shall be present thereat. Exaeptherwise provided by law or these Bylaws e of notice of any meeting of the
Board need not contain any statement of the purpbde meeting.

SECTION 9. Telephone MeetingsMembers of the Board or any committee may partteifrma meeting of the Board or such commi
by means of a conference telephone or other mdarmmamunications whereby all directors participgtinay simultaneously hear each other
during the meeting, and participation by such mesduadl constitute presence in person at such ngeetin

SECTION 10. Actions Without Meetings.Any action that may be taken at a meeting of tharBar of a committee may be taken
without a meeting if a consent in writing, settfiogth the action, shall be signed, either beforafter such action, by all of the directors or all
of the members of the committee, as the case magumdh consent shall have the same force and effegtunanimous vote.
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ARTICLE Il *
INDEMNIFICATION AND LIMIT ON LIABILITY.

(a) Every person who is or was a director, offizeemployee of the Corporation, or who, at the estjof the Corporation, serves or has
served in any such capacity with another corponati@rtnership, joint venture, trust, employee fiep&n, or other enterprise shall be
indemnified by the Corporation against any andiatility and reasonable expense that may be imcliy him in connection with or resulting
from any claim, action or proceeding (whether bifttug the right of the Corporation or any such otb@poration, entity, plan or otherwise),
civil or criminal, in which he may become involvex a party or otherwise, by reason of his beingaeing been a director, officer or
employee of the Corporation, or such other corpamaentity or plan while serving at the requestiaf Corporation, whether or not he
continues to be such at the time such liabilitgxpense shall have been incurred, unless suchrpergmged in willful misconduct or a
knowing violation of the criminal law.

As used in this Article Ill: (i) the terms “liabili” and “expense” shall include, but shall not eiled to, counsel fees and disbursements
and amounts of judgments, fines or penalties agans amounts paid in settlement by, a directificer or employee; (ii) the terms “director,”
“officer” and “employee,” unless the context othesavrequires, include the estate or personal reptave of any such person; (iii) a person is
considered to be serving an employee benefit @amdirector, officer or employee of the plan & @orporation’s request if his duties to the
Corporation also impose duties on, or otherwiselver services by, him to the plan or, in connectigth the plan, to participants in or
beneficiaries of the plan; (iv) the term “occurrehmeans any act or failure to act, actual or allegédng rise to a claim, action or proceedi
and (v) service as a trustee or as a member ohageaent or similar committee of a partnershipuntjventure shall be considered service as
a director, officer or employee of the trust, parghip or joint venture.

The termination of any claim, action or proceedicigil or criminal, by judgment, settlement, conién or upon a plea ofolo
contendere or its equivalent, shall not create a presumptien a director, officer or employee did not mibet standards of conduct set fort|
this paragraph (a). The burden of proof shall béhenCorporation to establish, by a preponderafitieecevidence, that the relevant standards
of conduct set forth in this paragraph (a) havebsan met.

(b) Any indemnification under paragraph (a) of tAisicle shall be made unless (i) the Board, actigga majority vote of those directors
who were directors at the time of the occurrene@ngirise to the claim, action or proceeding imemhvand who are not at the time parties to
such claim, action or proceeding (provided theesateast five such

1Compiler's Note: This Article Il was adopted byetshareholders at the Annual Meeting of Sharehs|dgoril 28, 1994.
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directors), finds that the director, officer or doyee has not met the relevant standards of corsidbrth in such paragraph (a), or (ii) if there
are not at least five such directors, the Corponddiprincipal Virginia legal counsel, as last dgsited by the Board as such prior to the time of
the occurrence giving rise to the claim, actiopceeding involved, or in the event for any reasech Virginia counsel is unwilling to so
serve, then Virginia legal counsel mutually accblgdo the Corporation and the person seeking imifggation, deliver to the Corporation th
written advice that, in their opinion, such stamtsahave not been met.

(c) Expenses incurred with respect to any clairtipa®r proceeding of the character described nagraph (a) shall, except as otherwise
set forth in this paragraph (c), be advanced byCibiporation prior to the final disposition theregdon receipt of an undertaking by or on
behalf of the recipient to repay such amountig illtimately determined that he is not entitledntdemnification under this Article IIl. No
security shall be required for such undertaking sunth undertaking shall be accepted without refereéo the recipient’s financial ability to
make repayment. Notwithstanding the foregoing,Gbeporation may refrain from, or suspend, paymémixpenses in advance if at any time
before delivery of the final finding described iarpgraph (b), the Board or Virginia legal counaslthe case may be, acting in accordance with
the procedures set forth in paragraph (b), findlpyeponderance of the evidence then availablehbaifficer, director or employee has not
met the relevant standards of conduct set forfhanagraph (a).

(d) No amendment or repeal of this Article 11l dredversely affect or deny to any director, offioeremployee the rights of
indemnification provided in this Article 11l withespect to any liability or expense arising out ofaam, action or proceeding based in whole or
substantial part on an occurrence the inceptiomhi¢h takes place before or while this Article Bk adopted by the shareholders of the
Corporation at the 1986 Annual Meeting of the Coagion, is in effect. The provisions of this pamagh (d) shall apply to any such claim,
action or proceeding whenever commenced, includimgsuch claim, action or proceeding commenced aftg amendment or repeal to this
Article 111

(e) The rights of indemnification provided in tiisticle Ill shall be in addition to any rights tohich any such director, officer or
employee may otherwise be entitled by contractioasoa matter of law.

(f In any proceeding brought by or in the rightloé Corporation or brought by or on behalf of shatders of the Corporation, no
director or officer of the Corporation shall beblia to the Corporation or its shareholders for niaryedamages with respect to any transaction,
occurrence or course of conduct, whether prioubssquent to the effective date of this Articledkcept for liability resulting from such
person’s having engaged in willful misconduct d&mawing violation of the criminal law or any fedéoa state securities law.

(9) An amendment to this Article Il shall be apped only by a majority of the votes entitled todast by each voting group entitled to
vote thereon.
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ARTICLE IV.
COMMITTEES.

SECTION 1. Executive Committee.The Board may, by resolution or resolutions adojted majority of the number of directors fixed
by these Bylaws, appoint two or more directorsdostitute an Executive Committee, each member afiw$hall serve as such during the
pleasure of the Board, and may designate for swchrittee a Chairman, who shall continue as sucingtie pleasure of the Board.

All completed action by the Executive Committeelsha reported to the Board at its meeting nextseding such action or at its
meeting held in the month following the taking ath action, and shall be subject to revision @ration by the Board; provided, that no acts
or rights of third parties shall be affected by angh revision or alteration.

The Executive Committee shall fix its own rulespodcedure and shall meet where and as provideddiyrsiles or by resolution of the
Board. At all meetings of the Executive Committeenajority of the full number of members of suchm@uittee shall constitute a quorum, and
in every case the affirmative vote of a majorityneémbers present at any meeting of the Executiveriiiee at which a quorum is present
shall be necessary for the adoption of any resoiuti

During the intervals between the meetings of tharBpthe Executive Committee shall possess andaxercise all the power and
authority of the Board (including, without limitati, all the power and authority of the Board in t@nagement, control and direction of the
financial affairs of the Corporation) except witspect to those matters reserved to the Board ftgyr¥& law, in such manner as the Executive
Committee shall deem best for the interests oftboration, in all cases in which specific direng shall not have been given by the Board.

SECTION 2. Other Committees.To the extent permitted by law, the Board may ftonme to time by resolution adopted by a majorit
the number of directors fixed by these Bylaws areaich other committees of directors, officers, leya®es or other persons designated by it as
the Board shall deem advisable and with such langtethority, functions and duties as the Boardldhatesolution prescribe. The Board shall
have the power to change the members of any suomitee at any time, to fill vacancies, and to dage any such committee, either with or
without cause, at any time.
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ARTICLE V.
OFFICERS.

SECTION 1. Number, Term, Election.The officers of the Corporation shall be a Chie&&ixtive Officer, a Chairman of the Board, a
President, one or more Vice Presidents, a Tregsa@ontroller and a Secretary. The Board may apoich other officers and such assistant
officers and agents with such powers and dutiekeaBoard may find necessary or convenient to camrthe business of the Corporation. Such
officers and assistant officers shall serve uhtirt successors shall be chosen, or as otherwiséded in these Bylaws. Any two or more
offices may be held by the same person.

SECTION 2. Chief Executive Officer.The Chief Executive Officer shall, subject to tlemwol of the Board and any Executive
Committee, have full authority and responsibility flirecting the conduct of the business, affaid aperations of the Corporation. In addition
to acting as Chief Executive Officer of the Corpimna, he shall perform such other duties and egersiich other powers as may from time to
time be prescribed by the Board and shall seeathatders and resolutions of the Board and anychtiee Committee are carried into effect.
the event of the inability of the Chief Executiv&iCer to act, the Board will designate an offiaéithe Corporation to perform the duties of
office.

SECTION 3. Chairman of the Board. The Chairman of the Board shall preside at all mgstof the Board and of the shareholders and,
in the absence of the Chairman of the Executive @Gittee, at all meetings of the Executive Committée.shall perform such other duties and
exercise such other powers as may from time to beprescribed by the Board or, if he shall notieeChief Executive Officer, by the Chief
Executive Officer.

SECTION 4. President.The President shall have such powers and perfocim duties as may from time to time be prescribethby
Board or, if he shall not be the Chief Executivdicafr, by the Chief Executive Officer.

SECTION 5. Vice PresidentsEach Vice President shall have such powers andmerguch duties as may from time to time be
prescribed by the Board, the Chief Executive Offimeany officer to whom the Chief Executive Officeay have delegated such authority.

SECTION 6. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have the general care anddyustahe funds and securities of the Corporatiéa.shall
perform such other duties and exercise such othweps as may from time to time be prescribed byBbard, the Chief Executive Officer or
any officer to whom the Chief Executive Officer magve delegated such authority. If the Board stmitletermine, he shall give a bond for the
faithful performance of his duties, in such suntresBoard may determine to be proper, the expehsdioh shall be borne by the Corporati
To such extent as the Board
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shall deem proper, the duties of the Treasurer lmegyerformed by one or more assistants, to be amgabby the Board.

SECTION 7. Controller. The Controller shall be the accounting officerlué Corporation. He shall keep full and accurat®acts of all
assets, liabilities, receipts and disbursementso#imel transactions of the Corporation and caugelae audits of the books and records of the
Corporation to be made. He shall also perform satbbr duties and exercise such other powers agnmantime to time be prescribed by the
Board, the Chief Executive Officer or any officenthom the Chief Executive Officer may have deledatuch authority. If the Board shall so
determine, he shall give a bond for the faithfufpenance of his duties, in such sum as the Boaay determine to be proper, the expense of
which shall be borne by the Corporation. To sudemixas the Board shall deem proper, the duti¢iseo€ontroller may be performed by one¢
more assistants, to be appointed by the Board.

SECTION 8. Secretary.The Secretary shall keep the minutes of meetinghafeholders, of the Board, and, when requested, o
Committees of the Board; and he shall attend t@itieag and serving of notices of all meetings #wdr He shall keep or cause to be kept such
stock and other books, showing the names of theesbhilers of the Corporation, and all other paltirairegarding them, as may be require:
law. He shall also perform such other duties aret@se such other powers as may from time to timpriescribed by the Board, the Chief
Executive Officer or any officer to whom the Chietecutive Officer may have delegated such authofitysuch extent as the Board shall
deem proper, the duties of the Secretary may Henpeed by one or more assistants, to be appointetdéBoard.

ARTICLE VL.
REMOVALS, RESIGNATIONS AND VACANCIES.

SECTION 1. Removal of Directors.Any director may be removed at any time but onlthvaause, by the affirmative vote of the holders
of record of a majority of the shares of the Cogpion entitled to vote on the election of directdeken at an annual meeting of the
shareholders.

SECTION 2. Removal of Officers.Any officer, assistant officer or agent of the Gangtion may be removed at any time, either with or
without cause, by the Board in its absolute disgnetAny such removal shall be without prejudicette recovery of damages for breach of the
contract rights, if any, of the officer, assistafftcer or agent removed. Election or appointmdrdmofficer, assistant officer or agent shall not
of itself create contract rights.

SECTION 3. Resignation.Any director, officer or assistant officer of th@i@oration may resign as such at any time by givinigten
notice of his resignation to the Board, the Chieé&utive Officer or the Secretary of the CorponmatiBuch resignation shall take effect at the
time specified therein or, if no time is speciftbérein,
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at the time of delivery thereof, and, unless otheevepecified therein, the acceptance of suchmasimn shall not be necessary to make it
effective.

SECTION 4. VacanciesAny vacancy in the Board caused by death, resignatiisqualification, removal, an increase in thenber of
directors, or any other cause, may be filled (ajHeyholders of shares of the Corporation entittedote on the election of directors, but only at
an annual meeting of shareholders, or (b) by thesdtive vote of a majority of the remaining diters though less than a quorum of the Board
at any regular or special meeting thereof. Eaolctir so elected by the Board shall hold officeltiné next annual election of directors, and
each director so elected by the shareholders blloffice for a term expiring at the annual megtof shareholders at which the term of the
class to which he has been elected expires, am@ddh case, until his successor shall be electedtib his death, or until he shall resign, or
until he shall have been removed in the manneritveve provided. Any vacancy in the office of affjcer or assistant officer caused by
death, resignation, removal or any other cause,edilled by the Board for the unexpired portidrttee term.

ARTICLE VII.
CONTRACTS, LOANS, CHECKS, DRAFTS, DEPOSITS, ETC.

SECTION 1. Execution of Contracts.Except as otherwise provided by law or by thesea®gl the Board (i) may authorize any officer,
employee or agent of the Corporation to executedatigler any contract, agreement or other instrurrewriting in the name and on behalf of
the Corporation, and (ii) may authorize any offi@nployee or agent of the Corporation so authdrigethe Board to delegate such authority
by written instrument to other officers, employeesggents of the Corporation. Any such authorizatip the Board may be general or specific
and shall be subject to such limitations and retibns as may be imposed by the Board. Any suobgddion of authority by an officer,
employee or agent may be general or specific, m#yoaize re-delegation, and shall be subject td dimtitations and restrictions as may be
imposed in the written instrument of delegatiortiiy person making such delegation.

SECTION 2. Loans.No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the Catan and no negotiable paper shall be issuet iname unless
authorized by the Board. When authorized by ther@aany officer, employee or agent of the Corporatnay effect loans and advances at any
time for the Corporation from any bank, trust compar other institution, or from any firm, corparat or individual, and for such loans and
advances may make, execute and deliver promissdegnbonds or other certificates or evidencesddhtedness of the Corporation and when
so authorized may pledge, hypothecate or transfeseacurities or other property of the Corporaigrsecurity for any such loans or advances.
Such authority may be general or confined to speristances.

SECTION 3. Checks, Drafts, etcAll checks, drafts and other orders for the paynuémhoney out of the funds of the Corporation ath
notes or other evidences of
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indebtedness of the Corporation shall be signelletralf of the Corporation in such manner as shathftime to time be determined by the
Board.

SECTION 4. Deposits All funds of the Corporation not otherwise employdll be deposited from time to time to the credlihe
Corporation in such banks, trust companies or adbpositories as the Board may select or as magleeted by the Treasurer or any other
officer, employee or agent of the Corporation taowhsuch power may from time to time be delegatethbyBoard.

SECTION 5. Voting of Securities.Unless otherwise provided by the Board, the Chiefdative Officer may from time to time appoint
an attorney or attorneys, or agent or agents o€tmporation, in the name and on behalf of the Ga@fon, to cast the votes which the
Corporation may be entitled to cast as the holflstaxk or other securities in any other corporgtany of whose stock or other securities may
be held by the Corporation, at meetings of the érslaf the stock or other securities of such otlegporation, or to consent in writing, in the
name of the Corporation as such holder, to anpmadty such other corporation, and may instructgison or persons so appointed as to the
manner of casting such votes or giving such consert may execute or cause to be executed in the aad on behalf of the Corporation and
under its corporate seal, or otherwise, all sudttew proxies or other instruments as such offinay deem necessary or proper in the pren

ARTICLE VIII.
CAPITAL STOCK.

SECTION 1. Certificates. Every shareholder shall be entitled to a certificar certificates, in such form as shall be appdaby the
Board, signed by the Chairman of the Board, theiBeat or a Vice President and the Secretary dxsaistant Secretary or the Treasurer or an
Assistant Treasurer or any other officer authorizgdhese Bylaws or a resolution of the Board,ify@ng the number of shares owned by him
in the Corporation. Any such certificate may, beed not, bear the seal of the Corporation or arfalesthereof. If any such certificate is
countersigned by a transfer agent or registereal tagistrar other than the Corporation or an ermg@ayf the Corporation, the signatures of any
of the officers above specified upon such certiaaay be facsimiles. In case any such officer sl have signed or whose facsimile
signature shall have been placed upon such cet#fighall have ceased to be such before suchicarifs issued, it may be issued by the
Corporation with the same effect as if such officad not ceased to be such at the date of its.issue

SECTION 2. Transfers. Shares of stock of the Corporation shall be traable on the stock books of the Corporation byhtbieler in
person or by his attorney thereunto authorizeddwep of attorney duly executed and filed with tleei®tary or the transfer agent, but, except
as hereinafter provided in the case of loss, detstruor mutilation of certificates, no transferatbck shall be entered until the previous
certificate, if any, given
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for the same shall have been surrendered and eahd&elcept as otherwise provided by law, no trarsffehares shall be valid as against the
Corporation, its shareholders or creditors, for pagpose, until it shall have been entered in theksrecords of the Corporation by an entry
showing from and to whom transferred. The Board alag make such additional rules and regulatiorisraay deem expedient concerning
issue and transfer of certificates representingeshaf the capital stock of the Corporation.

SECTION 3. Record Date.For the purpose of determining shareholders edtittenotice of or to vote at any meeting of shaleés or
any adjournment thereof, or entitled to receivenpant of any dividend, or in order to make a detaation of shareholders for any other prc
purpose, the Board may fix in advance a date aeetterd date for any such determination of shadsrs| such date in any case to be not more
than seventy days prior to the date on which thiéquéar action, requiring such determination oaholders, is to be taken. When a
determination of shareholders entitled to votengtraeeting of shareholders has been made as ptbiidkis section, such determination shall
apply to any adjournment thereof unless the Boaesfa new record date, which it shall do if theetimg is adjourned to a date more than 120
days after the date fixed for the original meeting.

SECTION 4. Lost, Destroyed or Mutilated Certificates. In case of loss, destruction or mutilation of aeytificate of stock, another m
be issued in its place upon proof of such lossrdetson or mutilation and upon the giving of a baof indemnity to the Corporation in such
form and in such sum as the Board may direct; pexlithat a new certificate may be issued withogtiireng any bond when, in the judgment
of the Board, it is proper so to do.

SECTION 5. Control Share Acquisitions.Article 14.1 of Chapter 9 of Title 13.1 of the CoafeVirginia shall not apply to acquisitions
of shares of the Corporation.

ARTICLE IX.
INSPECTION OF RECORDS.

The Board from time to time shall determine whetb@mwhat extent, at what times and places, an@uwtiat conditions and regulations
the accounts and books and papers of the Corporatiany of them, shall be open for the inspectibthe shareholders, and no shareholder
shall have any right to inspect any account or baropaper of the Corporation except as expressijecced by statute or by these Bylaws or
authorized by the Board.
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ARTICLE X.
AUDITOR.

The Board shall annually appoint an independerat@ant who shall carefully examine the books ef@orporation. One such
examination shall be made immediately after theelf the fiscal year and be ready for presentatidhe annual meeting of shareholders of
the Corporation, and such other examinations sigathade as the Board may direct.

ARTICLE XI.
SEAL.

The seal of the Corporation shall be circular imfand shall bear the name of the Corporation hegéar “1892.”

ARTICLE XII.
FISCAL YEAR.

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall end on3hst day of December in each year.

ARTICLE XIIl.
AMENDMENTS.

The Bylaws of the Corporation may be altered, aredrat repealed and new Bylaws may be adopted bBdhed (except as Section 1 of
Article 1l may otherwise require), or by the holdef the outstanding shares of the Corporatioriledtio vote generally at any annual or
special meeting of the shareholders when noticeetfieshall have been given in the notice of thetingeof shareholders.

EMERGENCY BYLAWS.
SECTION 1. Definitions. As used in these Emergency Bylaws,
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(a) the term “period of emergency” shall mean aesiqul during which a quorum of the Board cannotlilgebe assembled because of
some catastrophic event.

(b) the term “incapacitated” shall mean that thdividual to whom such term is applied shall noté&een determined to be dead but
shall be missing or unable to discharge the resbititiss of his office; and

(c) the term “senior officer” shall mean the Chaamof the Board, the President, any corporate Wresident, the Treasurer, the
Controller and the Secretary, and any other pendgunmay have been so designated by the Board biéferemergency.

SECTION 2. Applicability. These Emergency Bylaws, as from time to time amensteall be operative only during any period of
emergency. To the extent not inconsistent witheéhemergency Bylaws, all provisions of the regulgtald/s of the Corporation shall remain in
effect during any period of emergency.

No officer, director or employee shall be liable &ztions taken in good faith in accordance wigsthEmergency Bylaws.

SECTION 3. Board of Directors. (a) A meeting of the Board may be called by angator or senior officer of the Corporation. Notf
any meeting of the Board need be given only to iiche directors as it may be feasible to readhatime and by such means as may be
feasible at the time, including publication or @dand at a time less than twenty-four hours bettoeaneeting if deemed necessary by the
person giving notice.

(b) At any meeting of the Board, three directorati@ndance shall constitute a quorum. Any actrobgrity of the directors present at a
meeting at which a quorum shall be present shathéect of the Board. If less than three direcstisuld be present at a meeting of the Board,
any senior officer of the Corporation in attendaatsuch meeting shall serve as a director for sueéting, selected in order of rank and wi
the same rank in order of seniority.

(c) In addition to the Board’s powers under theutagBylaws of the Corporation to fill vacanciestte Board, the Board may elect any
individual as a director to replace any directoowhay be incapacitated and to serve until therlatases to be incapacitated or until the
termination of the period of emergency, whichewest bccurs. In considering officers of the Corgimma for election to the Board, the rank and
seniority of individual officers shall not be pewrint.

(d) The Board, during as well as before any suclrgency, may change the principal office or dedigisaveral alternative offices or
authorize the officers to do so.

SECTION 4. Appointment of Officers. In addition to the Board’' powers under the regular Bylaws of the Corpomnatiih respect to th
election of officers, the Board may
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elect any individual as an officer to replace afficer who may be incapacitated and to serve uhéllatter ceases to be incapacitated.

SECTION 5. Amendments.These Emergency Bylaws shall be subject to repecthange by further action of the Board of Direstor
by action of the shareholders, except that no segbal or change shall modify the provisions ofgaeond paragraph of Section 2 with regard
to action or inaction prior to the time of sucheapor change. Any such amendment of these Emeydgylaws may make any further or
different provision that may be practical and neeeg for the circumstances of the emergency.
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Exhibit 10(a

1988 STOCK OPTION PLAN FOR KEY EMPLOYEES OF OLIN CO RPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES (As Amended Through
January 30, 2003)

1. Purpose of the PlanThe general purpose of the 1988 Stock Option Riaiéy Employees of Olin Corporation and Subsi@iaiithe
“Plan”) is to aid in attracting, maintaining andvééoping a management capable of assuring thedfguccess of Olin Corporation (“Olin”) by
providing to key employees of Olin and its subgidis additional incentive to enlarge their pro@igtinterest in Olin, to continue and increase
their efforts on Olin’s behalf and to remain in #maploy of Olin or its subsidiaries.

2. Shares Subject to the PlanOptions may be granted from time to time underRlas in respect of an aggregate of not exceeding
1,100,000 shares of Common Stock of Olin (subjeth¢ provisions in paragraph 15 hereof). If anyiaspgranted under the Plan shall expire
or terminate for any reason other than its surrepdesuant to paragraph 7 (including, without leibn, by reason of its surrender or
cancellation, in whole or in part, or the substitattherefor of a new option) without having beerreised in full, the unpurchased shares
subject thereto shall (unless the Plan shall haen berminated) again be available for other opttorbe granted under the Plan.

3. Administration of the Plan. The Plan shall be administered by a Committee onkSDptions (the “Committee”) appointed by the
Board of Directors of Olin and consisting of naddhan three of those members of the Board ofclire who are not eligible to participate in
the Plan or who shall have advised the Board aé@ars in writing that they irrevocably waive atights under the Plan.

The Committee shall have plenary authority in isscktion, but subject to the express provisionthefPlan, to determine the purchase
price of the Common Stock covered by each optioa eimployees to whom, and the time or times atlwliptions shall be granted and the
number of shares to be covered by each optiomtéogret the Plan; to prescribe, amend and resaied and regulations relating to it; to
determine the terms and provisions (and amendntieaitsof) of the respective option agreements (whexdd not be identical), including, if t
Committee shall determine that a particular opttoto conform to the requirements of any provisiéthe Internal Revenue Code as amended
from time to time, such terms and provisions (amgtadments) as shall be requisite in the judgmetit@Committee to provide therefor or to
conform to any change in any law or regulation egaplle thereto; and to make all other determinatid@emed necessary or advisable for the
administration of the Plan. The Committee’s deteation on the foregoing matters shall be conclusive
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The Committee shall select one of its memberssashidirman and shall hold its meetings at suchgiamel places as it shall deem
advisable. A majority of its members shall conséita quorum. All determinations of the Committealsbe made by not less than a majorit;
its members. A decision or determination reducedrtting and signed by a majority of the memberalishe fully as effective as if it had been
made by a majority vote at a meeting duly called lagld. The Committee may appoint a secretary| kkap minutes of its meetings and shall
make such rules and regulations for the conduits dfusiness as it shall deem advisable. The Cowenihay designate the Secretary of Olil
other employees of Olin to assist the Committethéadministration of the Plan and may grant aitihtw such persons to execute option
agreements or other documents on behalf of the Gtteam

4. Eligibility; Factors to be Considered in Granting Options. Options may be granted only to regular employesdyding officers) of
Olin and of its present and future subsidiary ceegions (“subsidiaries”)A Director of Olin or of a subsidiary who is nosalsuch an employ
will not be eligible to receive an option. In detening the employees to whom options shall be g@uaind the number of shares to be covered
by each option, the Committee may take into accthenhature of the services rendered by the reispesmployees, their present and potential
contributions to the success of Olin, and suchrdénetors as the Committee in its discretion stle#m relevant. An employee who has been
granted an option under the Plan or under any ptamk option plan of Olin may be granted an adddl option or options if the Committee
shall so determine. Nothing contained in the Plaallde construed to limit the right of Olin to gtaor assume options otherwise than unde
Plan in connection with the acquisition by purchdsase, merger, consolidation or otherwise oftiiginess and assets of any corporation, firm
or association, including options granted to emeésythereof who become employees of Olin or a diatvgj or for other proper corporate
purposes.

5. Option Prices. The purchase price of the Common Stock coveredablp eption shall be determined by the Committeeshatl not be
less than 100% of the fair market value of the Cami@tock at the time of granting the option. Swaihrharket value shall be determined by
the Committee and shall be taken at no less trmmtan of the high and low sales prices of the Com8tock as reported on the consolidated
transaction reporting system for New York Stock frge issues on such date or, if the Common Stasknet traded on such date, on the
preceding day on which the Common Stock was traded.

6. Exercise of Options.The Committee shall have authority in its discnetio prescribe in any option agreement that theoptill be
exercisable in full at any time or from time to &rduring the term of the option, or to provide ttee exercise thereof in such installments at
such times during said term as the Committee mggriakne. An option may be exercised, at any tim&an time to time during the term
of the option, as to any or all full shares whielvé become purchasable under the provisions aftien but not less than 25 shares at any
one time. The option price shall be paid in fulcash or its equivalent at the time the optiorxereised; provided, however, that the
Committee may elect to permit such option pricbeégaid in shares of Common Stock of Olin, or a lmoation of
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cash and shares of Common Stock of Olin, the fairket value of such Common Stock to be determineddch purpose in such manner as
shall be selected by the Committee, but not at rtt@e the mean of the high and low sales priceseCommon Stock as reported on the
consolidated transaction reporting system for NewkYStock Exchange issues on the date on whicbptienee’s written notice of exercise is
received by Olin, or if the Common Stock was natled on such day, on the first preceding day orlwtiie Common Stock was traded. The
term of each option shall be not more than tensg/&am the date of granting thereof, or such shquégiod as is prescribed in paragraphs 1
and 14 hereof. Except as provided in said paragrafh13 and 14 hereof, no option may be exer@sedy time unless the holder thereof is
then a regular employee of Olin or one of its sdiasies. The holder of an option shall not have aithe rights of a stockholder with respec
the shares covered by his or her option until sldres shall be issued to him or her upon the xereise of the option.

In lieu of requiring an optionee to pay in cashhstexreral, state or local income taxes as may pécale to exercise of an option
(“withholding taxes”), the Committee may elect rmit withholding taxes to be paid by the optioireshares of Common Stock of Olin or in
a combination of cash and shares of Common Sto€Niof the fair market value of such Common Stazké determined for such purpose as
provided in the next preceding paragraph with resfmethe use of Common Stock of Olin in paymenthef option price.

Shares delivered in payment of an option priceoomfithholding taxes may be shares withheld by @fpon exercise of an option or
shares already owned by the optionee.

7. Stock Appreciation Rights. The Committee shall have the authority in its diion to grant a stock appreciation right (“SARS)an
optionee which shall relate to and have the samestand conditions as a specific option grantetiécoptionee under the Plan (the “related
option”) together with such additional terms and conditidihnany, as the Committee in its discretion maysgrébe. An SAR may be grant
at the same time as the related option granteelkogpt as otherwise provided herein, at any timreetifter prior to the last day on which the
related option may be exercised. Each SAR shaiMidenced by written agreement in such form ath@mittee shall approve. An SAR
shall entitle the optionee, upon surrender of ara@gable related option or an exercisable pottieneof, to receive a payment, at the
election of the Committee in cash, shares of Com8tock of Olin (and such other shares as may hieaiable as a result of an adjustment
pursuant to paragraph 15 (“adjustment shares"3) @mbination of cash and shares of Common Sto€Ninf(and adjustment shares)
equivalent to the appreciated value of the shén&tstihe optionee would have been entitled to puselpairsuant to the related option or
portion thereof surrendered. Such appreciated \stia# be the difference between the option priceuch shares (as adjusted pursuant to
paragraph 15) and the fair market value of suchesh@s defined in paragraph 5) on the date onhathie optionee’s notice of exercise is
received by Olin. If all or a portion of such paymhé made in shares of Common Stock of Olin (qustthent shares), the shares shall be
valued for purposes of such payment at their farket value, as defined in paragraph 5, on theaaighich the optionee’s written notice
of



exercise is received by Olin. No fractional shatesll be issued as a result of exercising an SAR.

An SAR shall be exercisable only during the pemdten the related option is also exercisable. levent shall an SAR or the related
option held by an optionee who is subject to thathtions of Section 16(b) of the Securities Exai@Act be exercisable during the first six
months following its date of grant, provided thaistrestriction shall not apply in the event of theath or disability of the optionee prior to the
expiration of such six-month period. If an SAR xeeised, the related option shall cease to beceeadie to the extent of the number of shares
with respect to which the SAR was exercised. Upenetxercise or termination of a related option, 3R granted with respect thereto shall
terminate to the extent of the number of sharde agich the related option was exercised or teated.

In lieu of requiring an optionee to pay cash arciee certificates for shares of Common Stock afi @ind adjustment shares) upon the
exercise of an option, if the option agreementrewiges, initially or by amendment, the Committeaynelect to require the optionee to
surrender the option to Olin for cancellation asltar any portion of the number of shares covdrgthe intended exercise and receive in
exchange for such surrender a payment, at thaaiezt the Committee, in cash, in shares of Comi@tmck of Olin (and adjustment shares
a combination of cash and shares of Common Sto€Ninf(and adjustment shares) equivalent to theexppated value of the shares covered by
the option surrendered for cancellation. Such apated value shall be the difference between thi®oprice of such shares (as adjusted
pursuant to paragraph 15) and the fair market velseich shares, as defined in paragraph 5, odateson which the optionee’s notice of
exercise is received by Olin. If all or any partsotth payment shall be in shares of Common Sto&iof(or adjustment shares), the shares
shall be valued for purposes of such payment at e market value, as defined in paragraph 5Strendate on which the optionee’s notice of
exercise is received by Olin. Upon delivery to Gifra notice of exercise of option, the Committemyravail itself of its right to require the
optionee to surrender the option to Olin for calatieln as to shares covered by such intended eseerthe Committee’s right of election shall
expire, if not exercised, at the close of busirmsthe fifth business day following the delivery@tin of such notice. Should the Committee
exercise such right of election, the delivery @& #iforesaid notice of exercise shall constitutexarcise by the optionee of the option to the
extent therein set forth, and payment for the sheogered by such exercise shall become due imteddia

8. Change in Control.In the event of a Change in Control of Olin, asrked below, each option then outstanding shall beconmediately
and fully exercisable, notwithstanding any prouisiberein for the exercise of such option in instehts and unless an SAR shall already
have been granted with respect to such optiompplienee shall be deemed to hold an SAR relatstdi¢h option, exercisable in accordance
with and subject to all of the terms and conditiohghe first two paragraphs of paragraph 7, fertbmber of shares exercisable under such
option after giving effect to such accelerationclsSAR may, but need not be, evidenced by separéten agreement. For the purposes of
this



paragraph 8, a Change in Control shall mean theroece of any one of the following events:

(i) individuals who, on November 1, 2002, consét@lin’s Board of Directors (the “Incumbent Direxg®) cease for any reason to constitute at
least a majority of Olin’s Board of Directors; pidgdthat any person becoming a director subsequenbt@iber 1, 2002, whose election or
nomination for election was
approved (either by a specific vote or by appr@fdhe proxy statement of Olin in which such persnamed as a nominee for
director, without written objection to such nomioa) by a vote of at least two-thirds of the dimstwho were, as of the date of such
approval, Incumbent Directors, shall be an Incunii@rector; provided however, that no individual initially appointed, elected o
nominated as a director of Olin as a result of@nal or threatened election contest with respedirectors or as a result of any other
actual or threatened solicitation of proxies orsamts by or on behalf of any person other than'©Board of Directors shall be deemed
to be an Incumbent Director;

(ii) any “persol” (as such term is defined in Section 3(a)(9) of teeusities Exchange Act of 1934 (t“Act”) and as used i
Sections 13(d)(3) and 14(d)(2) of the Act) is ocdirmes a “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rule B3dder the Act), directly or
indirectly, of securities of Olin representing 2@omore of the combined voting power of Olin’s thmnstanding securities eligible to
vote for the election of Olin’s Board of Directdtie “Olin Voting Securities”); providedhowever, that the event described in this
paragraph (ii) shall not be deemed to be a Cham@wntrol if such event results from any of thddaling: (A) the acquisition of Olin
Voting Securities by Olin or any of its subsidia;iéB) the acquisition of Olin Voting Securities &gy employee benefit plan (or related
trust) sponsored or maintained by Olin or any skitbsidiaries, (C) the acquisition of Olin Votigcurities by any underwriter
temporarily holding securities pursuant to an affgrof such securities, or (D) the acquisition ¢inQ/oting Securities pursuant to a Non-
Qualifying Transaction (as defined in paragraph){ii

(iii) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, stagighare exchange or similar form of corporatadeation involving Olin or any of it
subsidiaries (a “Reorganizationdy sale or other disposition of all or substanyialll of the assets of Olin to an entity that i¢ ao affiliate
of Olin (a “Sale”), unless immediately following&uReorganization or Sale: (A) more than 50% oftttial voting power (in respect of
the election of directors, or similar officialstime case of an entity other than a corporatior{xjpfhe entity resulting from such
Reorganization, or the entity which has acquirédrsubstantially all of the assets of Olin (ither case, the “Surviving Entity"dr (y) if
applicable, the ultimate parent entity that dingctt indirectly has beneficial ownership of morarlb0% of the total voting power (in
respect of the election of directors, or simildials in the case of an entity other than a caafion) of the Surviving Entity (the “Parent
Entity”), is represented by Olin Voting Securities that waststanding immediately prior to such Reorganizatio
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Sale (or, if applicable, is represented by shareswhich such Olin Voting Securities were conveénpeirsuant to such Reorganization or
Sale), and such voting power among the holdergdfés in substantially the same proportion asvitting power of such Olin Voting
Securities among the holders thereof immediatalyr po the Reorganization or Sale, (B) no persdghdgpbthan any employee benefit plan
(or related trust) sponsored or maintained by tlwi8ing Entity or the Parent Entity), is or becarthe beneficial owner, directly or
indirectly, of 20% or more of the total voting paw(@ respect of the election of directors, or $amnbfficials in the case of an entity other
than a corporation) of the outstanding voting siiesrof the Parent Entity (or, if there is no RdrEntity, the Surviving Entity) and (C) at
least a majority of the members of the board cgatrs (or similar officials in the case of an gntither than a corporation) of the Parent
Entity (or, if there is no Parent Entity, the Swiag Entity) following the consummation of the Rganization or Sale were, at the time of
the approval by Olin’s Board of Directors of theeention of the initial agreement providing for suRborganization or Sale, Incumbent
Directors (any Reorganization or Sale which sasséll of the criteria specified in (A), (B) and)(@ove being deemed to be a “Non-
Qualifying Transaction”);

(iv) the stockholders of Olin approve a plan of gbate liquidation or dissolution of Olin.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the acquisition Ioy @erson of beneficial ownership of 20% or mor¢hef combined voting power of

Olin Voting Securities solely as a result of theuisition of Olin Voting Securities by Olin whiclkeduces the number of Olin Voting
Securities outstanding shall be deemed not totresal Change in Control; providedowever, that if such person subsequently becomes
the beneficial owner of additional Olin Voting Seities that increases the percentage of outstandlimgVoting Securities beneficially
owned by such person, a Change in Control of Qlalldshen be deemed to occur.

9. Employee’s Agreement to Serve Each employee receiving an option shall, as drieeoterms of the option agreement, agree that he

or she will, during employment, devote his or hetire time, energy and skill to the service of Giina subsidiary and the promotion of its
interests, subject to vacations, sick leave andrathsences in accordance with the regular polafies other reasons satisfactory to, Olin and
its subsidiaries. Such employment shall (subjethéaterms of any contract between Olin or any sutdsidiary and such employee) be at the
pleasure of Olin or such subsidiary, and shallteiah compensation as Olin or such subsidiaryt de¢rmine from time to time. Upon
termination of such employee’s employment eithgfdacause or (b) voluntarily on the part of tmepoyee and without the written consent of
Olin, any option or options held by him or her unthe Plan, to the extent not theretofore exergiskdll forthwith terminate. Retirement
pursuant to any retirement plan of Olin or of asidiary shall be deemed to be a termination of egrpkent with Olin’s consent.
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10. Non-transferability of Options . No option granted prior to February 23, 1995 urte Plan shall be transferable otherwise than by
will or the laws of descent and distribution, amdogtion may be exercised, during the lifetimehaf holder thereof, only by him or her. For
options granted on or after February 23, 1995ptieeeding sentence shall not apply and the follgwgientences shall apply: No option granted
under the Plan on or after February 23, 1995 $feattansferable otherwise than by will or the lafvdescent and distribution, except an option
may be transferred by gift to any member of theomegte’s immediate family or to a trust for the biénaf one or more of such immediate
family members if prior to its granting the Comnaétshall have adopted a resolution indicatingghah option is transferable. During the
lifetime of an optionee, an option shall be exexsis only by the optionee unless it has been tearest as permitted hereby, in which case it
shall be exercisable only by such transferee. f@purpose of this Paragraph 10 an optionee’s “idiate family” shall mean the optionee’s
spouse, children and grandchildren.

11.Termination of Employment . In the event the employment of an employee torwha option has been granted under the Plan shall
be terminated (otherwise than by reason of deatith option may, subject to the provisions of tetiio last sentence of paragraph 9 and to
the provisions of paragraph 12, be exercised @attient of the number of shares that the emplasgeeentitled to purchase under such option
at the termination of employment) at any time wittliree months after such termination (which thremth period may be extended by the
Committee), but in no event shall such three-mgetfiod or any such extension permit the exercissnadption after the expiration date of the
option specified in the option agreement there@iptions granted under the Plan shall not be affielsyeany change of duties or position so
long as the optionee continues to be an employ€&dinfor of a subsidiary. Nothing in the Plan orimy option granted pursuant thereto shall
confer on any employee any right to continue inghmploy of Olin or any of its subsidiaries or affecany way the right of Olin or any of its
subsidiaries to terminate his or her employmeiatngttime.

12.Conditions to Enjoyment of Options. The following conditions shall apply to the gramid exercise of options:

(i) The optionee shall not render services to aig@oization or engage, directly or indirectly, myabusiness which, in tt
judgment of the Committee or, if delegated to thee€Executive Officer, in the judgment of such i©éfr, is or becomes
competitive with Olin or any subsidiary, or whichar becomes otherwise prejudicial to or in confli¢th the interests of Olin or
any subsidiary. Such judgment shall be based onglienee’s positions and responsibilities whilepdwged by Olin or any
subsidiary, the optionee’s post-employment reslitss and position with the other organizatiarbaisiness, the extent of past,
current and potential competition or conflict beémeDlin or a subsidiary and the other organizatiohusiness, the effect on
customers, suppliers and competitors of the opéien@ssuming the post-employment position, theeajinds established in the then
current edition of Olin’s Code of Business Condactg such other considerations as are deemed nélgiven the applicable facts
and circumstances.



The optionee shall be free, however, to purchassmasvestment or otherwise, stock or other seesrif such organization or
business so long as they are listed upon a recedjsizcurities exchange or traded over the coustersuch investment does not
represent a substantial investment to the optioneegreater than 10% equity interest in the ogtion or business.

(i) The optionee shall not, without prior writtewithorization from Olin, disclose to anyone outs@lim, or use in other than
Olin’s business, any secret or confidential informatimwledge or data, relating to the business afi @tia subsidiary in violatic
of his or her agreement with Olin or the subsidiary

(iii) The optionee, pursuant to his or her agreetméth Olin or a subsidiary, shall disclose promgmhd assign to Olin or the
subsidiary all right, title, and interest in anyémtion or idea, patentable or not, made or comckby the optionee during
employment by Olin or the subsidiary, relating iryananner to the actual or anticipated businesgareh or development work of
Olin or the subsidiary and shall do anything reabdynecessary to enable Olin or the subsidiageture a patent where
appropriate in the United States and in foreigmtioes.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plare @ommittee in its sole discretion, which may blegated to the Chief Executive
Officer of Olin, may cancel any option at any tipréor to the exercise thereof, if the employmenthaf optionee shall be terminated, other 1
by reason of death, unless the conditions in thisgraph 12 are met.

Failure to comply with the conditions of this patagh 12 prior to, or during the six months aftery axercise shall constitute a rescission
of the exercise. The difference between the faiketavalue (as defined in paragraph 5) on datexefase of the shares exercised and the
option price shall be returned to Olin by the opée, in cash, within 10 days after notice of thezission has been given to the optionee by
Olin’s Chief Executive Officer, chief legal officer chief personnel officer. Such notice may beegiat any time within two years of the date
of exercise.

Upon exercise of an option, the optionee shalifyerh a form acceptable to the Committee that hehe is in compliance with the terms
and conditions of the Plan.

13. Death of an Employee If an employee to whom an option has been gramteiér the Plan shall die while employed by Oliraor
subsidiary or after the termination of such emplepinsuch option may, subject to the provisionthefnext to the last sentence of paragraph 9
and to the provisions of paragraph 12, be exerdiyettie legatee or legatees of the employee uridarther last will, or by his or her personal
representatives or distributees, as follows: iterployee dies while so employed, at any time withie year after the employee’s death (which
one-year period may be extended by the Committe¢he extent of the remaining shares covered bl sption, whether or not such shares
had become purchasable by the employee at theoflhig or her death; and if an employee dies afemination of employment and within the
period an option remains exercisable, at any tintleinvthe longer of (i) the period that he or sloelld have exercised the option had he
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or she not died or (ii) one year after the datdezfth (which one-year period may be extended b tmamittee), in either case, to the extent of
the number of shares purchasable by such emplayseant to the provisions of paragraph 11 at the dfhis or her death. Notwithstanding
the provisions of this paragraph 13, no optionldb@kexercisable after the expiration date spetifiethe option agreement therefor.

14.Disability of an Employee. If an employee to whom an option has been gramtei@r the Plan shall become totally and permayentl
disabled, as that term is now defined in SectioB(d)f§4) of the Internal Revenue Code, as such &@eatiay be amended from time to time, and
the employee’s employment with Olin or a subsidiarierminated as a result, such option may beceseat by such employee within one year
after the date of termination of employment, preddhat no option shall be exercisable after ttgration date specified in the option
agreement therefor nor for more shares than thathadould have been purchased thereunder on tleeofiéérmination of employment.

15. Adjustments upon Changes in Capitalization In the event of any change in the outstanding @omStock of Olin by reason of
stock dividends, stock splits, recapitalizationrgees, consolidations, combinations or exchangeshafes, split-ups, split-offs, spin-offs,
liquidations or other similar changes in capitaii@a, or any distributions to common shareholdereothan cash dividends, the numbers, class
and prices of shares covered by outstanding opticensted under the Plan and the aggregate numbesiass of shares available under the
Plan, shall be appropriately adjusted by the Cotemitwhose determination shall be conclusive. Withimiting the foregoing, in the event of
any split-up, split-off, spin-off or other distriban to shareholders of shares representing agp@tin’s business, properties and assets, the
Committee may, with the consent of an optionee,ifpah outstanding option or options so that suptiom or options shall thereafter relate to
shares of Common Stock of Olin and shares of dagiitek of the corporation owning the businesspprties and assets so split-up, split-off,
spun-off or otherwise distributed to shareholdé®ln in the same ratio in which holders of then@oon Stock of Olin became entitled to
receive shares of capital stock of the corporatning the business, properties and assets seugplitplit-off, spun-off or otherwise
distributed.

16. Effectiveness of the Plan The Plan became effective on April 28, 1988.

17.Time of Granting of Options . The granting of an option pursuant to the Plailshke place on the date established by the
Committee. However, no option may be exerciseddféamployee to whom the option is granted shdltdeexecute and deliver a copy of the
option agreement to the Committee or Olin withindé§s after delivery of the option agreement tdhseroployee.

18. Consent of Employee Every employee who accepts an option under tae ghall be bound by the terms and restrictiorth@Plan
and his or her acceptance of an option shall domstan agreement between him or her and Olintarglibsidiaries and any successors in
interest to any of them.



19. Termination and Amendment. Unless the Plan theretofore has been terminatée@inafter provided, it shall terminate on, and
option shall be granted thereunder after, April B898. The Board of Directors of Olin may at amgdiprior to that date terminate the Plan, or
make such modification thereof as it shall deenisathle; provided, however, that the Board of Divestmay not, without further approval by
shareholders of Olin, (a) increase the maximum rermobshares for which options may be granted uttgePlan, (b) change the manner of
determining the minimum option prices, other thaigchange the manner of determining the fair markkte of the Common Stock as stated in
paragraph 5 above to conform to any then applicatdeisions of the Internal Revenue Code or reguiatthereunder, or (c) increase the
period during which options may be granted. No teation, modification or amendment of the Plan maighout the consent of the employee
to whom any option shall theretofore have beentgiradversely affect the rights of such employegen such option.

20.Incentive Stock Option Limitation . The aggregate fair market value (determinedetithe an option is granted) of Common Stock
of Olin with respect to which incentive stock optso(as defined in Section 422A of the Internal RexeCode) are exercisable for the first time
by an individual during any calendar year (underRtan and any other stock option plan of the iiddial’'s employer corporation and its par
and subsidiary corporations) shall not exceed $10ID,
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Exhibit 10(b

OLIN CORPORATION
EMPLOYEE DEFERRAL PLAN

As Amended and Restated Effective January 30, 2003
1. PURPOSE

The purpose of this Olin Corporation Employee DefielPlan (the “Plan”) is to provide eligible empé®s of Olin Corporation and its
subsidiaries and affiliates with an opportunitydfer compensation earned or to be earned by teearmeeans of saving for retirement or other
future purposes. The Plan is amended and restatedléct the distribution to Olin’s shareholdefsat of the outstanding shares of common
stock of Arch Chemicals, Inc., effective as of tfate of such distribution.

2. DEFINITIONS
The following definitions shall be applicable thghout the Plan:
() “Accounting Date” means each December 31, M&dchJune 30 and September 30.
(b) “Administrator” means the Senior Vice Presideiwrporate Affairs or his delegate.
(c) “Arch” means Arch Chemicals, Inc., a Virginiarporation and any successor thereto.
(d) “Arch Common Stock” means shares of commonkstdrch, par value $1.00 per share.
(e) “Arch Employee” means an employee of Arch.
(f) “Arch Employee Deferral Plan” means the ArcheBficals, Inc. Employee Deferral Plan.
(g) “Arch Stock Account” means the Stock Accountiioich Arch Stock Units are credited.

(h) “Arch Stock Unit(s)” means the share equivatestedited to the Arch Stock Account of a PartinifmCompensation Account
pursuant to Section 6, with one Arch Stock Unit@da one share of Arch Common Stock.



(i) “Beneficiary” means the person(s) designatedhgyParticipant in accordance with Section 10.
(j) “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Guany.

(k) “Cash Account” means an account establisheewutige Plan for a Participant to which compensatias been or is to be credited in
the form of cash and which is to earn intereshatRate of Interest as provided herein.

() “Change in Contr” means the occurrence of any one of the followirgne:

() individuals who, on November 1, 2002, consétthe Board (the “Incumbent Directorg€®ase for any reason to constitute at
a majority of the Board; providgtiat any person becoming a director subsequenotember 1, 2002, whose election or nomination for
election was approved (either by a specific votbyoapproval of the proxy statement of the Companyhich such person is named as a
nominee for director, without written objectiongoch nomination) by a vote of at least two-thirfithe directors who were, as of the date of
such approval, Incumbent Directors, shall be anrmgzent Director; providegdhowever, that no individual initially appointed, elected o
nominated as a director of the Company as a refal actual or threatened election contest wisipeet to directors or as a result of any other
actual or threatened solicitation of proxies orgemts by or on behalf of any person other thamBtieed shall be deemed to be an Incumbent
Director;

(i) any “person” (as such term is defined in Sext8(a)(9) of the Exchange Act and as used in &t 3(d)(3) and 14(d)(2) of the
Exchange Act) is or becomes a “beneficial ownes’dafined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Actiatliy or indirectly, of securities of the
Company representing 20% or more of the combinégidg@ower of the Company’s then outstanding séiesreligible to vote for the election
of the Board (“Company Voting Securities”); provilehowever, that the event described in this paragraph if@)Isnot be deemed to be a
Change in Control if such event results from antheffollowing: (A) the acquisition of Company Viag Securities by the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, (B) the acquisition of Companytikg Securities by any employee benefit plan (tateal trust) sponsored or maintained by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, (C) the actjoisiof Company Voting Securities by any underwrtemporarily holding securities pursu
to an offering of such securities, or (D) the asgign of Company Voting Securities pursuant toaPQualifying Transaction (as defined in

paragraph (iii));

(iif) the consummation of a merger, consolidatistatutory share exchange or similar form of corfgteansaction involving the
Company or any of its subsidiaries (a “Reorganizd)i or sale or other disposition of all or subsiglfy all of
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the assets of the Company to an entity that isnddffiliate of the Company (a “Sale”), unless inthagely following such Reorganization or
Sale: (A) more than 50% of the total voting powiarréspect of the election of directors, or simiéficials in the case of an entity other than a
corporation) of (x) the entity resulting from suRborganization, or the entity which has acquirédmrsubstantially all of the assets of the
Company (in either case, the “Surviving Entity”),(9) if applicable, the ultimate parent entity tlérectly or indirectly has beneficial
ownership of more than 50% of the total voting poyire respect of the election of directors, or $anbfficials in the case of an entity other
than a corporation) of the Surviving Entity (theafBnt Entity”), is represented by Company VotingBiies that were outstanding
immediately prior to such Reorganization or Sale if@mpplicable, is represented by shares intocisiuch Company Voting Securities were
converted pursuant to such Reorganization or Safe) such voting power among the holders thereiof ssibstantially the same proportion as
the voting power of such Company Voting Securitigsong the holders thereof immediately prior toR@®rganization or Sale, (B) no person
(other than any employee benefit plan (or relatest} sponsored or maintained by the Survivingtimti the Parent Entity), is or becomes the
beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of 20% wwore of the total voting power (in respect of éhection of directors, or similar officials in tl
case of an entity other than a corporation) ofaistanding voting securities of the Parent Er{tty if there is no Parent Entity, the Surviving
Entity) and (C) at least a majority of the membrthe board of directors (or similar officialstime case of an entity other than a corporation)
of the Parent Entity (or, if there is no Parentifgnthe Surviving Entity) following the consummaii of the Reorganization or Sale were, at the
time of the approval by the Board of the executibthe initial agreement providing for such Reotigation or Sale, Incumbent Directors (any
Reorganization or Sale which satisfies all of tHeeda specified in (A), (B) and (C) above beingethed to be a “Non-Qualifying
Transaction”);

(iv) the stockholders of the Company approve a pfaecomplete liquidation or dissolution of the Ccang.

Not withstanding the foregoing, the acquisitionany person of beneficial ownership of 20% or mdrthe combined voting power
Company Voting Securities solely as a result ofabguisition of Company Voting Securities by thex@pany which reduces the number of
Company Voting Securities outstanding shall be deknot to result in a Change in Control; providédwever, that if such person
subsequently becomes the beneficial owner of am@itiCompany Voting Securities that increases dregntage of outstanding Company
Voting Securities beneficially owned by such perso@hange in Control of the Company shall theddemed to occur.

(m) “Committee” means the Compensation Committeét¢csuccessor) of the Board.
(n) “Common Stock” means the Company’s common st6tlk00 par value per share.
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(0) “Company” means Olin Corporation, a Virginiargoration, its divisions and subsidiaries.

(p) “Compensation” means any employee compensatfoch represents salary, severance pay, bonugyoother incentive plan payout,
in the form of cash or stock, including but notited to payouts or payment distributions from théAHncentive Plan, Performance Unit Plan
and 1991 Olin Long Term Incentive Plan but exclgdétock resulting from employee stock option exasiand excluding other incentive
payouts which the Administrator determines prospebt not eligible to be deferred under this Plan.

(q) “Compensation Account” means the account eistadd under the Plan to which the Participant’'sereid Compensation is credited,
including the Cash Account, Stock Account, and satbier investment accounts as the Committee maplestt from time to time.

(r) “Corporate Human Resources” means the Corpdtataan Resources Department of the Company.

(s) “Credit Date” means with respect to Deferredrpensation, such date as designated by Corporatehl&esources that Deferred
Compensation shall be credited to the Compensatcount.

(t) “Deferred Compensation” means the Compensaiected by the Participant to be deferred purstaatite Plan.
(u) “Distribution” means the distribution of all tatanding shares of Arch Common Stock to the slwddehs of the Company.
(v) “Distribution Date” means the dividend paymeate fixed by the Board for the Distribution.

(w) “Election” means a Participastdelivery of a written notice of election to Corgte Human Resources electing to defer paymerit
or a portion of his or her Compensation.

(x) “Employee” means a full-time, active salaried@oyee (which term shall be deemed to includeceff) of the Company and its
affiliates who has at least 1182 Hay Points and hdmbeen selected by the Administrator, and ifired, approved by the Committee, to
participate in this Plan.

(y) “Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchangeckd 934, as amended.
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(2)“ Fair Market Value” means, with respect to a datea@er share basis, the average of the high anldwthprice of a share of
Common Stock or Arch Common Stock, as the casebeags reported on the consolidated tape of the Yaw Stock Exchange on such date
or if the New York Stock Exchange is closed on sdate, the next succeeding date on which it is open

(aa) “Fiscal Year” means that annual period comrnmgndanuary 1 and ending the following December 31.
(bb) “Olin Stock Account” means the Stock Accoumirthich Olin Stock Units are credited from timetitoe.

(cc) “Olin Stock Unit(s)” means the share equivéderredited to the Olin Stock Account of a Partieils Compensation Account
pursuant to Section 6, with one Olin Stock Unit@&do one share of Common Stock.

(dd) “Participant” means an Employee selected kyAtiministrator and if required, approved by therDattee, to participate in the Plan
and who has elected to defer payment of all orrigeoof his or her Compensation under the PlaartiBipant” shall also include any person
who had an account under the Prior Plans whictbbas transferred to this Plan.

(ee) “Plan” means this Olin Corporation Employedédbel Plan.

(ff) “Prior Plans” mean the deferral plans and agements utilized by present and past employeesrmultants for the deferral of
payouts or distributions of salary, bonuses (othan Bonus bank amounts under the EVA Incentive)Pfzerformance shares, performance
units and retention units, all which were replabgdhis Plan as of the effective date of this Rtemtified in Section 17.

(99) “Rate of Interest” means the rate of intefesthe quarterly period ending with the Accountibgte equal to (i) the Company’s
before-tax cost of borrowing as determined fronetitm time by the Chief Financial Officer, Controlta Treasurer (or in the event there is no
such borrowing, the Federal Reserve A1/P1 Compaosiéefor 90-day commercial paper plus 10 basistpais determined by such officer) or
(i) such other rate as the Board or the Committes select prospectively from time to time.

(hh) “Section 16(b) Employee” means an Employemoner Employee who is subject to Section 16(bthef Exchange Act.

(ii) “Stock Account” means an account establishedar the Plan to which shares of Common Stock aicti £ommon Stock have been
or are to be credited in the form of Olin Stock dr@nd Arch Stock Units, which shall include thénGBtock Account and the Arch Stock
Account.



(jj)) “Stock-based Compensation” means Compensdkiahis being paid out in the form of shares of Gwn Stock (excluding stock
options), such as retention stock units, performasiares and restricted stock units.

(kk) “Termination” means retirement from the Compam termination of services as an Employee for attner reason; provided
however, that an Employee will not be considered to hanelired a Termination if he or she ceases to peoséalvices to the Company as a
result of becoming an Arch Employee.

3. SHARES; ADJUSTMENTS IN EVENT OF CHANGES IN CAPITALI ZATION

(a) Shares Authorized for Issuandéere shall be reserved for issuance under the ®IQJ900 shares of Common Stock, subject to
adjustment pursuant to subsection (b) below.

(b) Adjustments in Certain Events.the event of any change in the outstanding Com8tock of the Company or Arch Common Stock
by reason of any stock split, share dividend, realipation, merger, consolidation, reorganizatioombination, or exchange or reclassification
of shares, split-up, split-off, spin-off, liquidati or other similar change in capitalization, oy distribution to common shareholders other than
cash dividends, the number or kind of shares ar Stock Units or Arch Stock Units, as the case bmyhat may be issued or credited under
the Plan may be adjusted by the Committee so llegptoportionate interest of the Participants db@linaintained as before the occurrence of
such event. Such adjustment shall be conclusiveébamting for all purposes of the Plan.

4. ELIGIBILITY

The Administrator shall have the authority to selenong any Employees those Employees who shalligible to participate in the Ple
Deferrals to a Stock Account by Section 16(b) Eme&s must be approved by the Committee.

5.  ADMINISTRATION

Full power and authority to construe, interpret addinister the Plan shall be vested in the CoremifThis power and authority
includes, but is not limited to, selecting compeéiagaeligible for deferral, establishing deferrafrms and conditions and adopting
modifications, amendments and procedures as mdgd&med necessary, appropriate or convenient b@dhemittee. Decisions of the
Committee shall be final, conclusive and bindingmll parties. Day-to-day administration of tharPshall be the responsibility of Corporate
Human Resources.



6. PARTICIPANT ACCOUNTS

(a) Compensation Accountdpon election to participate in the Plan, therdldimestablished a Compensation Account for th¢idiaant
to which there shall be credited any Deferred Camspgon as of the Credit Date for such deferrat.daxh type of Compensation to be
deferred, the Plan shall provide for a Cash Accaungtan Olin Stock Account. Stock-based Compensatiay only be deferred to an Olin
Stock Account. The Committee may establish fronettmtime other types of Compensation Account®céifig different investment options.
Each Participant’s Compensation Account shall leglited (or debited) on each Accounting Date witoine (or loss) based on a hypothetical
investment in any one or more of the investmenibogtavailable under the Plan, as prescribed bythe or the Committee. Gains, losses and
other elements of determining value shall be ddtexthsubstantially on the basis of a hypotheticaéstment in the various investment opti
as determined and applied in the manner deemedpigte by the Committee.

(b) Olin Stock Accountlf a Participant elects to invest all or any pmrtof his or her Deferred Compensation in the Gfack Account,
that portion of the Participant’'s Compensation Agtoshall be credited on the Credit Date with Gtock Units equal to the number of shares
of Common Stock (including fractions of a shareed®ined to three decimal places) that could haes Ipeirchased with the amount of such
Deferred Compensation at the Fair Market ValuehenGredit Date; provided that in the case of Stoaged Compensation, the Olin Stock
Account shall be credited with the number of Oltock Units equal to the number of shares being patdcs the Stock-based Compensation.

(c) Dividends and InteresEach time a cash dividend is paid on Common Stoékrch Common Stock, a Participant who has shafes o
such stock credited to his or her Stock Accounll sheeive a credit in applicable Stock Units fock dividends on the dividend payment date
to his or her applicable Stock Account. The nundfexdditional Olin Stock Units or Arch Stock Un{t®unded to the nearest one-thousandth
of a share) credited to the applicable Stock Actauithbe determined by dividing (i) the product @) the dollar value of the cash dividend
declared in respect of a share of Common Stockron £ommon Stock, as applicable, multiplied bytft® number of Stock Units credited to
the Participant’s applicable Stock Account as efdividend record date by (ii) the Fair Market \&ahf a share of Common Stock or Arch
Common Stock, as applicable, on the dividend paymate.

The Cash Account of a Participant shall be credite@ach Accounting Date with interest for the tgragnding on such date, payable at
the Rate of Interest on such date.

(d) Prior Plans.A Participant who had an existing deferred accaungter the Prior Plans shall automatically have swetount transferre
to a Compensation Account under this Plan to bextamied and administered pursuant to the termsanditions of this Plan. A cash account
of a Prior Plan shall be transferred to the Castofot



maintained under the Plan for such Prior Plan asithek account for a Prior Plan shall be transtetoethe Olin Stock Account maintained
under this Plan for such Prior Plan.

(e) Adjustment for Distribution Immediately prior to the Distribution, the terwisthe Olin Stock Units held in the Olin Stock Aceits 0
each Participant who will become an Arch Employeslide amended to provide that such shares sdglalnl out in cash based on the Fair
Market Value of Olin Stock Units at the time oftdilsution to the Arch Employees. As of the Distrilom Date, the Arch Stock Account of ei
Participant on such date shall be credited withnilaber of Arch Stock Units that the Participaniidohave received in the Distribution Date
had the Participant owned directly the number afet of Common Stock represented by the Olin Stiyits held in his or her Olin Stock
Account. As of the Distribution Date, the Cash Ameband Stock Account of each Arch Employee (afteing effect to the adjustment
described in this Section 6(e)) shall be transtetoethe Arch Employees Deferral Plan provided thatArch Employee provides the Company
with a release, acceptable to the Committee, wgiglhrights to benefits under this Plan.

Except as provided in Section 6(c) with respedtitadends or in Section 3, no additional contribag or additions may be made to a
Participant’s Arch Stock Account after the Disttilon Date.

(H Plan Remains Unfundedmounts credited to a Compensation Account shallaia a part of the general funds of the Company and
nothing contained in this Plan shall be deemeddate a trust or fund of any kind or create anydidry relationship. Nothing contained herein
shall be deemed to give any Participant any owmeighother proprietary, security or other righsainy funds, stock or assets owned or
possessed by the Company, whether or not earmégkéie Company’s own purposes as a reserve ortiube utilized by the Company for
the discharge of its obligations hereunder. Toetktent that any person acquires a right to regedyenents or distributions from the Company
under this Plan, such right shall be no greatar tha right of any unsecured creditor of the Congpan

7. MANNER OF ELECTION

(a) General. Any Employee selected by the Administrator to mdsite in the Plan may elect to do so in any Fi¥ear by delivering to
Corporate Human Resources a written notice onra foescribed by Corporate Human Resources eletdidgfer payment of all or a portion
(in 25% increments or other increments so presdrilyethe Committee) of his or her Compensation‘Eaction”), provided Section 16(b)
Employees who elect to defer to an Olin Stock Actonust have the prior approval of the CommittaeclSElection shall specify whether the
payout for the Compensation Account shall be inragd sum or in annual installments (not to excegd S6parate elections may be made with
respect to each type of Deferred Compensation; hierv€ompensation Accounts for the same type oébefl Compensation shall be paid
in accordance with the same payout schedule. TéetiBh must be filed on or before
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December 31 in order to be effective for amountsezin the immediately succeeding Fiscal Yeareffactive Election may not be revoked
or modified (except as otherwise stated hereirnf) waspect to a Fiscal Year for which such Elecisoeffective.

(b) Changes in ElectiorA Participant will be allowed to change the Eleotas provided herein. Any change with respectéadims of
Participant’s Election for (i) amount or form ofyafuture deferral hereunder may be made at any piriee to such Compensation being earned
and (ii) the timing (which change may not accelertistribution date) or amount of payments fraip @ompensation Account shall only be
effective if made at least six months prior to plagyout and in the calendar year prior to the calegydar payout is to occur.

8. MANNER OF PAYMENT

(a) Form of Payment In accordance with the Participant’s Electionpamts credited to a Participant’s Compensation Antwill be
paid in a lump sum or in the form of annual instedhts. Except as provided in Section 11, in the céglistributions from the Olin Stock
Account (unless the Administrator, or in the caka 8ection 16(b) Employee, the Committee, decidgisall be in the form of cash),
distributions shall be in shares of Common Stoakiarcase of distributions from any other Compeinsaficcount (including the Arch Stock
Account), distributions shall be in the form of kdsnless the Committee decides it shall be irfth@ of shares of Common Stock), in each
case to the Participant or, in the event of hieardeath, to the Beneficiary. If a Participanttddo receive payment in installments, the
payment period shall not exceed 20 years. Paynsas dhall be January 1 or July 1 pursuant todfaatit’s Election.

(b) Calculation for Payments in CasIiThe amount of any cash distribution to be madastallments with respect to a Compensation
Account (other than the Olin Stock Account) will determined by multiplying (i) the balance in sbmpensation Account on the payment
date by (ii) a fraction, the numerator of whicloise and the denominator of which is the numbenstfillments in which distributions remair
be made (including the current distribution). Btck Account is to be paid out in cash, the amofiany cash distribution to be made in
installments with respect to Stock Units will baetenined by (i) multiplying the number of Olin Stotnits or Arch Stock Units attributable
such installment (determined as hereinafter pral)idy (ii) the Fair Market Value of a share of Coomtock or Arch Common Stock, as
applicable, on the fifth business day immediatelgmpto the date on which such installment is tqohél. The number of Olin Stock Units or
Arch Stock Units, as applicable, attributable tdrestallment shall be determined by multiplyingttie current number of Olin Stock Units or
Arch Stock Units in the applicable Stock Account(bya fraction, the numerator of which is one @hd denominator of which is the number
of installments in which distributions remain tofsade (including the current distribution).

(c) Calculation for Payments in StocRhe amount of any stock distribution to be madmstallments with respect to the amount of a
Compensation Account



invested in the Olin Stock Account shall be deteeniby multiplying (i) the current number of Olito8k Units by (i) a fraction, the
numerator of which is one and the denominator dttwis the number of installments in which disttibas remain to be made (including the
current distribution). If a Compensation Accourth@ than the Olin Stock Account) is to be paidiawthares of Common Stock, the amount
of any stock distribution to be made in installnsewtth respect to such Compensation Account slkeatidiermined by dividing the amount of
cash attributable to such installment (determireegdravided above) by the Fair Market Value of tler@non Stock on the fifth business day
immediately prior to the date on which such instalht is to be paid.

(d) Fractional Shares; Required Withholding@nly whole numbers of shares of Common Stocklvélissued, with any fractional shares
to be paid in cash. To the extent required by tawes shall be withheld from payouts of the Comp#as Account, provided that if a fractiol
share results after withholding, such fractionarstshall be withheld as additional tax.

9. COMMENCEMENT OF PAYMENTS

Payments of amounts deferred pursuant to a vadidtieh shall commence (i) with respect to a lummson January 1 or July 1 as
indicated in a Participant’s Election and (ii) wigspect to annual installments, on January 1lgrlaf the first calendar year of deferred
payment as selected by a Participant in his oElestion. If a Participant dies prior to the fidgferred payment specified in an Election or
prior to completion of all installments, paymenhsi commence to the Participant’'s Beneficiary loa first or next payment date so specified,
unless the Administrator elects otherwise to previa a lump-sum distribution of the deceased Bipant's Compensation Accounts.

10. BENEFICIARY DESIGNATION

A Participant may designate one or more persomhtum payments are to be made if the Participarst loédore receiving payment of a
or all amounts due hereunder. A designation of Beiaey will be effective only after the signed Etéon is filed with Corporate Human
Resources while the Participant is alive and véhael all designations of Beneficiary signed atetifearlier. If Corporate Human Resource
permits, Beneficiaries may be designated for egpl bf Compensation that is deferred. If the Pipiat fails to designate a Beneficiary as
provided above, the remaining unpaid amounts $fegfiaid in one lump sum to the estate of suchdhaatit. If all Beneficiaries of the
Participant die before the Participant or beformplete payment of all amounts due hereunder, timairéng unpaid amounts shall be paid in
one lump sum to the estate of the last to die o ®eneficiaries. A Participant may, at any timepto death, elect to change the designation
of a Beneficiary.
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11. CHANGE IN CONTROL

Notwithstanding any provision of this Plan to theatrary, in the event of a Change in Control, eRatticipant in the Plan shall receive
automatic lump-sum cash distribution of all amowadsrued in the Participant’'s Compensation Acc@matuding interest at the Rate of
Interest from the date of the Change in Contradtigh the business day immediately preceding the afadistribution) not later than 15 days
after the date of the Change in Control. For thigopse, the balance in the portion of a Particisa@bmpensation Account invested in the Olin
Stock Account or Arch Stock Account shall be deiesd by multiplying the number of applicable Stagkits by the higher of (a) the highest
Fair Market Value of Common Stock or Arch CommoacR®t as applicable, on any date within the perimshmencing 30 days prior to such
Change in Control and ending on the date of thenGdan Control, or (b) if the Change in Controltioé Company occurs as a result of a tender
or exchange offer or consummation of a corporatestction, then the highest price paid per sha@oafmon Stock or Arch Common Stock,
as applicable, pursuant thereto. Any consideraitber than cash forming a part or all of the comsition for Common Stock to be paid
pursuant to the applicable transaction shall beaedht the valuation price thereon determined byBibard.

In addition, the Company shall reimburse a Paricidor the legal fees and expenses incurred iPdrgicipant is required to seek to
obtain or enforce any right to distribution. In teent that it is determined that such Particigaptroperly entitled to a cash distribution
hereunder, such Participant shall also be entitiédterest thereon payable in an amount equivatetite prime rate of interest as announced
from time to time by Citibank, N.A. from the datech distribution should have been made to and dictuthe date it is made.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Plan to tlwmtrary, this Section 11 as applied to any Paricipnay not be amended or modifie:
the detriment of a Participant after a Change intfb occurs without the written consent of suchtiegant.

12. LOANS

The Administrator may, upon rules and procedurésbished by it, permit Participants to borrow fréimeir Compensation Accounts up
to 50% of the value of the Participant’s Stock Aaaband up to 100% of the Participant’s other Comspéon Accounts with such accounts
constituting security for repayment of such bormgd and with such borrowings bearing interest aketaates as determined by the
Administrator. In addition to terms establishecthg Administrator, borrowings shall be subjectie following terms and conditions: (1) a
borrowing may not exceed in principal amount outdiag at any one time $50,000 and the minimum beebamount shall be $1,000, (2) a
Participant may not have more than one borrowirtgtanding hereunder at any one time, (3) a borrgwirall mature in not more than five
years, (4) the annual interest r
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on the borrowing, which shall be fixed during &srh (except it may increase in the case of defahgll be 25 basis points over the minimum
rate required by the Internal Revenue Service todaivnputation of income and (5) principal and nett payments will amortize over the life
the borrowing except Participants with borrowingstaning over two years or more may instead eleatake annual principal installment
payments of five percent and pay the balance otgpal at maturity. Notwithstanding any later métudate, all such borrowings by
Participant become due and payable when the Retits employment with the Company and any afiligrminates.

13. INALIENABILITY OF BENEFITS

The interests of the Participants and their Bergiies under the Plan may not in any way be volilgtar involuntarily transferred,
alienated or assigned, nor subject to attachmgatution, garnishment or other such equitable gallprocess. A Participant or Beneficiary
cannot waive the provisions of this Section 13.

14. GOVERNING LAW

The provisions of this plan shall be interpreted aanstrued in accordance with the laws of the Commealth of Virginia, except to the
extent preempted by Federal law.

15. AMENDMENTS

The Committee may amend, alter or terminate thas Rt any time without the prior approval of theaBh provided, however, that the
Committee may not, without approval by the Boairéase the number of securities that may be issoder the Plan (except as provided in
Section 3(b)). No amendment or modification mayamphe rights of a Participant to receive amowattsrued in the Participant’s
Compensation Account at the time of the effectiwsnaf the amendment or modification.

16. RULE 16b-3 COMPLIANCE

It is the intention of the Company that all trartgats under the Plan be exempt from liability impody Section 16(b) of the Exchange
Act. Therefore, if any transaction under the P&found not to be in compliance with an exemptimmf such Section 16(b), the provision of
the Plan governing such transaction shall be deeamezhded so that the transaction does so complisaudexempt, to the extent permittec
law and deemed advisable by the Committee, antl @vents the Plan shall be construed in favot®fiieeting the requirements of an
exemption.

17. EFFECTIVE DATE

The Plan became effective as of November 1, 199 jsamended and restated in this document effeas of the Distribution Date.
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Summary of your Key
Executive Death Benefit

Employees who qualify as Key Executives have thieidng coverages that may provide
death benefit if they die while in Active Servicktioe Company. This is a brief summary;
you are encouraged to read the complete descriptozrmore details

Olin Life Accumulation Program (OLAP) Provides a life insurance death benefit equal teagt two times Annual Salary roundec
the next $10,00(

Survivor I ncome Benefit Provides monthly payments equal to 30% of Monttdia8/ (40% if you have eligible
children).

Emergency Death Benefit Provides a timely payment of one month’s salarys Benefit is not available for an

employee who is receiving Long Term Disability pants at the time of deat

Corporate Owned Life Insurance (COLI) Provides a $5,000 death benefit from ¢s Corporate Owned Life Insurance Program.
Key Executives may not qualify for this bene

Accidental Death and Dismemberment (AD&D) Provides an additional life insurance death bergfital to two times Annual Salary roun
to the next $10,000 if death was the result of@ident. See the Accidental Death and
Dismemberment Plan for detai

Group Universal Life Insurance In addition to the coverages described hereinalaprovided by Olin, you may al

purchase Group Universal Life Insurance. This iasoe coverage is not an Olin-sponsored
benefit and Olin does not pay any of its premiuthsrefore, it is not considered an “ERISA
benefit” and is not subject to ERISA regulationfin@oes, however, offer the convenience
of payroll deducted premiums should you elect tigipate in the Group Universal Life
Insurance program. This program is administereddhnson & Higgins KVI, 1776 West
Lakes Parkway, West Des Moines, 1A 50398. The tedep number is (800) 525-0518.
Enroliment materials are available from your Betsefidministrator

KEY EXECUTIVE DEATH BENEFI—8/95 1



When Coverage Begin:
Eligibility

You are eligible for the coverages that are desdrib this section if you are deemed to |
Key Executive. A Key Executive, for this purposeaiFull-time employee of the Company
whose Hay Points have been determined to be 1 Afigler. Hay Points are assigned to
your position through OI’s job evaluation proces

If your business unit does not use the Hay Poistesy for job evaluation, you will be
deemed to be a Key Executive if your job contenyjscal of the job content for other Olin

Key Executives and your division president approx@s appointment as a Key Executive
with rights to benefits under this progra
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Premiums

Olin Life Accumulation
Program

Under this program, Olin pays premiums on your Habaa universal life insurance polic
which will provide a death benefit that is at leagtial to two times your Annual Salary
rounded to the next $10,000. Additionally, becalhseis a universal life insurance policy,
the policy may provide cash values which will setwéncrease the policy death benel

Starting when you are age 55, or when you havesi@syservice, if later, Olin will pay
additional premiums to your policy to enhance tashcvalues in the policy, and, in so
doing, “pre-fund”the death benefits coverage that is provided upam setirement from th
Company.

In addition to the above premiums, Olin may paytheopremium, called An Investment
Premium, to further enhance the cash value in diieyp At retirement or termination of
employment, Olin will recover the amount paid agelstment Premium plus interest at 9%
from the cash value in the polic

You may also choose to make voluntary contributimnihe policy. Such contributior
(which are made on an after-tax basis) will seovimtrease the policy death benefit and
cash values. You may withdraw the cash value ateibto these voluntary contributions at
any time.
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Retirement from Olin at Age 55 or Later

Olin Life

Accumulation Program
continuec

The program is designed to ensure that the casievah the policy are sufficient to provi
continued death benefits at retirement from the @amy in accordance with the following
schedule

Death Benefit as a Percent of Annue

Age at Retirement Salary Rounded to the next $10,000
65 or older 50%
64 45%
63 40%
62 35%
61 30%
60 25%
59 20%
58 15%
57 10%
56 and 5¢ 5%

For example, if your Annual Salary is $125,000 wien retire at age 62, the cash value in
the policy will be sufficient to provide death béireof at least $45,500 (130,000 x 35¢

Upon retirement from the Company at age 55 or |g@vided you have at least 10 year.
service, Olin will transfer ownership of the unisat life policy directly to you with the ca:
value (less Olin’s Investment Premium, if any) apglicable death benefit. You will have
the following options at that tim

1. You may choose to leave the cash values in theyald reduce the death benefit as
described in the schedule above. The cash valldevapplied towards premiurr

KEY EXECUTIVE DEATH BENEFI—8/95



2. You may pay additional premiums and maintain yaurent level of death benefit as
if you were still employec

3. You may withdraw some, or all, of the cash valuethe policy and thereby reduce
eliminate the policy death benef

The Olin Life Accumulation program is administet®gdWilliam Lynch and Associates In
13577 Feather Sound Drive, Suite 500, ClearwateB4622. The telephone number is
(800) 64+-6484.

You will receive a statement of your life insuramtmath benefit and cash values from
program administrator on an annual ba

Enrollment in the Olin Life Accumulation Prograngeéres you to submit evidence of good
health. If you are rejected for health reasons) @iil provide term life insurance coverage
equal to two times your Annual Salary rounded wribxt $10,000 while you are in Active
Service of the Company. Upon your retirement frolimGou will be provided term life
insurance in amounts equal to the death beneffitarprevious schedule for retirees who
qualify for the Olin Life Accumulation Prograr
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Survivor Income Benefit

In the event you die while in the Active Servicelloé Company, your surviving spouse v
receive a monthly benefit equal to 30% of your MdynSalary, up to a maximum benefit
$6,000 per month, until he or she reaches age §bulhave eligible children, your spouse
will receive an additional monthly payment equal@% of your Monthly Salary up to a
maximum payment of $2,000 per month. This additipagment will continue until your
children are all at least age 25 or married, whiehds earlier

If your spouse should die following your death, yeligible children, or their guardian, w
continue to receive the monthly benefit equal t&oldf your Monthly Salary until your
children are all at least age 25, or married, wineh is earlier

The monthly benefit paid on behalf of the childigthe same 10% of Monthly Salary
regardless of the number of eligible children. Example, if your Monthly Salary was
$10,000 at the time of your death and you haddi®#é children, the total monthly benefit
paid on behalf of the children would be $1,000 (1@R$10,000)

You may choose to waive the Survivor Income Berwfiterage, and instead, have the
premium that would otherwise have been paid far thiverage paid to the Olin Life
Accumulation Program. In such event, this premiuithserve to increase the death bene
and cash values provided by that poli
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Emergency Death Benef

In the event you die while in the Active Servicetloé Company, your spouse, or your
insurance Beneficiary, if you do not have a spouskereceive a death benefit equal to one
montt’s salary to help defray funeral expenses and atbe&is associated with your dee

This benefit is administered locally by your busisenit. The payment is made throt
Olin’s payroll systerr

Note: This benefit is not available for an employdw® is receiving Long Term Disabili
payments at the time of dea
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Corporate Owned Life Insurance

$5,000 COL| Death Benefit The beneficiary of certain employees of Olin, oraffiliate, who die while in Active Servir
of the Company, may be entitled to a special $5000I death benefit. This benefit is
payable to your Beneficiary if you die while in tAetive Service of the Company and you
were a salaried or non-bargaining hourly employled@® Company on December 31, 1992,
or receiving ShorTerm Disability payments on that da

The Beneficiaries of employees of Aerojet, who Imeea&mployees of Olin on April 3
1994, may also be entitled to this special $5,00QIGleath benefit, provided such
employee dies while in the Active Service of tharpany.

Beneficiaries for this Plan are deemed to be theeBeiary of record for the Olin Lifi
Accumulation Plan, or the term life insurance cager if you failed to qualify for OLAP fc
reasons of healtl
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Olin Life Accumulation Program/Survivor
I ncome Benefit

Emergency Death Benefit/
Corporate Owned Life Insurance

Taxes

Participants are subject to Federal, and Statenedax as well as FICA tax on the amo

of premiums paid on their behalf each year to the Ofe Accumulation Insurance
Program. These premiums include the premium tolase the basic life insurance
coverage, any premium paid to “pre-fund” the retiliée insurance coverage and any extra
premium that would be paid into the policy if ycduwose to waive the Survivor Income
Benefit coverage. If you chose to keep the Survimoome Benefit coverage, the actuarial
value of the Survivor Income Benefit coverage wélsubject to Federal, State and FICA
tax. Your taxable income will be calculated for yemd reported on your W-2 form each
year.

Death benefits paid from the OLAP are treated life insurance benefit and, as such are
not subject to Federal, State or FICA tax. Howetlhez,benefit may be included in the
participan’s estate for estate tax purpos

A portion of cash values withdrawn from the OLAPyniee taxed as income for Federal i
state income tax purpost

A portion of the Survivor Income Benefit may be @ab to Federal and State income 1

The death benefits paid as an Emergency Death Benefthe $5,000 COLI death bene
are included as taxable income for Federal and $tabme tax purposes. However, for
Federal income tax purposes there is a one-timeigra from income of up to $5,000 of
cumulative death benefit procee

Note: This is a very brief description of tax consequandtu should consult with your ti
advisor concerning the specific taxes associatét these benefit:
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Beneficiary

When you become eligible for the Olin Key Executiveath Benefits, you will be asked
name a Beneficiary, someone who will receive pays&om the Plans if you dir

You may choose anyone you wish as your Benefidigsy(You may want to name a
contingent Beneficiary(ies) in case your primann8iciary dies before you d

If the Beneficiary is not living when you die, yodeath benefitwill be paid to your estat

It is important to review the names of your Beniefies periodically so that the benefits
be paid to those you want protected. For exampi@ur marital status changes or your
dependents change, you may want to make a new iBmgfdesignation. You should also
advise your local Benefits Administrator of addrebanges for your Beneficiary(ies). This
will help prevent delays in benefit paymer

KEY EXECUTIVE DEATH BENEFI—8/95
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Changes InAmounts ol
Insurance

The minimum death benefit that is payable from OLakfd Survivor Income Benefit w
automatically keep pace with changes in your AniSa&ary. Your coverage will change
on the day your salary changes. If you're not atkvwm the day the amount of your

coverage is scheduled to change, the change wiletzyed until you return to work Full-
time.

KEY EXECUTIVE DEATH BENEFI—8/95
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How Long the Key
Executive Death Benefits
Continue

In this Situation:

You Terminate Employment, Including
Retirement

You arereceiving Severance or Job Transition
benefits

You arereceiving Short Term Disability
benefits

You are receiving Long Term Disability (LTD)]
benefits

You are on an Unpaid Leave of Absence

The Plan is Terminated or Changed so that it
No Longer Covers Your Employee Group

ThisHappens To Your Coverage:

Coverage for OLAP, Survivor Income Benefit, Emergebeath Benefit and COLI
continues through the end of the month in which tgyminate Full-time employment. You
may continue the OLAP by paying the full premit

If you retire on early or normal retirement, a patof your OLAP will continue

Your pension plan also provides for the paymerg $6,000 death benefit if you ¢
following early or normal retirement from Olin. Stee Pension Plan section in this
handbook for details

Coverage for OLAP, Survivor Income Benefit, Emergebeath Benefit and COL
continues as though you were actively at work widea are receiving Job Transition
Benefits or Severance paymer

Coverage for OLAP, Survivor Income Benefit, Emergebeath Benefit and COLI will be
equal to the amount of coverage you immediately before your disability begge

Coverage for OLAP, Survivor Income Benefit and CQUill be equal to the amount
coverage you had immediately before your disablilégan. Coverage will continue for the
period you are entitled to LTD payments and ceg@&ayour retiremen

Your Emergency Death Benefit coverage ends wherayewn Long Term Disability

Coverage for OLAP, Survivor Income Benefit, EmergeBeath Benefit and COLI ceases
at the end of the month in which your leave begifei1 may continue coverage for OLAP
and Survivor Income Benefit for the length of yéeaive provided you pay the entire
premiums.

Your OLAP is an individual policy and is portabll other coverages en

KEY EXECUTIVE DEATH BENEFI—8/95
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Plan Limitations

Each state has different rules regarding paymea particular Beneficiary. For examp

in some states, the Beneficiary who is convictetaying caused the death of the
participant may not be entitled to death benefiitghis case, the benefit would be paid to
the estate.

In the event of your death as a result of suicidend the first two years of employment
with Olin, no OLAP or Survivor Income Benefit wile paid. Your Emergency Death
Benefit and the $5,000 COLI Death Benefit will keghto your Beneficiary.

KEY EXECUTIVE DEATH BENEFI—8/95
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Claiming Benefits

If you die, the Company will contact your benefigi@es) as soon as possible to exp
what benefits are payable and the forms of paymesitable.

| tis very important to be sure that your benefigidesignation reflects the person(s)
want to receive the benefit, and that their nama(sl) address(es) are corre

If the person(s) can’t be found, the benefit iomadtically paid to your estate. This will
delay or prevent the funds from reaching thosewant protected

KEY EXECUTIVE DEATH BENEFI—8/95
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Plan Administrator

Agent for Service of Process

Plan Amendment or Termination

Plan Administration

The Plan Administrator is the Welfare and Fringex®é Plan Committee (the Committe
of Olin Corporation, 120 Long Ridge Road, Stamfa&d, 06904. Effective December 1,
1995, the Plan Administrator will be located atrOG@orporation, 501 Merritt 7, Norwalk,
CT 06856.

The Plan Administrator has absolute authority terijpret the terms of the Plan and to
determine any and all matters arising under tha Bfan connection with its administratic
including, without limitation, questions concernieligibility for, and entitlement to, Plan
benefits. Any interpretation or determination madesuant to such discretionary authority
shall be binding on all persons claiming to havendéerest under the Plan and given full
force and effeci

The Committee may adopt rules for the administratibthe Plan and the conduct of its
business. A majority of the members of such Conamitthall constitute a quorum for
transaction of business. All resolutions or othetiom taken by the Committee shall be by
the vote of at least a majority of the membersemeat a meeting, or without a meeting by
an instrument signed by a majority of the memt

The Plan Administrator and any other fiduciary dasted in this Plan may use, empl
discharge, or consult with one or more individuatsporations, or other entities with
respect to advice regarding responsibilities, atians, or duties in connection with this
Plan. Olin Corporation may also designate otheividdals, corporations, or other entities,
who are not named fiduciaries in this Plan to cauyfiduciary responsibilities, obligations
and duties with respect to this Plan. Such delegatiay be revoked or modified at any
time.

The Secretary of Olin Corporation has been desighas agent for service of legal process
upon this Plan. Service of process may also be madbe Plan Administrato

Olin fully expects that the Key Executive Death Bfts will continue indefinitely, but
reserves the right by resolution of its Board ofddtors or any duly authorized Committee
or officer to amend, modify or terminate the Plaamy time and without notice. This
includes the right to amend, modify, or terminagadfits available to retirees or any other
group of employee:

KEY EXECUTIVE DEATH BENEFI—8/95
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Plan Administration
continuec

Conversion Coverage for OLAP is portabl

There are no provisions that allow the Survivorome Benefit, COLI, or the Emergen
Death Benefit coverages to be converted to an iddal policy.
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Questions

Source of Benefits

Plan Documents

Financial Records

Plan | dentification

Plan Sponsor

ERI SA Rights

General Information

Questions about OLAP should be directed to Williaygnch and Associates, Inc., 135
Feather Sound Drive, Suite 500, Clearwater, FL 2482lephone number (800)648-6484.
All other questions should be directed to your I®enefits Administrator

Olin’s contributions for OLAP are paid in premiums torgversal life insurance polic
administered by William Lynch and Associates, 118577 Feather Sound Drive, Suite £
Clearwater, FL 34622. Olin’s contributions for Siwor Income Benefit are paid in
premiums to Metropolitan Life Insurance Company).FBBox 102047, Atlanta, GA 30368-
0047. Metropolitan Life Insurance Company determitie benefits payable under the
provisions of the Plan. Olin pays the full costlud Emergency Death Benefit and the
$5,000 COLI Death Benefit from its general opergfinnds.

The Plan Documents are this Plan description. RgKR) the individuals split dollar
agreement and the applicable insurance policy laad/etropolitan SIB Life Insurance
master policy

Records are kept on a P-year basis, from January 1 to December 31 of ealendar yea

This Plan is filed with the United States Departtmafriiabor under Employer Identificatic
Number 13-1872319. The Plan Numbers are: EmergBeayh Benefit: 515; Company-
provided Basic Life Insurance: 502; Corporate Owhiéel Insurance: 515; Olin Life
Accumulation Program: 56:

The plan sponsor is Olin Corporation. An updatexnlete list of participating Olimelatec
or affiliated employers and employee organizatialss sponsoring the Plan may be
obtained by participants and their beneficiariesrupritten request to the Plan
Administrator, and is available for examinationgarticipants and beneficiaries.
Participants and beneficiaries may receive, upadtiemrrequest, information as to whethe
particular employer or employee organization ipansor of the Plan, and if so, the
sponsc’'s address

See the ERISA section of your benefits handbooklétails regarding your rights unc
ERISA.

KEY EXECUTIVE DEATH BENEFI—8/95
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Definitions

Active Service

Annual Salary

Beneficiary(ies)

Benefits Administrator

Full-Time Employee

Monthly Salary

The period in which a Fi-time employee is receiving regular salary paymemt§hort
Term Disability payments. Additionally, periodsvrich the employee is receiving Long
Term Disability payments, Job Transition BenefitSeverance benefits may also be
included as periods of Active Servic

Your annual earnings, not including overtime, sdiifferential, bonus, or other premium
pay.

The person or persons who will receive death ben&bm the Pla’s if you die.

The individual at your work location who is respitates for assisting employees with
benefits.

An employee who scheduled to work at least 20 hawrgek on a continuous bas

Your monthly earnings, not including overtime, shiifferential, bonus, or other premium
pay.

KEY EXECUTIVE DEATH BENEFI—8/95
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Exhibit 10(f
EXECUTIVE AGREEMENT

Agreement between Olin Corporation, a Virginia argtion (“Olin”), and , (the “Executive”), dated as of November 1,
2002, (the “Effective Date”).

Olin and the Executive agree as follows:
1. Definitions. As used in this Agreement:

(a) “Cause” means the willful and continued failofehe Executive to substantially perform his er tuties (other than by reason of
Executive’s incapacity due to physical or mentakigs or injury); the willful engaging by the Exéee in gross misconduct significantly and
demonstrably financially injurious to Olin; or will misconduct by the Executive in the course afdri her employment which is a felony or
fraud. No act or failure to act on the part of Ehescutive will be considered “willful” unless dooe omitted not in good faith and without
reasonable belief that the action or omission wake interests of Olin or not opposed to the ggts of Olin and unless the act or failure to act
has not been cured by the Executive within a reglslertime after written notice to the Executivedfyéng the nature of such violations.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Executive shall be deemed to have been terminated for Caukeuwtifi) reasonable notice to t
Executive setting forth the reasons for Olin’s iiten to terminate for Cause, (ii) an opportunity the Executive, together with his or her
counsel, to be heard before the Board of Direaibflin (the “Board”) and (iii) delivery to the Erative of a notice of Termination from the
Board finding that, in the good faith opinion of%s%®f the entire membership of the Board, the Exeeuvas guilty of conduct described abc
and specifying the particulars thereof in detail.

(b) “Change in Control” means the occurrence of ang of the following events:

() individuals who, on the Effective Date, consté the Board (the “Incumbent Directors”) ceaseafiay reason to constitute at
least a majority of the Board; providdtht any person becoming a director subsequehgt&ffective Date, whose election or nomination for
election was approved (either by a specific votbyoapproval of the proxy statement of Olin in whiguch person is named as a nominee for
director, without written objection to such nomiea) by a vote of at least two-thirds of the digstwho were, as of the date of such approval,
Incumbent Directors, shall be an Incumbent Diregboovided, however, that no individual initially appointed, electedrmominated as a
director of Olin as a result of an actual or thee&id election contest with respect to directorasoa result of any other actual or threatened
solicitation of proxies or consents by or on belo&lany person other than the Board shall be de¢mbd an Incumbent Director;

1



(ii) any “person” (as such term is defined in Sext8(a)(9) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1984 (Exchange Act”) and as
used in Sections 13(d)(3) and 14(d)(2) of the ErgeaAct) is or becomes a “beneficial owner” (asrdsd in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange
Act), directly or indirectly, of securities of Oliepresenting 20% or more of the combined votinggyoof Olin’s then outstanding securities
eligible to vote for the election of the Board (ti@in Voting Securities”); provided however, that the event described in this paragraph (ii)
shall not be deemed to be a Change in Controkifi ®vent results from any of the following: (A) thequisition of Olin Voting Securities by
Olin or any of its subsidiaries, (B) the acquigitiof Olin Voting Securities by any employee benpfén (or related trust) sponsored or
maintained by Olin or any of its subsidiaries, {f® acquisition of Olin Voting Securities by anydenwriter temporarily holding securities
pursuant to an offering of such securities, (D)abaquisition of Olin Voting Securities pursuantetdlon-Qualifying Transaction (as defined in
paragraph (iii)), or (E) the acquisition of Olin ¥y Securities by Executive or any group of pessimrcluding Executive (or any entity
controlled by Executive or any group of personsuding Executive);

(iif) the consummation of a merger, consolidatistatutory share exchange or similar form of corfgotansaction involving
Olin or any of its subsidiaries (a “Reorganizatipai' sale or other disposition of all or substdhtiall of the assets of Olin to an entity that is
not an affiliate of Olin (a “Sale”), unless immetdily following such Reorganization or Sale: (A) mdhan 50% of the total voting power (in
respect of the election of directors, or simildiails in the case of an entity other than a coaion) of (x) the entity resulting from such
Reorganization, or the entity which has acquirédrasubstantially all of the assets of Olin (itheir case, the “Surviving Entity”), or (y) if
applicable, the ultimate parent entity that dingctl indirectly has beneficial ownership of morarntb0% of the total voting power (in respec
the election of directors, or similar officialstime case of an entity other than a corporationhefSurviving Entity (the “Parent Entity”), is
represented by Olin Voting Securities that werestautding immediately prior to such ReorganizatioSale (or, if applicable, is representec
shares into which such Olin Voting Securities waraverted pursuant to such Reorganization or Saite) such voting power among the
holders thereof is in substantially the same priipoms the voting power of such Olin Voting Setias among the holders thereof immedia
prior to the Reorganization or Sale, (B) no per&iher than any employee benefit plan (or relatest} sponsored or maintained by the
Surviving Entity or the Parent Entity), is or beasthe beneficial owner, directly or indirectly,2i% or more of the total voting power (in
respect of the election of directors, or simildials in the case of an entity other than a caafion) of the outstanding voting securities of the
Parent Entity (or, if there is no Parent Entitye ®urviving Entity) and (C) at least a majorityteé members of the board of directors (or sin
officials in the case of an entity other than gpowoation) of the Parent Entity (or, if there isParent Entity, the Surviving Entity) following the
consummation of the Reorganization or Sale wertheatime of the approval by the Board of the exiecuof the initial agreement providing
for such Reorganization or Sale, Incumbent Dirextor



(any Reorganization or Sale which satisfies athef criteria specified in (A), (B) and (C) abovermedeemed to be a “Non-Qualifying
Transaction”);

(iv) the stockholders of Olin approve a plan of gdete liquidation or dissolution of Olin.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the acquisition Iny person of beneficial ownership of 20% or mor¢hef combined voting power of Ol
Voting Securities solely as a result of the acgjaisiof Olin Voting Securities by Olin which reducthe number of Olin Voting Securities
outstanding shall be deemed not to result in a @aam Control;_provided however, that if such person subsequently becomes thefibethe
owner of additional Olin Voting Securities that ieases the percentage of outstanding Olin Votiray®és beneficially owned by such
person, a Change in Control of Olin shall then éerded to occur.

(c) “Disability” means that the Executive has stegfit an incapacity due to physical or mental illn@bgch meets the criteria for
disability established at the time under Olin’srsherm disability plan.

(d) “Executive Severance” means:

(i) twelve months of the Executive’s then currerdnthly salary (without taking into account any retions which may have
occurred at or after the date of a Change in CHnrlus

(i) an amount equal to the greater of (A) the EXe@’s average annual award actually paid in ¢ashin the event that the
award in respect of the calendar year immediatety po the year in which the date of Terminatiartiors has not yet been paid, the amount of
such award that would have been payable in cagteigear in which the date of Termination occurd Baecutive not incurred a Termination)
under Olin’s short-term annual incentive compemsagilans or programs (“ICP”) (including zero if histg was paid or deferred but including
any portion thereof the Executive has elected ferdsnd, for the avoidance of doubt, excluding pastion of an annual award that is credited
to an Executive’s bonus “bank” or that the Execaititherwise does not have a right to receive ctlyréncash) in respect of the three calendar
years immediately preceding the calendar year iiclwtine date of Termination occurs (or if the Ex@a@ihas not participated in ICP for s
three completed calendar years, the average ofwetyawards in respect of the shorter period ofsyawhich the Executive was a participi
and (B) the Executive’s then current ICP standartbal award in respect of the year in which theeQdtTermination occurs.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event thatamount is payable to the Executive under Sect{bl 4uch additional amount shall also
treated as “executive severance” for purposes pfdim benefit plan that takes payments of “exemiseverance” into account in determining
benefits payable under such plan.



(e) “Potential Change in Control” means:
() Olin has entered into an agreement the consuromaf which would result in a Change in Control;

(ii) any person (including Olin) publicly announcas intention to take or to consider taking actiagch if consummated wou
constitute a Change in Control,

(i) any person (other than an employee beneéihgf Olin or a subsidiary of Olin (or the plan&ated trust)) becomes the
beneficial owner directly or indirectly of secueisi of Olin representing 9.5% or more of the comibvmating power of Olin’s then outstanding
securities ordinarily entitled to vote in electiafgdirectors; or

(iv) the Board adopts a resolution to the effeat.tfor purposes of this Agreement, a Potentialn@kan Control of Olin has
occurred,;

provided, if an event specified in clause (iii) above haswred by or on the Effective Date, such evenl sivd be deemed a Potential Change
in Control unless such person acquires anotherfl8aah securities subsequent to the Effective Date.

(f) “Termination” means:
(i) The Executive is discharged by Olin other tfi@nCause;
(il) The Executive terminates his or her employmarthe event that:

() (A) Olin requires the Executive to relocate disher principal place of employment by more tfitg (50) miles from the
location in effect on the Effective Date (excludipgior to a Change in Control, any relocation ttua change in the location of Olin’s
corporate headquarters); provided, however, th&batutive whose principal place of employment (iedmately prior to the required
relocation) was not located at Olin’s corporatedugearters (wherever located) will not have a bsigermination if he or she is required to
relocate his or her principal place of employmerttie location of Olin’s then-current corporate depzarters or (B) following a Change in
Control, Olin requires the Executive to travel arsiness to a substantially greater extent thanjranmhsistent with, the Executive’s travel
requirements prior to a Change in Control (takimg iaccount the number and/or duration (both wedpect to airtime and overall time away
from home) of such travel trips following a ChangeControl as compared to a comparable period poidhe Change in Control);

(2) Olin reduces the Executive’s base salary ds faiincrease the Executive’s base salary on g lbagsistent (as to
frequency and amount) with Olin’s exempt salarytesysas then in effect or, in the event of a Chandeontrol, as in effect immediately prior
to the Change in Control;

(3) Olin fails to continue the Executive’s partiatipn in Olin’s benefit plans (including, withoutitation, short-term and
long-term cash and stock incentive compensatiorgulastantially the same basis, both in terms oftii&)
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amount of the benefits provided (other than duBlin’s or a relevant operation’s or business urfitimncial or stock price performance
provided such performance is a relevant criterioden such plan) and (B) the level of the Executiyrticipation relative to other participants
as exists on the Effective Date; provided thathwétspect to annual and long term incentive comgt@nsplans, the basis with which the
amount of benefits and level of participation af tixecutive shall be compared shall be the avdragefit awarded to the Executive under the
relevant plan during the three completed fiscaty@gamediately preceding the year in which the ddt€ermination occurs;

(4) The Executive suffers a Disability which pretsethe Executive from performing the Executive'siesiwith Olin for a
period of at least 180 consecutive days;

(5) Following a Change in Control, Olin fails tobstiantially maintain its benefit plans as in effatcthe time of the Change
in Control, unless arrangements (embodied in agang substitute or alternative plan) are thenfieat to provide benefits that are
substantially similar to those in effect at thediof the Change in Control; or

(6) (A) the Executive is assigned any duties ingiaat in any adverse respect with the Executipesition (including
status, offices, titles and reporting lines), atitiipduties or responsibilities, or (B) Olin takasy action that results in a diminution in such
position (including status, offices, titles andogjng lines), authority, duties or responsibiltier in a substantial reduction in any of the
resources available to carry out any of the Exgetdiauthorities, duties or responsibilities; unlémsevent is described in clause (2), (3), (¢
(6) above and results from an isolated, insubsthatid inadvertent action or omission that is aken (or omitted to be taken) by Olin in bad
faith, and is remedied by Olin promptly after rgxteaif notice thereof given by the Executive. Forgmses solely of clarification, it is
understood that (i) if, in connection with the gffrof an Olin business or Olin’s assets as a sgpgyublic company to Olin’s shareholders, the
Executive accepts employment with, and becomesaraglat, the spunoff company or its affiliate, themination of the Executive’s
employment with Olin shall not be considered a fiieration” for purposes of this Agreement provide@lange in Control shall not have
occurred prior to the termination of the Executsvemployment with Olin and (ii) except as providegaragraph 4(f), in connection with the
sale of an Olin business or assets to a third martie transfer or sale of an Olin business on'®kissets to a joint venture to be owned directly
or indirectly by Olin with one or more third pasidf the Executive accepts employment with, antbbees employed by, such buyer or its
affiliate or such joint venture or its affiliate @onnection with such transaction, such cessati@mployment with Olin shall not be considered
a “Termination” for purposes of this Agreement pd@d a Change in Control shall not have occurréat po the termination of the Executige’
employment with Olin.



2. Previous Change in Control Agreemefihis Agreement supersedes and replaces the Exed&greement dated as of
«Date_of_Letter», as extended through Decembe2@®12, between Olin and the Executive.

3. Term/Executives Duties.

(a) This Agreement expires at the close of busineghe third anniversary of the Effective Dategvided that on the first
anniversary of the Effective Date and on each araary thereafter (any such anniversary beingneden herein as a “Renewal Date”) the
term of this Agreement shall be extended for orditexhal year unless Olin has provided the Exe@utisith written notice at least 90 days in
advance of the immediately succeeding Renewal batethe term of this Agreement shall not be semrcéd; provided however, that if a
Change in Control or Potential Change in Contral decurred prior to the date on which this Agreemneapires, this Agreement shall not
expire prior to the later of (i) three years foling the date of the Potential Change in Contrdiipthree years following the date of the Cha
in Control;_provided further, that the expiration of this Agreement will noteat any of the Executive’s rights resulting frorif@mination
prior to such expiration. In the event of the Exeals death while employed by Olin, this Agreemshall terminate and be of no further force
or effect on the date of his or her death; provitted the Executive’s death will not affect anytlod Executive’s rights resulting from a
Termination prior to death.

(b) During the period of the Executive’'s employmentOlin, the Executive shall devote his or hef fimhe efforts during normal
business hours to Olin’s business and affairs, gbabering vacation periods in accordance with GQlimacation policy and periods of illness or
incapacity. Nothing in this Agreement will preclutiiee Executive from devoting reasonable periodsired for service as a director or a
member of any organization involving no conflictioferest with Olin$ interest, provided that no additional positiord&sctor or member sh
be accepted by the Executive during the periodsbhher employment with Olin without its priorregent.

(c) The Executive agrees that in the event of asteial Change in Control of Olin occurring froimé to time after the Effective
Date, the Executive will remain in the employ ofrQlintil the earlier of (i) the end of the six mbrgeriod following the occurrence of such
Potential Change in Control and (ii) a Change imt&w, provided that Olin provides the Executivetwan office, title, duties and
responsibilities no less favorable than those apple immediately prior to such Potential Chang€amtrol.

4. Executive Severance Payment

(@) In the event of a Termination occurring befitre expiration of this Agreement, Olin will pay tB&ecutive a lump sum in an
amount equal to the



Executive Severance. Such payment will be mademit® days following the date of Termination.

(b) In the event of a Termination (other than anfieation pursuant to paragraph 1(f)(ii)(4)) afte€laange in Control has occurred,
in addition to the Executive Severance paid undeagraph 4(a) above, Olin will pay a Change in @drseverance premium to the Executive
in an amount equal to two times the Executive Sevee. The Change in Control severance premiurmbd&domes due, will be paid at the s¢
time as payment is made under paragraph 4(a).

(c) The amount due under paragraph 4(a) and 4(@iyi will be reduced to the extent that, if sachount in the aggregate were
paid in equal monthly installments over a 12-mquehiod (or in the event both paragraph 4(a) andl @ applicable, a 36-month period), no
installment would be paid after the Executive'sysififth birthday.

(d) The Executive will not be required to mitigdite amount of any payment provided for in paragré@h or 4(b) by seeking other
employment or otherwise, nor shall any compensatarived by the Executive from a third party rezlaach payment except as explicitly
provided in this Agreement. Except as may otherbisexpressly provided herein, nothing in this Agnent will be deemed to reduce or limit
the rights which the Executive may have under angleyee benefit plan, policy or arrangement of Q@lird its subsidiaries and affiliates.
Except as expressly provided in this Agreementppays made under paragraphs 4 or 5 shall not betatf by any set-off, counterclaim,
recoupment, defense or other claim which Olin asdubsidiaries and affiliates may have againsEttecutive.

(e) If the Executive receives the Executive Sevegathe Executive will not be entitled to receivgy ather severance otherwise
payable to the Executive under any other severglaceof Olin and its subsidiaries and affiliat€fson the date of Termination the Executive is
eligible and is receiving payments under any thestiag disability plan of Olin or its subsidiariesd affiliates, then the Executive agrees that
all such payments may, and will be, suspended #adtdor 12 months (or in the event paragraph #laso applicable, 36 months) (subject to
applicable law) following the date of Terminatidhafter such period the Executive remains eligiioleeceive disability payments, then such
payments shall resume in the amounts and in aceoedaith the provisions of the applicable disapifitan of Olin or its subsidiaries and
affiliates.

(f) In the event the Executive, prior to a Chang€ontrol, in connection with the sale of an Olirsimess or assets to a third party
or the transfer of an Olin business or Olin assetsjoint venture which would be owned directlyimdirectly by Olin with one or more third
parties, ceases to be employed by Olin and with’©tonsent becomes employed by the buyer orfitsaté or the joint venture or its affiliate
(a “New Employer”), the Executive shall be entittecthe benefits provided
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under paragraph 4(a) (determined as if the Exeguigurred a Termination upon such cessation ofl@mpent with Olin) (subject to
paragraphs 4(c), 4(d) and 4(e)) and the first seetef paragraph 5(a) (subject to paragraph 5aj,paragraph 5(d), if the Executive has a
Termination with the New Employer (with the New Hoyer being substituted for Olin in such paragragi and without giving any effect to
the Change in Control references contained thdodlimwing such new employment) within 12 monthsbaecoming employed by such New
Employer. Any cash compensation amounts paid utihieparagraph 4(f) shall be reduced by any sewergob transition or employment
termination payments such Executive receives ih éasn the New Employer in connection with the Taration. In connection with this
paragraph 4(f), in no event shall the Change int@bprovisions of this Agreement be applicable ®tive Executive ceases to be employed
directly by Olin.

5. Other Benefits

(a) If the Executive becomes entitled to paymemtenrparagraph 4(a), then (i) the Executive wilkige 12 months service credit
under all Olin pension plans for which the Execativas eligible at the time of the Termination (iwnder Olin’s qualified pension plans to the
extent permitted under then applicable law, otheevgiuch credit will be reflected in a supplemengeysion payment from Olin to be due at
the times and in the manner payments are due teeufixe under such qualified pension plans), aifdafi 12 months from the date of the
Termination the Executive (and his or her covereplethdents) will continue to enjoy coverage on #reesbasis as a similarly situated active
employee under all Olin medical, dental, and lifeurance plans to the extent the Executive waymgjsuch coverage immediately prior to
the Termination. The Executive’s entitlement tauir@ce continuation coverage under the Consolidatadibus Budget Reconciliation Act of
1985 would commence at the end of the period dusinigh insurance coverage is provided under thissAment without offset for coverage
provided hereunder. The Executive shall accrueawation during the 12 months following the datd efmination but shall be entitled to
payment for accrued and unused vacation for thendalr year in which the Termination occurs. If Bxecutive receives the Executive
Severance (including the amount referred to ingrayzh 1(d)(ii)), the Executive shall not be entitte an ICP award for the calendar year of
Termination if Termination occurs during the ficstlendar quarter. Even if the Executive receivesBkecutive Severance (including the
amount referred to in paragraph 1(d)(ii)), if Tenaion occurs during or after the second calendartgr, the Executive shall be entitled to a
prorated ICP award for the calendar year of Tertionavhich shall be determined by multiplying hisher then current ICP standard annual
award by a fraction, the numerator of which isthenber of weeks in the calendar year prior to teemination and the denominator of which
is 52. The Executive shall accrue no ICP awaraithg the date of Termination. The accrued vacgpiayand ICP award, if any, shall be
in a lump sum when the Executive Severance is paid.

(b) If the Executive becomes entitled to paymertteurparagraph 4(b), the pension plan service cagdgitinsurance coverage
provided for in paragraph



5(a) will be for an additional 24-month period bagdhe period provided in paragraph 5(a).

(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing paragraphs 5¢a) 8(b), no such service credit or insurance cgeweill be afforded by this
Agreement with respect to any period after the Hiee's sixty-fifth birthday.

(d) In the event of a Termination, the Executivdl iné entitled at Olin’s expense to outplacementriseling and associated services
in accordance with Olin’s customary practice attthre (or, if a Change in Control shall have ocedsrin accordance with such practice
immediately prior thereto) with respect to its seréxecutives who have been terminated other tha€@duse. It is understood that the
counseling and services contemplated by this papdgb(d) are intended to facilitate the obtainigghe Executive of other employment
following a Termination, and payments or benefitgin in lieu thereof will not be available to tikxecutive.

(e) Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 4f&he Olin Senior Executive Pension Plan (the “SeRilan”), if the Executive is
in active employment with Olin on the date on whicEEhange in Control occurs (or if the Executiveigployment is terminated on the date on
which a Change in Control occurs) but has notrathiage 55 at such date, the Executive shalldii thParticipant in the Senior Plan)
nevertheless automatically be paid the lump-sumuarnealled for by such Section 4.6, except thahdump-sum amount will be calculated
first, by calculating the sum equal to the annwalddit which would otherwise be payable to the Exiee at age 65 under all Olin pension
plans assuming the Executive had terminated hieoemployment with Olin on the date of the Chaing@ontrol; second, by multiplying su
sum by 72%, which is the current percentage apphca the calculation of benefits paid to emplayestiring from active service with Olin at
age 55 under the early retirement provisions ofQlie Employees Pension Plan; third, by determirttmggthen lump-sum actuarial value of the
product resulting from the second step; and founyhgeducting from such lump-sum actuarial valwettien lump-sum actuarial value of the
Executive’s accrued annual benefits under all ofler pension plans. The actuarial value shall éignined as the amount needed to
purchase a fixed annuity through Metropolitan Lifsurance Company (“Metropolitan”) or its succedsumediately prior to the Change in
Control. In the event such annuity is not availghteugh Metropolitan, then Prudential Insurancenfany or an insurance company with
comparable rating by A.M. Best & Company shall bbstituted for Metropolitan. A lump-sum payment anthis paragraph 5(e) will be used
to reduce any payments under the Senior Plan whashbecome due to the Executive thereafter. Thpgser of this paragraph 5(e) is to en:
that an Executive who is less than age 55 at the tif the Change in Control receives a lump-summeay which when combined with the
value of the Executive’s pension benefits fromoditler Olin pension plans preserves the 72% agsuiisidized early retirement factor, rather
than the actuarial reduction. Such lump-sum payrskeall be discounted by the same interest rate lgdlge insurance company to determine
the actuarial value to provide for the deferrathaf benefit until the Executive reaches age 55.
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(f) If the Executive becomes entitled to the paymerder paragraph 4(b), then at the end of thegdddr insurance coverage
provided in accordance with paragraph 5(b), if Exige at such time has satisfied the eligibilitqu@ements to participate in Olin’s post-
retirement medical and dental plan, the Executihal $e entitled to continue in Olin’s medical athehtal coverage (including dependent
coverage) on terms and conditions no less favotaltlee Executive as in effect prior to the Chaimg€ontrol for the Executive until the
Executive reaches age 65; provided, that if thecHttee obtains other employment which offers meldicalental coverage to the Executive
and his or her dependents, the Executive shalllénrsuch medical or dental coverage, as the oa@gbe, and the corresponding coverage
provided to the Executive hereunder shall be seamyncbverage to the coverage provided by the Ekexatnew employer so long as such
employer provides the Executive with such coverage.

(g) If there is a Change in Control, Olin shall neduce or diminish the insurance coverage or litsnghich are provided to the
Executive under paragraph 5(a), 5(b) or 5(f) duthegperiod the Executive is entitled to such cager provided the Executive makes the
premium payments required by active employees gd#ipdor such coverage, if any, under the terms esntlitions of coverage applicable to
the Executive. Following a Change in Control, intdecompensation plans in which the Executiveipgtes shall contain reasonable
financial performance measures and shall be cemsistith practice prior to the Change in Control.

6. Participation in Change in Control/Section 499Mternal Revenue Code

(a) In the event that the Executive participateagrees to participate by loan or equity investnfetiter than through ownership of
less than 1% of publicly traded securities of aspttompany) in a transaction (“acquisition”) whigbuld result in an event described in
paragraph 1(b)(i) or (ii), the Executive must praipplisclose such participation or agreement tonfi the Executive so participates or agrees
to participate, no payments due under this Agre¢mehy virtue of any Change in Control provisiamitained in any compensation or ben
plan of Olin will be paid to the Executive untiletlacquiring group in which the Executive particgsabr agrees to participate has completed the
acquisition. In the event the Executive so partitds or agrees to participate and fails to disdhiser her participation or agreement, the
Executive will not be entitled to any payments urtiés Agreement or by virtue of Change in Congravisions in any Olin compensation or
benefit plan, notwithstanding any of the terms béoe thereof.

(b) (i) Anything in this Agreement to the contrargtwithstanding and except as set forth belowh@dvent it shall be determined
that any Payment would be subject to the Excise een the Executive shall be entitled to receivadditional payment (the “Gross-Up
Payment”) in an amount such that, after paymenhbyExecutive of all taxes (and any interest orgftées imposed with respect to such taxes),
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including, without limitation, any income and enyhoent taxes (and any interest and penalties impa#ibdespect thereto) and Excise Tax
imposed upon the Gross-Up Payment, the Executteinsean amount of the Gross-Up Payment equakt&ittise Tax imposed upon the
Payments. Olin’s obligation to make Gross-Up Paymander this paragraph 6 shall not be conditiarmmzh the Executive’s termination of
employment.

(i) Subject to the provisions of paragraph 6(I)(&ll determinations required to be made underplaragraph 6(b), including
whether and when a Gross-Up Payment is requiredaiount of such Gross-Up Payment and the assumsgtidoe utilized in arriving at such
determination, shall be made by KPMG LLP or sudteonhationally recognized certified public accongtfirm as may be designated by the
Executive (the “Accounting Firm”). The Accountingra shall provide detailed supporting calculatitwash to Olin and the Executive within
15 business days of the receipt of notice fromBkecutive that there has been a Payment or sutreane as is requested by Olin. The
Accounting Firm shall not determine that no Excisex is payable by the Executive unless it deliterthe Executive a written opinion that
failure to report the Excise Tax on the Executivagplicable federal income tax return would notteis the imposition of a negligence or
similar penalty. All fees and expenses of the Actimg Firm shall be borne solely by Olin. Any Grddp Payment, as determined pursuant to
this paragraph 6(b), shall be paid by Olin to tixedutive within 5 days of the receipt of the Accbog Firm’s determination. Any
determination by the Accounting Firm shall be bivgdupon Olin and the Executive. As a result oftheertainty in the application of Section
4999 of the Code at the time of the initial deteration by the Accounting Firm hereunder, it is floigsthat Gross-Up Payments that will not
have been made by Olin should have been made Wheetpayment”), consistent with the calculatiorguieed to be made hereunder. In the
event Olin exhausts its remedies pursuant to papég8(b)(iii) and the Executive thereafter is regdito make a payment of any Excise Tax,
the Accounting Firm shall determine that amounthef Underpayment that has occurred and any suckrgagment shall be promptly paid by
Olin to or for the benefit of the Executive.

(iii) The Executive shall notify Olin in writing odiny claims by the Internal Revenue Service thatjécessful, would require the
payment by Olin of the Gross-Up Payment. Such igatibn shall be given as soon as practicable butater than 30 days after the Executive
actually receives notice in writing of such claimdashall apprise Olin of the nature of such claird the date on which such claim is requested
to be paid; provided, however, that the failuréhaf Executive to notify Olin of such claim (or toogide any required information with respect
thereto) shall not affect any rights granted toEtecutive under this paragraph 6(b) except teettient that Olin is materially prejudiced in the
defense of such claim as a direct result of suithréa The Executive shall not pay such claim ptathe expiration of the 30-day period
following the date on which the Executive givestsnotice to Olin (or such shorter period endinglmdate that any payment of taxes with
respect to such claim is due). If Olin notifies fxecutive in writing prior to the expiration ofduperiod that Olin desires to contest such
claim, the Executive shall:
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(A) give Olin any information reasonably requedbgdOlin relating to such claim;

(B) take such action in connection with contessngh claim as Olin shall reasonably request inimgrifrom time to time,
including, without limitation, accepting legal regsentation with respect to such claim by an attosstected by Olin and reasonably accept
to the Executive;

(C) cooperate with Olin in good faith in order fifeetively contest such claim; and
(D) permit Olin to participate in any proceedingfating to such claim;

provided, however, that Olin shall bear and pay directly all costd @xpenses (including additional interest and itiesqincurred in
connection with such contest, and shall indemnifg hold the Executive harmless, on an after-taishfs any Excise tax or income or
employment tax (including interest and penaltieg)ésed as a result of such representation and payfeosts and expenses. Without
limitation on the foregoing provisions of this pgraph 6(b)(iii), Olin shall control all proceedintgken in connection with such contest, and, at
its sole discretion, may pursue or forego any dhaldministrative appeals, proceedings, hearingsamferences with the applicable taxing
authority in respect of such claim and may, asde discretion, either direct the Executive to theg/tax claimed and sue for a refund or cor
the claim in any permissible manner, and the Exeewatgrees to prosecute such contest to a deteionirtzefore any administrative tribunal, in
a court of initial jurisdiction and in one or maappellate courts, as Olin shall determipvided, however, that, if Olin directs the Executive
to pay such claim and sue for a refund, Olin shdllance the amount of such payment to the Execuivan interest-free basis, and shall
indemnify and hold the Executive harmless, on éerdéx basis, from any Excise Tax or income tagl(iding interest or penalties) imposed
with respect to such advance or with respect toigpyted income in connection with such advance;@ovided, further, that any extension
of the statute of limitations relating to paymehtaxes for the taxable year of the Executive witbpect to which such contested amount is
claimed to be due is limited solely to such comestmount. Furthermore, Olin’s control of the cahghall be limited to issues with respect to
which the Gross-Up Payment would be payable hereyraod the Executive shall be entitled to settleomtest, as the case may be, any other
issue raised by the Internal Revenue Service oo#mr taxing authority.

(iv) If, after the receipt by the Executive of an@unt advanced by Olin pursuant to paragraph Gifb}tie Executive becomes
entitled to receive any refund with respect to stieim, the Executive shall (subject to Olin’s cdyipg with the requirements of paragraph 6
(b)(iii) promptly pay to Olin the amount of suctfurd (together with any interest paid or creditegreon after taxes applicable thereto). If,
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after the receipt by the Executive of an amountaded by Olin pursuant to paragraph 6(b)(iii), eedmination is made that the Executive s
not be entitled to any refund with respect to scleim, and Olin does not notify the Executive irtimg of its intent to contest such denial of
refund prior to the expiration of 30 days aftertsdetermination, then such advance shall be forgared shall not be required to be repaid and
the amount of such advance shall offset, to thergxhereof, the amount of Gross-Up Payment requode paid.

(v) Notwithstanding any other provision of this @graph 6(b), Olin may, in its sole discretion, \witkd and pay over to the
Internal Revenue Service or any other applicabligpauthority, for the benefit of the Executivél,a any portion of the Gross-Up Payment,
and the Executive hereby consents to such withhgldi

(vi) Definitions. The following terms shall havesetifiollowing meanings for purposes of this paragréfit).

(A) “Excise Tax” shall mean the excise tax impobgdsection 4999 of the Code, together with anyr@gtor penalties
imposed with respect to such excise tax.

(B) A “Payment” shall mean any payment or distribatin the nature of compensation (within the magrof Section 280G
(b)(2) of the Code) to or for the benefit of theeEutive, whether paid or payable pursuant to tlgjee@ment or otherwise.

7. Successors; Binding Agreement

(a) Olin will require any successor (whether direcindirect, by purchase, merger, consolidationtberwise) to all or substantially
all of the business or assets of Olin, by agreepierfiorm and substance satisfactory to the Exeeugxpressly to assume and agree to perforrr
this Agreement in the same manner and to the sataatehat Olin would be required to perform if such succession had taken place. Failure
of Olin to obtain such assumption and agreement poithe effectiveness of any such successionbeith breach of this Agreement and entitle
the Executive to compensation from Olin in the sam@unt and on the same terms as the Executivetvbeuéntitled to hereunder had a
Termination occurred on the succession date. A8 usthis Agreement, “Olin” means Olin as definedhe preamble to this Agreement and
any successor to its business or assets which #eeand delivers the agreement provided for inghimgraph 7 or which otherwise becomes
bound by all the terms and provisions of this Agneat by operation of law or otherwise.

(b) This Agreement shall be enforceable by the Httee's personal or legal representatives, exesygministrators, successors,
heirs, distributees, devisees and legatees.
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8. Notices. For the purpose of this Agreement, notices ahdthér communications provided for herein shaliberiting and shall be
deemed to have been duly given when delivered dechhy United States registered or certified maturn receipt requested, postage pre|
addressed as follows:

If to the Executive

If to Olin :

Olin Corporation

501 Merritt 7

P.O. Box 4500

Norwalk, CT 06856-4500
Attention: Corporate Secretary

or to such other address as either party may hawéshed to the other in writing in accordance e except that notices of change of
address shall be effective only upon receipt.

9. Governing Law The validity, interpretation, construction andfpemance of this Agreement shall be governed leyidivs of the
Commonwealth of Virginia (without giving effect s principles of conflicts of law).

10. MiscellaneousNo provisions of this Agreement may be modifiedjved or discharged unless such modification, e@dr discharg
is agreed to in writing signed by the Executive &ith. No waiver by either party hereto at any tiofeany breach by the other party hereto of,
or compliance with, any condition or provision bist Agreement to be performed by such other pdrdyl ¥e deemed a waiver of similar or
dissimilar provisions or conditions at the samatoany prior or subsequent time. No agreementspresentations, oral or otherwise, expre:
implied, with respect to the subject matter hetenfe been made by either party, which are notosgt éxpressly in this Agreement.

11. Counterpars. This Agreement may be executed in one or marategparts, each of which shall be deemed to bwigimal but all of
which together will constitute one and the sameeg&grent.

12. Withholding of TaxesOlin may withhold from any benefits payable unttés Agreement all federal, state, city or otleexess as she
be required pursuant to any law or governmentallegign or ruling.

13. Nonassignability. This Agreement is personal in nature and neibfiéine parties hereto shall, without the consenthefother, assign
or transfer this Agreement or any rights or obligred hereunder, except as provided in paragragiovea Without
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limiting the foregoing, the Executivetight to receive payments hereunder shall nadseggnable or transferable, whether by pledgetioreaf

a security interest or otherwise, other than asfiexrby his or her will or by the laws of descentistribution, and, in the event of any attem)
assignment or transfer by the Executive contratpitoparagraph, Olin shall have no liability toygany amount so attempted to be assigned or
transferred.

14. No Employment RightThis Agreement shall not be deemed to confeherEixecutive a right to continued employment witlnO

15. Disputes/Arbitration

(a) Any dispute or controversy arising under oc@mnection with this Agreement shall be settledwesieely by arbitration at Olirs
corporate headquarters in accordance with the oflds®e American Arbitration Association then idesft. Judgment may be entered on the
arbitrator’s award in any court having jurisdictiganovided, however, that the Executive shall btled to seek specific performance of the
Executive’s right to be paid during the pendencymyf dispute or controversy arising under or innemmion with this Agreement.

(b) Olin shall pay all reasonable legal fees angkeses, as they become due, which the Executivenmoayto enforce this
Agreement through arbitration or otherwise unlégsarbitrator determines that Executive had noore@sle basis for his or her claim. Should
Olin dispute the entitlement of the Executive tolstees and expenses, the burden of proof shalhllin to establish that the Executive had
no reasonable basis for his or her claim.

(c) If any payment which is due to Executive hedmrrhas not been paid within ten (10) days of tite dn which such payment
was due, the Executive shall be entitled to reckiterest thereon from the due date until paichaamnual rate of interest equal to the Prime
Rate reported in the Wall Street Journal, North&a#ion, on the last business day of the montleguieng the due date, compounded annually.

[remainder of this page intentionally left blank]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused thissAment to be executed and delivered as of thadayear first above set for

Very Truly Yours,

OLIN CORPORATION

Joseph D. Rupp
President and Chief Executive Offic

Print Name
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Exhibit 10(g

OLIN 1991 LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
(As Amended through January 30, 2003)

Section 1. Purpose

The purposes of the Olin 1991 Long Term IncentilaRthe “Plan”) are to encourage selected salaiedloyees of Olin Corporation (“Olip”
and its Affiliates (as defined below) to acquirpraprietary interest in Olin’s growth and performanto generate an increased incentive to
contribute to Olin’s future success and to enhaheeability of Olin and its Affiliates to attrachd retain qualified individuals.

Section 2. Definitions

As used in the Plan:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

()
(f)

(9)
(h)

(i)

0

(k)

“Affiliate” means (i) any entity that, directly ahrough one or more intermediaries, is controllgddtin and (ii) any entity in which Olin
has a significant equity interest as determinethbyCommittee

“Award” means any Option, Stock Appreciation Right, Re®dStock, Restricted Stock Unit, Performance Awaigidend Equivalen
or Other Stoc-Based Award granted under the P

“Award Agreemer” means any written agreement or other instrumedboument evidencing an Award granted under the. Hlaa
terms of any plan or guideline adopted by the Baairthe Committee and applicable to an Award dhalleemed incorporated in and a
part of the related Award Agreeme

“Boarc” means the Board of Directors of Ol
“Code’ means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amdradrdime to time

“Committee” means a committee of the Board desigghaly the Board to administer the Plan and compofedt less than three
directors, each of whom is qualified to adminigter Plan as contemplated by Rule -3.

“Dividend Equivaler” means any right granted under Section 6(f)(iv)hef Plan

“Fair Market Valu” means, with respect to any property (includinghaitt limitation, Shares or other securities), thie fnarket value ¢
such property determined by such methods or praesdas shall be established from time to time kyGbmmittee

“Incentive Stock Option” means an option to pureh&bares granted under Section 6(a) of the Plansthended to meet the
requirements of Section 422 of the Code or a sgocgsovision theretc

“Non-Qualified Stock Optio” means an option to purchase Shares granted undens6(a) of the Plan that is not intended to b
Incentive Stock Optior

“Optior” means an Incentive Stock Option or a -Qualified Stock Option



()

(m)
(n)
(0)

(P)
(@)

(r

(s)
(t)
(u)

(v)
(w)

()

“Other Stoc-Based Awar” means any right granted under Section 6(e) of the.
“Participan” means a Salaried Employee granted an Award unde?ltn,
“Performance Awal” means any right granted under Section 6(d) of the.

“Person” means any individual, corporation, parshgs, association, joint-stock company, trust, oomporated organization, or
government or political subdivision there

The"“1988 Pla” means the 1988 Stock Option Plan for Key Employééslin Corporation and Subsidiarie

“Released Securities” means securities that westriReed Securities with respect to which all agglile restrictions imposed under the
terms of the relevant Award have expired, lapseean waived or satisfie

“Restricted Securities” means Awards of Restricdack or other Awards under which outstanding Share held subject to certain
restrictions

“Restricted Stoc” means any Share granted under Section 6(c) ofléame
“Restricted Stock Ur” means any right granted under Section 6(c) of the #at is denominated in Shar

“Rule 16b-3" means Rule 16b-3 promulgated by theuB88es and Exchange Commission under the Seesifiikchange Act of 1934, as
amended, or any successor ri

“Salaried Employe” means any salaried employee of Olin or of an Affdi

“Share” means the Common Stock of Olin and such other gsuor property as may become the subject of Alwaursuant to a
adjustment made under Section 4(b) of the F

“Stock Appreciation Rigl” means any right granted under Section 6(b) of tae.

Section 3. Administration

The Plan shall be administered by the Committeekvhhall have full power and authority to: (i) dgste Participants; (ii) determine the
Awards to be granted to Participants; (iii) deterenthe number of Shares (or securities converiititeShares) to be covered by Awards; (iv)
determine the terms and conditions of any Awarjipgétermine whether, to what extent, and under winetimstances Awards may be settled
or exercised in cash, Shares, other securitiesy étivards, or other property, or canceled, sulistituforfeited or suspended, and the methc
methods by which Awards may be settled, exercisaaceled, substituted, forfeited or suspended;d@t¢rmine whether, to what extent, and
under what circumstances cash, Shares, other Sespdther Awards, other property and other anm®payable with respect to an Award ur
the Plan shall be deferred either automaticallgtdhe election of the Participant or of the Conteeit (vii) interpret and administer the Plan
any instrument or agreement relating to, or Awaetienunder, the Plan; (viii) establish,

-2



amend, suspend or waive such rules and guidelimgjgpoint such agents as it shall deem approgdatae administration of the Plan; and
(ix) make any other determination and take anyradlcion that it deems necessary or desirableudn sdministration. All designations,
determinations, interpretations and other deciswaitis respect to the Plan or any Award shall bénimithe sole discretion of the Committee
shall be final, conclusive and binding upon allgeas, including Olin, any Affiliate, any Particigapany holder or beneficiary of any Award,
any shareholder and any employee of Olin or of Affijiate. The Committee’s powers include the adoptof modifications, amendments,
procedures, subplans and the like as are necessapynply with provisions of the laws of other ctrigs in which Olin or an Affiliate may
operate in order to assure the viability of Awagdanted under the Plan and to enable Participampdogred in such other countries to receive
benefits under the Plan and such laws.

Section 4. Shares Available for Awards

(a) Shares AvailableSubject to adjustment as provided in Section df{lthe Plan:

(i)

(ii)

The aggregate number of Shares available for graitivards under the Plan shall be 500,000, provitlatin the event the 19t
Plan shall terminate or be cancelled prior to AR 1998 (its stated expiration date), the nunab&hares available for the grant
Awards under the Plan shall be increased by the(sotrto exceed 800,000) of (a) the number of shefgich were available for
the grant of options under the 1988 Plan immedigigbr to the date of such termination or candellaand (b) the aggregate
number of shares which were subject to options uthee1988 Plan on such date and were not substygissued because such
options terminated, expired or were forfeited withthe delivery to optionees of Shares or othesmaration. If an Award is
denominated in or relates to a security of Olinvastible into its Common Stock, the number of sekaCommon Stock into
which such security shall be convertible (calcudaas of the date of grant of the Award, subjecdfustment as provided in Section
4(b) hereof or under the terms of such securitg)ldfe deemed denominated in Shares and countéusagse aggregate number of
Shares available for the granting of Awards unterRIan. If, after the effective date of the P@hares subject to an Award gran
under the Plan (other than Restricted Securitiesjafeited, or the Award otherwise terminateshwitt the delivery of Shares or of
other consideration, then the Shares subject o Award or the number of Shares otherwise coungaihat the aggregate number
of Shares available under the Plan with respestitth Award, to the extent of such forfeiture onteration, shall again be available
for granting Awards under the Plan.” Any Award (@tlthan a Dividend Equivalent) denominated in Shakall be counted against
the aggregate number of Shares available for grgitivards under the Plan even though the Awardtiimately paid in cash,
provided that, notwithstanding the foregoing, anadavshall not be deemed denominated in Shares dlalar amount of the

Award is fixed at the time of grant by referenceite market value of Shares or otherw

For purposes of this Section



(A) If an Award (other than a Dividend Equivalent) andminated in Shares, the number of Shares cobgrsdch Award, or to which
such Award relates, shall be counted on the daggaoift of such Award against the aggregate numb8hares available for
granting Awards under the Plan; ¢

(B) Dividend Equivalents paid in Shares and Awardsdestominated in Shares but paid in Shares shalbbeted against the aggreg
number of Shares available for granting Awards utigke Plan in such amount and at such time as timen@ittee shall determine
under procedures adopted by the Committee consisténthe purposes of the Ple

provided, however, that Awards that operate in tandem with, or #ratsubstituted for, other Awards may be countetbbcounted under

procedures adopted by the Committee in order taded@uble counting. Any Shares that are deliverg®bn, and any Awards that are granted
by, or become obligations of, Olin, through theuasgtion by Olin or an Affiliate of, or in substitah for, outstanding awards previously
granted by an acquired company shall not, exceftdrcase of Awards granted to Salaried Employdesare officers or directors of Olin for
purposes of Section 16 of the Securities ExchangeofA1934, as amended, be counted against theShsaailable for granting Awards under

the Plan.
(b) Adjustments. In the event that the Committee determines thptdividend or other distribution, recapitalizatjatock split, reverse stor

()

split, reorganization, merger, consolidation, spfit spin-off, combination, repurchase or exchasfgghares or other securities of Olin,
issuance of warrants or other rights to purchaseeShor other securities of Olin, or other simdarporate transaction or event affects the
Shares such that an adjustment is determined b@dahemittee to be appropriate in order to prevehitidn or enlargement of the bene
intended to be made available under the Plan,ttie@€ommittee shall, in such manner as it may deguitable, adjust any or all of (i)

the number and type of Shares (or other secudtiggoperty) which thereafter may be made the stilsieAwards, (ii) the number and
type of Shares (or other securities or propertpjestt to outstanding Awards, and (iii) the grantrghase or exercise price with respect to
any Award, or, if the Committee deems it approgriatake provision for a cash payment to the hatlan outstanding Award;

provided, however, that with respect to Awards of Incentive Stocki®ps, no such adjustment shall be authorizedecettient that such
authority would cause the Plan to violate Sectid df the Code or any successor provision theMttwithstanding the foregoing, a
Participant to whom Dividend Equivalents or dividamits have been awarded shall not be entitleddeive a special or extraordinary
dividend or distribution unless the Committee shale expressly authorized such rece

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Plarthe contrary, grants to any one Participant of Adgsarhich represent or are designe
in Shares shall not exceed 60,000 Shares in appdat year
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Section 5. Eligibility

Any Salaried Employee, including any officer or dayge- director of Olin or an Affiliate, who is natmember of the Committee shall be
eligible to be designated a Participant.

Section 6. Awards

(@)

(b)

Options. The Committee is authorized to grant OptionsadiBipants with the following terms and conditicarsd with such additioni
terms and conditions, not inconsistent with thevjgions of the Plan, as the Committee shall deteen

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

Exercise Price The purchase price per Share purchasable undeptéon shall be determined by the Committee; piedi
however, that such purchase price shall not be less theufrair Market Value of a Share on the date oftgsgeuch Option

Option Term. The term of each Option shall be fixed by the Guttee, provided that in no event shall the ternamfOption excee
a period of ten years from the date of its gr

Exercise. The Committee shall determine the time or timestdach an Option may be exercised in whole orant gbut in no ever
shall an Option be exercisable before the expmatiosix months from the date of its grant, subjecBection 9 thereof, or after the
expiration of ten years from the date of its graat)d the method or methods by which, and the farforms (including, without
limitation, cash, Shares, other Awards or othepprty, or any combination thereof, having a FairlkéaValue on the exercise di
equal to the relevant exercise price) in which,pagt of the exercise price with respect thereto beynade; provided that no
Shares may be used by a Participant in paymeiheoétercise price of an Option unless such Shaes lheen held by the
Participant for at least six montt

Incentive Stock OptionsThe terms of any Incentive Stock Option grantadar the Plan shall comply in all respects with the
provisions of Section 422 of the Code, or any sssgeprovision thereto, and any regulations promtelg) thereunder. Without
limiting the preceding sentence, the aggregateMarket Value (determined at the time an optiogrented) of Shares with respect
to which Incentive Stock Options are exercisabtetie first time by a Participant during any calengear (under the Plan and any
other plan of the Participant’'s employer corpomatmd its parent and subsidiary corporations piogifbr Options) shall not
exceed such dollar limitation as shall be applieablincentive Stock Options under Section 422hef@ode or a successor
provision.

Stock Appreciation Right. The Committee is authorized to grant Stock Apjattean Rights to Participants which may but neetiretate

to a specific Option granted under Section 6(alpj&ai to the terms of the Plan and any applicabeam Agreement, each Stock
Appreciation Right granted under the Plan shalfeoan the holder thereof a right to receive, uprarcise thereof, up to the excess ¢
the Fair Market Value of one Share on the datexefase over (ii) the exercise price of the rightsaecified by th
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(€)

Committee, which shall not be less than the FairkdétaValue of one Share on the date of grant ofStoek Appreciation Right. Subject
to the terms of the Plan and any applicable AwagdeAment, the exercise price, term, methods otesesrmethods of payment or
settlement and any other terms and conditions pfstack Appreciation Right shall be as determingdhe Committee, except that Stock
Appreciation Rights related to Incentive Stock ©Ops$ shall have the same terms and conditions ds@ptions, and in no event shall the
term of a Stock Appreciation Right exceed a pedbteén years from the date of its grant. In theeaafsany Stock Appreciation Right
related to an Option, the Stock Appreciation Righapplicable portion thereof shall terminate andanger be exercisable upon the
termination or exercise of the related Option, @xdbat a Stock Appreciation Right granted withpesst to less than the full number of
Shares covered by a related Option shall not becestiuntil the exercise or termination of the edla®ption exceeds the number of
shares not covered by the Stock Appreciation Raglitthen only to the extent of the excess. Any @ptelated to a Stock Appreciation
Right shall no longer be exercisable to the exteatrelated Stock Appreciation Right has been éxedc

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock U.

(i) Issuance. The Committee is authorized to grant Awards aétReted Stock and Restricted Stock Units to Piicts.

(i Restrictions. Shares of Restricted Stock and Restricted Stattsldhall be subject to such restrictions as theittee may
impose (including, without limitation, any limitath on the right to vote a Share of Restricted Stwrdke right to receive any
dividend or other right or property), which restions may lapse separately or in combination alh sumse or times, in such
installments or otherwise, as the Committee mayndagpropriate, provided that in order for a papeit to vest in Awards of
Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Units, theigipant must remain in the employ of Olin or arfilkdte for a period of not less
than six months commencing on the date of gratie@fAward, subject to Section 9 hereof and sultgentlief for specified reasons
as may be approved by the Commit!

(i) Registration Any Restricted Stock granted under the Plan neaguidenced in such manner as the Committee may dee
appropriate, including, without limitation, booktenregistration or issuance of a stock certificateertificates. In the event any
stock certificate is issued in respect of SharaRedtricted Stock granted under the Plan, suclficaté shall be registered in the
name of the Participant and when delivered to timtidpant shall bear an appropriate legend refgrto the terms, conditions and
restrictions applicable to such Restricted St

(iv) Forfeiture. Except as otherwise determined by the Committpen termination of employment for any reason dythe applicabli
restriction period, all Shares of Restricted StaoHl all Restricted Stock Units still subject totriesion shall be forfeited and
reacquired by Olin; provide, however, that the Committee may, in its sole discretioajws in whole or in part any or ¢
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(d)

(€)

(f)

remaining restrictions with respect to Shares dftReted Stock or Restricted Stock Units. UnrestdcShares, evidenced in such
manner as the Committee shall deem appropriaté isheelivered to the holder of Restricted Stootrpptly after such Restricted
Stock shall become Released Securities.

Performance AwardsThe Committee is authorized to grant Performawards to Participants. Subject to the terms ofRfan and any
applicable Award Agreement, a Performance Awaraigcunder the Plan (i) may be denominated or gayatrash, Shares (including,
without limitation, Restricted Stock), other seties, other Awards or other property and (ii) slealhfer on the holder thereof rights
valued as determined by the Committee and payabte exercisable by, the holder of the Performakward, in whole or in part, upon
the achievement of such performance goals during performance periods as the Committee shall kstalsubject to the terms of the
Plan and any applicable Award Agreement, the pevéorce goals to be achieved during any performaaded) the length of any
performance period, the amount of any Performaneard granted, and the amount of any payment osteatio be made pursuant to
Performance Award shall be determined by the Cotemiprovided that a performance period shall beaast six months, subject to
Section 9 thereo

Other Stoc-Based Award:. The Committee is authorized to grant to Participauch other awards denominated or payable ingegan
whole or in part by reference to, or otherwise Hase or related to, Shares (including, without tation, phantom Shares, securities
convertible into Shares and dividend units), asdaemmed by the Committee to be consistent witlpthiposes of the Plan, provided that
such grants shall comply with Rule 16b-3 to theeekiapplicable and applicable law. Subject to ¢nms of the Plan and any applicable
Award Agreement, the Committee shall determine¢iens and conditions of such Awards. Shares orabeurities delivered pursuant
to a purchase, exchange or conversion right gramtedr this Section 6(e) shall be issued for suetsicleration, which may be paid by
such method or methods and in such form or forr@duding, without limitation, cash, Shares, othesigities, other Awards, or other
property, or any combination thereof, as the Coremishall determine, the value of which considematas established by the
Committee, shall not be less than the Fair Marlau¥ of such Shares or other securities as ofdkesiich purchase, exchange or
conversion right is grante

Other Stock-based Award Agreements shall contamigions dealing with the disposition of such Awardhe event of termination of
the Participant’s employment prior to exerciselization or payment of the Award.

Genera.

() No Cash Consideration for Awar. Participants shall not be required to make arsh gayment for the granting of an Award
except for such minimum consideration as may beaired by applicable law

(i) Awards May Be Granted Separately or Toge. Awards may be granted either alone or in additigrin tandem with, or i
substitution for any other Award or any award ondfié granted under any other plan or arrangemg@iia or any Affiliate,
or as payment for or to asst




(iii)

(iv)

v)

payment of an award or benefit granted under anl sther such plan or arrangement, provided tlepthrchase or exercise price
under an Award encompassing the right to purchaseeS shall not be reduced by the cancellatiomaf \ward and the
substitution of another Award. Awards so granteq imagranted either at the same time as or aferelift time from the grant of
such other Awards or awards or benefits.

Forms of Payment Under Awar. Subject to the terms of the Plan and of any apple Award Agreement, payments to be mac
Olin or an Affiliate upon the grant, exercise, ayment of an Award may be made in such form or foamthe Committee shall
determine, including, without limitation, cash, & other securities, other Awards, or other pityper any combination thereof,
and may be made in a single payment or transfémsiallments, or on a deferred basis, in each icagecordance with rules and
procedures established by the Commit

Dividend Equivalents or InteresBSubject to the terms of the Plan and any appkcalvard Agreement, a Participant, including the
recipient of a deferred Award, shall, if so detered by the Committee, be entitled to receive, ailyeor on a deferred basis,
interest or dividends or interest or dividend ealgwnts, with respect to the Shares covered by thaerd. The Committee may
provide that any such amounts shall be deemedvie Ia@en reinvested in additional Shares or othervasvested. Notwithstandi
the award of Dividend Equivalents or dividend undarticipant shall not be entitled to receispacial or extraordinary dividend
or distribution unless the Committee shall haveressly authorized such recei

Limits on Transfer of Award. No Award (other than Released Securities) ortiiigareunder shall be assignable or transferabkz
Participant, other than (unless limited in the AdvAgreement) by will or the laws of descent andrifistion (or, in the case of an
Award of Restricted Securities, to Olin), excemtthn Option may be transferred by gift to any mendf the holder’'s immediate
family or to a trust for the benefit of one or mofesuch immediate family members, if permittedtie applicable Award
Agreement; providedhowever, that, if so determined by the Committee, a Pigditt may, in the manner established by the
Committee, designate a beneficiary or beneficiasigls respect to any Award to exercise the riglithe Participant, and to receive
any property distributable, upon the death of thai€ipant. Each Award, and each right under anya#dyshall be exercisable,
during the Participant’s lifetime, only by the Reigant or, if permissible under applicable lawthg Participant’s guardian or legal
representative unless it has been transferredrteraber of the holder’'s immediate family or to astrior the benefit of one or more
of such immediate family members, in which cashéll be exercisable only by such transferee. lf@ptrposes of this provisior
holder’'s “immediate famil” shall mean the hold’'s spouse, children and grandchildren. No Awardgjothan
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

)

Released Securities), and no right under any sweéwrd, may be pledged, attached or otherwise encredlmher than in favor of
Olin, and any purported pledge, attachment, or ecance thereof other than in favor of Olin shelMoid and unenforceable
against Olin or any Affiliate.

Term of Awards Except as otherwise expressly provided in the,Rlze term of each Award shall be for such peasdnay be
determined by the Committe

Rule 16b3 SixMonth Limitations. To the extent required in order to satisfy thguisements for exemption under Rule 16b-3 only,
any equity security offered pursuant to the Play mat be sold for at least six months after acgjoisi(or such other period as may
be required by Rule 16b-3), except in the casesafldor disability, and any derivative securityiss pursuant to the Plan shall not
be exercisable for at least six months (or suckrgtleriod as may be required by Rule 16b-3), exicephse of death or disability.
Terms used in the preceding sentence shall, fopulhgoses of such sentence only, have the meairifragg;, assigned or attributed
to them under Rule 1+3.

No Rights to Award:. No Salaried Employee, Participant or other Pestw@ll have any claim to be granted an Award, aBdetis
no obligation for uniformity of treatment of Sakdi Employees, Participants or holders or benef@sdasf Awards under the Plan.
The terms and conditions of Awards need not beséimee with respect to each recipient. The prospectigipient of any Award
under the Plan shall not, with respect to such Awhe deemed to have become a Participant, o day rights with respect to
such Award, until and unless such recipient shealehexecuted an agreement or other instrument tiegepe Award and delivered
a fully executed copy thereof to the Company, atheémvise complied with the then applicable termd eonditions

Delegation. Notwithstanding any provision of the Plan to toatrary, the Committee may delegate to one or roffigers or
managers of Olin or any Affiliate, or a committefesach officers or managers, the authority, subiesuch terms and limitations as
the Committee shall determine, to grant Award®tdp cancel, modify, waive rights or conditiongtwiespect to, alter, discontin
suspend, or terminate Awards held by, Salaried Bygas who are not officers or directors of Olinfarposes of Section 16 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amen

Withholding. Olin or any Affiliate may withhold from any Awamgranted or any payment due or transfer made wdeAward or
under the Plan the amount (in cash, Shares, otiverises, other Awards, or other property) of Wwithding taxes due in respect of
an Award, its exercise or any payment under suchr@wer under the Plan, and take such other acianay be necessary in the
opinion of Olin or Affiliate to satisfy all obligains for the payment of such tax
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(xi) Other Compensation Arrangementsothing contained in the Plan shall prevent @lirmny Affiliate from adopting or continuing
effect other or additional compensation arrangemertd such arrangements may be either generallicabple or applicable only
specific cases

(xii) No Right to Employmer. The grant of an Award shall not be construediaag a Participant the right to be retained in émeploy
of Olin or any Affiliate. Nothing in the Plan or ywward Agreement shall limit the right of Olin an Affiliate at any time to
dismiss a Participant from employment, free from kability or any claim under the Plan or the Awakgreement

(xiii) Governing Law. The validity, construction and effect of the Ptard any rules and regulations relating to the Bleail be
determined in accordance with the laws of the Si&teéonnecticut and applicable Federal |

(xiv) Severability. If any provision of the Plan or any Award is deteed to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable irygurisdiction, or as
to any Person or Award, or would disqualify therPtet any Award under any law deemed applicablehkyGommittee, such
provision shall be construed or deemed amendedrifoom to applicable laws, or, if it cannot be smstrued or deemed amended
without, in the determination of the Committee, enilly altering the intent of the Plan or the Adiasuch provision shall be
stricken as to such jurisdiction, Person or Awartj the remainder of the Plan and any such Awaall sdmain in full force and
effect.

(xv) No Trust or Fund Create. Neither the Plan nor any Award shall create ocdiestrued to create a trust or separate fundyokism
or a fiduciary relationship between Olin or anyiliite and a Participant or any other Person. Eoetktent that any Person acquires
a right to receive payments from Olin or any Atk pursuant to an Award, such right shall be eatgr than the right of any
unsecured general creditor of Olin or any Affilie

(xvi) No Fractional Share. No fractional Shares shall be issued or delivgrgguant to the Plan or any Award, and the Conamighal
determine whether cash, other securities or ottegresty shall be paid or transferred in lieu of &mactional Shares, or whether
such fractional Shares or any rights thereto dfeltanceled, terminated or otherwise eliming

(xvii) Share Certificate. All certificates for Shares or other securitiefivered under the Plan pursuant to any Award eretkercise
thereof shall be subject to such stop transferrerded other restrictions as the Committee may dmdrisable under the Plan or
rules, regulations and other requirements of thruffiies and Exchange Commission, any stock exahapgn which such Shares
or other securities are then listed, and any apblecFederal or state securities laws, and the dtieeimay cause a legend or
legends to be put on any such certificates to napligeopriate reference to such restrictic
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(xviii) Conflict with Plan. In the event of any inconsistency or conflictvibegn the terms of the Plan and an Award Agreentieaterms
of the Plan shall goveri

(xix) Notwithstanding any provision in this Plan to tlmmtrary, Awards granted under Sections 6(c), 6(®(e) after January 1, 19!
and designated by the Committee as being perforeabased shall have as performance measures Retlquity and Total
Return to Shareholders. For purposes of the PR@&turn on Equity” shall mean consolidated incom®lif after taxes and before
the after-tax effect of any special charge or gaid any cumulative effect of any change in accogntiivided by average
shareholders equity and “Total Return to Shareheldghall mean for the performance period totaimeto shareholders of $100
worth of Shares for such period assuming reinvestrokedividends on a quarterly basis. The Commisiegl| determine the
performance goals for each such performance meastireespect to each such Awa

Section 7. Amendment and Termination

(@)

Amendments to the Ple. The Board may amend, suspend, discontinue oiinatenthe Plan, including, without limitation, a
amendment, suspension, discontinuation or terntindtiat would impair the rights of any Participantany other holder or beneficiary
of any Award theretofore granted, without the conisé any shareholder, Participant, other holddvemeficiary of an Award, or other
Person; providedhowever, that, notwithstanding any other provision of BHan or any Award Agreement, without the appro¥ahe
shareholders of Olin, no such amendment, suspemdiggontinuation or termination shall be made thatld:

() increase the total number of Shares available feartls under the Plan, except as provided in Sedtioereof; ol

(i) permit any Award encompassing rights to purchasee®hto be granted with per Share purchase orisggrdces of less than t|
Fair Market Value of a Share on the date of graeteof; anc

providedfurtherthat no amendment, suspension, discontinuatioarorimation (i) that would impair the rights of suehrticipant, holder or
beneficiary shall be made with respect to Sectiofithe Plan after a Change in Control, as defihedein and (ii) may increase the amount of

payment of any Award to any Participant.

(b)

(€)

Amendments to Award. The Committee may waive any conditions or righits respect to, or amend, alter, suspend, discoatior
terminate, any unexercised Award theretofore girieospectively or retroactively, without the censof any relevant Participant or
holder or beneficiary of an Award, providédht no amendment, alteration, suspension, disoaaiiion or termination of an Award that
would impair the rights of such Participant, holdebeneficiary shall be made after a Change int©gras defined in Section 9; provic
further that the Committee may not increase theneat of any Award granted any Participe

Adjustments of Awards Upon Certain Acquisitic. In the event Olin or any Affiliate shall assumésianding employee awards or
right or obligation to make future such awardsaonmection with the
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acquisition of another business or another comptieyCommittee may make such adjustments, not gistemt with the terms of the
Plan, in the terms of Awards as it shall deem apate.

d) Adjustments of Awards Upon the Occurrence of Certiiiusual or Nonrecurring Ever. The Committee may make adjustments in
terms and conditions of Awards in recognition ofismal or nonrecurring events (including, withouatitation, the events described in
Section 4(b) hereof) affecting Olin, any Affiliate; the financial statements of Olin or any Affigaor of changes in applicable laws,
regulations, or accounting principles, wheneverGoenmittee determines that statements of Olin gréfiliate, or of changes in
applicable laws, regulations, or accounting pritespwhenever the Committee determines that sugistagents are appropriate in order
to prevent dilution or enlargement of the bendfitbe made available under the P!

Section 8. Additional Conditions to Enjoyment of Ams.

(@) The Committee may cancel any unexpired, unpaiceterded Awards if at any time the Participant is inaccompliance with all applicab
provisions of the Award Agreement, the Plan andféfiewing conditions:

(i) A Participant shall not render services for anyaoigation or engage, directly or indirectly, in dsiness which, in the judgment
of the Committee or, if delegated by the Committethe Chief Executive Officer, in the judgmentsoich Officer, is or becomes
competitive with Olin or any Affiliate, or which ier becomes otherwise prejudicial to or in confligth the interests of Olin or any
Affiliate. Such judgment shall be based on theiBigant’s positions and responsibilities while eoymd by Olin or an Affiliate, the
Participant’s post-employment responsibilities aodition with the other organization or businehls, éxtent of past, current and
potential competition or conflict between Olin or Affiliate and the other organization or busindhs, effect on customers,
suppliers and competitors of the Participant’s a8sg the post-employment position, the guidelingsiglished in the then current
edition of Olin’'s Code of Business Conduct, andhsother considerations as are deemed relevant ¢fieeapplicable facts and
circumstances. The Participant shall be free, hewdw purchase as an investment or otherwisel stoother securities of such
organization or business so long as they are ligpeh a recognized securities exchange or tradedthe counter, and such
investment does not represent a substantial ineggtio the Participant or a greater than 1% eduoigrest in the organization or
business

(i)  Participant shall not, without prior written autlmation from Olin, disclose to anyone outside Otinuse in other than O’s
business, any secret or confidential informatiomgwdedge or data, relating to the business of @ian Affiliate in violation of his
or her agreement with Olin or the Affiliat

(iii) A Participant, pursuant to his or her agreemert Wilin or an Affiliate, shall disclose promptly aadsign to Olin or the Affiliate ¢
right, title and interest in any invention or idgatentable or not, made or conceived by
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(b)

(€)

(d)

(€)

Participant during employment by Olin or the Afiile, relating in any manner to the actual or goditeid business, research or
development work of Olin or the Affiliate and shdf anything reasonably necessary to enable OliheAffiliate to secure a
patent where appropriate in the United States affidreign countries.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plare @ommittee in its sole discretion may cancel amg/ at any time prior to tF
exercise thereof, if the employment of the Paréioipshall be terminated, other than by reason athdeinless the conditions in this
Section 8 are me

Failure to comply with the conditions of this Secti8 prior to, or during the six months after, &xgrcise, payment or delivery pursuant
to an Award shall cause the exercise, paymentloretie to be rescinded. Olin shall notify the Peaigiant in writing of any such rescissi
within two years after such exercise payment oivdg} and within 10 days after receiving such netithe Participant shall pay to Olin
the amount of any gain realized or payment receaged result of the exercise, payment or delivesginded. Such payment shall be
made either in cash or by returning to Olin the banof Shares that the Participant received in eotion with the rescinded exercise,
payment or delivery

Upon exercise, payment or delivery pursuant to afal, the Committee may require the Participaretdify on a form acceptable to t
Committee, that he or she is in compliance withtétens and conditions of the Pl

Nothing herein shall be interpreted to limit thdigations of a Participant under his or her empggreement or any other agreen
with Olin.

Section 9. Change in Control

(@)

Except as the Board or the Committee may exprgsslyide otherwise prior to a Change in Control ¢éih@as defined below) and subj
to the provisions of Section 6(f)(vii) hereof, metevent of a Change in Control of Ol

(i) all Options and Stock Appreciation Rights then tartding shall become immediately and fully exetgisanotwithstanding any
provision therein for the exercise in installmel

(i) unless a Stock Appreciation Right shall have alydzebn granted with respect to an outstanding @ptiee Participant holding su
Option shall be deemed also to hold a Stock Apptiei Right related to such Option, exercisabladoordance with and subject to
the terms and conditions of Section 6(b) for thebar of Shares exercisable under such Option giftérg effect to such
acceleration, which Stock Appreciation Right mayt heed not be, evidenced by separate written aggee

(iii) all restrictions and conditions of all Restricted& and Restricted Stock Units then outstandiradl fe deemed satisfied as of the
date of the Change in Control; a

(iv) all Performance Awards shall become vested, deeasted in full and promptly paid to the Particigamiash units i
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cash and phantom stock units in the Shares repesstrereby or such other securities, propertyashas may be deliverable in
respect of Shares as a result of a Change in Gpwithout regard to payment schedules and notwatiding that the applicable
performance cycle or retention cycle shall not haeen completed.

(b) “Change in Contr” of Olin means the occurrence of any one of the¥alhg events

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

individuals who, on November 1, 2002, constitute Board (th¢‘Incumbent Directol”) cease for any reason to constitute at lei
majority of the Board; providetthat any individual becoming a director subseqtemMovember 1, 2002, whose election or
nomination for election was approved (either byectfic vote or by approval of the proxy statemein®lin in which such

individual is named as a nominee for director, aithwritten objection to such nomination) by a votet least two-thirds of the
directors who were, as of the date of such appréralimbent Directors, shall be an Incumbent Doegbrovided, however, that

no individual initially appointed, elected or norated as a director of Olin as a result of an aau#hreatened election contest with
respect to directors or as a result of any otherahor threatened solicitation of proxies or canisdy or on behalf of any Person
other than the Board shall be deemed to be an IhentDirector;

any“persor” (as such term is defined in Section 3(a)(9) of teuBities Exchange Act of 1934 (t“Act”) and as used in Sectio
13(d)(3) and 14(d)(2) of the Act) is or becomedbarieficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under Act), directly or indirectly,

of securities of Olin representing 20% or morehaf tombined voting power of Olmthen outstanding securities eligible to vote
the election of the Board (the “Olin Voting Seciast’); provided, however, that the event described in this paragraph tf@lsot

be deemed to be a Change in Control if such ewsuits from any of the following: (A) the acquisiti of Olin Voting Securities by
Olin or any of its subsidiaries, (B) the acquigitiof Olin Voting Securities by any employee benpfén (or related trust) sponsored
or maintained by Olin or any of its subsidiarig3) the acquisition of Olin Voting Securities by amyderwriter temporarily holding
securities pursuant to an offering of such se@si;tor (D) the acquisition of Olin Voting Securitipursuant to a Non-Qualifying
Transaction (as defined in paragraph (ii

the consummation of a merger, consolidation, stagughare exchange or similar form of corporatagsaation involving Olin or ar
of its subsidiaries (a “Reorganization”) or saletiver disposition of all or substantially all betassets of Olin to an entity that is
not an affiliate of Olin (a “Sale”), unless immetily following such Reorganization or Sale: (A) mahan 50% of the total voting
power (in respect of the election of directorssionilar officials in the case of an entity otheatha corporation) of (x) the entity
resulting from such Reorganization, or the entityol has acquired all or substantially all of tissets of Olin (in either case, the
“Surviving Entity”), or (y) if applicable, the utlihate parent entity that directly or indirectly hesneficial ownership of more than
50% of the
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total voting power (in respect of the election okdtors, or similar officials in the case of artignother than a corporation) of the
Surviving Entity (the “Parent Entity”), is repreded by Olin Voting Securities that were outstandimgnediately prior to such
Reorganization or Sale (or, if applicable, is reprged by shares into which such Olin Voting Seiesrivere converted pursuant to
such Reorganization or Sale), and such voting peweng the holders thereof is in substantiallyséw@e proportion as the voting
power of such Olin Voting Securities among the baddhereof immediately prior to the Reorganizatioisale, (B) no Person
(other than any employee benefit plan (or relatest} sponsored or maintained by the Survivingti i the Parent Entity), is or
becomes the beneficial owner, directly or indingotif 20% or more of the total voting power (inpest of the election of directors,
or similar officials in the case of an entity otlilean a corporation) of the outstanding voting siéies of the Parent Entity (or, if
there is no Parent Entity, the Surviving Entityfld) at least a majority of the members of thertbad directors (or similar
officials in the case of an entity other than apcwation) of the Parent Entity (or, if there isParent Entity, the Surviving Entity)
following the consummation of the Reorganizatiorbate were, at the time of the approval by the Badthe execution of the
initial agreement providing for such ReorganizatiwrSale, Incumbent Directors (any ReorganizatioS8ale which satisfies all of
the criteria specified in (A), (B) and (C) abovangedeemed to be a “Non-Qualifying Transaction”);

(iv) the stockholders of Olin approve a plan of compligtgidation or dissolution of Olir

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the acquisition Imy #erson of beneficial ownership of 20% or moréhefcombined voting power of

Olin Voting Securities solely as a result of thguisition of Olin Voting Securities by Olin whiclkeduces the number of Olin Voting
Securities outstanding shall be deemed not totregsal Change in Control; providediowever, that if such Person subsequently becomes
the beneficial owner of additional Olin Voting Seities that increases the percentage of outstandlimgVoting Securities beneficially
owned by such Person, a Change in Control of ®lall shen be deemed to occur.

Section 10. Effective Date of the Plan

The Plan shall be effective as of the date ofpigraval by the shareholders of Olin.
Section 11. Term of the Plan

No Award shall be granted under the Plan after [/3yj 2001, but unless otherwise expressly providete Plan or in an applicable Awe
Agreement, any Award theretofore granted may exbeybnd such date.
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Exhibit 10(h

OLIN CORPORATION
AMENDED AND RESTATED
1997 STOCK PLAN FOR NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTORS

(As Amended Effective January 30, 2003)

1. Purpose. The purpose of the Olin Corporation 1997 StoanHRbr Non-employee Directors the (“Plan”) is tomote the long-term
growth and financial success of Olin Corporatioraltyacting and retaining non-employee directorsuistanding ability and by promoting a
greater identity of interest between its non-emedirectors and its shareholders.

2. Definitions . The following capitalized terms utilized hereiave the following meanings:
“Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company

“Cash Account” means an account established uhgelPtan for a Non-employee Director to which cagletimg fees, Board
Chairman fees, Committee Chair fees and retainemsther amounts under the Plan, have been opodre tredited in the form of cash.

“Change in Control” means the occurrence of anyafrtée following events:

(a) individuals who, on November 1, 2002, congtitilte Board (the “ Incumbent Directd)scease for any reason to
constitute at least a majority of the Board; predthat any person becoming a director subsequenotemdber 1, 2002, whose election or
nomination for election was approved (either byecic vote or by approval of the proxy statemei®lin Corporation in which such person
is named as a nominee for director, without writtejection to such nomination) by a vote of at iéa®-thirds of the directors who were, as
the date of such approval, Incumbent Directorsl| flegsan Incumbent Director; providedhowever, that no individual initially appointed,
elected or nominated as a director of Olin Corporaés a result of an actual or threatened electimest with respect to directors or as a r
of any other actual or threatened solicitation mies or consents by or on behalf of any persberahan the Board shall be deemed to be an
Incumbent Director;

(b) any “person” (as such term is defined in Sec8¢a)(9) of the Exchange Act and as used in Sestld(d)(3) and 14
(d)(2) of the Exchange Act) is or becomes a “beniafiowner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under theltargye Act), directly or indirectly, of
securities of Olin Corporation representing 20%nare of the combined voting power of Olin Corparats then outstanding securities eligi
to vote for the election of the Board (the “ Olimtihg Securities); provided, however, that the event described in this paragraph if@lsot
be deemed to be a Change in Control if such eesutts from any of the following: (A) tt




acquisition of Olin Voting Securities by Olin Comadion or any of its subsidiaries, (B) the acqiositof Olin Voting Securities by any
employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsoragaintained by Olin Corporation or any of its sidliaries, (C) the acquisition of Olin Voti
Securities by any underwriter temporarily holdimgurities pursuant to an offering of such secwgjtae (D) the acquisition of Olin Voting
Securities pursuant to a Non-Qualifying Transac{esdefined in paragraph (iii));

(i) the consummation of a merger, consolidatioatugory share exchange or similar form of corpotatesaction
involving Olin Corporation or any of its subsidiesi(a “_ Reorganizatiof) or sale or other disposition of all or substaltgi all of the assets of
Olin Corporation to an entity that is not an a#i# of Olin Corporation (a_* Salg, unless immediately following such Reorganizatir Sale:
(A) more than 50% of the total voting power (ingest of the election of directors, or similar oifils in the case of an entity other than a
corporation) of (x) the entity resulting from suRbBorganization, or the entity which has acquir¢drsubstantially all of the assets of Olin
Corporation (in either case, the “ Surviving Entityor (y) if applicable, the ultimate parent eptthat directly or indirectly has beneficial
ownership of more than 50% of the total voting po(ire respect of the election of directors, or $anbfficials in the case of an entity other
than a corporation) of the Surviving Entity (th@drent Entity’), is represented by Olin Voting Securities tharesoutstanding immediately
prior to such Reorganization or Sale (or, if apgile, is represented by shares into which such\@liing Securities were converted pursuant
to such Reorganization or Sale), and such votivggn@mong the holders thereof is in substantiiéygame proportion as the voting power of
such Olin Voting Securities among the holders tbeimmediately prior to the Reorganization or SéR), no person (other than any employee
benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored or maiethby the Surviving Entity or the Parent Entitig)pr becomes the beneficial owner, directly
or indirectly, of 20% or more of the total votingwer (in respect of the election of directors, iarikar officials in the case of an entity other
than a corporation) of the outstanding voting siéiesgrof the Parent Entity (or, if there is no RdrEntity, the Surviving Entity) and (C) at least
a majority of the members of the board of direc{orssimilar officials in the case of an entity etlthan a corporation) of the Parent Entity (or,

if there is no Parent Entity, the Surviving Entifg)lowing the consummation of the Reorganizatiorseale were, at the time of the approval by

the Board of the execution of the initial agreenyaolviding for such Reorganization or Sale, Incuntli@irectors (any Reorganization or Sale
which satisfies all of the criteria specified in)(AB) and (C) above being deemed to be a “ualifying Transactiori);

(ii) the stockholders of Olin Corporation approvplan of complete liquidation or dissolution of ©@Corporation.

Notwithstanding the foregoing , the acquisitiondmny person of beneficial ownership of 20% or mdrthe combined voting power of Ol

Voting Securities solely as a result of the acdjoisiof Olin Voting Securities by Olin Corporatievhich reduces the number of Olin Voting
Securities outstanding shall be deemed not totrgs@hange in Control; providechowever, that if such person subsequently becomes the
beneficial owner of additional Olin Voting Secuesithat increases the percentage of outstandimgv®@ling Securities beneficially owned




by such person, a Change in Control of Olin Corponashall then be deemed to occur.
“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 198@@nded from time to time.
“Committee” means the Compensation Committee gosuiccessor) of the Board.
“Common Stock” means the Company’s Common Stock)Gpar value per share.
“Company” means Olin Corporation, a Virginia corgtion, and any successor.

“Credit Date” means the second Thursday after ¢igeilarly scheduled board meeting in each calendgartey (January, April, July
and October).

“Excess Retainer” means with respect to a Non-epgadirector the amount of the full annual cashinetr payable to such Non-
employee Director from time to time by the Compé#myservice as a director in excess of $25,008n¥f; provided that in the event the
annual cash retainer is prorated to reflect thel $ton-employee Director did not serve as suclitferfull calendar year, the $25,000
shall be similarly prorated.

“Fair Market Value” means, with respect to a datea per share basis, with respect to phantom slsdi@ommon Stock or Spin-
Off Company Common Stock, the average of the highthe low price of a share of Common Stock or SpihCompany Common
Stock, as the case may be, as reported on thelmated tape of the New York Stock Exchange on slatie or if the New York Stock
Exchange is closed on such date, the next sucagddbe on which it is open.

“Interest Rate” means the rate of interest equéhéoCompany’s before-tax cost of borrowing as meitged from time to time by
the Chief Financial Officer, the Treasurer or tten€oller of the Company (or in the event theraassuch borrowing, the Federal
Reserve A1/P1 Composite rate for 90-day commepaiper plus 10 basis points, as determined by atty afficer) or such other rate as
determined from time to time by the Board or therBdttee.

“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Adt9¥4, as amended from time to time.

“Non-employee Director” means a member of the Baeld is not an employee of the Company or any slidrsi thereof.
“Olin Stock Account” means the Stock Account to efhphantom shares of Common Stock are credited fimmto time.
“Plan” means this Olin Corporation 1997 Stock FianNon-employee Directors as amended from timinte.
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“Prior Plans” means the 1994 Plan and all of thep@ration’s other directors’ compensation plansgpams, or arrangements
which provided for a deferred cash or stock account

“Retirement Date” means the date the Non-employieecbr ceases to be a member of the Board foreagon.
“Spin-Off Company” means Arch Chemicals, Inc., agiiia corporation and any successor.
“Spin-Off Company Common Stock” means shares ofroom stock of the Spin-Off Company, par value $Jp60share.

“Spin-Off Company Stock Account” means the Stoclcéunt to which phantom shares of Spin-Off Companoy@on Stock are
credited.

“Stock Account” means an account established utigePlan for a Non-employee Director to which skareCommon Stock and
Spin-Off Company Common Stock have been or aretorédited in the form of phantom stock, which kimalude the Olin Stock
Account and the Spin-Off Company Stock Account.

3. Term . The Plan originally became effective January@97] and, as amended and restated prior to JaB0aB003, shall remain in
effect until shareholder approval of this amendnaemt restatement. Upon such shareholder apprénsilAmended and Restated Plan shall
become effective, and shall operate and shall reinaffect until terminated by action of the Boasprovided in Section 9 hereof.

4. Administration . Full power and authority to construe, interpred administer the Plan shall be vested in the CdtaaiDecisions of
the Committee shall be final, conclusive and bigdipon all parties.

5. Participation . All Non-employee Directors shall participate iretPlan.
6. Grants and Deferrals.

(a) Annual Stock GrantSubject to the terms and conditions of the Réarthe second Thursday following the regularly
scheduled January Board meeting each year, eacteidpioyee Director shall be credited with a numdfeshares of Common Stock with an
aggregate Fair Market Value on such date equad$5090, rounded to the nearest 100 shares; providedever, that for 2003, the total
number of shares issuable shall be calculated Belmiuary 13, 2003, but only the shares issuatite nespect to $24,000 of the Annual Stock
Grant shall be credited to the Olin Stock Accowdtblon-employee Directors, and the remaining shéaegether with dividend equivalents on
such shares, if any) shall be credited to the Stotk Accounts of the Non-employee Directors asisapossible after approval of this
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Plan, as amended and restated, by the Comgahgreholders. It is intended that, in the ev@stRlan, as amended and restated, is so app
by shareholders, Non-employee Directors shall vecan aggregate $45,000 Annual Stock Grant for 2008er the Plan as in existence prior
to January 30, 2003 and as amended. To be erttitigch credit in any calendar year, a Non-empl@jieector must be serving as such on
January 1 of such year; provided, however, th#ténevent a person becomes a Non-employee Dirsgbmequent to January 1 of a calendar
year, such Nc-employee Director, on the Credit Date next follogvhis or her becoming such, shall be credited thigh number of shares
(rounded up to the next whole share in the eveatfodictional share) of Common Stock equal to avedfth of the number of shares issued to
each other Non-employee Director as the AnnuallS&rant for such year, multiplied by the numbewtiole calendar months remaining in
such calendar year following the date he or sherbes a Non-employee Director. Actual receipt ofebahall be deferred and each eligible
Non-employee Director shall receive a credit to hisier Olin Stock Account in the amount of such skamd on the date of such credit. A
Non-employee Director may elect in accordance withtiSe@(f) to defer to his or her Olin Stock Accouateipt of all or any portion of such
shares to a date or dates on or following such &mpioyee Director’s Retirement Date. Except witkpext to any shares the director has so
elected to defer, certificates representing suelneshshall be delivered to the Non-employee Dirgtoin the event of death, to his or her
beneficiary designated pursuant to Section 6(ipas as practicable following such Non-employem®br’s Retirement Date.

(b) Annual Retainer Stock GranBubject to the terms and conditions of the Plarthersecond Thursday following the
regularly scheduled January board meeting of eaah, yach Non-employee Director who is such onalgnbof that year shall receive that
number of shares (rounded up to the next wholeejltdirCommon Stock having an aggregate Fair Mavisdtte on the second Thursday
following the regularly scheduled January board tmgeof $25,000. In the event a person becomescaendar year a Non-employee Director
subsequent to January 1 and has not received thmbstock retainer for such calendar year, sucbope on the Credit Date next following his
or her becoming such, shall receive that numbshafes (rounded up to the next whole share inwéetef a fractional share) of Common
Stock having an aggregate Fair Market Value on €ireltlit Date equal to $2,084 times the number dfle/lealendar months remaining in s
calendar year following the date he or she becari¢sn-employee Director. The annual cash retaiagalple to the Non-employee Director
shall be reduced by the aggregate Fair Market Valuike shares the Non-employee Director receivateters as the annual retainer stock
grant (excluding any rounding of fractional sham@s}the date such Fair Market Value is calculatellon-employee Director may elect to
defer receipt of all or any portion of such shareaccordance with Section 6(f). Except with reggge@ny shares the director has so elected to
defer, certificates representing such shares bealelivered to such Non-employee Director (ohimévent of death, to his or her beneficiary
designated pursuant to Section 6(i)) as soon asipable following the date as of which the shanmesawarded.

(c) Onetime Stock Grant Subject to the terms and conditions of the Rlaceipt of all shares of Olin Stock credited under
the one-time grants to certain Non-employee Dimactioat the Company made as of January 15, 198 ehdeferred. Such Non-employee
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Directors may elect in accordance with Section g(®lefer receipt of all or any portion of suchrgsato a date or dates following such Non-
employee Director's Retirement Date. Except witkpext to any shares so deferred, certificates septimg such shares shall be delivered to
such Non-employee Directors (or in the event otlieg@a his or her beneficiary designated pursuai8dction 6(i)) as soon as practicable
following his or her Retirement Date.

(d) Election to Receive Meeting Fees, ChairmarnefBoard Fees, Committee Chair Fees and Excesm&eita Stock in
Lieu of Cash Subiject to the terms and conditions of the Pdapn-employee Director may elect to receive alh gortion of the director
meeting fees, fees as Chairman of the Board, feasGommittee Chair and the Excess Retainer pajmbkesh by the Company for his or her
service as a director for the calendar year irfdh@ of shares of Common Stock. Such election dk@linade in accordance with Section 6(f).
A Non-employee Director who so elects to receiv@mh portion of the Excess Retainer in the forfrstmares for such year shall be paid on the
second Thursday following the regularly schedulsuldry board meeting (or in the case of proratidren the annual stock retainer is to be
paid or credited) a number of shares (rounded tbemext whole share in the event of a fractiahalre) equal to the amount of Excess
Retainer which has been elected to be paid in stthvéded by the Fair Market Value per share onstteond Thursday following the regularly
scheduled January board meeting of such calen@ar(gein the case of a Non-employee Director whodmes such after January 1, on the
Credit Date next following the day such new Non-&@wee Director became such). The number of shacemfed up to the next whole share
in the event of a fractional share) for a calerglaarter payable to a Non-employee Director wholsctg to receive meeting fees, Board
Chairman fees, or Committee Chair fees in the fofishares shall be equal to the aggregate Fair dlaf&lue on the Credit Date next
following the meeting for which such director meegtfees have been earned in the case of directetimyefees, or to the aggregate Fair Ma
Value on the scheduled payment date in the caBearfd Chairman fees and Committee Chair fees anchvare elected to be paid in shares.
Except with respect to any shares the directorehexted to defer, certificates representing sueheshshall be delivered to the Non-employee
Director as soon as practicable following the detef which the Excess Retainer and/or fees woaNe fbeen paid in cash absent an election
hereunder.

(e) Deferral of Meeting Fees, Chairman of the Bdeeds, Committee Chair Fees and Excess Retafidiject to the terms
and conditions of the Plan, a Non-employee Direotay elect to defer all or a portion of the sharagable under Section 6(d) and all or a
portion of the director meeting fees, fees as @hair of the Board, fees as a Committee Chair ané&sxRetainer payable in cash by the
Company for his or her service as a director ferahlendar year. The amount of the Excess Retdéferred in cash shall be credited on the
second Thursday following the regularly schedukealidry Board meeting (or in the case of prorawonthe first day of the next calendar
month following the day such new Non-employee Oimebecomes such). Such election shall be madeciordance with Section 6(f). A Non-
employee Director who elects to so defer shall flawedeferred shares deferred in the form of shafr€mmon Stock and any deferred cash
fees and retainer deferred in the form of cash.

(f) Elections.



(1) Deferrals. All elections under Sections 6(a), 6(b), 6(6]d), 6(e), 6(f)(2) and 6(f)(3) shall (A) be madewriting and delivered
to the Secretary of the Company and (B) be irrelblacaill Non-employee Director elections for payments in casstock or for deferra
shall be made before January 1 of the year in witietshares of Common Stock or director’s feesratainer are to be earned (or, in the
case of an individual who becomes a Non-employeedir during a calendar year, prior to the datkisfor her election as a director).
Deferral elections shall also (A) specify the pams (in 25% increments) to be deferred and (B)i§p#te future date or dates on which
deferred amounts are to be paid, or the futuretemeavents upon the occurrence of which the defeamounts are to be paid, and the
method of payment (lump sum or annual instalimémpsto 10)). However, Non-employee Directors magceto defer all of his or her
cash dividends on the Stock Account in whole antdmpart and all of his or her interest on the ICAscount in whole but not in part.
Installment payments from an Account shall be equ#he Account balance (expressed in shares ingbe of the Stock Account,
otherwise the cash value of the Account) at the tiriithe installment payment times a fraction,tbenerator of which is one and the
denominator of which is the number of installmem$yet paid. Fractional shares to be paid in asyallment shall be rounded up to the
next whole share. In the event of an election uissetion 6(d) for director meeting fees, Board @han fees, Committee Chair fees or
Excess Retainer to be paid in shares of CommorkStioe election shall specify the portion (in 25%rements) to be so paid. Any
change with respect to the terms of a Non-empl®jeector’s election for (A) amount or form of anytfire deferral or the form of
payment of any director compensation hereunderlmeayade at any time prior to such compensatiorgbesinned (and in the case of
quarterly fees, prior to the start of the quantewhich the fees are to be earned) and (B) thengrivhich timing may not accelerate a
distribution date) or amount of payments from areg@dunt shall only be effective if made at leastrabnths prior to the payout and in
calendar year prior to the calendar year payotat ¢ecur.

(2) Olin Stock AccountOn the Credit Date (or in the case of a prorationthe first day of the appropriate calendar mprg Non-
employee Director who has elected to defer shardenSections 6(b) or 6(e) shall receive a crediti$ or her Olin Stock Account. The
amount of such credit shall be the number of shewedeferred (rounded to the next whole sharedrettent of a fractional share). A Non-
employee Director may elect to defer the cash divits paid on his or her Stock Account in accordavitte Section 6(f)(4).

(3) Cash AccountOn the Credit Date or in the case of the ExcesaiRat, on the day on which the Non-employee Dineisto
entitled to receive such Excess Retainer, a Nonlk@rap Director who has elected to defer cash fadfoathe Excess Retainer under
Section 6(e) in the form of cash shall receiveaitito his or her Cash Account. The amount ofcifeelit shall be the dollar amount of
such Director’'s meeting fees, Board Chairman fegsammittee Chair fees earned during the immedigisdceding quarterly period or
the amount of the Excess Retainer to be paid for th



calendar year, as the case may be, and in eachspeséfied for deferral in cash. A Namployee Director may elect to defer interest
on his or her Cash Account in accordance with 8adif)(4).

(4) Dividends and InterestEach time a cash dividend is paid on Common Sto&pin-Off Company Common Stock, a Non-
employee Director who has shares of such stockterktb his or her Stock Account shall be paid o dividend payment date such cash
dividend in an amount equal to the product of thmber of shares credited to the Non-employee QirexcOlin Stock Account or Spin-
Off Company Stock Account, as the case may behemecord date for such dividend times the divideaid per applicable share unless
the director has elected to defer such dividertugmr her applicable Stock Account as provideceimerdf the Non-employee Director has
elected to defer such dividend, he or she shadliveca credit for such dividends on the dividengrpant date to his or her Olin Stock
Account or Spin-Off Company Stock Account, as tasecmay be. The amount of the dividend credit dfeathe number of shares
(rounded to the nearest one-thousandth of a state)mined by multiplying the dividend amount peare by the number of shares
credited to such director’s applicable Stock Acdasof the record date for the dividend and digdihe product by the Fair Market
Value per share of Common Stock or Spin-Off Comp@nynmon Stock, as the case may be, on the dividapohent date. A Non-
employee Director who has a Cash Account shalldie girectly on each Credit Date interest on swatoant’s balance at the end of the
preceding quarter, payable at a rate equal toriteedst Rate in effect for such preceding quaniégas such Non-employee Director has
elected to defer such interest to his or her CagtoAnt, in which case such interest shall be addidt such Cash Account on the Credit
Date.

(5) Payouts. Cash Accounts and the Spin-Off Company Stock Antwvill be paid out in cash and Olin Stock Accaushall be
paid out in shares of Common Stock unless the Nuopl@yee Director elects at the time the paymedtiss to take the Olin Stock
Account in cash. Cash amounts and certificatesesgmting shares credited to the Olin Stock Accehatl be delivered to the Non-
employee Director as soon as practicable follovirggtermination of the deferral and consistentetvith.

(g) No Stock Rights Except as expressly provided herein, the defefrshares of Common Stock or Spin-Off Company

Common Stock into a Stock Account shall conferights upon such Non-employee Director, as a shégtehof the Company or of the Spin-
Off Company or otherwise, with respect to the shdedd in such Stock Account, but shall confer dhbyright to receive such shares credited
as and when provided herein.

(h) Change in ContralNotwithstanding anything to the contrary in tRign or any election, in the event a Change in @t

occurs, amounts and shares credited to Cash A @uaotuding interest accrued to the date of payantl Stock Accounts shall be promptly
distributed to Non-employee Directors except thim Gtock Account shall be paid out in cash andims¢tie form of shares of Common Stock.
For this purpose, the cash value of the amourtarStock Account shall be determined by multiplying number of shares held in the Olin
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Stock Account or the Spin-Off Company Stock Accdoyithe higher of (i) the highest Fair Market VahfesCommon Stock or Spin-Off
Company Common Stock, as appropriate, on any didtéwthe period commencing 30 days prior to sutiaiigje in Control and ending on the
date of the Change in Control, or (ii) if the Charig Control occurs as a result of a tender or axgk offer or consummation of a corporate
transaction, then the highest price paid per sbb@ommon Stock or Spin-Off Company Common Stoskaapropriate, pursuant thereto.

(i) Beneficiaries A Non-employee Director may designate at any timeé from time to time a beneficiary for his or her
Stock and Cash Accounts in the event his or heskSto Cash Account may be paid out following hiser death. Such designation shall be in
writing and must be received by the Company poadhe death to be effective.

(j) Prior Plan Accounts Any transfers made to a Cash Account or a StamoAnt from Prior Plans shall be maintained and
administered pursuant to the terms and conditibrisi® Plan; provided that prior annual 100- or Zbvare grant deferrals shall be treated as
deferrals of 204-share grants under this Plan$#%000 annual share grant under the 1994 Plahlshtieated as deferrals under Paragraph 6
(b) hereof and deferrals of meeting fees undePdir Plans and of the Excess Retainer under tBé Pfan shall be treated as deferrals under
Paragraph 6(d) hereof. Prior elections and bemefiadesignations under the 1994 Plan and this $Hatt govern this Plan unless changed
subsequent to October 2, 1997.

(k) Stock Account TransfersA Non-Employee Director may elect from time tmd to transfer all or a portion (in 25%
increments) of his or her Spin-Off Company Stockéunt to his or her Olin Stock Account. The amaafrphantom shares of Common Stock
to be credited to a Non-Employee Director’s Olinckt Account shall be equal to the number of shaf€ommon Stock that could be
purchased if the number of phantom shares of SffiifG@npany Common Stock in his or her Spin-Off Ca@myp Stock Account being
transferred were sold and the proceeds reinvest€dimmon Stock based on the Fair Market Value ofieBxcept as provided in Section 6(f)
(4) with respect to dividends or in Section 8, dditional contributions or additions may be made tdon-Employee Director’s Spin-Off
Company Stock Account after the Distribution Date.

7. Limitations and Conditions .

(a) Total Number of SharedsThe total number of shares of Common Stock treat be issued to Non-employee Directors
under the Plan is 300,000. Such total number afesh@aay consist, in whole or in part, of authoribetlunissued shares. The foregoing nur
may be increased or decreased by the events feiridection 8 below. No fractional shares shalldsued hereunder. In the event a Non-
employee Director is entitled to a fractional shatech share amount shall be rounded upward togkiewhole share amount.

(b) No Additional Rights Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to eraaight in any Non-employee Director to
remain a member of the Board, to be nominateddelection or to be reelected as such or, aftelirgés be such a member, to receive any
cash or shares of Common Stock under the Plan ven&ihot already credited to his or her accounts.
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8. Stock Adjustments.In the event of any merger, consolidation, stocktber non-cash dividend, extraordinary cash divijesplit-up,
spin-off, combination or exchange of shares orpiahzation or change in capitalization, or anfietsimilar corporate event, the Committee
may make such adjustments in (i) the aggregate suoftshares of Common Stock that may be issuedruhé Plan as set forth in Section 7
(a) and the number of shares that may be issuad\tan-employee Director with respect to any yeasetdorth in Section 6(a) and the number
of shares of Olin Common Stock or Spin-Off Comp&ommon Stock, as the case may be, held in a Stockukt, (ii) the class of shares that
may be issued under the Plan and (iii) the amoundtygpe of payment that may be made in respechpéid dividends on shares of Spin-Off
Company Common Stock or Common Stock whose rebagpbeen deferred pursuant to Section 6(f), a€timemittee shall deem appropriate
in the circumstances. The determination by the Citteenas to the terms of any of the foregoing adjesits shall be final, conclusive and
binding for all purposes of the Plan.

9. Amendment and Termination. This Plan may be amended, suspended or termingtadtion of the Board, except to the extent that
amendments are required to be approved by the Qoyispshareholders under applicable law or the rafabe New York Stock Exchange or
any other exchange or market system on which thrarfian Stock is listed or traded. No terminationtaf Plan shall adversely affect the rights
of any Non-employee Director with respect to anyants otherwise payable or credited to his or heshCAccount or Stock Account.

10. Nonassignability.No right to receive any payments under the Plaangramounts credited to a Non-employee DirectodshCor
Stock Account shall be assignable or transferapleuch Non-employee Director other than by wiltlee laws of descent and distribution or
pursuant to a domestic relations order. The deimnaf a beneficiary under Section 6(i) by a Nonpdoyee Director does not constitute a
transfer.

11.Unsecured Obligation.Benefits payable under this Plan shall be an umsdanbligation of the Company.

12.Rule 16b-3 Compliancelt is the intention of the Company that all trartgats under the Plan be exempt from liability impddy
Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act. Therefore, if lmansaction under the Plan is found not to beoimpliance with an exemption from such
Section 16(b), the provision of the Plan goverrsngh transaction shall be deemed amended so thattisaction does so comply and is so
exempt, to the extent permitted by law and deendeisable by the Committee, and in all events tteBhall be construed in favor of its
meeting the requirements of an exemption.
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Exhibit 10(]

1996 STOCK OPTION PLAN

FOR KEY EMPLOYEES OF
OLIN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(As amended as of January 30, 2003)

1. Purpose of the PlanThe general purpose of the 1996 Stock Option RlakKéy Employees of Olin Corporation and Subsi@iaiithe
“Plan”) is to aid in attracting, maintaining andvééoping a management capable of assuring thedfguccess of Olin Corporation (“Olin”) by
providing to key employees of Olin and its subgidis additional incentive to enlarge their pro@igtinterest in Olin, to continue and increase
their efforts on Olin’s behalf and to remain in #raploy of Olin or its subsidiaries.

2. Shares Subject to the PlanOptions may be granted from time to time underRlas in respect of an aggregate not exceeding
1,500,000 shares of Common Stock of Olin (subjeth¢ provisions of paragraph 15 hereof). Notwéhding any other provision of the Plan,
no person shall be granted options for more th&)0®® shares (subject to adjustment as providedragraph 15) during the term of the Plan.
If any option granted under the Plan shall expireeaminate for any reason other than its surrepdesuant to paragraph 7 (including, without
limitation, by reason of its surrender or canc@latin whole or in part, or the substitution thfereof a new option) without having been
exercised in full, the unpurchased shares sulijeceto shall (unless the Plan shall have beenteted) again be available for other options to
be granted under the Plan.

3. Administration of the Plan. The Plan shall be administered by a Committee“@wenmittee”) appointed by the Board of Directors of
Olin and consisting of not less than three of thBsard members, each of whom shall qualify as fd)oatside director” within the meaning of
Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1886 “Code”) and (b) a “disinterested person” witthe meaning of Rule 16b-3
promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act 8#18s amended (the “Act”).

The Committee shall have plenary authority in isscktion, but subject to the express provisionthefPlan, to determine the purchase
price of the Common Stock covered by each optioa eimployees to whom, and the time or times atlwliptions shall be granted and the
number of shares to be covered by each optiomtéogret the Plan; to prescribe, amend and resaied and regulations relating to it; to
determine the terms and provisions (and amendntieaitsof) of the respective option agreements (whexdd not be identical), including, if t
Committee shall determine that a particular opttoto conform to the requirements of any provisiéthe Internal Revenue Code as amended
from time to time, such terms and provisions (amgtadments) as shall be requisite in the judgmetit@Committee to provide therefor or to
conform to any change in any law or regulation egajplle thereto; and to make all other determinatid@emed necessary or advisable for the
administration of the Plan. The Commirs determination on the foregoing matters shalldrelusive.



The Committee shall select one of its memberssashidirman and shall hold its meetings at suchgiamel places as it shall deem
advisable. A majority of its members shall conséita quorum. All determinations of the Committealsbe made by not less than a majorit;
its members. A decision or determination reducedrtting and signed by a majority of the memberalishe fully as effective as if it had been
made by a majority vote at a meeting duly called lagld. The Committee may appoint a secretary| kkap minutes of its meetings and shall
make such rules and regulations for the conduits dfusiness as it shall deem advisable. The Cowenihay designate the Secretary of Olil
other employees of Olin to assist the Committethéadministration of the Plan and may grant aitihtw such persons to execute option
agreements or other documents on behalf of the Gtteam

4. Eligibility; Factors to be Considered in Granting Options. Options may be granted only to full-time employéasluding officers)
of Olin and of its present and future subsidiargpooations (“subsidiaries”). A Director of Olin of a subsidiary who is not also such an
employee will not be eligible to receive an optibondetermining the employees to whom options dbalgranted and the number of shares to
be covered by each option, the Committee may tatikeaiccount the nature of the services rendergtidyespective employees, their present
and potential contributions to the success of Glid such other factors as the Committee in itelion shall deem relevant. An employee
who has been granted an option under the Plandmramy prior stock option plan of Olin may be deahan additional option or options if the
Committee shall so determine. Nothing containetth@Plan shall be construed to limit the right dih@o grant or assume options otherwise
than under the Plan in connection with the acqoisiby purchase, lease, merger, consolidationtwretise of the business and assets of any
corporation, firm or association, including optiarainted to employees thereof who become emplayfe®$n or a subsidiary, or for other
proper corporate purposes.

5. Option Prices. The purchase price of the Common Stock coveredablp eption shall be determined by the Committeeshatl not be
less than 100% of the fair market value of the Cami@tock at the time of granting the option. Swaihrharket value shall be determined by
the Committee and shall be taken at no less trmmtan of the high and low sales prices of the Com8tock as reported on the consolidated
transaction reporting system for New York Stock frge issues on such date or, if the Common Stasknet traded on such date, on the
preceding day on which the Common Stock was traded.

6. Exercise of Options.The Committee shall have authority in its discretio prescribe in any option agreement that theoptill be
exercisable in full at any time or from time to &rduring the term of the option, or to provide tlee exercise thereof in such installments at
such times during said term as the Committee mégriskne. An option may be exercised, at any timiam time to time during the term of
the option, as to any or all full shares which hbgeome purchasable under the provisions of therptt not as to less than 25 shares at any
one time. The option price shall be paid in fultash or its equivalent at the time the optiorxiereised; provided, however, that the Comm
may



elect to permit such option price to be paid inreshaf Common Stock of Olin, or a combination adftand shares of Common Stock of Olin,
the fair market value of such Common Stock to lerdeined for such purpose in such manner as shakkected by the Committee, but not at
more than the mean of the high and low sales patése Common Stock as reported on the consolidaéasaction reporting system for New
York Stock Exchange issues on the date on whicloptienee’s written notice of exercise is receitgdOlin, or if the Common Stock was not
traded on such day, on the first preceding day bicltnthe Common Stock was traded. The term of eation shall be not more than ten years
from the date of granting thereof, or such shauteiod as is prescribed in paragraphs 11, 13 artefebf. Except as provided in said
paragraphs 11, 13 and 14 hereof, no option maxéeeised at any time unless the holder theredfdaa & regular employee of Olin or one o
subsidiaries. The holder of an option shall noteharry of the rights of a shareholder with respethé shares covered by his or her option until
such shares shall be issued to him or her upoduaexercise of the option.

In lieu of requiring an optionee to pay in cashtsfereral, state or local income taxes as may bbcaple to exercise of an option
(“withholding taxes”), the Committee may elect trmit withholding taxes to be paid by the optioimreshares of Common Stock of Olin or in
a combination of cash and shares of Common Sto€Niof the fair market value of such Common Stazké determined for such purpose as
provided in the next preceding paragraph with resfzethe use of Common Stock of Olin in paymenthef option price.

Shares delivered in payment of an option priceoomfithholding taxes may be shares withheld by @fson exercise of an option or
shares already owned by the optionee.

7. Stock Appreciation Rights.The Committee shall have authority in its discretio grant a stock appreciation right (“SAR”) to an
optionee which shall relate to and have the samestand conditions as a specific option grantetiécoptionee under the Plan (the “related
option”) together with such additional terms andditions, if any, as the Committee in its discretinay prescribe. An SAR may be granted at
the same time as the related option is granteexaept as otherwise provided herein, at any tireestifter prior to the last day on which the
related option may be exercised. Each SAR shaiMidenced by written agreement in such form aii@mittee shall approve. An SAR sk
entitle the optionee, upon surrender of an exebtésaelated option or an exercisable portion theteoreceive a payment, at the election of the
Committee, in cash, shares of Common Stock of @i such other shares as may be deliverableesili of an adjustment pursuant to
paragraph 15 (“adjustment shares”)) or a combinatiocash and shares of Common Stock of Olin (aljlstment shares) equivalent to the
appreciated value of the shares that the optiormeddaave been entitled to purchase pursuant teethéed option or portion thereof
surrendered. Such appreciated value shall be ffezatice between the option price of such shaeadfusted pursuant to paragraph 15) and
the fair market value of such shares (as defingghimagraph 5) on the date on which the optioneatice of exercise is received by Olin. If all
or a portion of such payment is made in sharesoofition Stock of Olin (or adjustment shares), theeshahall be valued for purposes of such
payment at their fair market value, as defineddaragraph 5, on the date on which the optionee’gemrnotice of
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exercise is received by Olin. No fractional shatesll be issued as a result of exercising an SAR.

An SAR shall be exercisable only during the pemdten the related option is also exercisable. levent shall an SAR or the related
option held by an optionee who is subject to thetéitions of Section 16(b) of the Act be exercigadiliring the first six months following its
date of grant, provided that this restriction shall apply in the event of the death or disabitityhe optionee prior to the expiration of such six
month period. If an SAR is exercised, the relatgtiom shall cease to be exercisable to the exteteonumber of shares with respect to which
the SAR was exercised. Upon the exercise or tetinimaf a related option, the SAR granted with exzghereto shall terminate to the extent
of the number of shares as to which the relateoptas exercised or terminated.

In lieu of requiring an optionee to pay cash arciee certificates for shares of Common Stock afi @ind adjustment shares) upon the
exercise of an option, if the option agreementrewiges, initially or by amendment, the Committeaynelect to require the optionee to
surrender the option to Olin for cancellation asltar any portion of the number of shares covdrgthe intended exercise and receive in
exchange for such surrender a payment, at thaaiezt the Committee, in cash, in shares of Comi@tmck of Olin (and adjustment shares
a combination of cash and shares of Common Sto€Ninf(and adjustment shares) equivalent to theexppated value of the shares covered by
the option surrendered for cancellation. Such apated value shall be the difference between thi®oprice of such shares (as adjusted
pursuant to paragraph 15) and the fair market velseich shares, as defined in paragraph 5, odateson which the optionee’s notice of
exercise is received by Olin. If all or any partsotth payment shall be in shares of Common Sto&iof(or adjustment shares), the shares
shall be valued for purposes of such payment at e market value, as defined in paragraph 5Strendate on which the optionee’s notice of
exercise is received by Olin. Upon delivery to Gifra notice of exercise of option, the Committemyravail itself of its right to require the
optionee to surrender the option to Olin for calatieln as to shares covered by such intended eseerthe Committee’s right of election shall
expire, if not exercised, at the close of busirmsthe fifth business day following the delivery@tin of such notice. Should the Committee
exercise such right of election, the delivery @& #iforesaid notice of exercise shall constitutexarcise by the optionee of the option to the
extent therein set forth, and payment for the sheogered by such exercise shall become due imteddia

8. Change in Control. In the event of a Change in Control of Olin, asrtedd below, each option then outstanding shall bveco
immediately and fully exercisable, notwithstandargy provision therein for the exercise of suchaptn installments and unless an SAR shall
already have been granted with respect to sucbrgptie optionee shall be deemed to hold an SARewlto such option, exercisable in
accordance with and subject to all of the termsamdlitions of the first two paragraphs of parapr@pfor the number of shares exercisable
under such option after giving effect to such aeelon. Such SAR may, but need not be, evidengeskparate written agreement. For the
purposes of this



paragraph 8, a Change in Control shall mean theroerce of any one of the following events:

(i) individuals who, on November 1, 2002, consgt@lin’s Board of Directors (the “Incumbent Direxg) cease for any reason to
constitute at least a majority of Olin’s Board dféxtors; providedhat any person becoming a director subsequenot@iber 1, 2002,
whose election or nomination for election was apptb(either by a specific vote or by approval & groxy statement of Olin in which
such person is named as a nominee for directdnpwitwritten objection to such nomination) by aevof at least two-thirds of the
directors who were, as of the date of such apprénalmbent Directors, shall be an Incumbent Doegbrovided, however, that no
individual initially appointed, elected or nomindtas a director of Olin as a result of an actuahogatened election contest with respect
to directors or as a result of any other actuahoratened solicitation of proxies or consents bgrobehalf of any person other than
Olin’s Board of Directors shall be deemed to bérexumbent Director;

(i) any “person” (as such term is defined in SextB(a)(9) of the Act and as used in Sections 13)dnd 14(d)(2) of the Act) is or
becomes a “beneficial owner” (as defined in Ruld-Baunder the Act), directly or indirectly, of seities of Olin representing 20% or
more of the combined voting power of Olin’s thernstanding securities eligible to vote for the dlatiof Olin’s Board of Directors (the
“Olin Voting Securities”); provided however, that the event described in this paragraph li@llsnot be deemed to be a Change in
Control if such event results from any of the fallog: (A) the acquisition of Olin Voting Securitiéy Olin or any of its subsidiaries, (B)
the acquisition of Olin Voting Securities by anymoyee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsorechaintained by Olin or any of its
subsidiaries, (C) the acquisition of Olin Votingc8aties by any underwriter temporarily holding seties pursuant to an offering of su
securities, or (D) the acquisition of Olin Voting@urities pursuant to a Non-Qualifying Transac{as defined in paragraph (iii));

(iii) the consummation of a merger, consolidatistatutory share exchange or similar form of corfgtensaction involving Olin «
any of its subsidiaries (a “Reorganization”) oresat other disposition of all or substantially @llthe assets of Olin to an entity that is not
an affiliate of Olin (a “Sale”), unless immediatdbllowing such Reorganization or Sale: (A) morartt50% of the total voting power (in
respect of the election of directors, or simildials in the case of an entity other than a caafion) of (x) the entity resulting from such
Reorganization, or the entity which has acquirédrasubstantially all of the assets of Olin (itheir case, the “Surviving Entity"dr (y) if
applicable, the ultimate parent entity that dingail indirectly has beneficial ownership of morartb0% of the total voting power (in
respect of the election of directors, or simildiadls in the case of an entity other than a caafion) of the Surviving Entity (the “Parent
Entity”), is represented by Olin Voting Securitibst were outstanding immediately prior to such
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Reorganization or Sale (or, if applicable, is reprged by shares into which such Olin Voting S¢iesrivere converted pursuant to such
Reorganization or Sale), and such voting power antba holders thereof is in substantially the saneportion as the voting power of
such Olin Voting Securities among the holders tbeimmediately prior to the Reorganization or S8R, no person (other than any
employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsoredaintained by the Surviving Entity or the Parentity), is or becomes the beneficial
owner, directly or indirectly, of 20% or more oftlotal voting power (in respect of the electiordiméctors, or similar officials in the ce
of an entity other than a corporation) of the ariging voting securities of the Parent Entity (bthere is no Parent Entity, the Surviving
Entity) and (C) at least a majority of the membafrthe board of directors (or similar officialstime case of an entity other than a
corporation) of the Parent Entity (or, if therents Parent Entity, the Surviving Entity) followinge consummation of the Reorganization
or Sale were, at the time of the approval by OlBd&rd of Directors of the execution of the initareement providing for such
Reorganization or Sale, Incumbent Directors (angrBanization or Sale which satisfies all of theesia specified in (A), (B) and (C)
above being deemed to be a “Non-Qualifying Traneat);

(iv) the stockholders of Olin approve a plan of gbate liquidation or dissolution of Olin.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the acquisition Ioy @erson of beneficial ownership of 20% or mor¢hef combined voting power of

Olin Voting Securities solely as a result of theuisition of Olin Voting Securities by Olin whiclkeduces the number of Olin Voting
Securities outstanding shall be deemed not totresal Change in Control; providedowever, that if such person subsequently becomes
the beneficial owner of additional Olin Voting Seities that increases the percentage of outstandlimgVoting Securities beneficially
owned by such person, a Change in Control of Qlalldshen be deemed to occur.

9. Employee’s Agreement to ServeEach employee receiving an option shall, as ortheoferms of the option agreement, agree that he
or she will, during employment, devote his or hetire time, energy and skill to the service of Giina subsidiary and the promotion of its
interests, subject to vacations, sick leave andrathsences in accordance with the regular polafies other reasons satisfactory to, Olin and
its subsidiaries. Such employment shall (subjethéaterms of any contract between Olin or any sutdsidiary and such employee) be at the
pleasure of Olin or such subsidiary, and shallteiah compensation as Olin or such subsidiaryt de¢rmine from time to time. Upon
termination of such employee’s employment eithgfdacause or (b) voluntarily on the part of tmepoyee and without the written consent of
Olin, any option or options held by him or her unthe Plan, to the extent not theretofore exergiskdll forthwith terminate. Retirement
pursuant to any retirement plan of Olin or of asidiary shall be deemed to be a termination of egrpkent with Olin’s consent.
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10. Non-Transferability of Options. No option granted under the Plan shall be trankferatherwise than by will or the laws of descent
and distribution, except an option may be transféby gift to any member of the optione@hmediate family or to a trust for the benefibok
or more of such immediate family members if simodtausly with or prior to its granting the Commitsell have adopted a resolution
indicating that such option is transferable. Duttihg lifetime of an optionee, an option shall bereisable only by the optionee unless it has
been transferred as permitted hereby, in which itad®ll be exercisable only by such transferee.tlke purpose of this paragraph 10 an
optionee’s “immediate family” shall mean the opgers spouse, children and grandchildren.

11. Termination of Employment. In the event the employment of an employee to wharnption has been granted under the Plan shall
be terminated (otherwise than by reason of deatith option may, subject to the provisions of teetimo last sentence of paragraph 9 and to
the provisions of paragraph 12, be exercised @cettient of the number of shares that the emplesgeeentitled to purchase under such option
at the termination of employment) at any time witthiree months after such termination (which thremith period may be extended by the
Committee), but in no event shall such three-mgetfiod or any such extension permit the exercisenadption after the expiration date of the
option specified in the option agreement thereBptions granted under the Plan shall not be affielsyeany change of duties or position so
long as the optionee continues to be an employ&dinfor of a subsidiary. Nothing in the Plan orimy option granted pursuant thereto shall

confer on any employee any right to continue inehmploy of Olin or any of its subsidiaries or affecany way the right of Olin or any of its
subsidiaries to terminate his or her employmemingttime.

12. Conditions to Enjoyment of Options.The following conditions shall apply to the grantieexercise of options:

(i) The optionee shall not render services for arganization or engage, directly or indirectlyaimy business which, in tt
judgment of the Committee or, if delegated to ttde€Executive Officer, in the judgment by such iodf, is or becomes competitive
with Olin or any subsidiary, or which is or beconatiserwise prejudicial to or in conflict with theterests of Olin or any subsidiary. St
judgment shall be based on the optionee’s positimasresponsibilities while employed by Olin or aupsidiary, the optionee’s post-
employment responsibilities and position with thleen organization or business, the extent of gastent and potential competition or
conflict between Olin or a subsidiary and the othrgranization or business, the effect on custonsenspliers and competitors of the
optionee’s assuming the post-employment positioe guidelines established in the then currentaditif Olin’s Code of Business
Conduct, and such other considerations as are adesstevant given the applicable facts and circuntsta. The optionee shall be free,
however, to purchase as an investment or otheratieek or other securities of such organizatiobusiness so long as they are listed
upon a recognized securities exchange or tradedtbeeounter, and such investment does not repressubstantial investment to the
optionee or a greater than 10% equity interesténarganization or business.
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(i) The optionee shall not, without prior writtamithorization from Olin, disclose to anyone outs@li, or use in other than Olin’s
business, any secret or confidential informatiorgwledge or data, relating to the business of @lia subsidiary in violation of his or t
agreement with Olin or the subsidiary.

(iii) The optionee, pursuant to his or her agreetméth Olin or a subsidiary, shall disclose promgmhd assign to Olin or the
subsidiary all right, title, and interest in anyémtion or idea, patentable or not, made or comeckby the optionee during employment by
Olin or the subsidiary, relating in any mannerhe &actual or anticipated business, research ola@went work of Olin or the subsidiary
and shall do anything reasonably necessary to er@lbi or the subsidiary to secure a patent whppeapriate in the United States anc
foreign countries.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plare @ommittee in its sole discretion, which may blegated to the Chief Executive
Officer of Olin, may cancel any option at any tiprér to the exercise thereof, if the employmenthaf optionee shall be terminated, other 1
by reason of death, unless the conditions in thisgraph 12 are met.

Failure to comply with the conditions of this para@gh 12 prior to, or during the six months aftery axercise shall constitute a rescission
of the exercise. The difference between the faiketavalue (as defined in paragraph 5) on datexefase of the shares exercised and the
option price shall be returned to Olin by the opée, in cash, within 10 days after notice of thezission has been given to the optionee by
Olin’s Chief Executive Officer, chief legal officer chief personnel officer. Such notice may beegiat any time within two years of the date
of exercise.

Upon exercise of an option, the optionee shalifyerh a form acceptable to the Committee that hehe is in compliance with the terms
and conditions of the Plan.

13. Death of an Employeelf an employee to whom an option has been grame@mnthe Plan shall die while employed by Olin or a
subsidiary or after the termination of such emplepinsuch option may, subject to the provisionthefnext to the last sentence of paragraph 9
and to the provisions of paragraph 12, be exerdiyettie legatee or legatees of the employee uridarther last will, or by his or her personal
representatives or distributees or permitted teresf, as follows: if an employee dies while so eygd, at any time within one year after the
employee’s death (which one-year period may benebaeé by the Committee), to the extent of the reingishares covered by such option,
whether or not such shares had become purchasabite employee at the date of his or her deathjfeantl employee dies after termination of
employment and within the period an option remaxesrcisable, at any time within the longer of (i¢ fperiod that he or she could have
exercised the option had he or she not died ooii@ year after the date of death (which one-yeep@ may be extended by the Committee), in
either case, to the extent of the number of shameshasable by such employee or permitted traresfewesuant to the provisions of paragraph
11 at the date of his or her death. Notwithstandirgprovisions of this paragraph
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13, no option shall be exercisable after the exipinadate specified in the option agreement therefo

14. Disability of an Employee.If an employee to whom an option has been granteénthe Plan shall become totally and permanently
disabled, as that term is now defined in Sectio@®3) of the Code, as such Section may be ameindedtime to time, and the employee’s
employment with Olin or a subsidiary is terminageda result, such option may be exercised by sugtogee or permitted transferee within
one year after the date of termination of employtnerovided that no option shall be exercisableratie expiration date specified in the op
agreement therefor nor for more shares than thathadould have been purchased thereunder on tleeofiéérmination of employment.

15. Adjustments upon Changes in Capitalizationln the event of any change in the outstanding Com8tock of Olin by reason of
stock dividends, stock splits, recapitalizationygegs, consolidations, combinations or exchangeshafes, split-ups, split-offs, spin-offs,
liquidations or other similar changes in capitaii@a, or any distributions to common shareholdereothan cash dividends, the numbers, class
and prices of shares covered by outstanding opgoarsted under the Plan and the aggregate numberiass of shares available under the
Plan, shall be appropriately adjusted by the Cotemitwhose determination shall be conclusive. Withimiting the foregoing, in the event of
any split-up, split-off, spin-off or other distriban to shareholders of shares representing agp@tin’s business, properties and assets, the
Committee may, with the consent of an optionee,ifp@sh outstanding option or options so that suptiom or options shall thereafter relate to
shares of Common Stock of Olin and shares of dagiitak of the corporation owning the businesspprties and assets so split-up, split-off,
spun-off or otherwise distributed to shareholdémlin in the same ratio in which holders of then@oon Stock of Olin became entitled to
receive shares of capital stock of the corporatining the business, properties and assets seugplgplit-off, spun-off or otherwise
distributed.

16. Effectiveness of the PlanThe Plan shall become effective on January 25, 19@¥ided the Plan (and any options granted utider
Plan) will terminate if the Plan is not approvedaygufficient number of votes cast by the sharedrsldt the 1996 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to qualify the Plan for an exemptioden Rule 16b-3 of the Act and for an exceptio®éation 162(m) of the Code.

17.Time of Granting of Options. The granting of an option pursuant to the Planlg¢hké place on the date established by the
Committee. However, no option may be exerciseddfeamployee to whom the option is granted shdltdeexecute and deliver a copy of the
option agreement to the Committee or Olin withindé§s after delivery of the option agreement tdhseroployee.

18. Consent of EmployeeEvery employee who accepts an option under the $Hat be bound by the terms and restrictions efRtan
and his or her acceptance of an



option shall constitute an agreement between hihreoand Olin and its subsidiaries and any succge&santerest to any of them.

19. Termination and Amendment. Unless the Plan theretofore has been terminatbdrain provided, it shall terminate on, and no
option shall be granted thereunder after, Janusay2@06. The Board of Directors of Olin may at @inye prior to that date terminate the Plan,
or make such modification thereof as it shall desivisable; provided, however, that the Board oEBtiors may not, without further approval
by shareholders of Olin, (a) increase the maximumiver of shares for which options may be granteteuthe Plan (except for adjustments
permitted by Paragraph 15 hereof), (b) change thener of determining the minimum option pricesgottnan to change the manner of
determining the fair market value of the Commonc&tas stated in paragraph 5 above to conform tateey applicable provisions of the
Internal Revenue Code or regulations thereundedig)ancrease the period during which options maygtanted. No termination, modification
or amendment of the Plan may, without the consktiteoemployee to whom any option shall theretoftaee been granted, adversely affect
the rights of such employee under such option, goe termination resulting as provided in Paraird 6 hereof.

20.Incentive Stock Option Limitation. The aggregate fair market value (determined atithe an option is granted) of Common Stock
of Olin with respect to which incentive stock optso(as defined in Section 422 of the Code) arecésarle for the first time by an individual
during any calendar year (under the Plan and amgratock option plan of the individual's emplogerporation and its parent and subsidiary
corporations) shall not exceed $100,000.

21.Rule 16b-3 Compliancelt is the intention of Olin that the Plan comply&ah respects with Rule 16b-3 promulgated undetiSed6
(b) of the Act with respect to persons who are acifjo such Section. Therefore, if any Plan proviss found not to be in compliance with
Rule 16b-3, that provision shall be deemed ameaddd such persons so that the Plan does so caonhig extent permitted by law and
deemed advisable by the Committee, and in all eyt Plan shall be construed in favor of its nmgetihe requirements of Rule 16b-3 with
respect to persons who are subject to Section 1l&eohct.
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Exhibit 10(n

OLIN CORPORATION
2000 LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
(As Amended through January 30, 2003)

Section 1. Purpose

The general purposes of the Olin Corporation 2000d-Term Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) are to (iyatt and retain persons eligible to
participate in the Plan; (ii) motivate Participarig means of appropriate incentives, to achieng@nge goals; (iii) provide incentive
compensation opportunities that are competitivé wibse of other similar companies; and (iv) furtidentify Participants’ interests with those
of other shareholders of Olin Corporation (togethih any successor, “Olin”) through compensatioat is based on Olin’'s common stock;
and thereby promote the long-term financial inteo©lin and its Affiliates, including growth imé value of Olins equity and enhancement
long-term shareholder return.

Section 2. Definitions
As used in the Plan:

(a) “Affiliate” means any corporation, partnership, joint venturetioer entity during any period in which Olin owilérectly or indirectly, a
least 50% of the total voting or profits intere

(b) “Award” means any Option, Stock Appreciation Right, RedStock, Restricted Stock Unit, Performance Sbai@ividend Equivaler
granted under the Pla

(c) “Award Agreement” means any written agreement beotnstrument or document evidencing an Award tg@uander the Plan. The
terms of any plan or guideline adopted by the Baarthe Committee and applicable to an Award dheallleemed incorporated in and a
part of the related Award Agreeme

(d) “Boarc” means the Board of Directors of Ol

(e) “Cash Flov’ means consolidated net income of Olin, before ftez-tax effect of any special charge or gain or cuninvgegffect of any
change in accounting, plus depreciation and anaitia, less capital and investment spending ansl @uminus changes in working
capital.

() “Code’ means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as ameAdederence to any provision of the Code shallude reference to ar
successor provision of the Cor

(g) “Committee” means a committee of the Board desiggphéily the Board to administer the Plan, each mewfbehich is an “outside
director” for purposes of Section 162(m) of the €ashd a “non-employee director” for the purpos®ole 16b-3, and, to the extent the
Committee delegates authority to one or more inldials in accordance with the Plan, such individi)e

(h) “Dividend Equivaler” means any right granted under Section 6(c)(iilhefflan



0

(k)
o

(m)

(n)

(0)

()
(a)

(s)

(t)
(u)

“Earnings Per Share” means, for a fiscal year, clitsted net income of Olin before the after-tafeef of any special charge or gain or
cumulative effect of a change in accounting, didithy the weighted average number of shares of canstork outstanding, on a fully
diluted basis

“Economic Value Added” means Olin’s consolidatebbsdess its operating costs (including tax) lesagital charge based on Olin’s cost
of capital on assets employed in the busin

“Employe means any employee of Olin or of an Affilia

“Fair Market Value” means, with respect to share®lkn common stock, the mean of the high and lew share sales prices of such
common stock as reported on the consolidated tciingareporting system for New York Stock Exchaiggies as of the relevant date
the last preceding trading date, if such Shareg wet traded on such date, and, with respect ta#rer property (including, without
limitation, securities other than Shares), the fiagéirket value of such property determined by suethods or procedures as shall be
established from time to time by the Commiti

“Family Member” means any child, stepchild, granttthparent, stepparent, grandparent, spouse, fospmuse, sibling, niece, nephew,
mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughteflaw, brother-in-law or sister-in-law, includiragloptive relationship, or any person
sharing the Participa’s household, other than a tenant or emplo

“Incentive Stock Option” means an option to pureh8bares granted under the Plan that is intendecbéd the requirements of Section
422 of the Code

“Non-Qualified Stock Optio” means an option to purchase Shares granted urelPtah that is not intended to be an Incentiveks
Option.

“Optior” means an Incentive Stock Option or a -Qualified Stock Option
“Participan” means an Employee granted an Award under the

“Performance Share” means any grant of a righeteive Shares which is contingent on the achievenfgrerformance or other
objectives during a specified peric

“Person” means any individual, corporation, parshgy, limited liability company, association, jowegnture, stock company, trust,
unincorporated organization, or government or alitsubdivision thereo

“Pre-Tax Profi” means, for a fiscal year, the consolidated incoeferk taxes of Olin, before any special chargegaars.

“Released Securities” means securities that westriReed Securities with respect to which all apaliile restrictions imposed under the
terms of the relevant Award have expired, lapseldean waived or satisfie
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v)

(w)

)

v)

)

(aa)

(bb)

(cc)

“Restricted Securities” means Awards of Restrickalck or other Awards under which outstanding Share held subject to certain
restrictions

“Restricted Sto” means any grant of Shares, Restricted Stock Ur” means the grant of a right to receive Shares ifiuttuee, with
such Shares or right to future delivery of Sharggext to a risk of forfeiture or other restrictgthat will lapse upon the achievement of
one or more goals relating to completion of sertigehe Participant, or achievement of performamrcether objectives, as determinec
the Committee

“Return on Capital” means consolidated net incofm®lm plus after-tax interest expense and therdér effect of any special charge or
gain and any cumulative effect of a change in aoting, divided by average consolidated total asse@lin less total non-interest-
bearing liabilities

“ROE” shall mean the consolidated net income of Olin teefoe after tax effect of any special charge am gad any cumulative effect
any change in accounting, divided by average slédets equity

“RONA” means Pre-tax Profit before interest expedistded by average consolidated total assets of I©$s total non-interest-bearing
liabilities.

“Rule 161-3" means Rule 1¢-3 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Cosiomsinder the Securities Exchange Act of 193«
amended, or any successor ri

“Share” means the common stock of Olin and such other Rexsuor property as may become the subject of Aleg@ursuant to a
adjustment made under Section 4(b) of the F

“Stock Appreciation Rigl" or “SAR” means any such right granted under Section 6(thjeoPlan

Section 3. Administration

(@)

Powers of CommitteeThe Plan shall be administered by the Committeighvshall have full power and authority to: (istgate
Participants; (ii) determine the Awards to be gedrtb Participants; (iii) determine the number b&f®s (or securities convertible into
Shares) to be covered by Awards; (iv) determingéhms and conditions of any Award; (v) determirteether, to what extent, and under
what circumstances Awards may be settled or exadis cash, Shares, other securities, other Awardsther property, or canceled,
substituted, forfeited or suspended, and the metihadethods by which Awards may be settled, exed;isanceled, substituted, forfeited
or suspended, provided that no such action willltes repricing of Options prohibited by Sectioff)Gi); (vi) determine whether, to wh
extent, and under what circumstances cash, Shahes, securities, other Awards, other property atter amounts payable with respect
to an Award under the Plan shall be deferred etliwmatically or at the election of the Participanof the Committee; (vii) interpret
and administer the Plan and any instrument or ageeérelating to, or Award made under, the Plaiii) @stablish, amend, suspend or
waive such rules and guidelines and appoint suehtagas it shall deem appropriate for the admatistn of the Plan; and (ix) make any
other




(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

determination and take any other action that intlerecessary or desirable for such administra

Committee Discretiol. All designations, determinations, interpretatiansl other decisions with respect to the Plan gréamard shall be
within the sole discretion of the Committee andldba final, conclusive and binding upon all Persaincluding Olin, any Affiliate, any
Participants, any holder or beneficiary of any Asyaany shareholder and any employee of Olin ongfAffiliate. The Committee’s
powers include the adoption of modifications, ammeadts, procedures, subplans and the like as aess@y to comply with provisions
of the laws of other countries in which Olin or Affiliate may operate in order to assure the vigpbibf Awards granted under the Plan
and to enable Participants employed in such otbentcies to receive benefits under the Plan ant ks, provided that no such action
results in repricing of Options prohibited by Sent6(f)(ii).

Board Authority. If the Committee does not exist, or for any ottezrson determined by the Board, the Board mayaajection under
the Plan that would otherwise be the responsibilitthe Committee

Delegation. Notwithstanding any provision of the Plan to toatrary, except to the extent prohibited by agtile law or the applicab
rules of a stock exchange, the Committee may dede¢gaone or more officers or managers of Olinryr Affiliate, or a committee of su
officers or managers, the authority, subject tdhgeems and limitations as the Committee shallrdeitee, to grant Awards to, or to
cancel, modify, waive rights or conditions withpest to, alter, discontinue, suspend, or termiAatards held by, Employees who are
not officers or directors of Olin for purposes @&t8on 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934amended, provided that no such
action shall result in repricing of Options prohéd by Section 6(f)(ii)

Prohibition on Option RepricingNotwithstanding any other provision of the Plaeither the Board nor the Committee may reprice,
replace or regrant any Option granted under the &any other plan of Olin, (i) through canceltatiand replacement or regrant with
lower priced options or (ii) by lowering the optierercise price of a previously granted award, eittthe prior approval of Olin’s
shareholders

Section 4. Shares Available for Awards

(@)

Shares Availabl. Subject to adjustment as provided in Section dftthe Plan

() The aggregate number of Shares available for grg#tivards under the Plan shall be 2,250,000. Waard is denominated in or
relates to a security of Olin convertible into@emmon Stock, the number of shares of Common Sttokvhich such security
shall be convertible (calculated as of the datgrant of the Award, subject to adjustment as predioh Section 4(b) hereof or unt
the terms of such security) shall be deemed deratednin Shares and counted against the aggregetieenwf Shares available for
the granting of Awards under the Pl

(i) For purposes of this Section 4(a) and of Sectia)(i4{:



(b)

()

(A) If any Shares covered by an Award are not delivévead Participant or beneficiary because the Aviafdrfeited or canceled,
or if the Shares are not delivered because the dvgasettled in cash or used to satisfy the appléectax withholding
obligation, such Shares shall not be deemed to beer delivered for purposes of determining theimam number of
Shares available for delivery under the Plan;

(B) If the exercise price of any Option granted untierRlan is satisfied by tendering Shares (by edb®ral delivery or b
attestation), only the number of Shares issuedfitte Shares tendered shall be deemed delivergufposes of determining
the maximum number of Shares available for delivargter the Plar

Adjustments. In the event of any change in the Shares by reafstock dividends, stock splits, recapitalizatimergers, consolidatior
combinations or exchanges of shares, split-up#;&if$, spin-offs, liquidations or other similah@anges in capitalization, or any
distributions to shareholders other than cash diwit$, (i) the numbers, class and prices of Shanered by outstanding Awards under
the Plan (provided that no such adjustment shallltén repricing of Options prohibited by Sectiétf)(ii) of the Plan), (ii) the aggregate
number and class of Shares available under the &tah(iii) the numbers and class of Shares thgtlmahe subject of Awards pursuant
to Section 4(c), shall be adjusted by the Committdese determination shall be conclus

()  Without limiting the foregoing, in the event of agplit-up, spli-off, spir-off or other distribution to shareholders of she
representing a part of Olin’s business, propedied assets, the Committee may modify an outstaniliveyd so that such Award
shall thereafter relate to Shares of Olin and shafeapital stock of the corporation owning thsibaess, properties and assets so
split-up, split-off, spun-off or otherwise distritaa to shareholders of Olin in the same ratio ifctviinolders of the Shares became
entitled to receive shares of capital stock ofdboration owning the business, properties anetas® split-up, split-off or spun-
off or otherwise distributed, provided that no saciion results in repricing of Options prohibiteg Section 6(f)(ii).

(i)  With respect to Awards of Incentive Stock Optioms,such adjustment shall be authorized to the extan such authority would
cause the Plan to violate Section 422 of the Codap successor provision thereto, unless the holideuch Award of Incentive
Stock Options agrees to convert such options tc-qualified Stock Options

(iii) Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Participant to whDividend Equivalents or dividend units have baemrded shall not t
entitled to receive a special or extraordinaryakvid or distribution unless the Committee shalehexpressly authorized such
receipt.

Additional Restrictions Subject to adjustment as provided in Section,4(t#) following additional maximums are imposed emthe
Plan:




(i)  The maximum number of Shares that may be issue@itions intended to be Incentive Stock Optiond| &&900,000 Share

(i) The maximum number of Shares that may be covereldgrds granted to any one individual shall be 800,Shares during at
calendar yeal

(iii) No more than 100,000 Shares may be subject toiBtestiStock Awards, Restricted Stock Unit Awardd &erformance Sha
Awards, and no more than 300,000 Shares may bedubjOptions and Stock Appreciation Rights, gedrtb any one individual
during any calendar-year period (regardless of waumh Shares are deliverable) for any Award intdridébe “performance-based
compensatia” (as that term is used for purposes of Code Sec8a(n)).

(iv) No more than 450,000 Shares may be subject toiBtestiStock Awards, Restricted Stock Unit Awardd &erformance Sha
Awards.

Section 5. Eligibility.

Any Employee, including any officer or employeeeditor, of Olin or an Affiliate shall be eligible tee designated a Participant, subject to any
restrictions imposed by applicable law. An Awardyrb@ granted to an Employee prior to the date thelByee first performs services for the
Company or the Affiliate, provided that such Awast&ll not become vested prior to the date the Bysd first performs such services.

Section 6. Awards

(&) Options. The Committee is authorized to grant OptionsddiBipants with the following terms and conditicarsd with such additional
terms and conditions, not inconsistent with thev@ions of the Plan, as the Committee shall deteen

(i) Exercise Prict. The per Share exercise price shall be deternbgetie Committee; provided, however, that such@gerprice sha
not be less than the Fair Market Value of a Sharthe date of the Option grant; provided that, M@ -qualified Option is granted
in connection with the recipiersthiring, promotion or similar event, the exergisige may be not less than the Fair Market Valu
the Shares on the date on which the recipientédhir promoted (or the similar event occurs)hé Option grant occurs not more
than 90 days after the date of such ev

(i) Option Term. The term of each Option shall be fixed by the @Guttee, provided that in no event shall the ternafOption be
more than a period of ten years from the datesafiiaint.

(i) Exercise. The Committee shall determine the time or timesgtach an Option may be exercised in whole orantpand the method
or methods by which, and the form or forms in whiayment of the exercise price with respect themey be made

(iv) Incentive Stock OptionsThe terms of any Incentive Stock Option grantedar the Plan shall comply in all respects with the
provisions of Section 422 of the Code, or




(v)

(vi)

successor provision thereto, and any regulatioosplgated thereunder. Without limiting the precedsentence, the aggregate Fair
Market Value (determined at the time an optionranged) of Shares with respect to which Incentitcels Options are exercisable for the
first time by a Participant during any calendarnyfgender the Plan and any other plan of the Padidi's employer corporation and its
parent and subsidiary corporations providing foti@ys) shall not exceed such dollar limitation halsbe applicable to Incentive Stock
Options under Section 422 of the Code or a succgsewision.

Termination of Employmentin the event the employment of a Participant kmm an Option has been granted under the Planishall
terminated (other than by reason of the Participatgath or disability), such Option may, subjectie provisions of the next to last
sentence of Section 6(a)(vi) be exercised (to dtent of the number of shares that the Participaxs entitled to purchase under such
Option at the termination of employment) at anyetiwithin three months after such termination (whttfee-month period may be
extended by the Committee), but in no event shih shreemonth period or any such extension permit the eseraf an Option after tt
expiration date of the Option. Options granted uride Plan shall not be affected by any changeutiéd or position so long as the
Participant continues to be an Employ

Agreement to Servic. Each Participant receiving an Option shall, byegting the Option, agree that he or she will, siyemployment
devote his or her entire time, energy and skitheservice of Olin and the promotion of its intge subject to vacations, sick leave and
other absences in accordance with the regularipslaf, or other reasons satisfactory to, Olin indffiliates. Such employment shall
(subject to the terms of any contract between Giiany such Affiliate and such Participant) behat pleasure of Olin or such Affiliate,
and shall be at such compensation as Olin or stiftlate shall determine from time to time. Uponr@nation of such Participant’s
employment either (a) for cause, or (b) voluntaoitythe part of the Participant and without thettem consent of Olin, any Awards held
by him or her under the Plan, to the extent natettodore exercised or vested, shall forthwith teraé. Retirement pursuant to any
retirement plan of Olin or of an Affiliate shall heemed to be a termination of employment with ’s consent

(vii) Death. If a Participant to whom an Option has been gdushall die while an Employee, such Option mag)ercised by the

Participant’s executors, administrators, persoepitesentatives or distributees or permitted traesfeat any time within a period of one
year after the Participe’s death (which period may be extended by the Cdtes)i, regardless of whether or not such OptionJested
at the time of death. If a Participant to whom giti@h has been granted shall die after his or hgleyment has terminated but while
Option remains exercisable, the Option may be éseidy the persons described above at any tinfénathie longer of (a) the period
that the Participant could have exercised the @gied he or she not died, or (b) one year afted#te of death (which period may be
extended by the Committee), but only to the extleatOption was exercisable at the time of the Eipeth’s death
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(b)

(€)

(viii) Disability . If a Participant to whom an Option has been gmshall become totally and permanently disabledhat term is

defined in Section 22(e)(3) of the Code (or a sssoeprovision), and the Participant’s employmsrierminated as a result, such
option may be exercised by the Participant or peechitransferee within one year after the datewhination of employment, to t
extent that the Option was exercisable at the tiftermination of employmen

Stock Appreciation Right. The Committee is authorized to grant Stock Apjatean Rights to Participants which may but neetretate

to a specific Option granted under the Plan. Sultfethe terms of the Plan and any applicable Awsgteement, each Stock
Appreciation Right granted under the Plan shalfeoan the holder thereof a right to receive, uprarcise thereof, up to the excess ¢
the Fair Market Value of one Share on the datexefase over (ii) the exercise price of the rightspecified by the Committee, which
shall not be less than the Fair Market Value of 8hare on the date of grant of the Stock AppremiaRight. Subject to the terms of the
Plan and any applicable Award Agreement, the egerngiice, term, methods of exercise, methods afhpay or settlement and any other
terms and conditions of any Stock Appreciation Rigtall be as determined by the Committee, bubievent shall the term of a Stock
Appreciation Right exceed a period of ten yearsftbe date of its gran

Other Stock Award.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Issuance. The Committee is authorized to grant Awards aftReted Stock, Restricted Stock Units and PerforcesShares t
Participants

Dividends and Dividend Equivaler. An Award (including without limitation an Opticor Stock Appreciation Right) may provi
the Participant with the right to receive dividgrayments or dividend equivalent payments with resfmeShares subject to the
Award (both before and after the Shares subjetttddAward are earned, vested, or acquired), whighments may be either made
currently or credited to an account for the Pgstiat, and may be settled in cash or Shares aswetaf by the Committee. Any
such settlements, and any such crediting of divddear dividend equivalents or reinvestment in Shareay be subject to such
conditions, restrictions and contingencies as tbe@ittee shall establish, including the reinvesthwdrsuch credited amounts in
Share equivalent

Restrictions Any such Award shall be subject to such condgtjarstrictions and contingencies as the Committag impose
(including, without limitation, any limitation orhé right to vote Restricted Stock or the rightgoaive any dividend or other right
property), which may lapse separately or in comtimmaat such time or times, as the Committee mayrdappropriate, provided
that in order for a Participant to vest in Award®kestricted Stock, the Participant must remaithememploy of Olin or an Affiliate
for a period of not less than one (1) year afterghant of a performance-based Restricted Stockrdyveend not less than three (3)
years after the grant of a Restricted Stock Awhad is not performan-based, in each case, subject to Section 9 henel$zbject
to relief for specified reasons as may be apprdyethe Committee. Notwithstanding the foregoing, @ommittee may grant
Awards for



(d)

(€)

(iv)

v)

Restricted Stock for an aggregate number of Shee® exceed 45,000 which vest in less than ohggar after the date of grant,
including immediate vesting.

Forfeiture. Except as otherwise determined by the Committpen termination of employment for any reason dythe applicabli
restriction period, all Shares of Restricted Stsiilk subject to restriction shall be forfeited amécquired by Olir

Performanc-Based Award:.. The Committee may designate whether any such ds\aeing granted to a Participant is intende
be “performance-based compensation” as that tetsdd in Section 162(m) of the Code. Any Award ssighated shall be
conditioned on the achievement of one or more pedoce measures. Performance measures that magthdythe Committee
for such purpose shall be based on one or motfgedbilowing: Pre-Tax Profit and/or Earnings Peaf&h Cash Flow, Economic
Value Added, ROE, Return on Capital or RONA. Forakds intended to be “performance-based compengatiengrant of the
Awards and the establishment of the performancesarea shall be made during the period requiredruidde Section 162(m

Forms of Payment Under Awar. Subject to the terms of the Plan and of any apple Award agreement, payments to be made by

or an Affiliate upon the grant, exercise, or paytrefran Award may be made in such form or formghasCommittee shall determine,
including, without limitation, cash, Shares, oteecurities, other Awards, or other property or eombination thereof, and may be made
in a single payment or transfer, in installmentsp a deferred basis, in each case in accordaitbewes and procedures established by
the Committee. Notwithstanding the foregoing, thgment of the exercise price of an Option shabligect to the following

(i)

(ii)

(i)

Subiject to the following provisions of this subsectthe full exercise price for Shares purchasezhithe exercise of any Opti
shall be paid at the time of such exercise (extegif in the case of an exercise arrangement apgroy the Committee and
described below, payment may be made as soon eticplde after the exercise

The exercise price shall be payable in cash oebgdring, by either actual delivery of Shares oathgstation, Shares acceptabli
the Committee, which Shares were either acquirdéebat six months before the exercise date or sedhon the open market, and
valued at Fair Market Value as of the day of exsacor in any combination thereof, as determinethbyCommittee

The Committee may permit a Participant to eleqap the exercise price upon the exercise of ano@fty irrevocably authorizin
a third party to sell Shares (or a sufficient portof the Shares) acquired upon exercise of aro®ptnd remit to Olin a sufficient
portion of the sale proceeds to pay the entirecseprice and any tax withholding resulting froatls exercise

Limits on Transfer of Award. No Award (other than Released Securities) ortriigareunder shall be assignable or transferabke

Participant, other thai



(f)

(ii)

by will or the laws of descent and distribution, (iorthe case of an Award of Restricted Securite®lin); or

in the case of Awards other than Incentive Stockddg, to the extent permitted under the termsiefAward, by a gift or domest
relations order to any Family Member, to a trusivhich the Participant and/or his or her Family Mmms hold more than 50% of
the beneficial interest, to a foundation in whibk Participant and/or Family Members control theagement of assets, and any
other entity in which the Participant and/or hisher Family Members own more than 50% of the votirigrests

For purposes of this provision, a transfer to aityeim exchange for an interest in that entity lshanstitute a gift.

Genera.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

No Cash Consideration for Awar. Participants shall not trequired to make any cash payment for the gramiragn Award excej
for such minimum consideration as may be requisedgplicable law

Awards May Be Granted Separately or Togeth&wards may be granted either alone or in additigrin tandem with, or in
substitution for any other Award or any award ondfé granted under any other plan or arrangeme@tia or any Affiliate, or as
payment for or to assure payment of an award oefitegranted under any such other such plan ongement, provided that the
purchase or exercise price under an Option or dtlard encompassing the right to purchase Shamdbsreit be reduced by the
cancellation of such Award and the substitutioamdther Award. Awards so granted may be grantéee#t the same time as or at
a different time from the grant of such other Awsacd awards or benefit

General Restriction. Delivery of Shares or other amounts under the Bfell be subject to the followin

(A) Notwithstanding any other provision of the PlaninGlhall have no liability to deliver any Shareglanthe Plan or make al
other distribution of benefits under the Plan usigsch delivery or distribution would comply with @pplicable laws
(including, without limitation, the requirementstbe Securities Act of 1933), and the applicabtpirements of any securiti
exchange or similar entit

(B) To the extent that the Plan provides for issuarictozk certificates to reflect the issuance ofr8kdhe issuance may be
effected on a nc-certificated basis, to the extent not prohibitedapyplicable law or the applicable rules of any ktexchange

Agreement With Olin An Award under the Plan shall be subject to decims and conditions, not inconsistent with thenPées the
Committee shall, in its sole discretion, prescribiee terms and conditions of any Award to any Bgrdint may be reflecte
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v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

()

in such form of written document as is determingdh® Committee. A copy of such document shall toiped to the Participant,
and the Committee may, but need not, require thicRent to sign a copy of such document, (an “AdvAgreement’tegardless c
whether any Participant signature is required).

Beneficiary. A Participant may, in the manner establishedheyGommittee, designate a beneficiary or benef@sawnith respect to
any Award to exercise the rights of the Participantl to receive any property distributable, ugwndeath of the Participant. Each
Award, and each right under any Award, shall be@sable, during the Participant’s lifetime, only the Participant or a permitted
transferee, or, if permissible under applicable tgvthe Participar' s guardian or legal representati

No Lien or Security Interet. No Award (other than Released Securities), andgit under any such Award, may be pledc
attached or otherwise encumbered other than irr faf/@lin, and any purported pledge, attachmengrmumbrance thereof other
than in favor of Olin shall be void and unenfordeadgainst Olin or any Affiliate

No Rights to Award:.. No Employee, Participant or other Person shaletemy claim to be granted an Award, and ther®
obligation for uniformity of treatment of Employed®articipants or beneficiaries of Awards underRite:n. The terms and
conditions of Awards need not be the same witheetsto each recipient. The prospective recipierargf Award under the Plan
shall not, with respect to such Award, be deemduthte become a Participant, or to have any rightts mspect to such Award,
until and unless such recipient shall have execatedgreement or other instrument accepting therdweuired by the Committee
and delivered a fully executed copy thereof to (dind otherwise complied with the then applicabtens and condition:

Withholding. All distributions under the Plan are subject fthivolding of all applicable taxes, and, excepbtmerwise provided k
the Committee, the delivery of any Shares or oltfeerefits under the Plan to a Participant are cimgit on satisfaction of the
applicable withholding requirements. The Commitiaets discretion, and subject to such requiremastthe Committee may
impose prior to the occurrence of such withholdimgy permit such withholding obligations to be sf&id through cash payment
by the Participant, through the surrender of Shatgsh the Participant already owns, or throughgheender of Shares to which
the Participant is otherwise entitled under thenF

Other Compensation Arrangementsothing contained in the Plan shall prevent @lirmany Affiliate from adopting or continuing
effect other or additional compensation arrangemertd such arrangements may be either generallicabple or applicable only
specific cases

No Right to Employmer. The grant of an Award shall not be construedi@aga Participant the right to be retained in émeploy
of Olin or any Affiliate. Nothing in the Plan or yward Agreement shall limit the right of Olin an Affiliate at any time to
dismiss a Participant from employment, free from Eebility or any claim under the Plan or the Awlakgreement
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(xi) Governing Law. The validity, construction and effect of the P&ard any rules and regulations relating to the Bl be
determined in accordance with the laws of the Siateonnecticut, excluding any conflicts or choafdaw rule or principle that
might otherwise refer construction or interpretatad this Plan or any award Agreement to the subistalaw of another
jurisdiction.

(xii) Severability. If any provision of the Plan or any Award is deteed to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable asrto any Person
Award, or would disqualify the Plan or any Awardgch provision shall be construed or deemed ametadeonform to applicable
laws, or, if it cannot be so construed or deemedratted without, in the determination of the Comreittmaterially altering the
intent of the Plan or the Award, such provisionlishe stricken as to such Person or Award, ande¢h@ainder of the Plan and any
such Award shall remain in full force and effe

(xiii) No Trust or Fund Create. Neither the Plan nor any Award shall create ocdiestrued to create a trust or separate fundyokemna
or a fiduciary relationship between Olin or anyilidite and a Participant or any other Person. Eoetktent that any Person acquires
a right to receive payments from Olin or any A& pursuant to an Award, such right shall be eatgr than the right of any
unsecured general creditor of Olin or any Affilic

(xiv) No Fractional Share. No fractional Shares shall be issued or delivgnaguant to the Plan or any Award, and the Coraishal
determine whether cash, other securities or ottarepty shall be paid or transferred in lieu of &mctional Shares, or whether
such fractional Shares or any rights thereto dl®ttanceled, terminated or otherwise eliming

(xv) Share Certificate. All certificates for Shares or other securitiedivered under the Plan pursuant to any Award eretkercise
thereof shall be subject to such stop transferrerded other restrictions as the Committee may deshrisable under the Plan or the
rules, regulations and other requirements of treuftees and Exchange Commission, any stock exahapgn which such Shares
or other securities are then listed, and any applecFederal or state securities laws, and the Gtieemay cause a legend or
legends to be put on any such certificates to nagleopriate reference to such restrictic

(xvi) Conflict with Plan. In the event of any inconsistency or conflicvoetn the terms of the Plan and an Award Agreentleaterms
of the Plan shall goveri

Section 7. Amendment and Termination

() Amendments to the Ple. The Board or the Committee may amend, suspeadouiinue or terminate the Plan, including, with
limitation, any amendment, suspension, discontionair termination that would impair the rightsasfy Participant, or any other holder
or beneficiary of any Award theretofore grantedhwut the consent of any shareholder, Participgthgr holder or beneficiary of an
Award, or other Person; provided, however, thatwitbstanding any other provision of the Plan oy &ward Agreement, without tr
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(b)

(©)

(d)

approval of the shareholders of Olin, no such ammamd, suspension, discontinuation or terminaticil ¢<fe made that would:

(i) increase the total number of Shares available feais under the Plan or the total number of Shewbgct to one or mol
categories of Awards pursuant to Section 4(c)jtimee case except as provided in Section £

(i) reduce the minimum Option exercise price, excemrragided in Section 4(b); ¢
(iii) permit repricing of Options prohibited by Sectiqif)@i); and

providedfurtherthat no amendment, suspension, discontinuatioarorimation (i) that would impair the rights of suehbrticipant, holder
or beneficiary shall be made with respect to Secliof the Plan after a Change in Control, as éefitherein and (ii) may increase the
amount of payment of any Award to any Participant.

Amendments to AwardsThe Committee may waive any conditions or righits respect to, or amend, alter, suspend, discoatior
terminate, any unexercised Award theretofore grarisospectively or retroactively, without the censof any relevant Participant or
holder or beneficiary of an Award, provided thatamoendment, alteration, suspension, discontinuatidgarmination of an Award that
would impair the rights of such Participant, holdebeneficiary shall be made after a Change int©gras defined in Section 9; provic
further that the Committee may not increase them@t of any Award granted any Participe

Adjustments of Awards Upon Certain Acquisitic. In the event Olin or any Affiliate shall assumésianding employee awards or
right or obligation to make future such awardsanmection with the acquisition of another busin@sanother Person, the Committee
may make such adjustments, not inconsistent wihdahms of the Plan, in the terms of Awards akatlsieem appropriat

Adjustments of Awards Upon the Occurrence of Certémusual or Nonrecurring Ever. The Committee may make adjustments in
terms and conditions of Awards in recognition ofismal or nonrecurring events (including, withouatitation, the events described in
Section 4(b) hereof) affecting Olin, any Affiliate; the financial statements of Olin or any Affigaor of changes in applicable laws,
regulations, or accounting principles, wheneverGoenmittee determines that statements of Olin grésfiliate, or of changes in
applicable laws, regulations, or accounting pritespwhenever the Committee determines that sujistagents are appropriate in order
to prevent dilution or enlargement of the bendfitbe made available under the P!

Section 8. Additional Conditions to Enjoyment of Ams.

(@)

The Committee may cancel any unexpired, unpaiceterded Awards if at any time the Participant i$ inccompliance with all applicab
provisions of the Award Agreement, the Plan andféfiewing conditions:

13



(b)

(€)

(d)

(i) A Participant shall not render services for anysBeror engage, directly or indirectly, in any besisiwhich, in the judgment of the
Committee is or becomes competitive with Olin oy affiliate, or which is or becomes otherwise puwigial to or in conflict with
the interests of Olin or any Affiliate. Such judgmeshall be based on the Participant’s positiorsrasponsibilities while employed
by Olin or an Affiliate, the Participant’s post elopment responsibilities and position with the atRerson or business, the extent
of past, current and potential competition or cohfhetween Olin or an Affiliate and the other Rer®r business, the effect on
customers, suppliers and competitors of the Ppétitis assuming the post employment position, tlidaiines established in the
then current edition of Olis’ Standards of Ethical Business Practices, andahehn considerations as are deemed relevant ¢fia
applicable facts and circumstances. The Participhall be free, however, to purchase as an invedtoreotherwise, stock or other
securities of such Person or business so longegsatte listed upon a recognized securities exchangiaded over the counter, and
such investment does not represent a substantedtiment to the Participant or a greater than 1etyemterest in the organization
or business

(i) Participant shall not, without prior written autkeation from Olin, disclose to anyone outside Otinuse in other than Olin’s
business, any secret or confidential informatiorgwedge or data, relating to the business of @ian Affiliate in violation of his
or her agreement with Olin or the Affiliat

(iii) A Participant, pursuant to his or her agreemerth @iin or an Affiliate, shall disclose promptly aadsign to Olin or the Affiliate &
right, title and interest in any invention or id@atentable or not, made or conceived by the Raatit during employment by Olin
or the Affiliate, relating in any manner to thewaidtor anticipated business, research or developmeark of Olin or the Affiliate
and shall do anything reasonably necessary to er@loi or the Affiliate to secure a patent wherprapriate in the United States
and in foreign countrie:

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plare @ommittee in its sole discretion may cancel amgAl at any time prior to tF
exercise thereof, if the employment of the Paréioipshall be terminated, other than by reason athdeinless the conditions in this
Section 8 are me

Failure to comply with the conditions of this Seati8 prior to, or during the six months after, &xgrcise, payment or delivery pursuant
to an Award shall cause the exercise, paymentloretie to be rescinded. Olin shall notify the Peigiant in writing of any such rescissi
within two years after such exercise payment oivdgl and within 10 days after receiving such netihe Participant shall pay to Olin
the amount of any gain realized or payment receaged result of the exercise, payment or delivesginded. Such payment shall be
made either in cash or by returning to Olin the banof Shares that the Participant received in eotion with the rescinded exercise,
payment or delivery

Upon exercise, payment or delivery pursuant to asadl, the Committee may require the Participarstdknowledge the terms and
conditions of the Plan and to certify on a formegtable to the Committee, that he or she is in diamge with the terms and conditions
of the Plan
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(e) Nothing herein shall be interpreted to limit thdightions of a Participant under his or her empéoggreement or any other agreen
with Olin.

Section 9. Change in Control

(a) Except as the Board or the Committee may exprgsslyjide otherwise prior to a Change in Control éih@as defined below) in the
event of a Change in Control of Oli

(i)

(ii)

(i)

all Options and Stock Appreciation Rights then tanding shall become immediately and fully exetgisanotwithstanding any
provision therein for the exercise in installmel

all restrictions and conditions of all Restrictadk and Restricted Stock Units then outstandiradl §ie deemed satisfied as of -
date of the Change in Control; a

all Performance Share Awards shall become vestaimdd earned in full and promptly paid to the Bidints, cash units in cash
and phantom stock units in the Shares represeiméedily or such other securities, property or cashay be deliverable in respect
of Shares as a result of a Change in Control, withegard to payment schedules and notwithstarttiisicthe applicable
performance cycle or retention cycle shall not Hagen completec

(b) “Change in Control” means the occurrence of ang of the following events:

(i)

(ii)

individuals who, on November 1, 2002, constitute Board (the “Incumbent Directors”) cease for aggson to constitute at least a
majority of the Board; providetthat any individual becoming a director subseqtemMovember 1, 2002, whose election or
nomination for election was approved (either byectfic vote or by approval of the proxy statemein®lin in which such

individual is named as a nominee for director, withwritten objection to such nomination) by a votet least two-thirds of the
directors who were, as of the date of such appréralimbent Directors, shall be an Incumbent Doegbrovided, however, that

no individual initially appointed, elected or norated as a director of Olin as a result of an aau#hreatened election contest with
respect to directors or as a result of any otherahor threatened solicitation of proxies or carisdy or on behalf of any Person
other than the Board shall be deemed to be an InenthDirector:

any “person” (as such term is defined in Sectia)(®( of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (tAet”) and as used in Sections
13(d)(3) and 14(d)(2) of the Act) is or becomedbarieficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 undwr Act), directly or indirectly,

of securities of Olin representing 20% or morehaf tombined voting power of Olmthen outstanding securities eligible to vote
the election of the Board (the “Olin Voting Seciast’); provided, however, that the event described in this paragraph i@lsnot

be deemed to be a Change in Control if such ewsuits from any of the following: (A) the acquisiti of Olin Voting Securities by
Olin or any of its subsidiaries, (B) the acquigitiof Olin Voting Securities by any employee benpfén (or related trust) sponsored
or maintained by Olin or any of its subsidiarie3) the
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(€)

acquisition of Olin Voting Securities by any undeiter temporarily holding securities pursuant toodiering of such securities, or
(D) the acquisition of Olin Voting Securities puasii to a Non-Qualifying Transaction (as definegamagraph (iii));

(iii) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, staguighare exchange or similar form of corporatagaation involving Olin or ar
of its subsidiaries (a “Reorganization”) or saletirer disposition of all or substantially all betassets of Olin to an entity that is
not an affiliate of Olin (a “Sale”), unless immetily following such Reorganization or Sale: (A) mahan 50% of the total voting
power (in respect of the election of directorssionilar officials in the case of an entity otheamha corporation) of (x) the entity
resulting from such Reorganization, or the entityal has acquired all or substantially all of tissets of Olin (in either case, the
“Surviving Entity”), or (y) if applicable, the ulihate parent entity that directly or indirectly hesheficial ownership of more than
50% of the total voting power (in respect of thectibn of directors, or similar officials in thesgaof an entity other than a
corporation) of the Surviving Entity (the “Parenttiy”), is represented by Olin Voting Securitiémt were outstanding
immediately prior to such Reorganization or Sale if@pplicable, is represented by shares intacWisiuch Olin Voting Securities
were converted pursuant to such Reorganizatiorata) Sand such voting power among the holders tfieéseén substantially the
same proportion as the voting power of such OlitingpSecurities among the holders thereof immebigigor to the
Reorganization or Sale, (B) no Person (other timgneanployee benefit plan (or related trust) spoadar maintained by the
Surviving Entity or the Parent Entity), is or becesrthe beneficial owner, directly or indirectly,28% or more of the total voting
power (in respect of the election of directorssionilar officials in the case of an entity otheatha corporation) of the outstanding
voting securities of the Parent Entity (or, if thés no Parent Entity, the Surviving Entity) and &€ least a majority of the members
of the board of directors (or similar officialstime case of an entity other than a corporatiorih@fParent Entity (or, if there is no
Parent Entity, the Surviving Entity) following tmensummation of the Reorganization or Sale wertheatime of the approval by
the Board of the execution of the initial agreenpolviding for such Reorganization or Sale, Incunttigirectors (any
Reorganization or Sale which satisfies all of thteda specified in (A), (B) and (C) above beingethed to be a “Non-Qualifying
Transactio”);

(iv) the stockholders of Olin approve a plan of compliefgidation or dissolution of Olir

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the acquisition Imy #erson of beneficial ownership of 20% or moréhefcombined voting power of

Olin Voting Securities solely as a result of thguisition of Olin Voting Securities by Olin whiclkeduces the number of Olin Voting
Securities outstanding shall be deemed not totresal Change in Control; providediowever, that if such Person subsequently becomes
the beneficial owner of additional Olin Voting Seities that increases the percentage of outstan@limgVoting Securities beneficially
owned by such Person, a Change in Control of ®lall shen be deemed to occur.

In the event that a Participant participates oeagtto participate by loan or equity investmerti€pthan through ownership of less than
1% of publicly traded securities of anot!
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company) in a transaction (“acquisition”) which vidwesult in an event described in Section 9(lbifii), the Participant must promptly
disclose such participation or agreement to Ofithé Participant so participates or agrees tagpate, no benefits or payments due
under the Plan or by virtue of the Change in Cditrovisions contained in any compensation or hiepéin of Olin will be paid to the
Participant until the acquiring group in which tRarticipant participates or agrees to participatedompleted the acquisition. In the e
the Participant so participates or agrees to ppétie and fails to disclose his participation oresgnent, the Participant will not be entit
to any benefits or payments under the Plan or byeviof Change in Control provisions in any Olimgzensation or benefit plan,
notwithstanding any of the terms hereof or thereof.

(d) Anything in the Plan to the contrary notwithstarglim the event that it shall be determined thatlzenefit, payment or distribution |
Olin to or for the benefit of the Participant (whet paid or payable or distributed or distributalplersuant to the terms of the Plan but
determined without regard to any additional paymmeatjuired under this Section 9(d), would be sulifethe excise tax imposed by
Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code of 188@mended, the Participant shall be entitleddeive an additional payment (the
“Gross-Up Payment”) in an amount equal to (i) theoant of the excise tax imposed on the Participangspect of the benefits or
payments received pursuant to the Plan (the “Extése€) plus (ii) all federal, state and local incenemployment and excise taxes
(including any interest or penalties imposed wébpect to such taxes) imposed on the Participameisipect of the Gross-Up Payment,
such that after payments of all such taxes (indgdiny applicable interest or penalties) on thes&lp Payment, the Participant retair
portion of the Gross-Up Payment equal to the EXTipe provided that, if the Participant receivesrass-Up Payment with respect to
benefits or payments received under the Plan potdaanother benefit or compensation plan or ages, the Gross-Up Payment under
this Section 9(d) shall be reduced by the amoustioh other Grosp Payments paid in respect to the Excise Tax dubearesult of th
benefits or payments received under the F

Section 10. Effective Date and Term

Subiject to the approval of Olin’s shareholderd1at2000 annual shareholders meeting the Plantshalifective as of January 27, 2000 (the
“Effective Date”"); provided, however, that to thetent that Awards are granted under the Plan poidis approval by shareholders, the Awards
shall be contingent on approval of the Plan bystereholders of Olin at such annual meeting. Tha Bhall be unlimited in duration and, in
the event of Plan termination, shall remain in effes long as any Awards under it are outstandimguided; however, that, to the extent
required by the Code, no Incentive Stock Option tmaygranted under the Plan on a date that is rhareten years from the date the Plan is
adopted.
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Exhibit 10(0

OLIN CORPORATION
2003 LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

Section 1. Purpose

The general purposes of the Olin Corporation 2008g.Term Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) are to (iyatt and retain persons eligible to
participate in the Plan; (ii) motivate Participarig means of appropriate incentives, to achieng@nge goals; (iii) provide incentive
compensation opportunities that are competitivé wibse of other similar companies; and (iv) furtidentify Participants’ interests with those
of other shareholders of Olin Corporation (togetigh any successor, “Olin”) through compensatioat is based on Olin’'s common stock;
and thereby promote the long-term financial inteo©lin and its Affiliates, including growth imé value of Olins equity and enhancement
long-term shareholder return.

Section 2. Definitions
As used in the Plan:

(a) “Affiliate” means any corporation, partnership,fjoventure or other entity during any period in ghOlin owns, directly or indirectly, at
least 50% of the total voting or profits intere

(b) “Award” means any Option, Stock Appreciation Right, Re&dStock, Restricted Stock Unit, Performance Shai@ividend Equivaler
granted under the Pla

(c) “Award Agreemer” means any written agreement or other instrumedboument evidencing an Award granted under the. Hlaa
terms of any plan or guideline adopted by the Baairthe Committee and applicable to an Award dhalleemed incorporated in and a
part of the related Award Agreeme

(d) “Boarc” means the Board of Directors of Ol

(e) “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 198&na=nded. A reference to any provision of the Cdddl sclude reference to any
successor provision of the Cor

(H “Committe” means a committee of the Board designated by tlaedBo administer the Plan, each member of whiem*outside
director” for purposes of Section 162(m) of the €ashd a “non-employee director” for the purpos®ole 16b-3, and, to the extent the
Committee delegates authority to one or more idials in accordance with the Plan, such individ)e

(g) “Dividend Equivaler” means any right granted under Section 6(c)(iihefflan



(h)
(i)
0)

(k)

o

(m)
(n)

(o)
()
(@
()

(s)

(®

“Employe” means any employee of Olin or of an Affilia
“Exchange A¢" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1¢

“Fair Market Valu” means, with respect to shares of Olin common stibekmean of the high and low per share salesspdtsuct
common stock as reported on the consolidated tciingareporting system for New York Stock Exchaiggies as of the relevant date
the last preceding trading date, if such Shareg wet traded on such date, and, with respect ta#mr property (including, without
limitation, securities other than Shares), the fisérket value of such property determined by suethods or procedures as shall be
established from time to time by the Commiti

“Family Membe” means any child, stepchild, grandchild, parenppseent, grandparent, spouse, former spouse, gilsliace, nephev
mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughteflaw, brother-in-law or sister-in-law, includiragloptive relationship, or any person
sharing the Participa’s household, other than a tenant or emplo

“Incentive Stock Optic’ means an option to purchase Shares granted ureltah that is intended to meet the requiremengeofion
422 of the Code

“Incumbent Directol” means the individuals who, on the date this Plapoved by shareholders, constitute the B¢

“Non-Qualified Stock Optio” means an option to purchase Shares granted urelPtah that is not intended to be an Incentiveks
Option.

“Qlin Voting Securitie” means Oli’'s then outstanding securities eligible to votetlfier election of the Boar
“Optior” means an Incentive Stock Option or a -Qualified Stock Option
“Participan” means an Employee granted an Award under the

“Performance Shg” means any grant of a right to receive Shares wikicbntingent on the achievement of performancetioer
objectives during a specified peric

“Person” has the meaning of such term in Sectia)(8] of the Exchange Act and as used in Secti8(d)@3) and 14(d)(2) of the
Exchange Act

“Released Securities” means securities that westriReed Securities with respect to which all apaliile restrictions imposed under the
terms of the relevant Award have expired, lapseldean waived or satisfie
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(u)

v)

(w)

)

v)

“Restricted Securities” means Awards of Restrickalck or other Awards under which outstanding Share held subject to certain
restrictions

“Restricted Sto” means any grant of Shares, Restricted Stock Ur” means the grant of a right to receive Shares ifiuttuee, with
such Shares or right to future delivery of Sharggext to a risk of forfeiture or other restrictgthat will lapse upon the achievement of
one or more goals relating to completion of sertigehe Participant, or achievement of performamrcether objectives, as determinec
the Committee

“Rule 16b-3" means Rule 16b-3 promulgated by theuides and Exchange Commission under the Seesiiikchange Act of 1934, as
amended, or any successor ri

“Shares” means the common stock of Olin and sukbratecurities or property as may become the subjegowards pursuant to an
adjustment made under Section 4(b) of the F

“Stock Appreciation Rigl” or “SAR” means any such right granted under Section 6(tf)eoPlan

Section 3. Administration

(@)

(b)

Powers of Committe. The Plan shall be administered by the Committeielwshall have full power and authority to: (i)stgate
Participants; (ii) determine the Awards to be gedrb Participants; (iii) determine the number b&&s (or securities convertible into
Shares) to be covered by Awards; (iv) determingéhms and conditions of any Award; (v) determirteether, to what extent, and under
what circumstances Awards may be settled or exetdiscash, Shares, other securities, other Awardsther property, or canceled,
substituted, forfeited or suspended, and the methadethods by which Awards may be settled, exedsisanceled, substituted, forfeited
or suspended, provided that no such action willltés repricing of Options prohibited by Sectiofe} (vi) determine whether, to what
extent, and under what circumstances cash, Shattes, securities, other Awards, other property atheér amounts payable with respect
to an Award under the Plan shall be deferred etliomatically or at the election of the Participanof the Committee; (vii) interpret
and administer the Plan and any instrument or ageeérelating to, or Award made under, the Plaiii) @stablish, amend, suspend or
waive such rules and guidelines and appoint suehtags it shall deem appropriate for the admatistn of the Plan; and (ix) make any
other determination and take any other actionittd#ems necessary or desirable for such admitistr:

Committee Discretion All designations, determinations, interpretatiansl other decisions with respect to the Plan gréamard shall be
within the sole discretio




()

(d)

(€)

of the Committee and shall be final, conclusive bimdling upon all Persons, including Olin, any Affie, any Participants, any holder or
beneficiary of any Award, any shareholder and anpleyee of Olin or of any Affiliate. The Committesghowers include the adoption of
modifications, amendments, procedures, subplansheniike as are necessary to comply with provisiohthe laws of other countries in
which Olin or an Affiliate may operate in orderassure the viability of Awards granted under trenRind to enable Participants
employed in such other countries to receive benefitder the Plan and such laws, provided that ol aation results in repricing of
Options prohibited by Section 3(e).

Board Authority. If the Committee does not exist, or for any otfezrson determined by the Board, the Board mayaajection under
the Plan that would otherwise be the responsibilitthe Committee

Delegation. Notwithstanding any provision of the Plan to toatrary, except to the extent prohibited by agtile law or the applicable
rules of a stock exchange, the Committee may dede¢gaone or more officers or managers of Olinryr Affiliate, or a committee of su
officers or managers, the authority, subject tdhgeems and limitations as the Committee shallrdeitee, to grant Awards to, or to
cancel, modify, waive rights or conditions withpest to, alter, discontinue, suspend, or termiAatards held by, Employees who are
not officers or directors of Olin for purposes @&t8on 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934amended, provided that no such
action shall result in repricing of Options prohéud by Section 3(e

Prohibition on Option RepricingNotwithstanding any other provision of the Plaeither the Board nor the Committee may reprice,
replace or regrant any Option granted under the &any other plan of Olin, (i) through canceltatiand replacement or regrant with
lower priced options or (ii) by lowering the optierercise price of a previously granted award, etithe prior approval of Olin’s
shareholders

Section 4. Shares Available for Awards

(@)

Shares Availabl. Subject to adjustment as provided in Section dftthe Plan
() The aggregate number of Shares available for grg#tivards under the Plan shall be 1,700,(
(i) For purposes of this Section 4, other than Sectdoxii) and 4(c)(iii):

(A) If any Shares covered by an Award are not delivésed Participant or beneficiary because the Avigfdrfeited or canceled,
or if the Shares are not delivered because the digasettled in cash or used to satisfy the appléctax withholding
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obligation, such Shares shall not be deemed to bege delivered for purposes of determining theimas number of
Shares available for delivery under the Plan; and

(B) If the exercise price of any Option granted untierRlan is satisfied by tendering Shares (by edb®ral delivery or b
attestation), only the number of Shares issuedfihte Shares tendered shall be deemed delivergufposes of determining
the maximum number of Shares available for delivargter the Plar

(b) Adjustments In the event of any change in the Shares by reasstock dividends, stock splits, recapitalizatimergers, consolidations,
combinations or exchanges of shares, split-up#;&if$, spin-offs, liquidations or other similah@anges in capitalization, or any
distributions to shareholders other than cash diwi$, (i) the numbers, class and prices of Shanesred by outstanding Awards under
the Plan (provided that no such adjustment shalllltén repricing of Options prohibited by Secti®fe) of the Plan), (ii) the aggregate
number and class of Shares available under the &tah(iii) the numbers and class of Shares thgtlmahe subject of Awards pursuant
to Section 4(c), shall be adjusted by the Committdese determination shall be conclus

(i)  Without limiting the foregoing, in the event of agplit-up, split-off, spin-off or other distributioto shareholders of shares
representing a part of Olin’s business, propedied assets, the Committee may modify an outstaniliveyd so that such Award
shall thereafter relate to Shares of Olin and shafeapital stock of the corporation owning thsibess, properties and assets so
split-up, split-off, spun-off or otherwise distritaal to shareholders of Olin in the same ratio ifctviinolders of the Shares became
entitled to receive shares of capital stock ofdbporation owning the business, properties anetas® split-up, split-off or spun-
off or otherwise distributed, provided that no sachion results in repricing of Options prohibiteg Section 3(e)

(i)  With respect to Awards of Incentive Stock Optioms,such adjustment shall be authorized to the extan such authority would
cause the Plan to violate Section 422 of the Codap successor provision thereto, unless the holideuch Award of Incentive
Stock Options agrees to convert such options tc-qualified Stock Options

(iii) Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Participant to whDividend Equivalents or dividend units have baemrded shall not t
entitled to receive a special or extraordinarydkvid or distribution unless the Committee shalehexpressly authorized such
receipt.

(c) Additional Restriction:. Subject to adjustment as provided in Section,4ft®) following additional maximums are imposed emithe
Plan:

-5



(i) The maximum number of Shares that may be issue@gtions intended to be Incentive Stock Optiondl $fl&500,000 Share

(i) For any Award intended to I“performanc-based compensati” (as that term is used for purposes of Code Sec6@@ni)), no
more than 300,000 Shares may be subject to OpdilntisStock Appreciation Rights granted to any odévidual during any
calenda-year period (regardless of when such Shares areetsble).

(i) For any Award intended to t“performanc-based compensati” (as that term is used for purposes of Code Sec8@(m)) othel
than an Option or Stock Appreciation Right payabl8hares, no more than 150,000 Shares plus no tmaneb1,000,000 may be
subject to such other Awards granted to any oniwiohehl during any calendar-year period (regardtfsshen such Shares or cash
are deliverable)

(iv) No more than 800,000 Shares may be issued pursuBestricted Stock Awards, Restricted Stock Unita#ds and Performant
Share Awards under this Ple

Section 5. Eligibility.

Any Employee, including any officer or employeeeditor, of Olin or an Affiliate shall be eligible tee designated a Participant, subject to any
restrictions imposed by applicable law. An Awardyrb@ granted to an Employee prior to the date thelByee first performs services for the
Company or the Affiliate, provided that such Awast&ll not become vested prior to the date the Bysd first performs such services.

Section 6. Awards

(&) Options. The Committee is authorized to grant OptionsddiBipants with the following terms and conditicarsd with such additioni
terms and conditions, not inconsistent with thev@ions of the Plan, as the Committee shall deteen

() Exercise Price The per Share exercise price shall be deternbimetle Committee, provided that such exercise il not be
less than the Fair Market Value of a Share on #ie df the Option grant; provided that, if a Noralified Option is granted in
connection with the recipient’s hiring, promotionsimilar event, the exercise price may be notieas the Fair Market Value of
the Shares on the date on which the recipientédhir promoted (or the similar event occurs)hé Option grant occurs not more
than 90 days after the date of such ev
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Option Term. The term of each Option shall be fixed by the @Guttee, provided that in no event shall the ternafOption be
more than a period of ten years from the datesafiiaint.

Exercise. The Committee shall determine the time or timestdch an Option may be exercised in whole orantjpand the methc
or methods by which, and the form or forms in whietyment of the exercise price with respect themeyg be made

Incentive Stock Option. The terms of any Incentive Stock Option grantedax the Plan shall comply in all respects with
provisions of Section 422 of the Code, or any sssgeprovision thereto, and any regulations promtelg) thereunder. Without
limiting the preceding sentence, the aggregateMarket Value (determined at the time an optiogranted) of Shares with respect
to which Incentive Stock Options are exercisabteltie first time by a Participant during any calengear (under the Plan and any
other plan of the Participant’'s employer corpomatmd its parent and subsidiary corporations piogifbor Options) shall not
exceed such dollar limitation as shall be applieablincentive Stock Options under Section 42hef@ode or a successor
provision.

Termination of Employmentin the event the employment of a Participant kmm an Option has been granted under the Plan sha
be terminated (other than by reason of the Paatittip death or disability), such Option may, subjeche provisions of the next to
last sentence of Section 6(a)(vi) be exerciseth@aextent of the number of shares that the Ppatitiwas entitled to purchase un
such Option at the termination of employment) at tame within three months after such terminatiaich three-month period

may be extended by the Committee), but in no esikeall such three-month period or any such exterg@mit the exercise of an
Option after the expiration date of the Option. iOp$ granted under the Plan shall not be affecyeany change of duties or

position so long as the Participant continues tarb&mployee

Agreement to Servic. Each Participant receiving an Option shall, bgegating the Option, agree that he or she will, mty
employment, devote his or her entire time, energy/skill to the service of Olin and the promotidrits interests, subject to
vacations, sick leave and other absences in aceoedaith the regular policies of, or other reassatssfactory to, Olin and its
Affiliates. Such employment shall (subject to thents of any contract between Olin or any such iatfl and such Participant) be at
the pleasure of Olin or such Affiliate, and shaldt such compensation as Olin or such Affiliatallgetermine from time to time.
Upon termination of such Participant’s employmattter (a) for cause, or (b) voluntarily on the pafrthe Participant and without
the written consent of Olin, any Awards held by linher under the Plan,
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(b)

()

the extent not theretofore exercised or vested| frthwith terminate. Retirement pursuant to aatirement plan of Olin or of an
Affiliate shall be deemed to be a termination ofpdmgyment with Olin’s consent.

(vii) Death. If a Participant to whom an Option has been gdushall die while an Employee, such Option mag)ercised by th
Participant’s executors, administrators, persogptasentatives or distributees or permitted traasteat any time within a period of
one year after the Participant’s death (which gken@ay be extended by the Committee), regardlessether or not such Option
had vested at the time of death. If a Participantiiom an Option has been granted shall die aféeprhher employment has
terminated but while the Option remains exercisahie Option may be exercised by the persons destabove at any time within
the longer of (a) the period that the Participantld have exercised the Option had he or she e, dir (b) one year after the date
of death (which period may be extended by the Cdteg)i, but only to the extent the Option was exatalie at the time of the
Participan’s death

(viii) Disability . If a Participant to whom an Option has been gmushall become totally and permanently disabledhat term i
defined in Section 22(e)(3) of the Code (or a sssoeprovision), and the Participant’s employmsrierminated as a result, such
option may be exercised by the Participant or peechitransferee within one year after the datewhination of employment, to t
extent that the Option was exercisable at the tifrtermination of employmen

Stock Appreciation RightsThe Committee is authorized to grant Stock Apiattean Rights to Participants which may but neetretate
to a specific Option granted under the Plan. Sulijethe terms of the Plan and any applicable Awsgteement, each Stock
Appreciation Right granted under the Plan shalfeoan the holder thereof a right to receive, uprarcise thereof, up to the excess ¢
the Fair Market Value of one Share on the datexefase over (ii) the exercise price of the rightspecified by the Committee, which
shall not be less than the Fair Market Value of 8hare on the date of grant of the Stock ApprasiaRight. Subject to the terms of the
Plan and any applicable Award Agreement, the egerngiice, term, methods of exercise, methods aihpay or settlement, including
whether such SAR shall be paid in cash or Shanesany other terms and conditions of any Stock Apiation Right shall be as
determined by the Committee, but in no event shalterm of a Stock Appreciation Right exceed aogeof ten years from the date of its
grant.

Other Stock Award.

(i) Issuance. The Committee is authorized to grant Awards adtReted Stock, Restricted Stock Units and PerforcesShares t
Participants
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Dividends and Dividend Equivalent®\n Award (including without limitation an Opticor Stock Appreciation Right) may provide
the Participant with the right to receive dividgrayments or dividend equivalent payments with resfmeShares subject to the
Award (both before and after the Shares subjetttddAward are earned, vested, or acquired), whighm@nts may be either made
currently or credited to an account for the Pgutiait, and may be settled in cash or Shares aswetst by the Committee. Any
such settlements, and any such crediting of divddear dividend equivalents or reinvestment in Shareay be subject to such
conditions, restrictions and contingencies as tbmittee shall establish, including the reinvesttérsuch credited amounts in
Share equivalent

Restrictions. Any such Award shall be subject to such condgjarstrictions and contingencies as the Committag impose
(including, without limitation, any limitation orhé right to vote Restricted Stock or the rightdoaive any dividend or other right
property), which may lapse separately or in comtmnaat such time or times, as the Committee mayrdappropriate, provided
that in order for a Participant to vest in Award®kestricted Stock, the Participant must remaithememploy of Olin or an Affiliate
for a period of not less than one (1) year afterghant of a Restricted Stock Award that includes or more performance criteria,
and not less than three (3) years after the grfamiRestricted Stock Award that does not include onmore performance criteria,
each case subject to Section 9 hereof and sulbjeeli¢f for specified reasons as may be approyettiéd Committee.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee magngrAwards for Restricted Stock for an aggregataber of Shares not-
exceed 85,000 which vest in less than one (1) gitar the date of grant, including immediate vestinith or without any
performance criterie

Forfeiture. Except as otherwise determined by the Committpen termination of employment for any reason dutire applicable
restriction period, all Shares of Restricted Stsiilk subject to restriction shall be forfeited am@cquired by Olir

PerformanceBased Awards The Committee may designate whether any such dsMaging granted to a Participant is intended to
be “performance-based compensation” as that tetsdd in Section 162(m) of the Code. Any Award ssighated shall be
conditioned on the achievement of one or more perdoce measures. Performance measures that magthdythe Committee
for such purpose shall be based on one or motgedbtlowing criteria, on an absolute or a relatbhasis:

(A) cash flow,



(d)

(B) earnings per shar

(C) EBITDA,

(D) Economic Value Added/EVA,
(E) netincome

(F) operating profit

(G) pre-tax profit,

(H) return on capital

(D return on equity

(J) return on net assel
(K) revenues, an

(L) total shareholder retur

For Awards intended to be “performance-based cosgiém,” the grant of the Awards and the estableshinof the performance
measures shall be made during the period requitddruCode Section 162(m).

Forms of Payment Under AwardSubject to the terms of the Plan and of any apple Award agreement, payments to be made by Olin

or an Affiliate upon the grant, exercise, or paytrfran Award may be made in such form or formghasCommittee shall determine,
including, without limitation, cash, Shares, oteecurities, other Awards, or other property or eombination thereof, and may be made
in a single payment or transfer, in installmentspm a deferred basis, in each case in accordaitikeules and procedures established by
the Committee. Notwithstanding the foregoing, thgment of the exercise price of an Option shabligect to the following

(i) Subject to the following provisions of this subsectthe full exercise price for Shares purchasezhithe exercise of any Option
shall be paid at the time of such exercise (extegit in the case of an exercise arrangement apgroy the Committee and
described below, payment may be made as soon eticplde after the exercise

(i) The exercise price shall be payable in cash oebgldring, by either actual delivery of Shares oatbgstation, Shares acceptable to
the Committee, which Shares were either acquirdéebat six months before the exercise date or sedhon the open market, and
valued at Fair Market Value as of the day of exsacor in any combination thereof, as determinethbyCommittee

(i) The Committee may permit a Participant to elegap the exercise price upon the exercise of ano@ity irrevocably authorizing
a third party to sell Shares (or a sufficient pmrtof the Shares) acquired upon exercise of aro®ptind remit to Olin a sufficient
portion of the sale proceeds to pay the entirecseprice and any tax withholding resulting froatls exercise
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(e) Limits on Transfer of AwardsNo Award (other than Released Securities) ortriigareunder shall be assignable or transferabke by
Participant, other thai

(f)

0
(ii)

by will or the laws of descent and distribution, (orthe case of an Award of Restricted Securite®)lin); or

in the case of Awards other than Incentive StockdDpg, to the extent permitted under the term$iefAward, by a gift or domestic
relations order to any Family Member, to a trusivhich the Participant and/or his or her Family Mems hold more than 50% of
the beneficial interest, to a foundation in whibk Participant and/or Family Members control theagement of assets, and any
other entity in which the Participant and/or hisher Family Members own more than 50% of the votitigrests

For purposes of this provision, a transfer to dityeim exchange for an interest in that entitylshanstitute a gift.

Genera.

(i) No Cash Consideration for Awar. Participants shall not be required to make asp gayment for the granting of an Award exi
for such minimum consideration as may be requisedgplicable law

(i) Awards May Be Granted Separately or Togeth&wards may be granted either alone or in additigrin tandem with, or in
substitution for any other Award or any award ondfé granted under any other plan or arrangeme@iia or any Affiliate, or as
payment for or to assure payment of an award oefitegranted under any such other such plan ongement, provided that the
purchase or exercise price under an Option or dtlard encompassing the right to purchase Shamdbsreit be reduced by the
cancellation of such Award and the substitutioamdther Award. Awards so granted may be grantéee#t the same time as or at
a different time from the grant of such other Awsaad awards or benefit

(i) General Restriction. Delivery of Shares or other amounts under the Blell be subject to the followin

(A) Notwithstanding any other provision of the PlaninGlhall have no liability to deliver any Shareglanthe Plan or make al
other distribution of benefits under the Plan usigsch delivery or distribution would comply with @pplicable laws
(including, without limitation, the requirementstbe Securities Act of 1933), and the applicabtpirements of any securiti
exchange or similar entit
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(B) To the extent that the Plan provides for issuarictazk certificates to reflect the issuance ofi8hahe issuance may be
effected on a nc-certificated basis, to the extent not prohibitedabyplicable law or the applicable rules of any ktexchange

Agreement With Olir. An Award under the Plan shall be subject to gecims and conditions, not inconsistent with thenPées the
Committee shall, in its sole discretion, prescriblee terms and conditions of any Award to any Bigxdint may be reflected in such
form of written document as is determined by thenButtee. A copy of such document shall be provittethe Participant, and the
Committee may, but need not, require the Partitiparign a copy of such document, (an “Award Agreat” regardless of
whether any Participant signature is requir

Beneficiary. A Participant may, in the manner establishedhey@ommittee, designate a beneficiary or benefasawith respect t
any Award to exercise the rights of the Participantl to receive any property distributable, ugwndeath of the Participant. Each
Award, and each right under any Award, shall be@gable, during the Participant’s lifetime, only the Participant or a permitted
transferee, or, if permissible under applicable bgvthe Participar s guardian or legal representati

No Lien or Security Interet. No Award (other than Released Securities), andgit under any such Award, may be pledged,
attached or otherwise encumbered other than inr fafv®lin, and any purported pledge, attachmengrmumbrance thereof other
than in favor of Olin shall be void and unenfordeadgainst Olin or any Affiliate

No Rights to Award:.. No Employee, Participant or other Person shalétemy claim to be granted an Award, and ther@is n

obligation for uniformity of treatment of Employedarticipants or beneficiaries of Awards underRifen. The terms and
conditions of Awards need not be the same witheetstp each recipient. The prospective recipierstrnyf Award under the Plan
shall not, with respect to such Award, be deemdutht@ become a Participant, or to have any rightts mspect to such Award,
until and unless such recipient shall have execatedgreement or other instrument accepting therdweuired by the Committee
and delivered a fully executed copy thereof to (dimd otherwise complied with the then applicabtens and condition:

Withholding. All distributions under the Plan are subject ithtwlding of all applicable taxes, and, excepbterwise provided k
the Committee, the delivery of any Shares or ollegrefits under the Plan to a Participant are camditl on satisfaction of the
applicable withholding requirements. The Commitiaets discretion, and subject to st
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requirements as the Committee may impose pridrgatcurrence of such withholding, may permit swithholding obligations to
be satisfied through cash payment by the Partitjparough the surrender of Shares which the Rpatit already owns, or through
the surrender of Shares to which the Participaathisrwise entitled under the Plan.

(ix) Other Compensation Arrangementsothing contained in the Plan shall prevent @lirmany Affiliate from adopting or continuing
effect other or additional compensation arrangemertd such arrangements may be either generallicabple or applicable only
specific cases

(x) No Right to Employmer. The grant of an Award shall not be construedigsg a Participant the right to be retained in émeploy
of Olin or any Affiliate. Nothing in the Plan or yward Agreement shall limit the right of Olin an Affiliate at any time to
dismiss a Participant from employment, free from kability or any claim under the Plan or the Awakgreement

(xi) Governing Law. The validity, construction and effect of the P&ard any rules and regulations relating to the Bl be
determined in accordance with the laws of the Siateonnecticut, excluding any conflicts or choafdaw rule or principle that
might otherwise refer construction or interpretatad this Plan or any award Agreement to the suibistalaw of another
jurisdiction.

(xii) Severability. If any provision of the Plan or any Award is deteed to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable asrto any Person
Award, or would disqualify the Plan or any Awardgch provision shall be construed or deemed ametadeonform to applicable
laws, or, if it cannot be so construed or deemedratted without, in the determination of the Comreittmaterially altering the
intent of the Plan or the Award, such provisionlisha stricken as to such Person or Award, ande¢hginder of the Plan and any
such Award shall remain in full force and effe

(xiii) No Trust or Fund Create. Neither the Plan nor any Award shall create ocdiestrued to create a trust or separate fundyokemna
or a fiduciary relationship between Olin or anyiliite and a Participant or any other Person. Boetktent that any Person acquires
a right to receive payments from Olin or any A& pursuant to an Award, such right shall be eatgr than the right of any
unsecured general creditor of Olin or any Affili

(xiv) No Fractional Share. No fractional Shares shall be issued or delivgrgguant to the Plan or any Award, and the Conaighall
determine whether cash, other securities or ottegreuty shall be paid or transferr

-13-



in lieu of any fractional Shares, or whether suettional Shares or any rights thereto shall beelad, terminated or otherwise
eliminated.

(xv) Share Certificate. All certificates for Shares or other securitietivered under the Plan pursuant to any Award eretkercise
thereof shall be subject to such stop transferrerdied other restrictions as the Committee may dadrisable under the Plan or the
rules, regulations and other requirements of thmuftees and Exchange Commission, any stock exahapgn which such Shares
or other securities are then listed, and any agplecFederal or state securities laws, and the dtieermay cause a legend or
legends to be put on any such certificates to naplpeopriate reference to such restrictic

(xvi) Conflict with Plan. In the event of any inconsistency or conflictvibegn the terms of the Plan and an Award Agreentieaterms
of the Plan shall goveri

Section 7. Amendment and Termination

(@)

(b)

Amendments to the Ple. The Board or the Committee may amend, susperdpuiiinue or terminate the Plan, including, with
limitation, any amendment, suspension, discontionair termination that would impair the rightsasfy Participant, or any other holder
or beneficiary of any Award theretofore grantedhwit the consent of any shareholder, Participgthgr holder or beneficiary of an
Award, or other Person; provided, however, thatwitbstanding any other provision of the Plan oy &ward Agreement, without the
approval of the shareholders of Olin, no such ammand, suspension, discontinuation or terminaticall $le made that woul(

(i) increase the total number of Shares available fears under the Plan or the total number of Sheubgect to one or mol
categories of Awards pursuant to Section 4(c)jtimee case except as provided in Section 4

(i) reduce the minimum Option exercise price, excepragided in Section 4(b); «
(iii) permit repricing of Options prohibited by S&m 3(e); and

providedfurtherthat no amendment, suspension, discontinuatioerorihation (i) that would impair the rights of suehrticipant, holder
or beneficiary shall be made with respect to Sacdiof the Plan after a Change in Control, as éefitherein and (ii) may increase the
amount of payment of any Award to any Participant.

Amendments to AwardsThe Committee may waive any conditions or righith respect to, or amend, alter, suspend, discoatior
terminate, an
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(€)

(d)

unexercised Award theretofore granted, prospegtioetetroactively, without the consent of any velet Participant or holder or
beneficiary of an Award, provided that no amendmaltération, suspension, discontinuation or teatiam of an Award that would
impair the rights of such Participant, holder onéféciary shall be made after a Change in Con&eklefined in Section 9; provided
further that the Committee may not increase them@y of any Award granted any Participant.

Adjustments of Awards Upon Certain Acquisitic. In the event Olin or any Affiliate shall assumésianding employee awards or
right or obligation to make future such awardsdanmection with the acquisition of another businesanother Person, the Committee
may make such adjustments, not inconsistent wihehms of the Plan, in the terms of Awards akatlsleem appropriati

Adjustments of Awards Upon the Occurrence of Certdilusual or Nonrecurring Ever. The Committee may make adjustments in
terms and conditions of Awards in recognition ofismal or nonrecurring events (including, withouatitation, the events described in
Section 4(b) hereof) affecting Olin, any Affiliater the financial statements of Olin or any Affiaor of changes in applicable laws,
regulations, or accounting principles, wheneverGoenmittee determines that such adjustments am@ppate in order to prevent
dilution or enlargement of the benefits to be madailable under the Pla

Section 8. Additional Conditions to Enjoyment of Amwls.

(&) The Committee may cancel any unexpired, unpaiceterded Awards if at any time the Participant is inocompliance with all applicab

provisions of the Award Agreement, the Plan andféfiewing conditions:

(i) A Participant shall not render services for anysBeror engage, directly or indirectly, in any besi&which, in the judgment of t
Committee is or becomes competitive with Olin oy &ffiliate, or which is or becomes otherwise pdigial to or in conflict with
the interests of Olin or any Affiliate. Such judgmeshall be based on the Participant’s positiorsrasponsibilities while employed
by Olin or an Affiliate, the Participant’s post elopment responsibilities and position with the atRerson or business, the extent
of past, current and potential competition or cohfhetween Olin or an Affiliate and the other Rer®r business, the effect on
customers, suppliers and competitors of the Ppditis assuming the post employment position, théalines established in the
then current edition of Olis’ Standards of Ethical Business Practices, andathein considerations as are deemed relevant g
applicable facts and circumstances. The Participhaall be free, however, to purchase as an invedtoreotherwise, stock or other
securities of such Person



(b)

(©)

(d)

()

business so long as they are listed upon a recegisizcurities exchange or traded over the couemérsuch investment does not
represent a substantial investment to the Partitipaa greater than 1% equity interest in the wigion or business.

(i)  Participant shall not, without prior written authmation from Olin, disclose to anyone outside Otinuse in other than O’s
business, any secret or confidential informatiorgwledge or data, relating to the business of @ian Affiliate in violation of his
or her agreement with Olin or the Affiliat

(iii) A Participant, pursuant to his or her agreemerth @iin or an Affiliate, shall disclose promptly andsign to Olin or the Affiliate &
right, title and interest in any invention or id@atentable or not, made or conceived by the Raatit during employment by Olin
or the Affiliate, relating in any manner to thewadtor anticipated business, research or developmerk of Olin or the Affiliate
and shall do anything reasonably necessary to er@lio or the Affiliate to secure a patent wherprapriate in the United States
and in foreign countrie:

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plare @ommittee in its sole discretion may cancel amadl at any time prior to tr
exercise thereof, if the employment of the Paréioipshall be terminated, other than by reason athdeinless the conditions in this
Section 8 are me

Failure to comply with the conditions of this Seati8 prior to, or during the six months after, axgrcise, payment or delivery pursu
to an Award shall cause the exercise, paymentloretie to be rescinded. Olin shall notify the Peigiant in writing of any such rescissi
within two years after such exercise payment oivdgl and within 10 days after receiving such netihe Participant shall pay to Olin
the amount of any gain realized or payment receaged result of the exercise, payment or delivesginded. Such payment shall be
made either in cash or by returning to Olin the banof Shares that the Participant received in eotion with the rescinded exercise,
payment or delivery

Upon exercise, payment or delivery pursuant to asadl, the Committee may require the Participarstdknowledge the terms and
conditions of the Plan and to certify on a formegtable to the Committee, that he or she is in diamge with the terms and conditions
of the Plan

Nothing herein shall be interpreted to limit thdigations of a Participant under his or her empoggreement or any other agreen
with Olin.

Section 9. Change in Control
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(a) Except as the Board or the Committee may exprgsslyjide otherwise prior to a Change in Control éih@as defined below) in the
event of a Change in Control of Oli

(b)

(i)

(ii)

(i)

all Options and Stock Appreciation Rights then tanding shall become immediately and fully exetglisanotwithstanding an
provision therein for the exercise in installmel

all restrictions and conditions of all Restrictadk and Restricted Stock Units then outstandiradl §ie deemed satisfied as of -
date of the Change in Control; a

all Performance Share Awards shall become vestaindd earned in full and promptly paid to the Badints, cash units in cash
and phantom stock units in the Shares represeiméedily or such other securities, property or cashay be deliverable in respect
of Shares as a result of a Change in Control, withegard to payment schedules and notwithstarttiisicthe applicable
performance cycle or retention cycle shall not Hagen completec

A Change in Control of Olin meanr

(i)

(ii)

the Incumbent Directors cease for any reason tetitate at least a majority of the Board; providleat any person becoming a
director subsequent to the date shareholders appinis/Plan, whose election or nomination for étectvas approved (either by a
specific vote or by approval of the proxy statema®lin in which such person is named as a nomiaedirector, without written
objection to such nomination) by a vote of at |least-thirds of the directors who were, as of theeds such approval, Incumbent
Directors, shall be an Incumbent Director; provid@édwever, that no individual initially appointed, electedrominated as a
director of Olin as a result of an actual or theead election contest with respect to directotasaa result of any other actual or
threatened solicitation of proxies or consents bgrobehalf of any person other than the Board $leatleemed to be an Incumbent
Director;

any Person is or becomes a “beneficial owner” &dd in Rule 13& under the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly securitie:
of Olin representing 20% or more of the combinetingoppower of the Olin Voting Securities; providedowever, that the event
described in this paragraph (ii) shall not be dettoebe a Change in Control if such event resuttsfany of the following: (A) the
acquisition of Olin Voting Securities by Olin oryaof its subsidiaries, (B) the acquisition of Olfieting Securities by any employ
benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored or maiethby Olin or any of its subsidiaries, (C) thguisition of Olin Voting Securities
by any underwriter temporari
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holding securities pursuant to an offering of saehurities, or (D) the acquisition of Olin Voting&urities pursuant to a Non-
Qualifying Transaction (as defined in paragraph){ii

(iii) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, staguighare exchange or similar form of corporatagaation involving Olin or ar
of its subsidiaries (a “Reorganization”) or saletirer disposition of all or substantially all betassets of Olin to an entity that is
not an affiliate of Olin (a “Sale”), unless immetily following such Reorganization or Sale: (A) mahan 50% of the total voting
power (in respect of the election of directorssionilar officials in the case of an entity otheamha corporation) of (x) the entity
resulting from such Reorganization, or the entityal has acquired all or substantially all of tissets of Olin (in either case, the
“Surviving Entity”), or (y) if applicable, the ulihate parent entity that directly or indirectly hesheficial ownership of more than
50% of the total voting power (in respect of thectibn of directors, or similar officials in thesgaof an entity other than a
corporation) of the Surviving Entity (the “Parenttiy”), is represented by Olin Voting Securitiémt were outstanding
immediately prior to such Reorganization or Sale if@pplicable, is represented by shares intacWisiuch Olin Voting Securities
were converted pursuant to such Reorganizatiorata) Sand such voting power among the holders tfieéseén substantially the
same proportion as the voting power of such OlitingpSecurities among the holders thereof immebigigor to the
Reorganization or Sale, (B) no person (other thgneemployee benefit plan (or related trust) spoed@r maintained by the
Surviving Entity or the Parent Entity), is or becesrthe beneficial owner, directly or indirectly,28% or more of the total voting
power (in respect of the election of directorssionilar officials in the case of an entity otheatha corporation) of the outstanding
voting securities of the Parent Entity (or, if thés no Parent Entity, the Surviving Entity) and &€ least a majority of the members
of the board of directors (or similar officialstime case of an entity other than a corporatiorih@fParent Entity (or, if there is no
Parent Entity, the Surviving Entity) following tmensummation of the Reorganization or Sale wertheatime of the approval by
the Board of the execution of the initial agreenpolviding for such Reorganization or Sale, Incunttigirectors (any
Reorganization or Sale which satisfies all of thteda specified in (A), (B) and (C) above beingethed to be a “Non-Qualifying
Transactio”); or

(iv) the stockholders of Olin approve a plan of compliefgidation or dissolution of Olir

(c) In the event that a Participant participateagrees to participate by loan or equity investngetiter than through ownership of less than 1%
of publicly traded securities of another compamya itransaction (“acquisition”) which would resultan
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event described in Section 9(b)(i) or (i), the tiRgpant must promptly disclose such participatiwragreement to Olin. If the Participant so
participates or agrees to participate, no paymemesunder this Plan or by virtue of any Changeantél provisions contained in any
compensation or benefit plan of Olin will be paidthe Participant until the acquiring group in whibe Participant participates or agrees to
participate has completed the acquisition. In thenethe Participant so participates or agreesittigipate and fails to disclose his or her
participation or agreement, the Participant wilt he entitled to any payments under this Plan oritiye of Change in Control provisions in
any Olin compensation or benefit plan, notwithstagany of the terms hereof or thereof.

(d) Anything in this Plan to the contrary notwitlistling and except as set forth below, in the eiteiall be determined that any Payment
would be subject to the Excise Tax, then the Hpetitt shall be entitled to receive an additionalrpant (the “Gross-Up Payment”) in an
amount such that, after payment by the Particip&atl taxes (and any interest or penalties impasith respect to such taxes), including,
without limitation, any income and employment tagasd any interest and penalties imposed with igpereto) and Excise Tax imposed
upon the Gross-Up Payment, the Participant retairsmount of the Gross-Up Payment equal to thesExtax imposed upon the Payments.

(e) Subject to the provisions of Section 9(f),ddterminations required to be made under this @e&;j including whether and when a Grays-
Payment is required, the amount of such Gross-Wmeat and the assumptions to be utilized in argvdahsuch determination, shall be made
by KPMG LLP or such other nationally recognizedtifiedd public accounting firm as may be designdigdhe Participant (the “Accounting
Firm”). The Accounting Firm shall provide detailsdpporting calculations both to Olin and the Pgréint within 15 business days of the
receipt of notice from the Participant that theas been a Payment or such earlier time as is remglibg Olin. The Accounting Firm shall not
determine that no Excise Tax is payable by theiddaaint unless it delivers to the Participant att@ri opinion that failure to report the Excise
Tax on the Participant’s applicable federal incamereturn would not result in the imposition afiegligence or similar penalty. All fees and
expenses of the Accounting Firm shall be bornelgblg Olin. Any Gross-Up Payment, as determinedspant to this Section 9(e), shall be
paid by Olin to the Participant within 5 days oé tteceipt of the Accounting Firm’s determinatiomyAdetermination by the Accounting Firm
shall be binding upon Olin and the Participant.aAgsult of the uncertainty in the application etton 4999 of the Code at the time of the
initial determination by the Accounting Firm herelen, it is possible that Gross-Up Payments thdtnwil have been made by Olin should have
been made (the “Underpayment”), consistent withctileulations required to be made hereunder. Iretleat Olin exhausts its remedies
pursuant to Section 9(f) and the Participant thggess required to make a payment of any Excise Ttse Accounting Firm shall determine t
amount of the Underpayment that has occurred apd@eh Underpayment shall be promptly paid by @ior for the benefit of the
Participant.
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(f) The Participant shall notify Olin in writing @ny claims by the Internal Revenue Service tifiatjécessful, would require the payment by
Olin of the Gross-Up Payment. Such notificationlisbe given as soon as practicable but not laten 880 days after the Participant actually
receives notice in writing of such claim and slaglprise Olin of the nature of such claim and the da which such claim is requested to be
paid; provided, however, that the failure of thetiegant to notify Olin of such claim (or to pralé any required information with respect
thereto) shall not affect any rights granted toRlaeticipant under this Section 9(f) except togktent that Olin is materially prejudiced in the
defense of such claim as a direct result of suithréa The Participant shall not pay such clainopto the expiration of the 30-day period
following the date on which the Participant givests notice to Olin (or such shorter period endinglte date that any payment of taxes with
respect to such claim is due). If Olin notifies Berticipant in writing prior to the expiration sfich period that Olin desires to contest such
claim, the Participant shall:

(i) give Olin any information reasonably requedbgdOlin relating to such claim;

(ii) take such action in connection with contestiugh claim as Olin shall reasonably request itingrifrom time to time,
including, without limitation, accepting legal regsentation with respect to such claim by an attosstected by Olin and reasonably accept
to the Participant;

(iii) cooperate with Olin in good faith in order &dfectively contest such claim; and
(iv) permit Olin to participate in any proceedimgsating to such claim;

provided, however, that Olin shall bear and pay directly all costd axpenses (including additional interest and fpiesiincurred in
connection with such contest, and shall indemnifg hold the Participant harmless, on an after-tesid for any Excise tax or income or
employment tax (including interest and penaltieg)dsed as a result of such representation and payheosts and expenses. Without
limitation on the foregoing provisions of this Seat9(f), Olin shall control all proceedings takienconnection with such contest, and, at its
sole discretion, may pursue or forego any anddailiaistrative appeals, proceedings, hearings anteoences with the applicable taxing
authority in respect of such claim and may, asae discretion, either direct the Participantay the tax claimed and sue for a refund or
contest the claim in any permissible manner, aedPdirticipant agrees to prosecute such contestiéteamination before any administrative
tribunal, in a court of initial jurisdiction and me or more appellate courts, as Olin shall deterprovided, however, that, if Olin directs thi
Participant to pay such claim and sue for a ref@ilih shall advance the amount of such paymertied™articipant, on an interest-free basis,
and shall indemnify and hold the Participant hassj®n an after-tax basis, from any Excise Taxioome tax (including interest or penalties)
imposed with respect to such advance or with reégpeamy imputed income in
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connection with such advance; gmavided, further, that any extension of the statute of limitatioelating to payment of taxes for the taxable
year of the Participant with respect to which sochtested amount is claimed to be due is limitddlgdo such contested amount. Furtherm
Olin’s control of the contest shall be limited &3ues with respect to which the Gross-Up Paymentdime payable hereunder, and the
Participant shall be entitled to settle or contastthe case may be, any other issue raised bytdr@al Revenue Service or any other taxing
authority.

(g) If, after the receipt by the Participant of an amtocadvanced by Olin pursuant to Section 9(f), tagiBipant becomes entitled to receive
any refund with respect to such claim, the Partiotpshall (subject to Olis’complying with the requirements of Section 9(mptly pay
to Olin the amount of such refund (together witly arterest paid or credited thereon after taxesicgiple thereto). If, after the receipt by
the Participant of an amount advanced by Olin pamsto Section 9(f), a determination is made thatRarticipant shall not be entitled to
any refund with respect to such claim, and Olingdoet notify the Participant in writing of its imtieto contest such denial of refund prior
to the expiration of 30 days after such determamatihen such advance shall be forgiven and sbalbh@ required to be repaid and the
amount of such advance shall offset, to the extereof, the amount of Grc-Up Payment required to be pa

(h) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Sect®rOlin may, in its sole discretion, withhold apaly over to the Internal Reven
Service or any other applicable taxing authority,the benefit of the Participant, all or any pomtbf the Gross-Up Payment, and the
Participant hereby consents to such withhold

(i) Definitions. The following terms shall have theléoing meanings for purposes of this Sectiol

(A) “Excise Tax” shall mean the excise tax imposed égtien 4999 of the Code, together with any intecegtenalties imposed with
respect to such excise ti

(B) A “Paymer” shall mean any payment or distribution in the ranfrcompensation (within the meaning of Sectio@@®)(2) of the
Code) to or for the benefit of the Participant, thiee paid or payable pursuant to this Plan or otfser.

Section 10. Effective Date and Term

Subject to the approval of Olin’s shareholderd1at2003 annual shareholders meeting the Planishalifective as of January 30, 2003 (the
“Effective Date”"); provided, however, that to thetent that Awards are granted under the Plan poidis approval by shareholders, the Awards
shall be contingent on approval of the Plan bysth&reholders of Olin at such annual meeting. Tha Bhall be unlimited in duration and, in
the event of Plan termination, shall remain in effees long as any Awards under it are outstandimyided; however, that, to the extent
required by the Code, no Incentive Stock Option
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may be granted under the Plan on a date that is than ten years from the date the Plan is adopted.
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Exhibit 10(t
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wiill
Inter Office Memo
TO: Donald W. Griffin DATE: January 31, 200

FROM: Peter C. Kosch CC:

SUBJECT: RETIREMENT ARRANGEMENTS

Don, | thought it appropriate that | summarize imemo our final understanding of all the items theate been discussed with respect to your
retirement as an active employee of the Compang.ptipose is to ensure that we have captured gikeafems and have clarity on the terms.

O Board Matters

. Retainer: In lieu of the $25,000 annual stock regaand $5,000 excess retainer, paid tc-employee directors, for 2002 vy
will receive a $200,000 cash retainer, for a minmof one year, effective May 1, 2002 as the nonieyge Chairman of the
Corporation’s Board of Directors. This retainerlhi¢ paid quarterly. For the period May-Decembed2§ou will receive a
pro rata portion of the $25,000 annual stock retaamd a pro rata portion of the $5,000 exces@mtépaid in cash), paid to
other no-employee directors

. Meeting Fees: As a n-employee member of the Board you will receive nmgetees of $1,500 per meeting for Bo
meetings and attendance at any Board Committeenmgesftwhich you are a member. The Committee Ctegrfor your
service as Chair of the Executive Committee forgbgod April 200:-April 2003 is waived

. Annual Stock Grant: For 2002, you will receive a pata portion of the annual grant of shares ofroom stock with ai
aggregate fair market value equal to $24,000, redrid the nearest 100 shares. This amount wilrbeafed for the period y«
were a non-employee director in 2002 (May-Decen2é?). The 1997 Stock Plan for Non-employee Dinexc(the “Plan”)
provides for the pro ration of shares as follow42lof number of shares credited to the other thredor the $24,000 grant
multiplied by the number of months of service (DA x 8=1,000 shares). Beginning in 2003, you héllentitled to receive
the standard annual stock award as e-employee director in accordance with the P

U Long Term Compensatic

0 Stock Options: In October, 2001 the Compensatiomi@ittee approved the early vesting on April 30,20066,640 stocl
options granted to you on January 27, 2000 whicteweginally scheduled to vest on January 27, 26@8 the Company’s
written policy and practice, your vested stock opsi are extended to term upon your retirerr



d Performance Shares: In October, 2001 the Compens@bmmittee also approved not pro-rating your @d @erformance
shares granted on February 8, 2001 (the grant teadded for prerating upon retirement

U Performance Accelerated Vesting Options (PAVO’$)e PAVO's vest the earlier of 12/27/09 or theday in any 30 day
calendar day period that Olin’s stock price is édgoa@r greater than $28. Upon your retirement,ghant provides for a five
year extension from the retirement date of thequarnce period and the options are cancelled i§thek price does n
exceed the $28 trigger price within the five yearigd (i.e. in your case on or before April 30, 2)(

You will also be entitled to continue the use ofiyoompany car, cellular telephone, and home stgcsystem through your tenu
as Chairman of the Board, as well as certain dttedental benefits while you remain a Board membé#rof which in the
aggregate are estimated not to exceed $35,000 khnr

Agreed to and Acknowledged B

/s/  Donald W. Griffin

Donald W. Griffin



PETER C. KOSCHt

Senior Vice President, Corporate Aff:
Phone: 202-75(-2814

Fax: 20z-75(-3205

E-mail: pckosche@corp.olin.co

Mr. John Mcintosh
2008 Woodchase Way, NE
Cleveland, TN 37311

Dear John:

Exhibit 10(u

Clin

501 MERRITT 7, P.O. BOX 4500, NORWALK, CT 06856-450

April 12, 2002

This letter serves to confirm and clarify Olin’snemitment to lend you up to $60,000. The terms amdlitions of this loan are as

follows:

» The term of the loan will be five years

» No interest shall accrue on the outstanding praddialance if paid before the five year term hgsirex.

» Principal on this note shall be repaid in instalseor full beginning twelve months after the Id&s been executed.

» Interest will accrue on overdue principal at a fliating rate per annum equal to the sum of thedaong rate plus 3% from the di
date of such principal. The borrowing rate shalaméhe base rate announced by Citibank, N.A., NevkYNY or in the absence of
such rate, the market rate as shall be determineldebChief Financial Officer or Treasur

* Repayment date shall mean the earlier of five yars loan execution and/or the date on which yease for any reason to be

Olin’s active payroll

If you have any gquestions, please do not hesitatalt me.

OLIN CORWPOMRRMTI ON

‘% Omitted pursuant to a request for confidentialttresnt and filed separately with the Commise¢”



Clin

501 MERRITT 7, P.O. BOX 4500, NORWALK, CT 06866-450

PETER C. KOSCHE
Senior Vice President, Corporate Affa

Phone: 20:-75C-2814
Fax: 20:-75C-3205
E-mail: pckosche@corp.olin.co

April 11, 2002
To Whom It May Concern:

This serves as a formal commitment that Olin Caapon will lend John L. Mcintosh, SS #[***], up %60,000.00. This commitment is valid
for a period of eighteen months from the date of lstter.

If you have any gquestions, please do not hesitatalt.

Sincerely,

[s/ P.C. KOSCHE
P.C. Kosche

“xx Omitted pursuant to a request for confidentialttresnt and filed separately with the Commise”



Exhibit 10(aa
AMENDMENT TO PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT

BETWEEN
OLIN SUNBELT, INC.
AND
1997 CHLORALKALI VENTURE, INC.

THIS AMENDMENT TO PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT is enteratto as of the ®day of January, 2003, between Olin Sunbelt, Inc., a
Delaware corporation (“OSI”), and 1997 ChloralRééinture, Inc. (“1997 CVI"), a Delaware corporation.

WHEREAS, OSl and 1997 CVI entered into a Partneratgreement dated as of August 23, 1996, pursaanhich OSI and 1997 CVI
(collectively, the “Partners”) established the Seih&hlor Alkali Partnership, a Delaware generatmpership (the “Partnership”);

WHEREAS, such Partnership Agreement has been prglyiamended three (3) times each by an Amendrodpattnership Agreement,
two of which were dated as of December 23, 199@,cne dated as of April 30, 1998 (as amended,Plagtfiership Agreement”, with all
capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein iigithe meaning set forth in the Partnership Agregjne

WHEREAS, the Partnership is undertaking a 40,000 E@pacity upgrade of the Facility (the “40,000 E€tdject”) pursuant to Section
1.11(a) of the Partnership Agreement; and

WHEREAS, in connection with the 40,000 ECU Profe&l and 1997 CVI further desire to amend the Peship Agreement in certain
respects as set forth herein;

NOW THEREFORE, OSl and 1997 CVI agree as follows:
1. All references to the capacity of the Facilityalb be changed from 250,000 ECUs to 290,000 ECUs.

2. (a) The Partners shall make capital contribstias and when necessary to fund the costs of tB8@&CU Project. All such capital
contributions shall be made in proportion to thetiRas’ ownership interest set forth in Sectior{a) of the Partnership Agreement. The first
capital call for contributions by each Partner wigspect to the 40,000 ECU Project shall be iratheunt previously agreed by the Partners,
which shall be paid by each Partner to the Patierso later than January 15, 2003. This first tdmiall shall be applied to payment of
expenses incurred by Operator in 2002 in conneetitimthe 40,000 ECU Project. After this initialpigal call, the Partners will fund the
expenses incurred for completi



of the 40,000 ECU Project through equal capitakiiontions pursuant to periodic cash calls madéhleyOperator.

(b) In addition, the Partners shall make capitatdbutions as and when needed to fund the Pattipssobligation pursuant to the
Operating Agreement to reimburse Olin Corporatimmits previous capital costs expended in the esjoanof its brine production unit. To the
extent that the timing or structure of such reinsleanent can produce a tax efficiency without crggdin adverse economic condition for either
Partner individually, the Partners will use readeafforts to structure the reimbursement to aaptioe tax efficiencies.

3. Except as amended herein, all other provisidiseoPartnership Agreement remain unchanged afdliforce and effect.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Partners have executedAhiendment the day and year first written above.
OLIN SUNBELT, INC.

/s/ John L. Mclntosh

By: Name: John L. Mcintosh
Title: President, Olin Sunbelt, In

1997 CHLORALKALI VENTURE, INC.

/s/ John Rastetter

By: Name: John Rastett
Title:



OLIN CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

EXHIBIT 12

(Unaudited)
(In millions)
Years Ended December 31
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Earnings:
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforees $ 270 $ (13 ¢$131 $ 27 $ 59
Add (deduct).
Equity in income of nc-consolidated affiliate — — 2 — —
Dividends received from n-consolidated affiliate — — 1 — —
Capitalized interes — — — — (@D}
Fixed charges as described bel 36 29 27 27 31
Total $ 9 $ 16 $157 $ 54 $ 89
Fixed charges
Interest expensed and capitali: $ 26 $ 18 $ 16 $ 16 $ 18
Estimated interest factor in rent expe 10 11 11 11 13
Total $ 36 $ 29 $ 27 $ 27 $ 31
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges — — 5.8 2.C 2.9

(1) Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeetawas insufficient to cover fixed charges by aginately $27 million and $1

million for the years ended December 31, 2002 @i 2respectively



Exhibit 21
SUBSIDIARIES OF OLIN CORPORATION 1
(as of December 31, 2002)

Company % Ownership Jurisdiction

(Direct/Indirect)

A.J. Oster Caribe, In 10C DE

A.J. Oster Foils, Inc 10C DE

A.J. Oster West, Inc 10C RI
Bridgeport Brass Corporaticn 10C IN

Bryan Metals, Inc3 10C OH
Chase Industries In 10C DE
Chase Brass & Copper Company, lhc. 10C DE

Hunt Trading Co 10C MO

LTC Reserve Corp. 10C DE
Monarch Brass & Copper Cor 10C NY
Monarch Brass & Copper of New England Cdérp. 10C RI

New Haven Copper Compar 10 CT

Olin Aegis partnershi 10C DE

Olin Benefits Management, Ing. 90 CA

Olin Engineered Systems, Ir 10C DE

Olin Environmental Management, Irfc. 90 DE

Olin Far East, Limitet 10C DE

Olin Financial Services In 10C DE

Olin Sunbelt, Inc 10C DE
Ravenna Arsenal, In 10C OH
Sunbelt Chlor Alkali Partnersh 50 DE
Waterbury Rolling Mills, Inc53 10C CT
Nutmeg Insurance Limite 10C Bermuda
Olin Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd 10C Singapore
Olin Australia Limited 10C Australia
Olin Brass Japan, In 10C  Japar
Olin Canada Inc 10C Canade
Olin Global Services Mexic 10C Mexico
Olin Hunt Specialty Products S.t 10C ltaly

Olin Industrial (Hong Kong) Limite: 10C Hong Kong
Olin Luotong Metals (GZ) Co., Ltc 80 China
Olin Mexico S.A. de C.V 10C  Mexico
Olin (UK) Limited 10C  United Kingdon
Reductone Brasil Ltd: 10C Brazil
Yamahi-Olin Metal Corporatior 50 Japar

1 Omitted from the following list are the names oftaa subsidiaries which, if considered in the &ggte as a single subsidiary, would
constitute a significant subsidial

2 d/b/a “Olin Brass, Indianapolis” and “Olin Brasadlanapolis Facility” in CA, IL, IN, NJ, NC, OH, BRI and TX.
3 d/b/a“Bryan Metals of Ohi” in NJ.

4 Indirect subsidiary, wholly-owned by Olin’s whollywned subsidiary, Chase Industries Inc.
5 Indirect subsidiary, whol-owned by Olir's wholly-owned subsidiary, Monarch Brass & Copper Ci

6 Class A shares, all of which are held directly ardirectly by Olin Corporation, have the right teet 4 directors. Class B shares, none of
which are held directly or indirectly by Olin Comation, have the right to elect 1 direct



Exhibit 22
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ CONSENT
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Olinpdaation:

We consent to incorporation by reference in thei®egion Statements No. 333-101027 and No. 33329Dbn Form S-3 and Nos. 33-28593,
33-00159, 33-40346, 33-41202, 333-05097, 333-17829%;18619, 333-39305, 333-39303, 333-71693, 33R-56,/333-67086, 333-35818,
333-54308, 333-56690, 333-72244, 333-97759, 33338&hd 333-88990 on Form S-8 of Olin Corporationwfreport dated January 30,
2003, relating to the consolidated balance shdea®dio Corporation and subsidiaries as of Decen@ier2002 and 2001, and the related
consolidated statements of income, shareholdetstye@nd cash flows for each of the years in tiree-year period ended December 31, 2002,
which report appears in the December 31, 2002 dmapart on Form 10-K of Olin Corporation.

/s KPMG LLP
KPMG LLP

Stamford, CT
March 6, 2003



Exhibit 99.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 13505ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACTF2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Olin Coration (the “Company”) on Form 1R-for the period ended December 31, 2002 as filed
the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “R&pdrtloseph D. Rupp, President and Chief Exeeu@ificer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptediant$o Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act &2@hat: (1) the Report fully complies
with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the SéesrExchange Act of 1934; and (2) the informatimmtained in the Report fairly presents
all material respects, the financial condition aesllts of operations of the Company.

/s/ JOSEPH D. RUPP

Joseph D. Rup
President and Chief Executive Offic

Dated: March 6, 200



Exhibit 99.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 13505ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACTF2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Olin Coration (the “Company”) on Form 1R-for the period ended December 31, 2002 as filed
the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “R&pdriAnthony W. Ruggiero, Executive Vice Presidemd Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section012& adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sasb@mley Act of 2002, that: (1) the
Report fully complies with the requirements of $attl3(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 193 &) the information contained in the
Report fairly presents, in all material respedis, financial condition and results of operationshef Company.

/sl ANTHONY W. RUGGIERO

Anthony W. Ruggiert
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

Dated: March 6, 200



